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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Corporate Information (Continued)

Hong Kong H-share Registrar and Transfer
Office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

46th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Share Information

1,666,091,366 Shares
(1,261,291,366 A Shares,
and 404,800,000 H Shares) (Note)

Number of issued shares as at
30 June 2012:

Note: 252,258,273 new A Shares and 80,960,000 new H Shares were issued as bonus shares

on 17 August 2012.

Board lot (H Shares)
(A Shares)

1,000 H Shares
100 A Shares

Abbreviation of the Company’s share and Stock Codes
A Shares: Weichai Power (#£¢8) /1) 000338
H Shares: Weichai Power (#£¢%) /) 2338

Stock Exchange Listings
A Shares: Shenzhen Stock Exchange

H Shares: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)

Investors and Media Relations

Securities Department
Tel: (86) 536-229 7068
Fax: (86) 536-819 7073

Website: www.weichai.com

The Company:

Hill & Knowlton Asia Ltd
Tel: (852) 2894 6321
Fax: (852) 2576 1990

Website: www.hillandknowlton.com

Public Relations Consultant:
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Financial Summary

Revenue amounted to approximately RMB27,060 million, a decrease of

approximately 26.1%.

Net Profit Attributable to the Shareholders of the Parent amounted to
approximately RMB1,897 million, a decrease of approximately 45.8%.

Basic Earnings Per Share was approximately RMB1.14, a decrease of

approximately 45.7%.

Pursuant to the Consultation Conclusions on Acceptance of Mainland
Accounting and Auditing Standards and Mainland Audit Firms for Mainland
Incorporated Companies Listed in Hong Kong published by Hong Kong Stock
Exchange in December 2010, Mainland incorporated issuers listed in Hong Kong
shall be allowed to prepare their financial statements using China Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises. As such, on the annual general meeting
2010 of the Company held on 18 May 2011, it was resolved that with effect
from 2011, the Company would only adopt Mainland accounting standards
in its preparation of financial statements and would no longer use Hong Kong

accounting standards at the same time in preparing financial statements.

(Important notice: This report is published in Chinese and English versions. In

case of inconsistency, the Chinese version shall prevail.)
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Chairman’s Statement

Interim Report 2012 FRHEAZRE

ESViE S

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | would like to present the audited interim results of the

Company for the six months ended 30 June 2012 (the “Period”).

I. Review of Operations
Entering the first half of 2012, amidst the complexity and severity of the
economic conditions both at home and abroad, the Chinese Communist
Party and the State Council adhered to the overall theme of “making
steady progress” in balancing the relationship among maintaining a faster
and steady economic development, adjustment of economic structure and
management of inflation expectation. Steady economic growth was given
priority in the government’s implementation of its pro-active fiscal policies
and robust monetary policies in its increasing efforts in adjusting and fine-
tuning policies. The national economy was steady in general and attained

positive growth at the same time.

BRRR

AANEBRREFGERARABLE—_FT—ZFX
A=+ AN EA(TAEE DR ROPEE

==
i e

— ~ L8 [l

EA-T——FLEHF WHEMRRELD
BARIMEELS  BhR - BEERERE
PHGER TERETE  EREERIEEE
FRERER  HEKLELBNEEAERK
BH=FENEE EREEREENEE
ME @ BERBEEOMERBEREMNERNE
BHE  MABRERABANE  BERE
HEITRRTR  KEERRBHEE -

07



08  Weichai Power Co., Ltd. %8 H R H R 2

F R E (4

)UDE-

Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

The first half of the year witnessed steady growth in the national
economy which was within expectations. Gross domestic product reached
RMB22.71 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of 7.8%, or a
growth of 8.1% for the first quarter and 7.6% for the second quarter,
illustrating a downward trend of growth from the first to the second
quarter. During the Period, economic growth and fixed asset investment
growth in the PRC slowed down and there were significant downturn
in the heavy-duty truck market. During the Period, the aggregate sales
of heavy-duty trucks in PRC were 371,600 units, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 32%. In particular, the sales for the second quarter
was 168,200 units, which represents a year-on-year decrease of 43.6%
or a quarter-on-quarter decrease of 17.3%. Affected by the downturn
of the heavy-duty truck market, the Company’s aggregate sales of
heavy-duty truck engines amounted to 126,300 units during the Period,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 39.9%. The Company’s share in
the auxiliary market for heavy-duty trucks with a gross weight of above
14 tonnes market reached 34%, maintaining the Company’s absolute
leading position in the industry. Relying on the competitive advantage of
its products, Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited (BRFEEHY )5

BBR/A 7)), a holding subsidiary of the Company, continued to lead the
industry by reporting an aggregate sales of 49,200 units of heavy-duty
trucks for the first half of the year, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 22.1% which decrease nevertheless was still below industry average.
Shaanxi Fast Gear Co. Ltd. (BREEE 58w BREEAF]), a holding
subsidiary of the Company, has maintained its absolute leading position in
the industry albeit reporting an aggregate sales of 260,200 units of gear

boxes, representing a year-on-year decrease of 41%.

During the Period, signs of downturn appeared in the fixed asset
investment in the PRC, with the total fixed asset investment in the PRC
amounting to RMB15.07 trillion, representing a year-on-year increase
of 20.4% but the rate of increase showed a decrease of 5.2 percentage
points from the corresponding period last year. Investment in real estate
developments amounted to RMB3.06 trillion, representing a year-on-
year growth of 16.6% and a decrease of 16.3 percentage points from
the corresponding period last year. Under such influence, the industry of
construction machinery recorded substantial decrease in sales. During the
Period, the aggregate sales in the PRC’s construction machinery market
were approximately 389,500 units, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 22.9%. In particular, 63,000 units of wheel loaders with a load capacity
of 5 tonnes were sold, representing a year-on-year decrease of 33.3%.
The Company'’s sales of engines for wheel loaders with a load capacity

of 5 tonnes were 39,600 units, representing a year-on-year decrease of
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued) T

47.6%. According to the information published on the website of China
Construction Machinery Network (FF B T2 #4 (= 2.48), the Company’s
market share in the market of wheel loader with a load capacity of 5
tonnes reached 62.3%, maintaining the Company’s leading position in

the area.

During the Period, with our technology innovation, the Company
continued to lead the power technology development trend in the
PRC. For the first half of 2012, the Company reported a sales figure of
117,800 units of 10L and 12L China Il engines, maintaining the stable
leading position of China Ill heavy-duty engine products in heavy-duty
trucks market. Meanwhile, the Company's self researched and developed
“Landking” WP5 and WP7 engines, to which we own intellectual property
rights, were successfully adopted in excavating machinery and passenger
vehicles and gradually gained recognition from customers. During the first
half of the year, the sales of WP5 and WP7 engines amounted to 2,708
units and grew by 78.4% as compared to the same period last year. Of
these sales, 2,382 units were adopted in passenger vehicles, representing
a year-on-year growth of 227.3%. This demonstrated more prominent
competitive advantages of our integrated engine product and the wider

prospects of the development of the Company.

During the Period, the Company adhered to the scientific approach of
“Driven by innovation, and grow organically” for its development, by
continuously enhancing its level of management through adjustment of
its model and structure, and boosting its steady and healthy development.
Firstly, in thoroughly enshrining our notion of Betterment of WOS, we
initiated full participation by our staff members to eliminate wastage
and enhance labour productivity. Secondly, we continued to consolidate
our information-based enhancement, by refining our information service
network and setting up an information system which covers every aspect
of our business operation to enhance work efficiency. Thirdly, all staff
members were arranged to participate in our Product Year campaign.
Product planning, product development, process optimization, supply-
management, quality improvement, after-sale service and betterment
support are the seven aspects which aimed to enhance product standards,
improve brand image and expand international market recognition.
Fourthly, the Company adhered to its self-innovative initiative. Efforts
were stepped up in recruiting high-end talents from abroad, improving
the organizational structure of technology centres and cooperating with
domestic and international research institutes and tertiary institutions to

boost the research and development of cutting-edge core technologies.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

II.

During the Period, the Company’s revenue decreased by approximately
26.12% over the same period of 2011 to approximately RMB27,060
million. The net profit attributable to shareholders was approximately
RMB1,897 million, representing a decrease of approximately 45.82% over
the same period of 2011. The basic earnings per share were RMB1.14,

representing a decrease of 45.71% over the same period of 2011.

Dividend and Capitalisation from Retained
Earnings

The Board proposed on 29 March 2012 to distribute 2 bonus shares for
every 10 Shares held by its shareholders and a cash dividend of RMB1.00
(including tax) for every 10 shares based on the total share capital of
1,666,091,366 shares of the Company; which has been subsequently
approved by the Company’s shareholders at the annual general meeting
held on 29 June 2012.

The Board proposed on 30 August 2012 to distribute an interim cash
dividend of RMB1.00 (including tax) for every 10 shares held by its
shareholders based on the total share capital of 1,999,309,639 shares
of the Company. Please refer to the further announcement to be issued
by the Company for details on the closure of registers of members in

determining the shareholders who are eligible for the interim dividend.

III. Acquisition and Consolidation

IV.

During the Period, there was no material acquisition and consolidation.

Outlook and Prospects

At present, the overall trend of economic development in the PRC is
steady and within expectations. However, given that economic conditions
at home and abroad are still complex with much uncertainty, there exists
high downside pressure. In the second half of the year, it is expected that
the key tone of the PRC’s policy would be steady growth and its pro-
active fiscal policies and robust monetary policies will continue to ensure
the consistency and stability of the macroeconomic policies, while relevant
policies will be fine-tuned to maintain the overall steady economic

conditions.

Notwithstanding the severity of the current economic conditions in the
PRC, the time span and extent of the continuation of the slowdown in

the pace of economic growth shows that it is still better than the period
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

of subprime crisis back in 2008. By using policy means to counteract and
hedge against unfavorable external impact, it is likely that the existing

trend of prolonged economic downturn will be reversed.

In the first half of the year, the economic downturn in the PRC has
brought certain pressure. While adjustment and fine-tuning is expedited
under the nation’s macroscopic economic policy, various ministries and
commissions of the PRC have, under the theme of “securing economic
growth”, launched various rules of implementation to encourage
investment of private funding in monopolistic industries. The Ministry of
Transport also pointed out recently that the automobile purchase tax in
the amount of more than RMB510 billion shall be invested in constructing
highways connecting regions which are under particularly bad conditions.
Quality investments will provide a strong drive for “securing economic

growth”.

The following are the favourable factors for the industrial economic

performance in the second half of the year:

Firstly, the new round of policies to boost domestic demand will
favour stable economic growth. While there are currently greater
downside risks in the macro economy, embarking upon investments has
again become the major means of stablizing economic growth. Since the
end of February, the granting of approvals of major construction projects
in the PRC has obviously been sped up. The gradual launch of projects
focusing on key geographical areas or key industries will effectively
drive the growth of domestic demand, and the growth of investment in

particular.

Secondly, the decrease in consumer price index has paved the way
for the relaxation of the monetary policies. Since June this year, the
central bank of the PRC has, for two times within a short time frame,
reduced the benchmark interest rates applicable to lending and deposit-
taking conducted by financial institutions, which took place after the most
recent decrease three and a half years ago. It is expected that the second
half of the year will see further decrease in consumer price index to less

than 3%, paving the way for the relaxation of the monetary policies.

Thirdly, lower price level of bulk commodities can alleviate the
cost pressure on industrial enterprises. The reduction in the price
level of bulk commodities will to a certain extent lessen the pressure of
importation inflation and alleviate the damage to profit as a result of high

costs.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

According to the figures recently published by the National Bureau of
Statistics of China, the second quarter of the year witnessed a significant
increase in the number of newly-commenced construction projects to
112,900, which was nearly twice the figure in the first quarter of the
year. State funds stated for investment projects for the first six months
was slightly higher than those for the first five months. State funds stated
for the period from January to June grew by 17.0% year-on-year, which
exceeded the figure for the period from January to May by 0.2 percentage

points.

Concluding the above, state policies will be expected to reinforce curbs on
inflation, expand domestic demand and facilitate civilian constructions in
the second half of the year. The combination of robust monetary policies
and proactive fiscal policies will be adopted to enhance the effects of the
PRC's austerity measures in stabilizing the economy. In the second half
of 2012, it is expected that the PRC economy will stabilize and improve,

albeit substantial increase is not probable.

The Company is cautiously optimistic about the development trend of
its related industries. With regard to the heavy-duty trucks market, the
market demand for logistics and transportation vehicles and construction-
related heavy-duty trucks will be driven in a long term basis by a number
of factors, including the sound fundamentals of the Chinese economy,
the progression of the urbanization process and the development strategy
of the regional economy, as well as the constructions of affordable
housing and hydraulic projects in the PRC. With regard to the construction
machinery market, investment growth may increase year-on-year in the
second half of this year due to several favorable factors, such as the
construction of affordable housing, the acceleration of the development
of urbanization and civilian engineering construction, the continual
relaxation of the policies applicable to private investment and the steady
progress of the development strategies of the western regions of China.
The overall demand in the construction machinery sector could be

stronger than that in the first half of the year.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

With the upcoming implementation of the China IV Emission Standards,
and the establishment of the plants for manufacturing engines by the
suppliers of heavy-duty trucks and construction machinery, we anticipate
that there will be more intense competition in PRC's engine market in the
coming years. However, leveraging on our advanced technology, large-
scale and high quality of our production, our unparalleled synergy and a
strong loyal customer base, we will maintain our leading position in the
market of high-power engines and high-duty gear boxes. The directors

have full confidence in the development prospect of the Company.

The Company will further enhance our research and development effort,
complete the marketing for China IV products in batches ahead of
schedule and continue to perfect product performance, so as to better
satisfy customers’ demand and become technologically ready for the
upcoming China IV phase. Meanwhile, the Company will also further
advance product and market structure adjustments. For the diesel engine
segment, the Company will accelerate the pace of optimization and
localization of Moteurs Baudouin’s engines of above 16L, and develop
a complete series of Weichai industry power products. With our WP5/
WP7 engines, we will keep exploring emerging markets such as passenger
vehicles, non-loader construction machinery and medium to heavy-duty
trucks. For the heavy-vehicle segment, we will expedite the research
and production of our third-generation heavy-duty trucks, enhance the
technological contents of such products, in order to prepare for any
subsequent growth. For the gear boxes segment, the Company will
leverage upon the joint-venture projects in collaboration with Caterpillar
to step up its efforts in research and development of AMT and gear boxes
for passenger vehicles, with a view to achieving new breakthrough. For
our component segment, we will step up our research and innovation,
get rid of the situation of homogenous competition, and gradually transit
to power chain, making the component segment an important part of our

business.

At the same time, under the principle of “unifying strategy, independent
operation, resources sharing”, we will accelerate the Company’s
coordinated development of the commercial vehicle segment, power
chain segment and automobile component segment. We will further
integrate the Company’s advantageous resources, fully utilize synergies
and improve our capability against risks. The Company will strive to
become an international enterprise with a focused strategy on complete
engines coupled with the core technology for power assembly, so as to

develop itself into a unique and world-leading equipment manufacturer.

3 A
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Directors are pleased to present a management discussion and analysis of ZESZBMRAREASEEAHE(HE T ——F~
the interim results of operations of the Group for the six months ended 30 June A=+ HIENEA)PEIKL ¥E Y SBES 3R
2012 (the “Period”) as follows: LM - FBOT

IE 2Rl

RRARBBEARNDY RS REREIDEN R
AEEE 22— R NBKRTISHELER
A BEETENEDK ZFRERER

engines, gear boxes and axles. HETE o

I. Industry Analysis L.
The Company is one of the largest manufacturers of high-speed heavy-
duty diesel engines in the PRC and a leading company in the power chain

market. It is equipped with the most comprehensive supply chain of

RRETH
E¥F  BEAKEEEHRAB L E
E BEAEEREBEEIARE22.71

1. Heavy-duty Vehicle Industry 1.
The first half of the year witnessed steady growth in the national

economy which was within expectations. Gross domestic product

reached RMB22.71 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of BET RHEERT78% - Hff » —
7.8%, or a growth of 8.1% for the first quarter and 7.6% for the EEIERE 1% ' —E=EIEKET7 6%
second quarter, illustrating a downward trend of growth from the R EEEEERES o

first to the second quarter.

TAZREARE -+ o B AR O 8 AR T B e [
TEEREEENTEESERD

During the Period, the slowdown of economic growth and fixed

asset investment growth in the PRC had caused a significant

downturn year-on-year in the heavy-duty truck market. Aggregate
sales of heavy-duty trucks during the Period in the PRC were
approximately 371,600 units, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 32%. In particular, the sales figure for the second quarter was
approximately 168,200 units, which represents a year-on-year

decrease of 43.6% or a quarter-on-quarter decrease of 17.3%.

Construction Machinery

During the Period, signs of downturn appeared in the fixed asset
investment in the PRC, with the total fixed asset investment in
the PRC amounting to RMB15.07 trillion, representing a year-
on-year increase of 20.4% but the rate of increase showed a
decrease of 5.2 percentage points from the corresponding period
last year. Investment in real estate developments amounted to
RMB3.06 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of 16.6%
and a decrease of 16.3 percentage points from the corresponding
period last year. Under such influence, the industry of construction
machinery recorded substantial decrease in sales. During the Period,
the aggregate sales in the PRC's construction machinery market
were approximately 389,500 units, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 22.9%. In particular, 63,000 units of wheel loaders
with a load capacity of 5 tonnes were sold, representing a year-on-

year decrease of 33.3%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

II.

The Group’s Business
An analysis of the Group’s business segments is set out in Note X. 3 to the
financial statements. The following are the highlights of the operations

conditions of major products of the Group:

Sale of Diesel Engines

For use in Heavy-duty Trucks

Affected by the downturn of the heavy-duty truck market, the
Company’s aggregate sales of heavy-duty truck engines amounted
to approximately 126,300 units in the Period, representing a year-
on-year decrease of approximately 39.9%. The Company’s market
share in the heavy-duty truck with a gross weight of above 14
tonnes market reached 34%, maintaining the Company’s absolute

leading position in the industry.

For use in Construction Machinery

The Group is also the largest supplier of diesel engines to major
manufacturers of construction machinery (mainly wheel loaders)
with a load capacity of 5 tonnes (and above) in the PRC. During the
Period, the Group's sales of engines for wheel loader with a load
capacity of 5 tonnes were approximately 39,600 units, representing
a year-on-year decrease of approximately 47.6%. According to
the information published on the website of China Construction
Machinery Network (Ff B T2 #48{= 8.48), the Company’s market
share in the market of wheel loader with a load capacity of 5 tonnes
reached 62.3%, maintaining the Company’s leading position in the

area.

Sale of Heavy-duty Trucks

Relying on the competitive advantage of its products, the Group
reported an aggregate sales of approximately 49,200 units of
heavy-duty trucks for the Period, representing a decrease of
approximately 22.1% over the approximately 63,200 units of heavy-
duty trucks sold in the corresponding period of last year, the rate
of decrease being lower than the industry average. Prior to intra-
group elimination, the truck business contributed approximately

RMB13,106 million to the Group’s sales revenue during the Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Sale of Heavy-duty Gear Boxes

During the Period, the Group sold approximately 260,200 units of
heavy-duty gear boxes, representing a decrease of approximately
41% compared to approximately 441,000 units sold in the
corresponding period of 2011, nevertheless maintaining its absolute
leading position in the industry. Prior to intra-group elimination, the
gear boxes business contributed approximately RMB3,773 million to

the Group’s sales revenue during the Period.

Sale of Engine and Heavy-duty Truck Parts
and Components

Apart from the production and sale of diesel engines for trucks
and construction machinery, heavy-duty trucks and heavy-duty
gear boxes, the Group is also engaged in the production and
sales of engine parts and components and other truck parts and
components such as: spark plugs, axles, chassis, air-conditioner
compressors, etc. During the Period, the Group's sales of parts and
components of engines and trucks amounted to approximately
RMB1,068 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 31.45% or approximately RMB490 million compared
to RMB1,558 million in the corresponding period of 2011.
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HRBORHBERDE

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

III. Financial Review
The Group's Results of Operations

1.

da.

Revenue

The Group’s revenue decreased from approximately
RMB36,627 million in the corresponding period of 2011 to
approximately RMB27,060 million in the Period, representing
a decrease of approximately 26.1%. The decrease compared
to the same period last year was mainly attributable to the
slowdown in the pace of economic growth and fixed asset
investment growth in the PRC. In particular, the revenue from
principal operations decreased by approximately 25.7%,
from approximately RMB34,644 million in the corresponding
period of 2011 to approximately RMB25,727 million for
the Period, which was mainly attributable to the decrease
in sales of engines for construction machinery and heavy-
duty trucks. During the Period, the Group sold a total of
approximately 39,600 units of diesel engines for use in wheel
loaders with a load capacity of 5 tonnes in the construction
machinery sector, compared to approximately 76,000 units
in the corresponding period of 2011, representing a decrease
of approximately 47.6%. During the Period, Shaanxi Zhonggqi
recorded an aggregate sales of approximately 49,200 units of
heavy-duty trucks, compared to approximately 63,200 units in
the corresponding period of last year, representing a decrease
of 22.1%. Other revenue decreased by approximately
32.78%, from approximately RMB1,983 million in the
corresponding period of 2011 to approximately RMB1,333
million for the Period, which was primarily attributable to the
40.4% decrease in revenue generated from the sales of raw
materials as compared to the corresponding period of last

year.

Profit from Principal Operations

During the Period, the Group generated gross profit
from principal operations in the amount of approximately
RMB5,089 million, representing a decrease of approximately
34% as compared to approximately RMB7,706 million
recorded in the corresponding period of 2011. Gross profit
margin of principal operations was 19.8%, slightly lower than
approximately 22.2% recorded in the corresponding period
of 2011, which was mainly attributable to the adjustment in

product sales mix.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Distribution and selling expenses

Distribution and selling expenses decreased by approximately
16.1% to approximately RMB1,284 million in the Period
from approximately RMB1,531 million in the corresponding
period of 2011. As a percentage of revenue, distribution and
selling expenses increased from approximately 4.2% in the
corresponding period of 2011 to approximately 4.7% in the

Period.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses of the Group decreased
by approximately 2.8% or approximately RMB40 million from
approximately RMB1,435 million in the corresponding period
of 2011 to approximately RMB1,395 million in the Period,
which was mainly due to the decrease in staff costs and
intermediary charges which were included as part of general

and administrative expenses.

Total Profit before Finance and Income Tax Expenses

During the Period, the Group’s total profit before finance
and income tax expenses decreased by approximately
48.2% to approximately RMB2,509 million in the Period
from approximately RMB4,845 million in the corresponding
period of 2011. During the Period, the Group’s operating
margin was approximately 8.9%, which was lower than the

corresponding period of 2011 of approximately 12.9%.

Finance Expenses

Finance expenses decreased by approximately 83.3%
to approximately RMBO.5 million in the Period from
approximately RMB3 million in the corresponding period of
2011. This decrease was mainly attributable to the interest

income being more than interest expenses during the Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Income Tax Expenses

The Group's income tax expenses decreased by approximately
44.6% from approximately RMB757 million in the
corresponding period of 2011 to approximately RMB419
million in the Period. During the Period, the Group’s average
effective tax rate increased to approximately 16.7%, as
compared to approximately 15.6% in the corresponding
period of 2011.

Net Profit and Net Profit Margin

The Group's net profit for the Period decreased by
approximately 48.9% from approximately RMB4,085 million
in the corresponding period of 2011 to approximately
RMB2,089 million in the Period. During the Period, the net
profit margin decreased to approximately 7.7%, as compared

to approximately 11.2% in the corresponding period of 2011.

Liquidity and Cash Flow

During the Period, the Group generated net operating cash
flows of approximately RMB-1,105 million. It was primarily
attributable to the reduction in discount of notes receivable
having regard to the surplus cash and cash equivalents of the
Company during the Period, which is sufficient for the daily
operation of the Company. As at 30 June 2012, the Group
had net cash (cash and cash equivalents net of interest-
bearing debts) of RMB5,580 million (as at 31 December 2011:
the Group had a net cash (cash and cash equivalents net of
interest-bearing debts) of RMB8,036 million). Based on the
calculation above, the debt to equity ratio is not-applicable as
the Group has a net cash position (as at 31 December 2011:
N/A).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

2. Financial Position

d.  Pursuant to the Consultation Conclusions on Acceptance of
Mainland Accounting and Auditing Standards and Mainland
Audit Firms for Mainland Incorporated Companies Listed in
Hong Kong published by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in
December 2010, Mainland incorporated issuers listed in Hong
Kong shall be allowed to prepare their financial statements
using China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.
As such, the annual general meeting 2010 of the Company
held on 18 May 2011, it was resolved that with effect from
2011, the Company would only adopt Mainland accounting
standards in its preparation of financial statements and would

no longer use Hong Kong accounting standards at the same

time in preparing financial statements.

b. Assets and Liabilities

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had total assets of
approximately RMB60,909 million, of which approximately
RMB41,032 million were current assets. As at 30 June 2012,
the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMB13,007 million (as at 31 December 2011: RMB16,613
million). On the same date, the Group’s total liabilities
amounted to approximately RMB30,178 million, of which
approximately RMB27,066 million were current liabilities.

The current ratio was approximately 1.52 (as at 31 December

2011: 1.45).

2.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Capital Structure

At 30 June 2012, the Group had total equity of
approximately RMB30,730 million, of which approximately
RMB24,584 million was attributable to equity holders of
the Company and the balance was minority equity holders’
interests. The Group currently does not rely heavily on
borrowings. The borrowings of the Group as at 30 June
2012 amounted to approximately RMB4,708 million, which
included debenture of approximately RMB2,691 million and
bank borrowings of approximately RMB2,017 million. The
bank borrowings included approximately RMB463 million
of fixed interest rate bank borrowings and approximately
RMB1,554 million of floating interest rate bank borrowings.
The Group’s borrowings maturing within one year from 30
June 2012 amounted to approximately RMB1,797 million
and borrowings maturing in more than one year from 30
June 2012 amounted to approximately RMB2,911 million.
Other than approximately RMB76 million and RMB75 million
which are Hong Kong dollars-denominated and US dollars-
denominated borrowings, other borrowings are RMB-
denominated. The revenue of the Group is mainly RMB-
denominated. The Group does not consider its foreign
exchange risk significant. As a policy, the Group manages
its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern while maximizing the return
to shareholders through the optimization of the debts
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains

unchanged from prior years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Pledge of Assets

As at 30 June 2012, bank deposits and notes receivables
of approximately RMB3,100 million (as at 31 December
2011: RMB4,068 million) were pledged to banks to secure
the Group’s notes payables and notes receivables issued
by banks. The pledged bank deposits carry prevailing
bank interest rates. The pledge will be released upon the
settlement of the relevant bank borrowings. The fair value of
the bank deposits at the settlement date approximates the
carrying amount. Certain other assets were also pledged by
the Group to secure the Group’s borrowings. Details are set

out in Note V. 22 to the financial statements.

Contingencies

On 30 June 2012, the Group provided to certain distributors
and agents bank guarantee amounting to approximately
RMB1,274 million (as at 31 December 2011: approximately
RMB719 million) to secure their obtaining and use of banking

facilities.

On 30 June 2012, the Group provided guarantee for joint
liabilities in respect of failure of the leasee under finance lease
to settle instalment payments plus interest. Risk exposure in
respect of possible guarantee for joint liabilities amounts to
approximately RMB464 million (as at 31 December 2011:
approximately RMB101 million).

Details are set out in Note VIl to the financial statements.
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24 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. LB R HERA T

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) B B B A (%)
f.  Commitments f. EGEIER

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had approximately RMB2,110 RZE—Z—FA~A=Z+H &

million capital commitments (as at 31 December 2011: EEBRENEREAFZHARE

approximately RMB2,561 million), among which contracted 21M0B BT (R ——F

capital commitments amounted to approximately RMB2,097 +—_A=+—H: HARK

million, principally for the capital expenditure in respect of 2,561EHETT) r EREFTAH

acquisition of property, plant and equipment. BREAFNARK2,0978EE

T ETERKRBYME  EER
REHEARF °

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had no investment RZZE—=—FA=+H &K
commitments (as at 31 December 2011: approximately EEELEEAFZ (N T ——
RMB200 million). Details are set out in Note VIII to the F+-_A=+—H: HARK
financial statement. 200B87T) ° FFEEH R M B W
RIFEEN ©
All the above commitments are expected to be funded from i EilEBEAFEEEBEAAN
the Group's internal resources. HERZAT -
3. Other Financial Information 3. HigEER
a. Employees a. EEEH
As at 30 June 2012, the Company had approximately 46 R-ZE——FXA=+H" K
thousand employees. During the Period, the Group had NEIHERNIBREE R
paid remuneration of approximately RMB1,547 million. The REAME - AEBAIKALA
emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up R¥1547THE T - AEEE
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merits, ENFTMERETFNEZESR
qualifications and competence. BERENRE  EENIIER
NEFE -
b.  Major Investment b. EAKE
The Group did not make any major investment during the RAEAME - RSB EEDLF
Period. AEKRKE -
c.  Major Acquisition and Disposal c. BEAREBERHE
The Group did not make any major acquisition or disposal RAEME - AEBE W ETAE

during the Period. AUk HEEIE -



Auditors’ Report

Ell ERNST & YOUNG

= ik

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2012) Shen Zi No. 60729920 B53

To the Shareholders of Weichai Power Co., Ltd.:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Weichai Power Co.,

Ltd. which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 30 June

2012, the consolidated and company income statements, statement of changes

in equity and cash flow statement for the period from January to June 2012 and

notes to the financial statements.

II.

Management’s Responsibility for the
Financial Statements

The management of Weichai Power Co., Ltd. is responsible for
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements. Such
responsibility includes: (1) preparation of the financial statements in
accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
to ensure fair representation; (2) the design, implementation and
maintenance of necessary internal controls so that the financial statements

are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Responsibility of the Certified Public
Accountant

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Chinese Auditing Standards issued by the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements of the Chinese Certified Public Accountants and plan and
perform the audit to obtain a reasonable assurance as to whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditors” Report (Continued)

I1I.

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2012) Shen Zi No. 60729920_B53

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, certified
public accountants consider the internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
the accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and present fairly, in
all material aspects, the consolidated and company financial position as
at 30 June 2012 and the consolidated and company results of operations
and cash flows of Weichai Power Co., Ltd. for the period from January to
June 2012.

Ernst & Young Hua Ming
Beijing, PRC

Chinese Certified Public Accountant:

Zhang Mingyi

Chinese Certified Public Accountant:

Jiang Weimin

30 August 2012
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FHEERMRE

201246 A308 (A E¥T)

Consolidated Balance Sheet

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Note V S0l eloiea s 31 December 2011
ASSETS BE i PINPEAPEI=IN 2011512A31H
Current assets mENE E
Cash and cash equivalents EMES 1 Sl el 16,612,740,784.48
Notes receivable e 2 WA IR YZ%IY RVl 9,551,350,772.66
Accounts receivable JE Uk BR 3k 3 5,572,766,817.95 4,737,509,830.84
Prepayments SN G 4 460,497,352.78 431,537,902.92
Dividends receivable R s RS ) 5 4,529,218.53 39,529,218.53
Interests receivable FEUWR B - 300,495.58
Other receivables H WK 6 545,391,578.89 240,646,814.45
Inventories 78 8,538,571,012.83 10,357,553,534.02
Non-current assets due within one year —FRIHENIERSEE 27,822,268.56 -
Other current assets Hibme&E 8 1,088,236,909.58 737,579,223.78
Total current assets REEES: UANEPM IR YRV 42,708,748,577.26
Non-current assets EMEEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESRMEE 9 288,477,274.53 234,011,928.12
Long-term receivables £ HA B R 10 - 27,720,035.60
Long-term equity investments REIRERE 11,12 1,115,668,550.55 955,698,174.11
Investment property BEEEHE 13 329,756,162.55 250,328,337.12
Fixed assets Ehakoy:3 14 O SE e EE 9,653,054,092.86
Construction in progress EEIR 15 5,482,280,360.11 5,103,645,581.44
Materials used in construction TIEME 16 245,341.88 10,275,638.26
Disposal of fixed assets EEEESE 4,386,716.38 2,837,542.66
Intangible assets B AE 17 JEERE S S S 1,155,490,455.27
Development expenditure FEEH 5,238,563.36 2,994,232.00
Goodwill EaE 18 537,908,504.02 538,016,278.33
Long-term prepaid expenses REGHER 19 151,039,506.10 160,574,819.39
Deferred tax assets RIEFMISHEE 20 647,085,740.09 741,151,727.82
Other non-current assets HEMIEREEE 100,388.88 -
Total non-current assets EREEESET ([e) s A Ss el 18,835,798,842.98
Total assets BERE G0l s sEl sl | 61,544,547,420.24
The financial statements have been signed by: WBMEBATALESE

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Principal in charge of accounting:

IEEHIFEEEA:

Head of accounting department:

BRHEBEAREA

Tan Xuguang Hoe York Joo

E B

Ling Yun
Bk EE



28  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

B DR BRAF

Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued) AU EEAER ()
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2012F6 A308 (A R%T)
Note V 30 June 2012
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BERKRRES MR 201256 H30H
Current liabilities e A&
Short-term loans 72 B X 22 1,172,660,032.06
Notes payable EAEE 23 6,096,533,351.50
Accounts payable FE 1 BR 3R 24 11,353,453,483.78
Advances from customers TEU FRIB 25 1,046,049,588.34
Payroll payable P £F B8 T 357 26 982,432,478.27
Taxes payable X E 27 142,671,588.94
Interests payable FERFIE 28 126,410,978.29
Dividends payable JE A5 IS 29 203,201,517.95
Other payables H 3R 30 4,056,392,780.65
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FRNEHNIERB AR 31 624,000,000.00
Other current liabilities HimeaE 32 1,262,195,143.72
Total current liabilities nBEESE 27,066,000,943.50
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Long-term borrowings RAEER 33 220,000,000.00
Bonds payable EES 34 2,690,809,458.24
Long-term payables RAEFERTAK 35 5,500,000.00
Special payables BEIEEMNR 36 43,000,000.00
Deferred tax liabilities BEFRGRAE 20 57,649,950.35
Other non-current liabilities EMIERESEE 37 95,452,545.64
Total non-current liabilities FERBEEEE 3,112,411,954.23
Total liabilities ENEEE 30,178,412,897.73
The financial statements have been signed by: WBMEBATALESE

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Tan Xuguang
EEH

Principal in charge of accounting:

ERHIEREA

Hoe York Joo

o] &

Ling Yun

N
E=

31 December 2011
2011412A31H

1,541,238,008.87
5,965,759,459.51
13,078,975,509.97
882,764,570.36
1,134,476,103.29
2,004,611,473.20
57,505,831.82
59,135,231.94
2,990,669,199.84
700,000,000.00
998,201,870.63

29,413,337,259.43

352,254,546.00
2,687,471,069.22
36,377,700.00
23,000,000.00
50,837,782.39
78,506,251.10

3,228,447,348.71

32,641,784,608.14

Head of accounting department:

BETRBEEA



30 June 2012
20126 H30H

1,666,091,366.00
1,476,997,501.09
1,935,774,543.04
19,544,310,125.73

(38,883,477.31)

able to the shareholders EBAE AR EESA ST
of the parent 24,584,290,058.55 22,903,443,260.09

Minority interests DR R RERS 6,145,799,567.31 5,999,319,552.01
Total shareholders’ equity PR A 5T L0yl 0kl apds s | 28,902,762,812.10
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity B SRS AT G0l sl skl el | 61,544,547,420.24
The financial statements have been signed by: B REAATALES

Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:

EEREA FERHIEERA: SRHEEEEREA

Tan Xuguang Hoe York Joo Ling Yun

E BN BE b=
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B DR BRAF

Consolidated Income Statement

January to June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

ERURREES

2012 1-6 (A R¥T)

January to June

January to June

Note V 2012 2011
s 2012%1-6 A 20114 1-6 1
Revenue ESLON 42 PYMCERYLRA R VAN 36,627,413,795.46
Less: Cost of sales W BERK 42 PARVORVERIIWEIN 28,732,858,901.32
Taxes and surcharges EE il 43 113,704,474.09 165,220,642.02
Distribution and selling expenses HEZEHR 44 1,284,413,946.81 1,531,098,513.51
General and administrative expenses EEEHA 45 1,394,743,831.63 1,435,273,927.53
Finance expenses B 7% & A 46 471,591.80 3,470,888.64
Impairment loss of assets BERMERXEL 47 71,855,297.93 99,786,985.50
Add: Investment income e REWE 48 75,086,612.90 73,021,921.81
Incl:  Share of profit of associates and jointly Hrp ¥ E NG &
controlled enterprises IR E W 25,027,666.32 38,881,921.81
Operating profit =¥ b 2,399,394,929.73 4,732,725,858.75
Add: Non-operating income o BEINRA 49 125,940,533.41 142,114,982.98
Less: Non-operating expenses W BEIET W 50 17,236,368.59 33,053,588.92
Incl:  Loss on disposal of non-current assets HE JERBEERERXK 9,101,848.85 22,193,256.44
Total profit lpiEsE ) 2,508,099,094.55 4,841,787,252.81
Less: Income tax expenses B PAEHER 51 419,256,443.44 756,570,770.67
Net profit 75 A 2,088,842,651.11 4,085,216,482.14
Net profit attributable to the shareholders of HENE A RRRFRE
the parent 1,897,252,608.20 3,501,706,567.71
Minority interests DERE R B 191,590,042.91 583,509,914.43
Earnings per share G 52
Basic earnings per share HEARFRUW =R 1.14 2.10
Other comprehensive income Ehira s 53 (1,752,990.83) (219,843,175.85)

Total comprehensive income

Incl:
Total comprehensive income attributable to

2,087,089,660.28

3,865,373,306.29

the shareholders of the parent el iEsE 1,895,493,462.48 3,281,863,391.86
Total comprehensive income attributable to BERVERRER
minority owners A WS 191,596,197.80 583,509,914.43

Details of dividends payable and recommended for the current period are

disclosed in Note V.41 and Note IX.

The financial statements have been signed by:

NEREN RERIRT IR B 2 s BRIk R M5
A 4T RWFENEE -

BBSImEABATALES

Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:

EEREA TERHIEREA: BAHHBREA
Tan Xuguang Hoe York Joo Ling Yun

EIB Bk EE



(D) EAkE 5 LR

Total comprehensive income BAkRES = 4,198,623.97 - 1,897,252,608.20 (5,957,769.69)  1,895,493,462.48 191,596,197.80  2,087,089,660.28
(1) Injection and reduction (Z) BREARROER
1. Injection 1. BREEAER - = = = = = 79,863,639.58 79,863,639.58
2. Disposal of subsidiaries 2 RETAA MENV(RQ) = (5,577,530.56) = = - (5,577,530,56)  (124,768,991.80) (130,346,522 36)
3. Others 3. Hft 5 (42,459,996.86) = = = (42,459,996.86) (210,830.28) (42,670827.14)
(V) Profit appropriation and (m) FEAE
distribution
1. Appropriation of surplus . REBRLR
Teserves - - - - - - - -
2. Distrbution to owners 1 HREMAR V4 - - - (166,609,136.60) - (166,609,136.60) - (166,609,136.60)
3. Others 3. Et - = = = - - - -
IIl: At end of period = RHERRE 1,666,091,366.00  1476,997,501.09  1,935,774543.04  19,544,310,125.73 (38,883477.31)  24,584,290,058.55  6,145,799,567.31  30,730,089,625.86

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting:
EEREKRA FEEHIEAEA:

Tan Xuguang Hoe York Joo

BB A G50

MIBHMERAATALEE

Head of accounting department:

BERITBBAREA -

Ling Yun

e
/§E



Total comprehensive_income FAkRaE - (232359674.24) 3,501,706,567.71 1251649839 3,281,863,391.86 583,509,91443  3,865373,306.29
(1) Injection and reduction (Z) BREARRLER
1. Injection 1. BREEAER - = = = = = 153,519,250.02 153,519,250.02
2. Others 2. Hft = (3,109,101.14) = = = (3,109,101.14) 3,109,101.14 -
(V) Profit appropriation and (m) HEAR
distribution
1. Distribution to owners 1. HREAAE  Rv4 = = - (76419,287.33) - (116419.287.38) - (716419.28738)
IIl. At end of period = REBRRE 1,666,091,366.00  1,757,84949032  1,424,081,328.77  16,231,271,925.46 (2,040,112.13)  21,077,053,998.42  5595,347,866.04  26,672,601,864.46
The financial statements have been signed by: WBMERBAATALES

Legal Representative:

EERERA

Tan Xuguang
EB

Principal in charge of accounting:

FEGHIEEEA

Hoe York Joo

Al & %)

Head of accounting department:

BRBARAEA

Ling Yun
=



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

January to June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2012 FRHEAZRE

& I e | R
2012F1-6 A(ARET)

January to June

January to June

Note V 2012 2011
i 2012%1-6 A 20114 1-6 1
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING - REEDELNES
ACTIVITIES meE
Cash received from sales of goods or HEmm  BEEH
rendering of services U B /IR & VALY VIpLyAN 23,052,451,891.97
Refunds of taxes IR 89 75 B R A& 137,101,402.10 152,886,994.91
Other cash received relating to operating U B HL th B 4 28 VR &
activities EHMRE 54 494,065,041.22 442,576,575.33
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating 4R ESEENIR S A
activities INEF AP WL e I 23,647,915,462.21
Cash paid for goods and services BEEm BEXHB
YRR E 12,879,568,380.20 18,649,833,601.22
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees SIEBT AR A
BIXNHERe 1,568,485,027.99 1,509,431,470.84
Cash paid for all types of taxes YN EEHE 3,245,250,979.50 2,553,448,117.49
Other cash paid relating to operating AR EL th B 4K 2 F)
activities BHEMNEE 54 1,438,071,073.19 1,257,112,489.72
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating iR SEBNIR £
activities Nz 19,131,375,460.88 23,969,825,679.27
Net cash flows from operating activities LEITHELENRE
mEFE 54 (1,104,666,728.99) (321,910,217.06)
Il.  CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING = RERDELNES
ACTIVITIES me
Cash received from sale of investments U @& W B 8 IR & 100,000,000.00 14,021,000.00
Cash received from return on investments 1515 & Yz R /Y
Re 46,333,870.00 5,604,392.73
Net cash received from disposal of BEFARMEM
subsidiaries and other business units BEBMNWER
BReFE 55 343,442,430.74 =
Net cash received from disposal of fixed REETEE -
assets, intangible assets and other EREEMEAM
long-term assets REIEEWKEH
I EFE 4,327,649.83 16,053,982.35
Other cash received relating to investing W B H b BT & E )
activities BREMNIRE 54 2,829,775.59 66,029,617.64
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing BEEHEESRA
activities INEE 496,933,726.16 101,708,992.72
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, ERETEE « B
intangible assets and other long-term BEMEMREE
assets EXMNNES 1,316,879,497.68 1,151,615,996.03
Cash paid for acquisition of investments WEY IR S 366,322,492.11 440,857,098.00
Other cash paid relating to investing THHEMEREED
activities BEMERSE 54 = 3,947,070.74
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing WESEEIR SN
activities NEF 1,683,201,989.79 1,596,420,164.77
Net cash flows from investing activities BHERHELENR S
MmEFRE S s e R (1,494,711,172.05)
The financial statements have been signed by: HBMEBHATALES
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EEREKA FEEHIEAEA FEHIBAERA

Tan Xuguang
BB

Hoe York Joo

o] &

Ling Yun

et
BE

33
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

January to June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

R e ER ()
2012 1-6 A (AR¥T)
January to June

Note V 2012
A 2012 1-6 A

M. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Cash received from capital contributions
Incl:  Cash received by subsidiaries from
capital contributions
of minority owners

Cash received from borrowings
Other cash received relating to financing

SELRHELNRS

me

WU E B R &

He : FRAERK
PEBR
BEWE
R

REEREINRE

B BB E RS

27,722,945.00

27,722,945.00
677,891,596.75

54 19,507,377.78

725,121,919.53

activities BENERE
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing EL8THE S
activities mANE
Cash repayments of borrowings EREEEINHRS

Cash paid for distribution of dividends or
profits and for interest expenses
Incl:  Cash paid to minority owners

D ECRA ~ A EE
H SRS
Heh : FRAEIXM4E

1,254,521,436.26

200,214,705.84

January to June
2011
20114 1-6 A

93,040,000.00

93,040,000.00
1,057,450,117.07

1,150,490,117.07

463,249,591.83

148,061,389.19

85,605,110.65

1,479,840.08

612,790,821.10

537,699,295.97

(706,165.89)

(1,279,628,259.03)

9,172,353,535.75

7,892,725,276.72

for distribution of dividends D ERRS R
or profits by subsidiaries R~ FE 124,912,413.10
Other cash paid relating to financing YHHEMEEEED
activities EENRS 54 2,919,746.36
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing EEFPHS
activities FHNET 1,457,655,888.46
Net cash flows from financing activities EREHEENRS
MEFRE (732,533,968.93)
IV.  EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATE [0 - EXRZFHHIIR LK
ON CASH 2] (5,731,768.53)
V. NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH T BReRBRSEEY
EQUIVALENTS FoRk D RE (3,029,200,730.08)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents m:-HoEekEe
at beginning of period LEYHRE 13,317,360,195.54
VI.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSATEND X+ HIRIBE KBS ZFE
OF PERIOD MerER 55 10,288,159,465.46
The financial statements have been signed by: MIEMEREAATALTESE
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EEREKA FERIFIEERA ERREEEREA
Tan Xuguang Hoe York Joo Ling Yun
W o] & 340 E=



Company Balance Sheet

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2012 FRHEAZRE

NABERMERE

201246 A308 (A E¥T)

30 June 2012
20126 H30H

9,136,908,609.19
8,900,102,880.77

1 952,608,269.45
177,855,305.40

2 1,326,050,975.92
1,537,882,660.82
51,502,650.09

22,082,911,351.64

286,000,000.00

3,4 6,513,715,741.75
717,213,439.96
1,805,538,074.57
3,136,722,795.72
1,414,035.80
379,558,330.15
579,145,043.76
243,076,791.29

13,662,384,253.00

Note XI

ASSETS a5 B4 —
Current assets mENE E

Cash and cash equivalents EMES

Notes receivable EWE &

Accounts receivable JE W BR K

Prepayments T FRIE

Dividends receivable JFE A )

Other receivables H A fE R

Inventories FE

Other current assets Hithmeh & &=
Total current assets MEBEESR
Non-current assets EMEE E

Available-for-sale financial assets A ESREE

Long-term equity investments RERERE

Investment property KEEEHE

Fixed assets EEEE

Construction in progress EETR

Disposal of fixed assets EEERRE

Intangible assets BLEE

Goodwill EES

Deferred tax assets RIEFTISHEE
Total non-current assets EREBEESE
Total assets BERE

35,745,295,604.64

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EERERA TE

Tan Xuguang
FEH

Principal in charge of accounting:

BETEREA

Hoe York Joo

o] &

FHBEBUATALESE

31 December 2011
2011412A31H

10,704,876,019.41
6,982,312,764.67
750,194,839.81
125,314,548.40
97,089,385.44
770,497,301.43
2,517,850,999.67
111,184,233.70

22,059,320,092.53

232,400,000.00
6,381,691,562.21
622,863,859.17
1,998,819,919.03
2,743,582,950.03
699,262.31
343,818,981.45
579,145,043.76
307,525,128.48

13,210,546,706.44

35,269,866,798.97

Head of accounting department:

BETHBEEA

Ling Yun

N
E=



36 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. #LE hRH AR A T

Company Balance Sheet (Continued)
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

NEEEAER ()
201246 A30A (A E#¥T)

30 June 2012
20126 H30H

4,568,117,926.42
3,107,111,815.45
52,391,402.25
587,264,204.98
75,109,316.41
126,133,333.37
166,609,136.60
2,167,650,980.42
574,900,000.00

11,425,288,115.90

2,690,809,458.24
20,000,000.00
30,133,800.60
15,165,000.00

2,756,108,258.84

14,181,396,374.74

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BERKRRES
Current liabilities e A&
Notes payable FE =R
Accounts payable JE 1~ BR 3R
Advances from customers TE U SR IE
Payroll payable JFE {1 B8k T 357
Taxes payable ERE B
Interests payable FERTAIE
Dividends payable JE A= AR )
Other payables H M FE AT 3R
Other current liabilities HimeaE
Total current liabilities mEBESET
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Bonds payable ERES
Special payables HIARER R
Deferred tax liabilities BREFGRAE
Other non-current liabilities HindEnsaE
Total non-current liabilities FERBEEEE
Total liabilities BEAE
Shareholders’ equity R 3R fE
Share capital & 2
Capital reserve BEARRNIE
Surplus reserve BARNTE

Retained earnings

RO EEHHE

1,666,091,366.00
1,094,707,865.44
1,935,774,543.04
16,867,325,455.42

Total shareholders’ equity

PR ER AR

21,563,899,229.90

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

BENMBCREEE

35,745,295,604.64

31 December 2011
2011412A31H

3,430,115,251.94
4,410,128,405.72
49,040,490.00
632,431,100.82
1,837,462,051.81
54,408,333.35
1,769,018,001.48
650,000,000.00

12,832,603,635.12

2,687,471,069.22

22,093,800.60
15,180,000.00

2,724,744,869.82

15,557,348,504.94

1,666,091,366.00
1,091,158,251.28
1,935,774,543.04
15,019,494,133.71

19,712,518,294.03

35,269,866,798.97

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EEREA FEEHIEEBRA

Hoe York Joo

BRI A gis)

Tan Xuguang

Principal in charge of accounting:

FHBEBATALESE

Head of accounting department:

ERTEBREA

Ling Yun

N
E=



Company Income Statement

January to June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2012 FRHEAZRE

AR ES

2012 1-6 (A R#T)

January to June

January to June

2012 2011
2012F1-6 A 20114 1-6 A
Revenue EHERA 2R LY IL LI 15,222,567,929.64
Less: Cost of sales W EERR S0 kes e ds - 10,359,339,993.75
Taxes and surcharges EEN ® KK 69,710,431.21 96,981,503.23
Distribution and selling expenses HEZA 476,232,783.46 722,933,956.19
General and administrative expenses EIEER 677,760,199.10 842,267,351.01
Finance expenses M E R (37,235,875.59) (10,610,949.05)
Impairment loss of assets BEREEXLX 23,116,341.33 18,431,158.23

Add: Investment income

Incl:  Share of profit of associates and

s wERE
Hep o B bR

465,967,597.03

211,072,542.69

jointly controlled enterprises HETERN
K& W as 40,496,514.43 38,953,343.18
Operating profit b 2,260,449,817.21 3,404,297,458.97
Add: Non-operating income o BEINEA 40,032,013.41 48,588,593.77
Less: Non-operating expenses W EEIIT 3,650,162.33 4,955,950.53
Incl:  Loss on disposal of He: ERBEE
non-current assets FEEBK 501,406.03 1,629,298.57

Total profit

Less: Income tax expenses

GDEREE-
W PSS E A

2,296,831,668.29
282,391,209.98

3,447,930,102.21
504,089,167.57

Net profit el 2,014,440,458.31 2,943,840,934.64
Other comprehensive income Hinir e W= 3,549,614.16 (231,869,533.20)
Total comprehensive income e WS ETE 2,017,990,072.47 2,711,971,401.44

The financial statements have been signed by:

MEHmERHATALES

Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:

EEREA TEEAIHEEEA: BREBEAREA
Tan Xuguang Hoe York Joo Ling Yun
E B Bk b=



38  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBNROBRAT

Company Statement of Changes in Equity 2 7] A PROME #a 58 By 3%

January to June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Share capital

B

. Atbeginning of year — KNEFNHE 1,666,091,366.00

Z AEEREYER

IIl.  Movements in current period

() Net profit
(Il) - Other comprehensive income

(=)
(2) Ethtra e

Total comprehensive income FERHER
(Il Profit appropriation and (Z)FBAE
distribution
1. Appropriation of surplus 1. ROEHAR
reserves
2. Distribution to owners 2. HRREHE
lIl. At end of period = AHERHES 1,666,091,366.00

January to June 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2012F1-6 A (AR¥T)

Capital reserve

BADR

Surplus reserve

BHAR

Retained earnings

RAEHH

1,091,158,251.28 1,935,774,543.04  15,019,494,133.71

= 2,014,440,458.31
3,549,614.16 =

2,014,440,458.31

(166,609,136.60)

1,094,707,865.44 1,935,774,543.04  16,867,325,455.42

20114 1-65(ART)

Total equity
BRRERET

19,712,518,294.03

2,014,440,458.31
3,549,614.16

2,017,990,072.47

(166,609,136.60)

21,563,899,229.90

Share capital Capital reserve Surplus reserve Retained earnings Total equity
R BERAE RHBOHE RAEFHE BEERE
. Atbeginning of period — KEHNBE 1,666,091,366.00 1,558,974,134.37 1,424,081,32877  11,130,674,492.71  15,779,821,321.85
I Movementsin currentperiod = ~ AEIEHEFHEE
() Net profit (=)EFE - - - 294384093464  2,943,840,934.64
() Other comprehensive income (=) 4z A less - (231,869,533.20) - - (231,869,533.20)
Total comprehensive income BAkFAE - (231,869,533.20) - 294384093464  2,711,971,401.44
(i) Profit appropriation and (Z)FBEIE
distribution
1. Distribution to owners 1. HRENSE - - - (716,419,287.38) (716,419,287.38)
. Atend of period = AEHRHBE 1,666,091,366.00 1,327,104,601.17 1,424,081,328.77  13,358,096,139.97  17,775,373,435.91
The financial statements have been signed by: WBMEBHATALES

Legal Representative:

AEREA

Hoe York Joo

o] & 7

Tan Xuguang
sk

Principal in charge of accounting:
FEGHIEAERA

BERIHRBAREA

Ling Yun

et
EE

Head of accounting department:



Company Cash Flow Statement

January to June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2012 FRHEAZRE

ANCTEE ST

2012 1-6 (A R#T)

Note XI
B+ —

January to June
2012
2012%1-6 8

8,384,700,257.23

469,373,624.81

8,854,073,882.04

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING - KREEDHEENRD
ACTIVITIES mE
Cash received from sales of goods HERm - RHEHSK
or rendering of services WEImE
Other cash received relating to operating Ut 1) EL th B 4K 8V &)
activities BENERE
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating LEEIHE B MA
activities NE
Cash paid for goods and services BEEm  BEXEH
ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁ%
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees YRGBT AR A
BIXANERES
Cash paid for all types of taxes IS ERE
Other cash paid relating to operating T H b B ES)
activities BEMERS

6,630,372,247.38

488,784,713.51
2,614,122,179.00

572,896,679.74

Subtotal of cash outflows from operating

LR ENIA SR

10,306,175,819.63

(1,452,101,937.59)

activities INEF
Net cash flows from operating activities REEDELENRS
MEFE 7
Il.  CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING — - REEHEENES
ACTIVITIES mE

Cash received from sale of investments

Cash received from disposal of subsidiaries

Cash received from return on investments

Net cash received from disposal of fixed
assets, intangible assets and other long-

term assets

Other cash received relating to investing

activities

Y B354 BN 930 %
RE T A AME
It

B8 5 M B
i
REETEE - mF
AEMEME DA
ERENESFE
) EL B IR 5 B
SIS

423,419,500.00

135,218,185.60

274,598.00

Subtotal of cash inflows from investing

activities

TXQ/EEJEE 7 /I\l:
NET

558,912,283.60

Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets,

BRrREEEE B

549,836,379.17
269,457,000.00

819,293,379.17

intangible assets and other long-term BEMEMREEE
assets EXNNRE
Cash paid for acquisition of investments KES MRS
Other cash paid relating to investing THHEMEREED
activities MBS
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing KEEHEES AL
activities NET
Net cash flows from investing activities Txﬁ/éébﬁiﬂ’]iﬁé
//ILE -IH%E

(260,381,095.57)

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Tan Xuguang
BB

Principal in charge of accounting:

FEEHIEEBRA

Hoe York Joo

o] &t

M mEABUATALES

January to June
2011
20114 1-6 7

14,491,820,450.74
317,028,982.53

14,808,849,433.27

11,315,563,371.20

506,166,132.23
1,405,779,652.60

374,297,376.79

13,601,806,532.82

1,207,042,900.45

14,021,000.00

28,488,835.72

624,750.00

3,025.25

43,137,610.97

433,108,487.02
653,067,100.00

3,780,000.00

1,089,955,587.02

(1,046,817,976.05)

Head of accounting department:

BEIBBAEEA

Ling Yun
EE
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January to June
2012
2012%1-6 A

Subtotal of cash outflows from financing ELFHHEES RN

17,187,855.68

(17,187,855.68)

activities NEE
Net cash flows from financing activities EEFPHELENE S
MEFEE
IV.  EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE M- EXSHHIASH
RATE ON CASH ¥

(323,065.88) (54.45)

V. NET INCREASE/DECREASE) INCASHAND F - RERKBESZEWF

(1,712,806,099.04) 143,037,014.27

8,933,829,472.86 4,327,558,525.67

CASH EQUIVALENTS #n, G )&
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at m:F9HEe Rk
beginning of year ReEEYRE
VI.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS N HRBEeRRESEE
AT END OF PERIOD VI ERER

8 7,221,023,373.82 4,470,595,539.94

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting:
EEREKA TESHIEEEA:

Tan Xuguang Hoe York Joo

BB ] G540

MBMEABATALES

Head of accounting department:

BEIBBEEA

Ling Yun

N
E=



Notes to Financial Statements

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

L.

Corporate Background

Weichai Power Co., Ltd. (“the Company”) is a joint stock limited company
jointly established by Weifang Diesel Engine Factory (3 4 m# %), as
the primary promoter, together with other promoters, upon approval by
People’s Government of Shandong Province with document Lu Zheng
Gu Zi No. [2002] 64 Shandong Province Joint Stock Limited Company
Approval Certificate (B A% F[2002]645% 1L & &7 B R A 7l # & &
£). It obtained its legal business licence numbered 3700001807810 from
the Administration for Industry and Commerce of Shandong Province on

23 December 2002, with an original registered capital of RMB215 million.

In October 2007, Weifang Diesel Engine Factory was converted into
Weichai Group Holdings Limited (44 R% 5 B A R A &) (hereinafter
referred to as “Weichai Group Holdings”) upon approval by State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the People’s
Government of Shandong Province with document Lu Guo Zi Qi Gai Han
[2007] No. 45 (BB & K[2007]455%) titled “Approval Concerning
the Conversion of Weifang Diesel Engine Factory into Weichai Group
Holdings Limited ( B85 ¥ Ty 5 #4 B 2 M S P ik SR B A TR R Al &Y
#L18) )and the Administration for Industry and Commerce of Weifang
City.

In March 2004, the Company conducted a public offer in Hong Kong of
overseas listed foreign shares (H Shares) of ordinary shares of RMB1.00
each to global investors, totaling 126.5 million shares among which
11.5 million shares were state-owned shares, pursuant to the approval
document Zheng Jian Guo He Zi (BB & F) No. [2003]44 issued by the
China Securities Regulatory Commission. Such shares were listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)
on 31 March 2004. In April 2004, the registered capital of the Company
increased by RMB115 million pursuant to the public offer of shares to
global investors and consequently the accumulated paid-in registered
capital amounted to RMB330 million. The aforesaid registered capital has
been verified by Shandong Zheng Yuan Hexin Accountants Limited (L5
ERI{EAR S LS ETEIE AT with asset verification reports numbered
Lu Zheng Xin Yan Zi (& IE{£8 F) (2002) No. 3209 and Lu Zheng Xin Yan
Zi (B 1IE{=252 ) (2004) No. 3077.

Interim Report 2012 FRHEAZRE

S8 755 3 % BT AR

201246 A30H (A R¥T)

» AN ] FE AR Y

HEHAROARAFA(ATERBI AR
Al AR ) RELRE ARBNE AR
F[2002]64 5% 1L R & R H B R A Bl & E
EHE - BT SRR E A B AR
AHEHMBERALRBRBIEINRNDERA
A R2002F 128238 BBILERETH
THEEREZRACEEEIAEERR)
8715 A£3700001807810 @ ReEM&E A
AR#215,000,0007T °

2007F 108 RILREARBRFREEEE
EREELZECEHE M RK[2007]455

NRINHEED A RS T TR 17T E IR B
o ORISR E S RIEREE A
RAR - AT R AESIERER] -

200438 ARAKBEHFRAEBEHFEEE
BZEEFEMEEZRA F[2003]445 1t
BXH REBMERIEEEARETE
SNETINERABIREMBEARE1.007TH
TR (HAR) - BITEE 12,6508 (E+
HAETFERM1,15088) - WHK200443
A31B  EEBBMEXIMBRAR(E
BERFT]) ETR S © 20045F4 7 - AR
AR 2RI EE ARBITE SN
afEREE AK®115,000,0007T - 3%
BrMEFAMELAERSBEBRARYE
330,000,000 T o Lat sl & AL LR E
BRINEEREEEAMEBADANABIE
Z8% T(2002) 32095 R B IE{E58 F(2004)
3077 RBEMESE TURE -
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42 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHBERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

L.

Corporate Background (Continued)

On 30 March 2007, China Securities Regulatory Commission issued
Zheng Jian Fa Hang Zi (FF 25%£175) [2007] No. 64 “Notice Concerning
the Approval of the Public Offer of A Shares by Weichai Power Co., Ltd.
and Its Absorption of TAGC by way of Share Swap” to approve the
initial public offering of shares by the Company and its absorption of
Torch Automobile Group Co., Ltd. (A BEREEB M AR A 7))
(abbreviated as “TAGC"), pursuant to which 190,653,552 new shares
were made available under the public offer to raise funds for absorption
of TAGC by way of share swap. On 23 April 2007, the Company issued
190,653,552 ordinary shares denominated in RMB (A Shares) of RMB1
each by way of share swap, which shares were admitted for listing and
trading on Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 30 April 2007. Total capital
upon the aforesaid capital increase by way of share swap amounted to
520,653,552 shares with a total registered capital of RMB520,653,552,
which has been verified by Shandong Zheng Yuan Hexin Accountants
Limited (LU R 1IEJR A= B R E T & 5TE0 E 1 A7) with asset verification
reports numbered Lu Zheng Xin Yan Zi (& [E{Z& ) (2007) No. 3008.
Upon completion of the absorption of TAGC by way of share swap, the

shares of TAGC and its capacity as a legal person were both cancelled.

In accordance with the resolution of the second extraordinary general
meeting in 2008 and the amended Articles, on 16 December 2008, the
Company transferred 312,392,131 shares of RMB1 each representing
RMB312,392,131 from the capital reserve to registered capital, upon
which the total capital was 833,045,683 shares and total registered
capital was RMB833,045,683. The transfer has been verified by Shandong
Zheng Yuan Hexin Accountants Limited (L3R IFJR 15 B IR & T & 516D
EFT) in its verification report Lu Zheng Xin Yan Zi (B 1E{£% F) No.
(2008) 3046.

In accordance with the resolution of the first extraordinary general
meeting in 2010 and the amended Articles, on 6 December 2010, the
Company transferred 833,045,683 shares of RMB1 each representing
RMB833,045,683 from the capital reserve to registered capital, upon
which the total capital was 1,666,091,366 shares. The transfer has been
verified by Shandong Zheng Yuan Hexin Accountants Limited (L 2 IEJ&
MzERETZEEIEA) in its verification report Lu Zheng Xin Yan
Zi (B IE1=5 ) No. (2011) 3006.

B B5 R 3R B R (A8
201246 A30H (A R¥T)

— A E BEAE UL ()

200753 H30H - FEIESFEEEEZE
SHATHEFEEITT[2007]645 KR 1%
EREDIRODERAAIARETARE
BBRRKEFRANEAERERO R A
AIWMBRN)  RERARBHERXARBETR
SERBRKE FRANEREEE KD
RAR(MHEIMAE])  ARABETHR
190,653,552 % + AR U & OF 8 X
/B ° 200748238 AR ABRKET
190,653,552k BIREEAREITHAR
ik BAR (ARR) - WR2007F4A308 -
BEERINEFRGAM EMR S o it
% 18 & 1& M) B IR 2N /520,653,552 1%  #F
& AR5 A AR#520,653,55270 @ &
IWRIERFMEEREETSTMEBUR
E{E5%F(2007) 30085 B EHREE T IUR
F o MR A FEMAIETAE - RNE
AR RN JEE N BIE TS o

2008 F 12 A 16 H + A A & 1R #% 2008
FE_RBEFERERGRENIE DA
EROAT BAEALEEEIME
ANAR®312,392,131 70 © B/ 1T
DA% A 312,392,131 0 @ & E & AR K
833,045,683/ « At EARBEAARYE
833,045,683 7T o - ult 5 4% & A4 L R IE
BANEEREXTSMEBAUBERSER
F(2008) 304655 EMEE T ARE ©

20100F 12 A6 8 + AR AR E2010F
FE-REBERRERAGREZANEREE
BHHATET BEACEELFMER
A R ¥ 833,045,683 7T © & I 17T 3 N
f% 7N 833,045,683 i + # ¥ 1% # R A
1,666,091,366 /% o & it 8838 & R4 L&
FRMEERECSFAMEBEMABIES
BT (2011)E3006 B EHREE TUR

g o



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

L.

Corporate Background (Continued)

The Company'’s industry: Manufacturing of transportation equipment

The Company’s registered capital: RMB1,666,091,366

The Company's registered address: 197, Section A, Fu Shou East Street,
High Technology Industry Development Zone, Weifang, Shandong
Province

The scope of operations of the Company covers: Design, development,
production, sale, repair, import and export of diesel engines and auxiliary
products; lease of self-owned properties; sale of steel; and corporate

management services.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are primarily

engaged in the following businesses:
o manufacture and sale of diesel engines and related parts;

° manufacture and sale of automobiles and major automobile

components other than diesel engines;
° manufacture and sale of non-major automobile components; and
° provision of import and export services.
Weichai Group Holdings Limited and Shandong Heavy Industry Group
Co., Ltd., established in the PRC, are the parent company and ultimate

parent company of the Group respectively.

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors of the

Company on 30 August 2012.

Interim Report 2012 FRHEAZRE

B B5 3R B E (A8
201246 A30H (A R¥T)

— R E ARG UL ()

ARRIFIBITR  BABHRBERER

AARGEMEAR : AR¥1,666,091,366

ol

ARARGEMMA - 1L RE S ™ =

EXAEERSRF19757%F
AAREEHELR  LHELMEEERD

wREF - FHE - AE
0:BBFEEMEE:
AR5

HE - HE Eh
MMHE  BEXEHE

ARAMEFRAR (GBI ANEE]) 2%
ERIES

o HEREEMERABBETEM
s HERHEEABERTBZAETHRMN
(T EIRSmE) ;

o HERMEIFTEAETHM R

o REEHARE -
AEBHNE QA MREG DA SR EK
UHHREREEBERARMURETE
EARAA -

AU BERRELARBEETGN2012F8
A308REH & -
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A4 \Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHBERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates

1.

Preparation basis of the financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic Standard
and 38 specific accounting standards issued in February 2006, and
the implementation guidance, interpretations and other relevant
provisions issued subsequently by MOF (collectively referred to as

" Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises”).
The financial statements are presented on a going concern basis.

In preparing these financial statements, all the assets (other than
certain financial instruments) are carried at historical cost. Assets
of subsidiaries held for sale are stated at the lower of fair value
less estimated costs, and the original carrying value when it was
qualified as held for sale. If the assets are impaired, corresponding
provisions for impairment shall be made according to relevant

provisions.

Statement of compliance with Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises

The financial statements present, fairly and fully, the financial
position of the Company and the Group as at 30 June 2012 and
the results of operations and the cash flows for the six months
then ended in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business

Enterprises.

Accounting year

The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January to 31 December
of each calendar year. This accounting period is from 1 January to
30 June.

Functional currency
The functional currency and the currency used in preparing the
financial statements were Renminbi. The amounts in the financial

statements were denominated in Renminbi, unless otherwise stated.

The subsidiaries, jointly controlled enterprises and associates of the
Company may determine their own functional currencies based
on the major economic environment in which they operate the
business. In preparation of financial statements, their functional

currencies shall be translated into RMB.

S 5 R MY R (A6)

20124664308 (A REET)
= mEEEEOR g b
1. HBERRNVERER

AP SR IR R I 0200642 A A
MR E g R — EARER DA
38IH AR et A - HEM M E
i mELAREMGEERE (45
BIEETENDRER -

AP BHR A ELE RERIR -

WAL BRRE  RELEMTA
Sh - AUESEKA BT ERA - K55
FEFRAMNEE  BAnEBERE
BAERENSE  URKEHAER
EHRERHREEEE  BMEAER
FHE - BEWRFEARE - BIREMA
B E SHE AR E R B 2E 4 o

BELESTENESR

A BEBREATELEGFTEANE
k- EE - TEMRETAQAFRAR
E£ER2012F6 5308 M AR IA
R#EIEE201296 4308 L5 A
KERRAMRESRE -

SFHHE
AEESHFERBAREBEFE A8
FE1VA1AELE12A318L - A&
M AB1A1HE6A30A1L »

AC AR AN 5

AR A REALE NGB BRE
FRAMEREBARY - KA
BEIS  HUARBTAERLER ©

ARFTBFAT  AECERBE
G¥ - RIBEAEFENEBIEHER
HATRTREEALY - BT
BEETEBARY -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

5.

Business combination

A business combination is a transaction or event that brings
together two or more separate entities into one reporting entity.
Business combinations are classified into business combinations
involving entities under common control and business combinations

not involving entities under common control.

Business combinations involving entities under common
control

A business combination involving entities under common control
is a business combination in which all of the combining entities
are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before
and after the combination, and that control is not transitory. For
a business combination involving entities under common control,
the party that, on the combination date, obtains control of another
entity participating in the combination is the absorbing party, while
that other entity participating in the combination is a party being
absorbed. Combination date is the date on which the absorbing

party effectively obtains control of the party being absorbed.

Assets and liabilities that are obtained by the absorbing party
in a business combination shall be measured at their carrying
amounts at the combination date as recorded by the party being
absorbed. The difference between the carrying amount of the
net assets obtained and the carrying amount of the consideration
paid for the combination (or the aggregate face value of shares
issued as consideration) shall be adjusted to share premium under
capital reserve. If the capital reserve is not sufficient to absorb the

difference, any excess shall be adjusted against retained earnings.
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46 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHBERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

5.

Business combination (Continued)

Business combinations not involving entities under
common control

A business combination not involving entities under common
control is a business combination in which all of the combining
entities are not ultimately controlled by the same party or parties
both before and after the combination. For a business combination
not involving entities under common control, the party that, on the
acquisition date, obtains control of another entity participating in
the combination is the acquirer, while that other entity participating
in the combination is the acquiree. Acquisition date refers to
the date on which the acquirer effectively obtains control of the

acquiree.

The acquirer shall measure the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired in the business
combination not involving entities under common control at their

fair values on the acquisition date.

The excess of the sum of the consideration paid (or equities
securities issued) for business combination and equity interests in
the acquiree held prior to the date of acquisition over the share of
the attributable net identifiable assets of the acquiree, measured
at fair value, was recognized as goodwill, which is subsequently
measured at cost less cumulative impairment loss. In case the fair
value of the sum of the consideration paid (or equities securities
issued) and equity interests in the acquiree held prior to the date of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the share of the attributable
net identifiable assets of the acquiree, a review of the measurement
of the fair values of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities, the consideration paid for the combination (or equity
securities issued) and the equity interests in the acquiree held prior
to the date of acquisition is conducted. If the review indicates that
the fair value of the sum of the consideration paid (or equities
securities issued) and equity interests in the acquiree held prior
to the date of acquisition is indeed less than the fair value of the
share of the attributable net identifiable assets of the acquiree, the

difference is recognized in current profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

6.

Consolidated financial statements

The consolidation scope of consolidated financial statements
is determined on the basis of control, including the financial
statements for the half year ended 30 June 2012 of the Company
and all of its subsidiaries. A subsidiary is an enterprise or entity that is

controlled by the Company.

In preparation of consolidated financial statements, the subsidiaries
use the same accounting period as those of the Company. When
the accounting policies of a subsidiary are different from those of
the Company, the Company shall make adjustments to the financial
statements of the subsidiary based on its own accounting policies.
All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealized gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated

on consolidation in full.

Where the amount of loses of a subsidiary attributable to the
minority shareholders in the current period exceeds their share
of the opening balance of owner’s equity of the subsidiary, the
excess shall be allocated against minority interests. A change in the
minority interests, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an

equity transaction.

For subsidiaries acquired through business combinations not
involving entities under common control, the operating results and
cash flows of the acquiree shall be included in the consolidated
financial statements, from the day on which the Group gains
control, till the Group ceases the control of it. While preparing
the consolidated financial statements, the acquirer shall adjust the
subsidiary’s financial statements, on the basis of the fair values of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognized

on the acquisition date.
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48  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHBERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

6.

Consolidated financial statements (Continued)
For subsidiaries acquired through business combinations involving
entities under common control, the operating results and cash
flows of the acquiree shall be included in the consolidated
financial statements from the beginning of the period in which the
combination occurs. While preparing the comparative consolidated
financial statements, adjustments are made to related items in
the financial statements for the prior period as if the reporting
entity established through combination has been existing since the
ultimate controller begins to exercise control.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises the Group’s cash on hand and deposits that can
be readily withdrawn on demand. Cash equivalents are short-
term, highly liquid investments held by the Group, that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Foreign currency transactions and foreign
currency translation

The Group translates the amount of foreign currency transactions
occurred into its functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded, on initial recognition,
in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the spot exchange rate prevailing on the transaction dates.
At the balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are
translated using the spot exchange rate prevailing on the balance
sheet date. All the resulting differences on settlement and foreign
currently monetary item translation are taken to profit or loss,
except for those relating to foreign currency borrowings specifically
for construction and acquisition of qualifying assets, which are
capitalized in accordance with the principle of capitalization of
borrowing costs. Non-monetary foreign currency items measured
at historical cost shall still be translated at the spot exchange rate
prevailing on the transaction date, and the amount denominated
in the functional currency is not changed. Non-monetary foreign
currency items measured at fair value are translated at the spot
exchange rate prevailing at the date on which the fair values are
determined. The difference thus resulted are recognized in profit or
loss for the current period or as other comprehensive income based
on the nature of the non-monetary items.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

8.

Foreign currency transactions and foreign
currency translation (Continued)

For foreign operations, the Group translates their functional
currency amounts into RMB in preparing the financial statements as
follows: asset and liability items in the balance sheet are translated
using the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet date, and
equity items other than “retained earnings” are translated using
the spot exchange rate at the date of transactions; revenue and
expense items in the income statement are translated using the
average exchange rate for the period during which the transactions
occur. The resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income and presented as a separate component
of equity in the balance sheet. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognized in the income statement.
If the disposal only involves a portion of a particular foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognized in the income

statement on a pro-rata basis.

Foreign currency cash flows and the cash flows of foreign
subsidiaries are translated using the average exchange rate for the
period during which the cash flows occur. The effect of exchange
rate changes on cash is separately presented as an adjustment item

in the cash flow statement.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial
asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of

another entity.

Recognition and derecognition
The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability when
it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial

instrument.
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50  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.  #isEEN W IR AR AT

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)
Recognition and derecognition (Continued)

The Group derecognizes a financial asset (or part of a financial asset,
or part of a group of similar financial assets) when the following

conditions are met:

(1) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

(2)  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay them in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards

of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

If the underlying obligation of a financial liability has been
discharged or cancelled or has expired, the financial liability is
derecognized. If an existing financial liability is replaced by the
same creditor with a new financial liability that has substantially
different terms, or if the terms of an existing financial liability are
substantially revised, such replacement or revision is accounted for
as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the resulting difference is recognized in profit or

loss for the current period.

Regular way purchase or sale of financial assets are recognized and
derecognized using trade date accounting. Regular way purchase
or sale of financial assets refers to that the financial assets are
delivered to or by the Group under the terms of a contract within a
period as specified by law or general practice. The trade date is the

date on which the Group undertakes to buy or sell a financial asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
Financial assets are, on initial recognition, classified into the
following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables, available-
for-sale financial assets and derivatives designated as effective
hedging instruments. Such classification is determined on initial
recognition. A financial asset is recognized initially at fair value.
In the case of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
relevant transaction costs are directly charged to the profit and loss
of the current period; transaction costs relating to financial assets of

other categories are included in the amount initially recognized.

The subsequent measurement of a financial asset is determined by

its category:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and those designated upon initial
recognition as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
A financial asset held for trading is the financial asset that meets
one of the following conditions: the financial asset is acquired
for the purpose of selling it in a short term; the financial asset is
a part of a portfolio of identifiable financial instruments that are
collectively managed, and there is objective evidence indicating
that the enterprise recently manages this portfolio for the purpose
of short-term profits; the financial asset is a derivative, except for
a derivative that is designated as an effective hedging instrument,
or a financial guarantee contract, or a derivative that is linked to
and must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument
(without a quoted price from an active market) whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured. For such kind of financial assets, fair
values are adopted for subsequent measurement. All the realized or
unrealized gains or losses on these financial assets are recognized
in profit or loss for the current period. Dividend income or interest
income related to financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is

charged to profit or loss for the current period.
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52 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHBERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets

(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

9.

A financial asset is designated on initial recognition as at fair value

through profit or loss only when it meets one of the following

conditions:

(M

the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistency in the measurement or recognition of relevant
gains or losses that would otherwise arise from measuring

the financial instruments on different bases.

a group of financial instruments is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, and
information about the group is reported on that basis to the
Group’s key management personnel, according to formal
documentation regarding risk management or investment

strategy.

a hybrid instrument that contains one or more embedded
derivatives, except where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows of the hybrid instrument;
or it is clear that separation of the embedded derivative(s)
shall be prohibited.

a hybrid instrument that contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately recorded and cannot be
separately measured on acquisition or at the subsequent

balance sheet date.

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market

price in an active market and whose fair values cannot be reliably

measured shall not be designated as financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification and measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

Financial assets on initial recognition classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss cannot be reclassified into financial
assets of other categories; financial assets of other categories
cannot be reclassified into financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss, either.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity date
that the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. Such kind of financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains or losses
arising from amortization or impairment and derecognition are

recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Such kind of financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains or losses
arising amortization or impairment are recognized in profit or loss

for the current period.
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54 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification and measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial
assets that are designated as available for sale or are not classified
as any of the aforesaid categories. After initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. The
premium/discount is amortized using effective interest method and
recognized as interest income or expense. A gain or loss arising
from a change in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset
is recognized as other comprehensive income in capital reserve,
except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and losses
resulted from monetary financial assets, until the financial asset
is derecognized or determined to be impaired, at which time the
accumulated gain or loss previously recognized is transferred to
profit or loss for the current period. Interests and dividends relating
to an available-for-sale financial asset are recognized in profit or

loss for the current period.

Investments in equity instruments, which do not have quoted
prices in an active market and whose fair values cannot be reliably

measured, are measured at cost.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities are, on initial recognition, classified
into financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, other
financial liabilities or derivatives designated as effective hedging
instruments. Such classification is determined on initial recognition.
For financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, relevant
transaction costs are directly recognized in profit or loss for the
current period, and transaction costs relating to other financial

liabilities are included in the initial recognition amounts.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
(Continued)

The subsequent measurement of a financial liability is determined

by its category:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and those designated as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. A financial
liability held for trading is the financial liability that meets one of
the following conditions: the financial liability is assumed for the
purpose of repurchasing it in a short term; the financial liability is
a part of a portfolio of identifiable financial instruments that are
collectively managed, and there is objective evidence indicating
that the enterprise recently manages this portfolio for the purpose
of short-term profits; the financial liability is a derivative, except
for a derivative that is designated as effective hedging instrument,
or a financial guarantee contract, or a derivative that is linked to
and must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument
(without a quoted price form an active market) whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured. For such kind of financial liabilities, fair
values are adopted for subsequent measurement. All the realized or
unrealized gains or losses on these financial liabilities are recognized

in profit or loss for the current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

A financial liability is designated on initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss only when it meets one of the following

conditions:

(1)  the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistency in the measurement or recognition of relevant
gains or losses that would otherwise arise from measuring

the financial instruments on different bases.

(2) a group of financial instruments is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, and
information about the group is reported to the Group’s key
management personnel, according to formal documentation

regarding risk management or investment strategy.

(3) a hybrid instrument that contains one or more embedded
derivatives, except where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows of the hybrid instrument;
or it is clear that separation of the embedded derivative(s)
shall be prohibited.

(4)  a hybrid instrument that contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately recorded and cannot be
separately measured on acquisition or at the subsequent

balance sheet date.

Financial liabilities on initial recognition classified as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss cannot be reclassified
into financial liabilities of other categories; financial liabilities of
other categories cannot be reclassified into financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss either.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
(Continued)

Other financial liabilities

After initial recognition, such kind of financial liabilities are

measured at amortized costs by using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to settle a debt or assume a liability to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contracts are measured, on initial recognition, at fair
value. For financial guarantee contracts that are not designated as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, they are, after
initial recognition, subsequently measured at the higher of: the
amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the balance sheet date; and the amount
initially recognized less the accumulated amortization determined

according to the principles of revenue recognition.

Fair value of financial instruments

If there is an active market for a financial asset or financial liability,
the quoted price in the active market is used to establish the fair
value of the financial asset or financial liability. If no active market
exists for a financial instrument, its fair value is determined using
valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s
length market transactions between knowledgeable and willing
parties, reference to the current fair value of another instrument
that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and

option pricing models.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the balance sheet date the carrying amount
of every financial asset. If there is objective evidence indicating
a financial asset may be impaired, a provision is provided for the
impairment. Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired is
one or more events that occur after the initial recognition of the
asset and have an impact (which can be reliably estimated) on the

expected future cash flows of the financial asset.

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a financial
asset has incurred, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
the present value of expected future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) and such reduction is
taken to profit or loss for the current period. The present value of
expected future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. effective interest rate computed
on initial recognition) and includes the value of any related
collateral. If a financial asset has a variable interest rate, the Group
uses the current effective interest rate(s) stipulated in the contract as

the discount rate to calculate the present value of future cash flows.

For a financial asset that is individually significant, the asset is
individually assessed for impairment, and the amount of impairment
is recognized in profit or loss if there is objective evidence of
impairment. For a financial asset that is not individually significant,
it is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assessed for impairment. If no
objective evidence of impairment incurs for an individually assessed
financial asset (whether the financial asset is individually significant
or not individually significant), it is included in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed
for impairment. Assets for which an impairment loss is individually
recognized is not included in a group of financial assets with similar

credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for impairment.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortized cost (Continued)

If, subsequent to the Group's recognition of an impairment loss
on a financial asset carried at amortized cost, there is objective
evidence of a recovery in value of the financial asset and the
recovery can be related to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed and recognized in profit or loss. However, the reversal shall
not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds
what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment loss

not been recognized at the date the impairment is reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale asset is
impaired, the accumulated loss arising from decline in fair value
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is removed
and recognized in profit or loss. The accumulated loss that removed
from other comprehensive income is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortization)
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on the financial

asset previously recognized in profit or loss.

If, after an impairment loss has been recognized on an available-for-
sale debt instrument, the fair value of the debt instrument increases
in a subsequent period and the increase can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized,
the impairment loss is reversed with the amount of the reversal
recognized in profit or loss. The impairment loss on an available-for-
sale equity instrument is not reversed through profit or loss, and any
increase of fair value that occurs after the impairment is recognized

directly in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that such an asset is impaired, the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of
expected future cash flows which are discounted at the current
market yield rate of similar financial assets is recognized as an
impairment loss in profit or loss. Once an impairment loss is

recognized, it is not reversed.

For a long-term equity investment accounted for using the cost
method according to the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 2 — Long-term Equity Investments and which is not
quoted in an active market and for which the fair value cannot be
reliably measured, any impairment is accounted for in accordance

with the above principles.

Transfer of financial assets

If the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the Group derecognizes the
financial asset; if the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the Group does not

derecognize the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, it is accounted for
as follows: (i) if the Group has not retained control, it derecognizes
the financial asset and recognizes any resulting assets or liabilities;
(i) if the Group has retained control, it continues to recognize the
financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the

transferred financial asset and recognizes an associated liability.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)
10. Receivables

(1)

Receivables which are individually significant and for
which provision for bad debt is recognized separately
Receivables are individually significant and tested for
impairment individually if according to the Group’s judgment,
the balance of accounts receivables and other receivables due
from an individual customer accounts for more than RMB20
million in the total balance of receivables. When objective
evidence indicates that the receivable has been impaired, bad
debt provision is made based on the shortfall of the present
value of future cash flow as compared to its carrying amount,

and is charged to profit and loss for the current period.

Receivables for which provision for bad debt is
recognized by group

For receivables which have not undergone individual
assessment, provision for bad debt is recognized by grouping
the receivables based on their credit risk features. Other than
receivables for which provision for bad debt is recognized
separately, bad debt provision is made according to the
actual loss ratio of the same or similar receivable groups or
receivable groups with similar credit risk features, with due
regard to the current situation. The Group determines the
grouping in terms of credit risks using age of the accounts
receivables and other receivables and uses aging analysis to

make provision for bad debts. The percentage are as follows:
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provision for bad debt is recognized sepérately
For receivables which are not individually significant but
objective evidence shows that the impairment has occurred,
bad debt provision will be made according to the difference
between the present value of future cash flows and its

carrying amounts and will be carried through profit and loss.

If clear evidence indicates that the receivables are indeed
not recoverable, such as in case of cancellation, bankruptcy
or insolvency of the debtor or its serious cash flow problem,
then it is recognized as a bad debt and written off for bad

debt provision already made.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates . - T % & 5 Bt % il & 51 16 5t
(Continued) (78)
11. Inventories 1. 7€

Inventories include raw materials, work in progress, finished goods,

self made semi-finished goods and turnover materials etc.

Inventories are initially carried at cost. Cost of inventories comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs. The actual
cost of inventories transferred out is assigned by using weighted
average method or specific identification method. Low value

consumables are amortized by using immediate write-off method.

The Groups adopts perpetual inventory system.

At the balance sheet date, inventories are measured at the lower
of cost and net realizable value. If the cost of inventories is higher
than the net realizable value, a provision for decline in value of
inventories is recognized in profit or loss. If factors that previously
resulted in the provision for decline in value of inventories no longer
exist, so that the net realizable value is higher than the carrying
amount, the amount of the write-down is reversed. The reversal
is limited to the amount originally provided for the provision for
the decline in value of inventories. The amount of the reversal is

recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale and relevant taxes. The
provision for decline in value of inventories is made on an individual

basis or a category basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

12.

Long-term equity investments

Long-term equity investments include equity investments in
subsidiaries, jointly controlled enterprises and associates, and equity
investments where the Group does not have control, joint control
or significant influence over the investees and which are not quoted
in an active market and the fair values of which cannot be reliably

measured.

A long-term equity investment is recorded at its initial investment
cost on acquisition. For a long-term equity investment acquired
through a business combination, the initial investment cost is
determined as follows: for a business combination involving entities
under common control, the initial investment cost of the long-term
equity investment is the absorbing party’s share of the owner’s
equity of the party being absorbed; for a business combination
involving entities not under common control, the initial investment
cost of the long-term equity investment is the cost of combination
(For a business combination not involving entities under common
control achieved in stages that involves multiple transactions, the
initial investment cost is carried at the aggregate of the carrying
amount of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree and the new investment cost incurred on the acquisition
date.). The cost of combination is the aggregate of the fair values of
the assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity securities
issued by the acquirer, in exchange for control of the acquired. For
a long-term equity investment acquired otherwise than through
a business combination, the initial investment cost is determined
as follows: for a long-term equity investment acquired by paying
cash, the initial investment cost is the actual purchase price paid
and those costs, taxes and other necessary expenditures directly
attributable to the acquisition of the long-term equity investment;
for a long-term equity investment acquired by the issue of equity
securities, the initial investment cost is the fair value of the securities
issued; for a long-term equity investment contributed by the Group,
the initial investment cost is the value stipulated in the investment
contract or agreement, except where the value stipulated in the

investment contract or agreement is not fair.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

12.

Long-term equity investments (Continued)

For a long-term equity investment where the Group does not
have joint control or significant influence over the investee, the
investment is not quoted in an active market and its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, the Group uses the cost method. And
for a long-term equity investment where the Company can exercise
control over the investee, the Company uses the cost method in the
Company's financial statements. Control is the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an enterprise so as to obtain

benefits from its operating activities.

Under the cost method, the long-term equity investment is
measured at its initial investment cost. Except for the cash dividend
or profit distribution declared but unpaid that is included in the
price or consideration paid upon acquisition of a long-term equity
investment, the Company recognizes its share of cash dividends or
profit distributions declared by the investee as investment income
in the current period, and considers whether the long-term equity
investment is impaired according to the policies related to asset

impairment.

The equity method is adopted when the Group holds joint control,
or exercises significant influence on the investee. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control over an economic activity,
and exists only when the financial and operational decisions relating
to the activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not

control or joint control with other parties over those policies.

Under the equity method, where the initial investment cost of a
long-term equity investment exceeds the investing entity’s interest
in the fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the
acquisition date, no adjustment is made to the initial investment
cost. Where the initial investment cost is less than the investing
entity’s interest in the fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets at the acquisition date, the difference is charged to profit
or loss for the current period, and the cost of the long-term equity

investment is adjusted accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

12.

Long-term equity investments (Continued)

Under the equity method, the Group recognizes its share of the
net profits or losses made by the investee as investment income
or losses, and adjusts the carrying amount of the investment
accordingly. The Group recognizes its share of the investee’s net
profits or losses after making appropriate adjustments to the
investee’s net profits and losses based on the fair value of the
investee’s identifiable assets at the acquisition date, using the
Group’s accounting policies and periods, and eliminating the
portion of the profits or losses arising from internal transactions
with its jointly controlled enterprises and associates, attributable
to the investing entity according to its share ratio (but impairment
losses for assets arising from internal transactions shall be
recognized in full). The carrying amount of the investment is
reduced based on the Group's share of any profit distributions
or cash dividends declared by the investee. The Group’s share of
net losses of the investee is recognized to the extent the carrying
amount of the investment together with any long-term interests
that in substance form part of its net investment in the investee is
reduced to zero, except that the Group has incurred obligations to
assume additional losses. The Group adjusts the carrying amount of
the long-term equity investment for any changes in shareholders’
equity of the investee (other than net profits or losses) and includes

the corresponding adjustments in the shareholders’ equity.

On disposal of a long-term equity investment, the difference
between the proceeds actually received and carrying amount is
recognized in profit or loss for the current period. For a long-term
equity investment accounted for using the equity method, any
changes in the shareholders’ equity of the investee included in the
shareholders’ equity of the Group is transferred to profit or loss for
the current period on a pro-rata basis according to the proportion

disposed of.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

12.

13.

Long-term equity investments (Continued)

For a long-term equity investment in a subsidiary, jointly controlled
enterprises or associate, refer to Item 25 under Note Il for the test
for impairment and recognition of provision for impairment. For
other long-term equity investment where the investment is not
quoted in an active market and its fair value cannot be measured
reliably, refer to Item 9 under Note Il for the test for impairment

and recognition of provision for impairment.

Investment property
Investment property is property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Investment property includes a land use right

that is leased out and a building that is leased out.

An investment property is measured initially at its cost. If the
economic benefits relating to an investment property will probably
flow in and the cost can be reliably measured, subsequent costs
incurred for the property is included in the cost of the investment
property. Otherwise, subsequent costs are recognized in profit or

loss for the period in which they are incurred.

The Group uses the cost model for subsequent measurement of its
investment property. Depreciation or amortization is calculated on

the straight-line basis over its useful life, as follows:
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For an investment property that is subsequently measured using
the cost model, refer to Item 25 under Note Il for the test for

impairment and recognition of provision for impairment.

48.5-50 years®F
14.5-30 years?F
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)
14. Fixed assets
A fixed asset is recognized only when the economic benefits
associated with the asset will probably flow to the Group and the
cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Subsequent expenditure
incurred for a fixed asset that meet the recognition criteria shall
be included in the cost of the fixed asset, and the carrying amount
of the component of the fixed asset that is replaced shall be
derecognized. Otherwise, such expenditure shall be recognized in

profit or loss for the period in which they are incurred.

Fixed assets are initially measured at cost. The cost of a purchased
fixed asset comprises the purchase price, relevant taxes and any
directly attributable expenditure for bringing the asset to working
condition for its intended use. Other than certain equipment of
the parent company, and machinery and equipment of certain
subsidiaries namely WEICHAI POWER MAT AUTOMOTIVE, INC.,
Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd., Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd. and Xi‘an Fast
Auto Drive Co., Ltd., for which double-declining balance method is
used for depreciation, the straight line method is adopted for the

depreciation of other fixed assets.

The estimated useful lives, residual value rates and annual

depreciation rates of fixed assets are presented as follows:
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Estimated Estimated net Annual

useful lives residual depreciation

[tem (years) value rate (%) rate (%)
FERHE A TEEHE FIFEX

A v (%) BE(%) (%)
Houses and buildings BEREEY 12-35 3-5 2.71-7.92
Machinery and equipment 2SR 4-12 3-5 7.91-23.75
Vehicles BT A 4-10 3-5 9.50-50.00
Electronic equipment BFERE 3-12 3-5 7.91-47.50
Other equipment Efh R 1 3-10 3-5 9.50-40.00

The Group reviews the useful life and estimated net residual value
of a fixed asset and the depreciation method applied at least at

each financial year-end, and make adjustments if necessary.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

14.

15.

16.

Fixed assets (Continued)
For the test for impairment and recognition of provision for

impairment related to a fixed asset, refer to Item 25 under Note II.

Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined according to
the actual expenditure incurred for the construction, including all
necessary construction expenditure incurred during the construction
period, borrowing costs that shall be capitalized before the
construction gets ready for its intended use and other relevant

expenses.

A construction in progress is transferred to fixed asset when the asset

is ready for its intended use.

For the test for impairment and recognition of provision for
impairment related to a construction in progress, refer to Item 25

under Note Il.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the Group
in connection with the borrowing of the funds. Borrowing costs
include interest, amortization of discounts or premiums related
to borrowings, ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings, and exchange differences arising from

foreign currency borrowings.

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized. The
amounts of other borrowing costs incurred are recognized as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred. Qualifying assets
are assets (fixed assets, investment property and inventories, etc.)
that necessarily take a substantial period of time for acquisition,
construction or production to get ready for their intended use or

sale.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates .- T % & 5 B % 1 & 51 16 5
(Continued) (78)
16. Borrowing costs (Continued) 16. ERXERA (&)

The capitalization of borrowing costs commences only when all of
the following conditions are satisfied:

(1) expenditures for the asset are being incurred;

(2)  borrowing costs are being incurred;

(3) activities relating to the acquisition, construction or
production of the asset that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale have commenced.

Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when the qualifying asset
being acquired, constructed or produced becomes ready for its
intended use or sale. Any borrowing costs subsequently incurred are
recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

During the capitalization period, the amount of interest to be
capitalized for each accounting period shall be determined as

follows:

(1)  Where funds are borrowed for a specific purpose, the
amount of interest to be capitalized is the actual interest
expense incurred on that borrowing for the period less any
bank interest earned form depositing the borrowed funds
before being used on the asset or any investment income on
the temporary investment of those funds.

(2)  Where funds are borrowed for a general purpose, the
amount of interest to be capitalized on such borrowings is
determined by applying a weighted average interest rate to
the weighted average of the excess amounts of accumulated
expenditure on the asset over and above the amounts of
specific-purpose borrowings.

Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during periods in
which the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset is interrupted by activities other than those necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale, when the interruption
is for a continuous period of more than 3 months. Borrowing costs
incurred during these periods are recognized as an expense for the
current period until the acquisition, construction or production is
resumed.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20126 HA30H (A E#oT)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates . - T % & 5 Bt % il & 51 16 5t
(Continued) (78)
17. Intangible assets 17. BEEE

An intangible asset shall be recognized only when it is probable
that the economic benefit associated with the asset will flow to
the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. However, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination with a fair value that can
be measured reliably are recognized separately as intangible assets

and measured at the fair value.

The useful life of an intangible asset is determined according to the
period over which it is expected to generate economic benefits for
the Group. An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite
useful life when there is no foreseeable limit to the period over
which the asset is expected to generate economic benefits for the

Group.

The useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:
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BEREVEENERSHOT

Useful life

S

Technology know-how HERIM 3.5-20 years
3.5-20%F

Land use rights + Hh (A 30-50 years
30-50%F

Computer software STEM 5-10 years
5-104F

License R E 10 years
105

Trademark rights PE 122 {50 F 4 indefinite
THEE

Land use rights that are acquired by the Group are generally
accounted for as intangible assets. Buildings, such as plants that
are developed and constructed by the Group, and relevant land use
rights and buildings, are accounted for as intangible assets and fixed
assets, respectively. Payments for the land and buildings acquired
are allocated between the land use rights and the buildings; if
they cannot be reasonably allocated, all of the land use rights and

buildings are accounted for as fixed assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

17.

Intangible assets (Continued)

An intangible asset with a finite useful life is amortized using the
straight-line method over its useful life. For an intangible asset
with a finite useful life, the Group reviews the useful life and
amortization method at least at each financial year-end and makes

adjustment if necessary.

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life are tested for
impairment at least once every year, irrespective of whether there
is any indication that the asset may be impaired. This category of
intangible assets will not be amortized and will be reviewed every
accounting period based on its useful life. If there are evidence
indicates that its useful life is limited, the asset will be accounted for
in accordance to the policy for intangible asset with definite useful

life stated above.

The Group classifies the expenditure on an internal research and
development project into expenditure on the research phase
and expenditure on the development phase. Expenditure on the
research phase of an internal research and development project is
recognized in profit or loss for the period in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on the development phase is capitalized when the
Group can demonstrate all of the following: (i) the technical
feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale; (i) the intention to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it; (i) how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits. Among other things, the Group
can demonstrate the existence of a market for the output of the
intangible asset or the intangible asset itself or, if it is to be used
internally, the usefulness of the intangible asset; (iv) the availability
of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete
the development and the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
and (v) its ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development. Expenditure on
the development phase that does not meet the above criteria is

recognized in profit or loss for the period in which it is incurred.

For the test for impairment and recognition of provision for
impairment related to an intangible asset, refer to Item 25 under
Note II.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

18.

19.

Long-term prepaid expenses
Long-term prepaid expenses are amortized using straight-line

method as follows:
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Amortization period
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()
Industrial mould fee TRERS 1-5 years
1-54F
Industrial equipment fee THzZA8 5 years
54
Expenditure on improvement of fixed assets HABRTEERR T the shorter of useful lives and
leased in lease period
EAEmEAEHE
Provisions 19. EEtEE

Except for contingent consideration transferred and contingent RS HFREE HE RAENNK
liability assumed in business combinations, the Group recognizes an FEEZI  BERPAFFERBOE
obligation related to a contingency as a provision when all of the BRI S AT RY - REB S HE

following conditions are satisfied: RREFEE:

(1) The obligation is a present obligation of the Group;

(2)  Itis probable that an outflow of economic benefits from the

Group will be required to settle the obligation;

(3)  The amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the related present obligation,
with comprehensive consideration of factors such as the risks,
uncertainty and time value of money relating to a contingency. The
carrying amount of a provision is reviewed at the balance sheet
date. If there is clear evidence that the carrying amount does not
reflect the current best estimate, the carrying amount is adjusted to

the best estimate.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

19.

20.

Provisions (Continued)

A contingent liability recognized in a business combination is
initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured
at the higher of (i) the amount that would be recognized in
accordance with the general guidance for provisions above; and (ii)
the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortization recognized in accordance with the guidance for

revenue recognition.

Revenue
Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the associated
economic benefits will flow to the Group, its amount can be

measured reliably, and the following conditions are satisfied.

Revenue from the sales of goods

Revenue is recognized when the Group has transferred to the buyer
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; the
Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over
the goods sold; and the associated costs incurred or to be incurred
can be measured reliably. The amount of revenue arising from the
sale of goods is determined in accordance with the consideration
received or receivable from the buyer under contract or agreement,
except where the consideration received or receivable under
contract or agreement is not fair. Where the consideration
receivable under contract or agreement is deferred, such that the
arrangement is in substance of a financing nature, the amount of
revenue arising on the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of

the consideration receivable under contract or agreement .
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates .- T % & 5 Bt % 1 & 51 4 5
(Continued) (78)
20. Revenue (Continued) 20. WA (&)

Revenue from the rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of
services can be estimated reliably at the balance sheet date, revenue
associated with the transaction is recognized using the percentage
of completion method, or otherwise, the revenue is recognized to
the extent of costs incurred that are expected to be recoverable.
The outcome of a transaction involving rendering of services can be
estimated reliably when all of the following conditions are satisfied:
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; it is probable
that the associated economic benefits will flow to the Group; the
stage of completion of the transaction can be measured reliably;
the costs incurred and to be incurred for the transaction can be
measured reliably. The Group determines the stage of completion
of a transaction involving the rendering of services by using the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated total costs.
The total service revenue on a transaction involving rendering of
services is determined in accordance with the consideration received
or receivable from the recipient of services under contract or
agreement, except where the consideration received or receivable

under contract or agreement is not fair.

Interest income
It is determined according to the length of time for which the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents is used by others and the

effective interest rate.

Royalty income
It is determined according to period and method of charging as

stipulated in the relevant contract or agreement.

Lease income
Lease income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Contingent rents are charged to profit or

loss in the period in which they actually arise.
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HRBIRHBERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

21.

22.

Government grants

Government grant is recognized when the Group can comply with
the conditions attached to it and it can be received. If a government
grant is in the form of a transfer of a monetary asset, it is measured
at the amount received or receivable. If a government grant is in
the form of a transfer of a non-monetary asset, it is measured at
fair value; if fair value is not reliably determinable, it is measured
at a nominal amount. A government grant related to income is
accounted for as follows: (a) if the grant is a compensation for
related expenses or losses to be incurred in subsequent periods, the
grant is recognized as deferred income, and recognized in profit or
loss over the periods in which the related costs are recognized; (b)
if the grant is a compensation for related expenses or losses already
incurred, it is recognized immediately in profit or loss for the current
period. A government grant related to an asset shall be recognized
as deferred income, and evenly amortized to profit or loss over
the useful life of the related asset. However, a government grant
measured at a nominal amount is recognized immediately in profit

or loss for the current period.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognized as income or an expense in profit or loss for the current
period, or recognized directly in shareholders’ equity if it arises from
a business combination or relates to a transaction or event which is

recognized directly in shareholders’ equity.

The Group measures a current tax asset or liability arising from
the current and prior period based on the amount of income tax
expected to be paid by the Group or returned by tax authority

calculated by related tax laws.

For temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, and
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the
tax bases of items, the tax bases of which can be determined for
tax purposes, but which have not been recognized as assets and

liabilities, deferred taxes are provided using the liability method.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)
22. Income tax (Continued)

A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

(M

where the taxable temporary differences arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, or the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction which contains both of the
following characteristics: (i) the transaction is not a business
combination; and (ii) at the time of the transaction, it affects

neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or deductible loss.

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, jointly-controlled enterprises and
associates, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable

future.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary

differences, carryforward of unused deductible tax losses and tax

credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be

available against which the deductible temporary differences, and

the carryforward of deductible tax losses and tax credits can be

utilized, except:

)

where the deductible temporary differences arises from a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or deductible loss is affected.

in respect of the deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly-
controlled enterprises, a deferred tax asset is only recognized
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will be reversed in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences can be utilized in the future.
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HRBIRHBERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

22.

23.

Income tax (Continued)

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, according to the
requirements of tax laws. The measurement of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects at the balance

sheet date, to recover the assets or settle the liabilities.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available in future
periods to allow the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the balance sheet date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities and presented on
a net basis are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities on a net basis and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

taxation authority.

Leases
A finance lease is a lease that transfers in substance all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset. An operating lease is a

lease other than a finance lease.

In the case of the lessee of an operating lease

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognized by a lessee
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, and either included
in the cost of the related asset or charged to profit or loss for the
current period. Contingent rents are charged to profit or loss in the

period in which they actually arise.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

23.

24.

Leases (Continued)

In the case of the lessor of an operating lease

Rent income under an operating lease is recognized by a lessor
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, through profit or loss.
Contingent rents are charged to profit or loss in the period in which

they actually arise.

Non-current assets held for sale
Except for financial assets and deferred tax assets, the Group
recognizes non-current assets as held for sale when all of the

following conditions are satisfied:

(1)  the Group has resolved to dispose that non-current asset;

(2)  anon-cancellable transfer agreement has been signed with

the transferee;
(3)  the transfer is expected to be completed within one year.

No depreciation or amortization will be provided for an individual or
disposal group of non-current assets classified as held for sale. Such
assets are calculated by using the fair value less disposal cost, the
amount of which shall not exceed the original carrying value when
it was qualified as held for sale. The surplus of original carrying
value over the amount of fair value less disposal cost are charged to

profit or loss for the current period as impairment loss of assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)
25. Impairment of assets
The Group determines the impairment of assets, other than the
impairment of inventories, deferred income taxes, financial assets
and long-term equity investments, which are accounted for using
the cost method and have no quoted market prices in active
markets, and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, using

the following methods:

The Group assesses at the balance sheet date whether there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists
that an asset may be impaired, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset and performs test for impairment. Goodwill
arising from a business combination and an intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life are tested for impairment at least at each year-
end, irrespective of whether there is any indication that the asset
may be impaired. Intangible assets that have not been ready for

intended use are tested for impairment each year.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and the present value of the future cash flow expected
to be derived from the asset. The Group estimates the recoverable
amount on an individual basis. If it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Group determines
the recoverable amount of the asset group to which the asset
belongs. Identification of an asset group is based on whether major
cash inflows generated by the asset group are largely independent

of the cash inflows from other assets or asset groups.

When the recoverable amount of an asset or asset group is less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to the
recoverable amount. The reduction in carrying amount is treated
as impairment loss and recognized in profit or loss for the current
period. A provision for impairment loss of the asset is recognized

accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

25.

Impairment of assets (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount of
goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated from the
acquisition date on a reasonable basis, to each of the related asset
groups; if it is impossible to allocate to the related asset groups,
it is allocated to each of the related sets of asset groups. Each of
the related asset groups or sets of asset groups is an asset group
or set of asset group that is able to benefit from the synergies of
the business combination and shall not be larger than a reportable

segment determined by the Group.

In testing an asset group or a set of asset groups to which goodwill
has been allocated for impairment, if there is any indication of
impairment, the Group firstly tests the asset group or set of
asset groups excluding the amount of goodwill allocated for
impairment, determines the recoverable amount and recognizes
any impairment loss. After that, the Group tests the asset group or
set of asset groups including goodwill for impairment, whereby the
carrying amount of the related asset group or set of asset groups
is compared to its recoverable amount. If the carrying amount of
the asset group or set of asset groups is higher than its recoverable
amount, the amount of the impairment loss firstly reduces the
carrying amount of the goodwill allocated to the asset group or
set of asset groups, and then reduce the carrying amount of other
assets (other than the goodwill) within the asset group or set of asset

groups, pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset.

Once the above impairment loss is recognized, it cannot be reversed

in subsequent accounting periods.
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HRBIRHBERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

26.

Payroll

Payroll are all forms of consideration given and other relevant
expenditures incurred by the Group in exchange for service
rendered by employees. In the accounting period in which an
employee has rendered service to the Group, the payroll payable is
recognized as a liability. For payroll payable due in more than 1 year
after the balance sheet date, if the discounted value is significant, it is

presented at the present value.

The employees of the Group participate in social insurance, such as
pension insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
etc., and housing funds, which is managed by the local government,
and the relevant expenditure is recognized, when incurred, in the

costs of relevant assets or the profit and loss for the current period.

When the Group terminates the employment relationship with
employees before the end of the employment contracts or provides
compensation as an offer to encourage employees to accept
voluntary redundancy, a provisions recognized for the compensation
arising from termination of employment relationship with
employees, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss for the
current period, when both of the following conditions are satisfied:
(@) The Group has a formal plan for termination of employment
relationship, or has made an offer for voluntary redundancy, which
will be implemented immediately. (b) The Group cannot unilaterally

withdraw from the termination plan or the redundancy offer.

The same principle is applied to the early retirement plan, as it is for
the above-mentioned termination benefits. The Group recognizes
salaries, social insurance premiums, etc., to be paid for the early
retired employees, during the period from the date when the
employees stop rendering service to the normal retirement date, as
payroll payable through profit or loss for the current period, when
the above conditions for the recognition of termination benefit plan

are satisfied.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

27.

28.

Profit appropriation and distribution
The annual cash dividend of the Company is recognized as a liability

after being approved in the general meeting.

Debt restructuring
A debt restructuring is an event in which a debtor is in financial
difficulty and a creditor grants a concession to the debtor in

accordance with a mutual agreement or a court judgment.

As a debtor

When a debt is settled by cash in a debt restructuring, the
difference between the carrying amount of the debt and the cash
actually paid is recognized in profit or loss for the current period.
When a debt is satisfied by a transfer of non-cash asset(s) to the
creditor in a debt restructuring, the difference between the carrying
amount of the debt and the fair value of the non-cash asset(s)
transferred is recognized in profit or loss for the current period;
the difference between the fair value of the non-cash asset(s)
transferred and their carrying amount was recognized in profit or
loss for the current period. When a debt is converted into capital in
a debt restructuring, the difference between the carrying amount
of the debt and the fair value of the capital issued to the creditor is
recognized in profit or loss for the current period. When other terms
of the debt is modified, the difference between the carrying amount
of the debt under restructuring and the sum of the fair value of the
debt subsequent to the modification of other terms of the debt and
the provisions recognized in respect of amounts payable, shall be
recoginzed in profit or loss for the current period. When a debt is
satisfied by a combination of the methods mentioned above, the
carrying amount of the debt is reduced by, and in the sequence of,
the cash payment, the fair value of the non-cash asset(s) transferred
and the fair value of the capital issued to the creditor, and then
accounted for in accordance with the requirements related to a
debt restructuring that involves the modification of other terms of a
debt.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

28.

29.

Debt restructuring (Continued)

As a creditor

When a debt is settled by cash in a debt restructuring, the
difference between the gross carrying amount of the debt
receivable and the cash received is recognized in profit or loss for
the current period. When a debt is satisfied by a transfer of non-
cash asset(s) in a debt restructuring, the difference between the
gross carrying amount of the debt receivable and the fair value
of the non-cash asset(s) received is recognized in profit or loss for
the current period. When a debt is converted into capital in a debt
restructuring, the difference between the gross carrying amount
of the debt and the fair value of the equity interest received is
recognized in profit or loss for the current period. When other
terms of the debt is modified, the difference between the gross
carrying amount of the debt receivable under restructuring and the
fair value of the debt receivable subsequent to the modification of
other terms of the debt, shall be recognized in profit or loss for the
current period. When a debt is satisfied by a combination of the
methods mentioned above, the gross carrying amount of the debt
is reduced by, and in the sequence of, the cash received, the fair
value of the non-cash asset(s) obtained and the fair value of the
equity interest received, and then accounted for in accordance with
the requirements related to a debt restructuring that involves the

modification of other terms of a debt.

If the creditor has provided for impairment loss on the debt
receivable, the above difference is used to reduce the impairment
provision and any excess is recognized in profit or loss for the

current period.

Related parties

If a party has the power to control, jointly control or exercise
significant influence over another party, they are regarded as related
parties. Two or more parties are also regarded as related parties if

they are subject to control or joint control from the same party.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)
30. Segment reporting
The Group identifies operating segments based on the internal
organization structure, managerial requirements and internal
reporting system, identifies reportable segments based on operating

segments and discloses segment information by operating segment.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that meets all

the following conditions:

(1) it engages in business activities from which it may earn

revenues and incur expenses,;

(2) its operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s
management to make decisions about resources to be

allocated to the segment and assess its performance;

(3) the Group is able to obtain relevant accounting information
such as its financial position, operating results and cash flows

of such segment.

If two or more segments have similar economic characteristics and
meet certain conditions, then they can be aggregated into a single

operating segment.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

31.

Significant accounting judgments and
estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management
to make judgments and estimates that will affect the reported
amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the balance sheet date.
However, uncertainty about these estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgments which have
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial

statements.

Operating lease — in the case of the lessor

The Group has entered into leasing contracts for its investment
properties. The Group is of the opinion that, according to the terms
of such leasing contracts, the Group has retained all material risks
and returns of ownership of these properties and therefore they are

accounted for as operating lease.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the future accounting

periods, are discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill and trademarks

The Group determines whether goodwill and trademarks with
indefinite useful life are impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the asset group to
which goodwill and trademarks are allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the asset group and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash

flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

31.

Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies certain assets as available-for-sale and
recognizes movements of their fair values in shareholders’ equity.
When the fair value declines, management makes assumptions
about the decline in value to determine whether there is an

impairment that shall be recognized in the income statement.

Impairment of non-current assets other than non-financial assets
(other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indication of impairment
for all non-current assets other than financial assets at the balance
sheet date. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually and at other times when such indication
exists. Other non-current assets other than financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indication that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. Where the carrying amount of
an asset or asset group is higher than its recoverable amount (i.e.
the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and the present value of
the future cash flows expected to be derived from it), it is indicated
that such asset or asset group is impaired. The fair value less costs
to sell is determined with reference to the price in sales agreement
or observable market price in arm’s length transaction, adjusted for
incremental costs that would be directly attributable to the disposal
of the asset or asset group. When calculating the present value
of expected future cash flows from an asset or asset group, the
management shall estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or asset group and choose a suitable discount rate in order to

calculate the present value of those future cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

31.

Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused deductible
temporary differences and deductible losses to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and deductible losses can be
utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profit together

with future tax planning strategies.

Write-down of inventories to net realizable values

Write-down of inventories to their net realizable values is based on
the saleability of the evaluated inventory and their net realizable
values. Given the management'’s judgments and estimates required
for inventory impairment on the basis of clear evidence, purpose
of holding the inventories, effect of subsequent events and other
factors, the difference between the actual outcome and original
estimate will affect the carrying amount of inventories and provision
and reversal of decline in value of inventories during the estimated

revision period.

Impairment of receivable

Impairment of receivable is based on the recoverability of assessed
receivable. Given the management’s judgment and estimate
required for impairment of receivable, the difference between
the actual outcome and original estimate will affect the carrying
amount of receivable and provision and reversal of bad debts of

receivable during the estimated revision period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

31.

Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Recognition of estimated liabilities

The Group uses contract terms, existing knowledge and historical
experience, to estimate and recognize the provision for product
quality assurance. On condition that such contingent matters has
formed a present obligation which is probable to give rise to an
outflow of the Group’s economic benefits, the Group recognizes

the best estimate.

Estimated useful lives of fixed assets

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of fixed assets at least
once at the end of the year. Estimated useful lives is determined
by the management based on historical experience of similar
assets and expected technological advancement. Corresponding
adjustment to depreciation expenses for future periods will be made

in case of substantial changes in previous estimates.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Taxation

o 5 i % M R (48)
201246 A30H (A R¥T)

= B

1. Major categories of taxes and respective tax 1. EEBERBR

rates

Value-added tax (VAT)
1

Business tax
EED

City maintenance and construction tax

P A R R

Education surcharge

A BN

— Output VAT is calculated by applying 17% to the taxable income,
but the Group may pay it after deducting deductible input VAT
for the current period.

REBRUARNT %t EIHIAT - WA E B4 FHEH R0
TN ER 1R ) Z R AT AUEER »

— It is calculated by applying 5% to the taxable income.

RIETUAR 5 % st U T

— Itis levied at 7% or 5% on the actual turnover taxes paid.

RERBMAERERNT %H5%T 8 o

— Itis levied at 3% on the actual turnover taxes paid.

HERBARNRERA3%T8 -

Corporate income tax

— Itis levied at 15% or 25% on the taxable profit.

EEMEH EEMRMBRIREANTIISEN15%325%H 5 -

Tax benefits and official approval

Value-added tax

In accordance with the Notice Concerning Exemption from Value-
added Tax and Consumption Tax applicable to Special-purpose
Military Vehicles ( (BN E R REFBERH 2EILAEBFE BT 4B
%1 ) issued by MOF and State Administration of Taxation, the sale
of special-purpose military vehicles to army and armed police by
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited, a subsidiary of the

Company, is exempted from value-added tax.

Corporate Income Tax

The Company was recognized as a hi-tech enterprise on 27
November 2008 and became entitled to a preferential income tax
rate of 15% for the period from 1 January 2008 to 31 December
2010. In 2012, the Company passed the review on high-tech
enterprise and is therefore entitled to enjoy a preferential income
tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2013.

R EER#X
12 EH

ARBZFREARABEAHEARA
AIREMEE AR BER(ER
ERFREWMREUEERMBEERY
BREERER  REMHREAN
ERFEERRBULER

ERTEH
RAFIFR2008F 11 A27 B RE A
BB - B2008F1A1HZE
2010F 12 A31HERI15%MAEH
BEBE - 2012F A ABBET
Rt ¥ESE  B20MF1H1BE
2013F 12 A31AZER15%MMEH
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Taxation (Continued)

2.

Tax benefits and official approval (Continued)
Corporate Income Tax (Continued)

Subsidiaries such as Weichai Power Yangzhou Diesel Engine Co.,
Ltd. (LB iz NS BB R E £ R]), Shanghai He Da Auto
Accessory Co., Ltd. (E/&MESBER (AR AR, Zhuzhou Torch
Auto Lighting Co., Ltd. ((RNBAXEREREBGREEA ),
Zhuzhou Gear Co., Ltd. (#kM g% A R & £ 7)), Mudanjiang
Futong Automotive Air Conditioner Co., Ltd. (HfH T E@/SHE L
BIRAR], Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co., Ltd. (BRINARAAE X FE
ZAEMREF T A 7)) and Zhuzhou Torch Auto Sealing Co., Ltd (K148
NABREZE AR E{EAR]) have also been recognized as hi-tech
enterprises. In 2011, these subsidiaries passed the review on high-
tech enterprise and are therefore entitled to enjoy a preferential
income tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2011 to 31 December
2013.

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited, Shaanxi Fast Gear
Co., Ltd. and Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd. were at the same time
recognized as hi-tech enterprises. In 2011, such companies passed
the review on high-tech enterprise and are therefore entitled to
enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2011 to
31 December 2013.

Pursuant to the requirement of the Notice Concerning Issues on
Taxation Policies Relating to the Thorough Implementation of
China’s Strategy of Western Development (Cai Shui Fa No. [2011]
58) ( CBAROAR AN b F8 50 A 7 35 B S B A D OBUR R R i &) )
promulgated by MOF, the State Administration of Taxation and the
General Administration of Customs dated 27 July 2011, as well as
the approval of relevant authorities, the following companies have

implemented preferential tax policy for the Western Development:

Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd. has received the approval of Shan
Fa Gai Industrial Confirmation Letter (PR32 S 1) No.
(2012)002 on 9 March 2012 and the Company has passed the
examination of 2011 Taxation Filing, and it is expected to be

entitled again to enjoy a preferential policy in 2012;
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Taxation (Continued)

o 5 i % M R (48)
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=~ Bl (%)

2. Tax benefits and official approval (Continued) 2. BWEERHMX(E)
Corporate Income Tax (Continued) PEFRBH(E)
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited has received the PREERREER DA - R2012
approval of Shan Fa Gai Industrial Confirmation Letter (BE%2k F4H20 B B SCPREE B E X MR K
EE M) No. (2012)003 on 20 April 2012 and at the same (2012)003 SR YAIHL1E - R ESF T
time, received the approval of taxation filing, and shall proceed BEEHEB2011F1 818 E2020
the implementation of preferential tax policy for the Western F12A318 - BENTADARE
Development during the period from 1 January 2011 to 31 UL EBERE
December 2020;
Xi'an Fast Auto Drive Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. and ALATHEHEREERT - BREA
Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd. have received the approval of Shan Fa Gai B ERERETARMER EZL
Industrial Confirmation Letter (P2 E X FER K) No. (2012)004 HEmARTEELR - R2012F4 8
on 24 April 2012 and the Company has passed the examination of 24 BESCPRE N EE R K (2012)
2011 Taxation Filing, and it is expected to be entitled again to enjoy 0045k YHE1E - RE B LBMB20114F
a preferential policy in 2012. BB EEBERER  BEt2012F 0K
BEEEXBEBRNER -
3. Other descriptions 3. H{thzHeA
Taxable profit derived from other regions by primary subsidiaries AAE B THFMRNEIIN—RTF
incorporated overseas of the Company, calculated at applicable N RIRRE 3 % B FE AN T PS8
local tax rate according to existing laws, interpretations and RIEBELEMEBRRRITERZ « @BER
practices of the countries in which the subsidiaries operate, are as EMEG - BRI E
follows:
Income tax rate (%)
FRS B (%)
Weichai Power (Hong Kong) International LB N (BE)BERERBRAF
Development Co., Ltd. 16.50
WEICHAI POWER MAT AUTOMOTIVE, INC. WEICHAI POWER MAT AUTOMOTIVE, INC. 40.27
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) o 5k 3% BT 5E (48
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2012F6 A30H (A E¥T)

IV. Consolidation scope of consolidated financial Y - & 4 B % $t % ) & BF %6 &

statements
1. Information about subsidiaries 1. FRFER
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are AARIBETFRAIWNIBERAT :

presented as follows:

Type of Place of Legal Nature of Registered Organization
subsidiary  registration representative  business capital - Scope of business code
FRERE  Efi INI: e iftex SeEE AERERT

Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or investment

BARUARETADGHTAT

(1) Weichai Power (Weifang) fimited liability ~ Shandong Zhang Quan Trading Industry 89,795,918.00  Sale of diesel engines accessories and working ~ 78076858-9
Spare Part Resources company IR FR HEE parts/components and dedicated diesel oll
Co, Ltd. BREEARA KHERARES/SIHREAEES
B8 BRgR HE
BRAA
2 Weichai Power (Weifang) Ol limited liability  Shandong Zhang Quan Sale of ol products 10,000,000.00  Processing sale of lubricating oil, sale of basic ~ 78078572-5
(o, Ltd. company IR FR BamHE ofl and additives for lubricating o, anti-icing
St 2aipht BREFAF fluid, cleaning agent, anti-cutting fluid and
EBAT additives
AREEERN  HERERERAR
TME - R REH - DHRR
HmA
3 Weichai Power (Weifang) fimited liabiity ~ Shandong Zhang Quan Logistic Industry 20,000,000.00  General transportation; storage; delivery; basic ~ 78078234-8
Intensive Logistics company IR FR niE assembly of machine accessory and power,
Co, Lud. ERERAF diesel engines and accessory packaging,
BEY (45 SRR logistic assets development, logistic
ERRA consultation, international transport agency
and packaging, and lease and sale of logstic
appliances

EREE RE R BHERRES
BREZAR KARRERER NR
HERE WRED ERZERERK
NRMERANES  HE

4) Weichai Power (Weifang) limited liabiity  Shandong Ren Xingwu Manufacturing 460,150,000.00  Manufacture and sale of grey iron, ductile iron ~ 78926896-X
Casting Co,, Ltd. company  IE &R Industry casting; manufacture, sale, hot treatment and
BRB (8085 BREFARA g% cleansing of casting and stamping parts
BRAR RE - REEARE  BE B BEA
B BERDRE B
() Weichai Power (Weifang) limited liabiity  Shandong Sun Shaojun Manufacturing 122,000,000.00  Reconstruction of automobile components 67452682-6
Reconstruction Co,, Ltd. company IR BOE Industry (engine, gear box, generator, starter, diverter)
ERgn(an)Bae ERALRA S RETHNNERE(RDR 2R

BRAA LEH £9E ER%)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Consolidation scope of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

PO 5 i % Ff R (4)
201246 308 (A E¥T)

W~ & fF B B R B A O

(%)
1. FRAA1ER(E)

Type of Place of Legal Nature of Registered Organization
subsidiary  registration representative  business capital  Scope of business code
FREEE  Eftl EAKR EHHE iftes HeEE AEKERE
6) Shandong Synergy Qil limited liability  Shandong Zhang Quan Manufacturing USD3,000,000.00  Manufacture and sale of lubricant ol (grease), 687238559
Co, Ltd. company IR KR Industry 7L wholesale of basic oil and additive oil for
LREBRRBRAR BREAAT g 3,000,000.00  lubricating oil, anti-icing fluid, cleaning agent,
cutting fluid, additives and fuel o
FEREERR(E)  BRREEAR
IR R R RIE
A AR
0] Weichai Power (Qingzhou) limited liability ~ Shandong Dong Ping Manufacturing 100,000,000.00 Design, manufacture and sale of hydraulic 57394501-X
Drive Control Technology company IR EY Industry components, hydraulic system and related
Co,, Ltd. BREFAR S transmission technology series product as
BEH7(EN)BEE wellas providing technical and after-sale
ERAR services, operating import of the equipment,
components and technology required by the
Company and the export business of the
Company's products
RER  REZSRABERRHZS)
EmMRi RERHE LRI
MERRS  BEALEMRRA
SRARNKGNEDZBRECEERN
HO%H
® Baoding Shangi Tianma limited liability ~ Hebei Yuan Hongming ~ Manufacturing 40,000,000.00 Research and development, production, sale ~ 55330965-7
(o, Ltd. company A3k YN Industry and senvicing of specialty heavy-duty truck;
RERTRSERAA BREALRA HiEx research and development, production and
sale of heavy-duty truck components; import
and export of specialty heavy-duty truck and
components
ERERBNTE  AERERRS:
ENTERPNNRE  LEREE:
EHERERTIMMELORE
9 Shaanyi Automobile Xinjiang ~ limited liabiity ~ Xinjiang Hao Xiaogian ~ Manufacturing 194,700,000.00 Research and development, production, sale ~ 57621310-5
Vehicle Co, Ltd. (Note 1) company  #fE =5 Industry and senvicing of components of cargo truck,
RAHEAE BEREFAF g specialty truck and automobile
ERAA(GH) HENE  EARERAETRAN
e 4E - HERNRE
(100 Shaanxi Automobile Datong limited liability ~ Shanxi Hao Xiaogian ~ Manufacturing 132,650,000.00 Research and development of components for ~ 57597361-2
New Energy Special- company U MEY Industry new energy specialty truck and automobile;
Purpose Vehidle Co, Ltd. ~ AREEAR g sales of complete vehicle and components
RAXRFERERAE {excluding passenger vehicles with less than
ERAA 9 seats)

FERERIRAETHMNONE  HE
BERTRE (P2 NENTRREE)



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Consolidation scope of consolidated financial

statements (Continued)

Interim Report 2012 FRHEAZRE
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1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. FRAER(E)
Type of Place of Legal Nature of Registered Organization
subsidiary  registration representative  business capital - Scope of business code
FREEE  Ef EACKR £BHE iftex S=EE AEKERE
(1) RAEENEEERE limited liability  Anhui HaoXiaogian ~ Manufacturing 112,000,000.00  Research and development, sale and after-sale 575744991
BRAE (Note 2) company  Zf it Industry services of new energy heavy-duty truck,
RAEBRERERAE BREFAR gk speciaty truck and automobile components
BRA(2) MERET  ZRERTESBIN
& HENERRS
(1) EERAEINE limited liability ~ Chongging Fang Hongwei ~ Manufacturing 135,000,000.00 Processing, sale, research and development: ~ 58147467-6
ARAF company  EF LK Industry automobile components; sale of
BREFARA gk automobiles (excluding passenger vehicles
with less than 9 seats)
I #E HE: AERPE : BER
(FEMENTRRAE)
(13  RAESEAEELAD free zone Arab Wang Gang Trading of automobiles  USD272,500.00  Sales of various automobile products and N/A
ERATBERT enterprise  FE{A THl nERS e relatedautomobilecomponents @R
BRERR 500 HEXEREERAAEAEES
(14) Shaanxi Wuhai New Power limited fiability ~ Inner Mongolia ~ Yuan Hongming ~ Manufacturing 228,000,000.00  Research and development, production, 56691594-7
Special Vehicles Co,, Lid. company  REL REH Industry sale and senvicing of natural gas heavy-duty
(Note 3) EREMAA g% trucks and special vehicles
RASEMERERE AREFNERERE  £E  $E-
ERRA(E3) i
(15 Weichai Power (Shanghai) limited liabiity ~ Shanghai Xu Xinyu Manufacturing 500,000,000.00  Industrialization development, technical 69296887-1
Technology Development company b BHT Industry development, technical transfer, technical
(o, Ltd. BREFLRA HiEx consultation, technical services, technical
EEHN (L8 HRER training, investment consultation, corporate
ERRA management consultation of transportation
equipment, engineering machinery, new
energy, hi-tech technology and product
Ikﬁiiﬁiﬂﬁ Iim‘x A A i
BWREREXLRE HURE &b
B2 BiTHH &ﬂq R RilEA
REFRN AXERAN
(16)  Weichai Power Yangzhou fimited liability ~ Jiangsu Zhang Quan Manufacturing 300,000,000.00 Design, development, manufacture, saleand  69934189+5
Diesel Engine Co,, Ltd. company  IE FR Industry after-sale services of engines and ancillary

B AN
AREELT

ERELLT

2% products; import and export of engines
and ancillary products, sale of automobile,
automobile accessories and lubricating ol
EORREEERSRT  HE HE
HE  ERERH EBBREEERH
BEORE RE - MERRREERD
HE
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik 2R M Rk (48
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2012F6 A30H (A E¥T)

IV. Consolidation scope of consolidated financial [ - 7 ff Bf % & 3 09 & 0F %5 &

statements (Continued) (%)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. FARER(E)
Type of Place of Legal Nature of Registered Organization
subsidiary  registration representative  business capital  Scope of business code
FREBE  Eftl EAKR MR iftex S=EE AEKERE
(17) Weichai Power (Chongging) limited liability ~ Chongging Xu Xinyu Manufacturing 240,000,000.00  Industralization development and management,  69394899-5
Western Development company  EF BHE Industry technical, investment and management
Co, Ltd. AREMDA g% consultation service of general operating
#5928 EPER ftems, transportation equipment and hi-techs
BRAF technology and products

—REEER  RBEERE  RIARIR
ERNEZLRERER b K&

CEER
(18)  Chongqing Light-dluty- fimited liability ~ Chongging XuXinyu Manufacturing 300,000,000.00  Development, design and sale of light vehicles 563455471
Automotive Co,, Ltd. ompany  EE #HE Industry (excluding sale of passenger vehicle with
ERRIENREARNR  AREMAA Bk 9-seats or below), development, design,

production, sale of automabile accessories
(excluding production of engines)
EURENRE  RHAEE(TRIER
ATRRERE)  MERFNHRE
Rt EE BE(RERBRLE)

(19 Weichai Power (Beijing) limited liability ~ Beijing Xu Xinyu Project Investment 300,000,000.00  Project investment, investment management, 563688056
International Resource company R BT BERE investment consultation; technical
Investment Co, Ltd. BREMAH development, technical transfer, technical
BEBNOLR)EBER consulation, technical service; new energy
RERRAA technical raining; organize cultural-art

exchange (other than performance); sale of
machinery, electrical appliance, equipment
and automobile accessories; lease of self-
owned office premises and office facilities,
property management; import and export of
goods, import and export of technology and
act as agent for import and export

EARE REER REGW:
UG UEE B U
RIS Rsioml A8 g
WQ%(ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁ%%m*%%‘
Rl RERE HEEERARR

““m%% PEMERA

RIGELD - REELO

(200 Weichai Power (Hong Kong) limited iability  Hong Kong, XuXinyu Service Industry USD  Engaging in cooperation and trading business ~ N/A
International Development company China BHE RE% 26,575,180.00  of product and technology in relation to T@8
Co, Lid. BREMLE +EER 7T automobile core components (such as
#5858 ABER 26,575,180.00  engines) and automobile engineering; external
ERAA investment and management business

EERBRE e TR RELR
TENER  BNAGREARE:
HIARERRH



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Consolidation scope of consolidated financial

statements (Continued)

1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Type of Place of
subsidiary

FAIEE  Ef%

registration

Legal
representative

EARR

Nature of
business

RHHE

Interim Report 2012 FRHEAZRE

I 5 2% BT (48
201246308 (A E¥T)

W~ 5 OF BB Rk SR A O R
(%)
1. FRAAEBERR)
Registered Organization

capital  Scope of business code

ifEs HEEE ASBRERE

Subsidiaries acquired through business combinations not involving entities under common control

FR—BHTERAGFRENTAT
(1) Shandong Huadong Casting
Co, Ltd.
WREHEEERAA

company IR
ARREAR

(22)  Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor
Company Limited
REERAEERAR

limited liability ~ Shaanxi
company  BRF
BREFAR

(23 Shaanxi Hande Axle Co,, Ltd.
REZEERERAT

fimited liability ~ Shaanxi
company [
EREFAR

fimited fiability ~ Shandong

XuHong

Tan Xuguang
B

Fang Hongwei

HiE

Manufacturing
Industry
REx

Manufacturing
Industry

Manufacturing
Industry

450,150,000.00  Manufacture and sale of machine accessories, ~ 66674302-X
diesel engines and ancillary products,
farming machines and engineering machines;
import and export of goods, import and
export of technology
BHE  REREEER
BRER TRARNZE HE:
EMELD - RipELA

2,706,330,000.00 Manufacture of automabile (except sedans), sale - 741272070
and export of automobile components and
engines; import of raw materials, machinery,
equipment, apparatus, instruments, spare
parts, components and technology which
are required by the production and research
of the Company (conducted with relevant
license), commence Sino-foreign joint
venture of the Company and cooperate to
develop “three categories of processing and
one category of compensation business”’;
assembling, conversion and after-sale service
of automobile

RERE(NEERN)  RETBHR
FRMNEE  LOEE KAREEE.
HRARORIE - BRRE 88
B% BREL ZEARRHNER
$HUREAE) BRALETIAE
T8 SHEEIZR-WIEH: A%
% Uk ERRE
320,000,000.00  Research, production, manufacture, saleand 745043136
senvicing industry of automobile axle and
axle components, manufacture of raw
materials, machinery, equipments, apparatus,
instruments, spare parts and components that
are required for research, purchase and sale
of components
EERREBTRMONE 12
R HE RETE  EENERS
RITH - BHRE E28% B
it ZRANEH

97



25)

(26)

Tianjin Tiangua Automotive
Co, L1d.
RETAHERERAT

Tianjin Xinming Automotive
Commercial Co,, Ltd.

REFGAEBEARLA

11,760,000.00  Manufacture of household customized vehicle
and trallers and tractors, sale of trailers and
tractors accessories, small-scale farming
equipment, lubricating oil, rubber product,
hardware for domestic use and automobile
(except sedans). Operating export of the
Company's product as well as import and
export of the mechanical equipment and
raw materials of components that are
required by the Company

RAMEE HHELE fE #8

B MERE BEW BBER
Mg REHE(TREE) - B8
AEEERNEOZBASCEHEN
BHRE TRARSMHAELN
hE

fimited liability ~ Tianjin 10426507-7
company K

AREMLR

Hao Xiaogian

i

Manufacturing
Indlustry
REZ

limited liability ~ Tianjin 741395345
company K2
EREELT

Zhang Yueliang
FRER

Trading of automobile

REX

1,000,000.00  Wholesale and retal of automobile (except
sedans), farming vehicle and its accessories,
steel product, rubber product and lubricating
oil; complete vehicle repairing, assembly
repairing, complete vehicle maintenance,
minor repairing, emergency repairing,
special item repairing, normal freight of
[arge and medium-sized truck

RE(R2EE)  BRERARS

fitt BBYER BERRETE
RAUERLEER  AHEE BE
&N BENE ZEEE.
sagE
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Consolidation scope of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. FRAER(E)
Type of Place of Legal Nature of Registered Organization
subsidiary  registration representative  business capital  Scope of business code
FREEE  Efil EAKR £BHE iftex S=EE AERERE
(27)  Shaanxi Heavy Duty fimited fiability ~ Shaanxi Fang Hongwei  Import and export 10,000,000.00  Self-operated agency for import and 78696817-8
Automotive Import & company KA L ELA export of various types of goods and
Export Co,, Ltd. AREAAA technology; bidding agency; logistic and
BRASHAEELD transportation business consultation;
ERAA information consultation of import and
export of automobile complete vehicle and
components, development, results transfer
and consultation service of environmental
and automabile scientific technology, multi-
language and multi-professional translation
services (such as English, German, French,
Russian and Spanish)
RERBREARRRINELD : ARE
RE: DRERXHRN  REREA
TRHEROEERA RRIRTER
SHIRY HREIREARE £
Bk B RESERSEENEE
T
(28)  Shaanxi Automabile Yulin fimited fiabiity ~ Shaanxi Hao Xiaogian Manufacturing 168,000,000.00 Research and development, sale and after-sale ~ 56714227-X
Easter New Energy company  BEA Gil=51 Industry services of new energy heavy-duty truck,
Special-Purpose Vehicle BRELLA gEx specialty truck and automobile components
(o, Ltd. HERET SREMNETHERE
AR AR HEREERE
ERAEARAT
(29)  Shaanxi Fast Gear Co,, Ltd. fimited liability ~ Shaanxi TanXuguang  Manufacturing 256,790,000.00  Design, development, manufacture and 730431187
REETRERER company  BE Ei% Industry sale senices of automobile components
BfRA BEREFAF g such s gear boes, gears and forging

(except complete vehicle production and
customization of automobile); export of self-
manufactured product and technology of
the Company; import and export of raw
materials, apparatus, instruments, machinery,
equipment, components and technology
that are required by the production of the
Company (excluding commodities limited
to companies designated by the State for
operation or prohibited from exporting);
processing of incoming materials
RERRS B QHSAEEIHEN
Rt RE e HERB(IEH
BERERYERI)  ALEREERR
BLNER  ROEEERZHREH
BBRES  BARE TRIEREE
MEHDEB(AFREAAEENER
RHEOHBRRI)  ERNIER
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(31)  Xi‘anFast Auto Drive Co,, Ltd.
ERETEREED
ARAR

(32)  Xi'an Fast Gear Sales Co., Ltd.
ERETEREHE
BRAR

(33)  Shaanxi Fast Gear Spare Parts
Import & Export Co,, Ltd.
REZIHRETHY
EHRERAR

limited liability
company
BREEAT

limited liability
company

BREMAA

limited liability
company
EREMRA

Shaanxi

Ui

Shaanxi

RE

Shaanxi
RE

Tan Xuguang
#ix

Yan Jianbo

Les

Li Dakai
£y

Manufacturing
Industry
REX

Manufacturing
Industry
REX

Import and export
jiduga

ERO%H

134,700,000.00 Design, development, manufacture and sale 750249243
service of power shift transmission system
assembling and components product
TEEDZRERREHHERM
KR HEHERE

1,000,000.00  Sale of gear, automobile component, hardware 742811785
and electrical appliance, construction
materials and automobile
B MERE LERE  BENH
LS

3,000,000.00  Manufacture and sale of automobile 727355005
components, casting, mechanical and
electrical products, operating export of self-
manufactured product and technology of the
Company, import of raw materials, apparatus,
instruments, machinery, equipments,
components and technology that are
required for production

EERERSRNN B HEER-
BERCEREEQRIMNLOEH
TERRORSBIE BT BR
R TRARRGDENEH
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30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2012F6 A30H (A E¥T)

IV. Consolidation scope of consolidated financial 4 - 7 ff Bf % & 3% 09 & 0F %5 &

statements (Continued) (%)

1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. FRAER(E)
Type of Place of Legal Nature of Registered Organization
subsidiary  registration representative  business capital  Scope of business code
FREEE  Efil EAKR £BHE iftex S=EE AEKERE

(34 Zhuzhou Gear Co,, Ltd. fimited fiability ~ Hunan Li Guiyang Manufacturing 531,314,951.00  Design, manufacture and sale of various types ~ 74591450-1
HHERERERAR ompany  HE 31 Industry of automobile, engineering machinery,

BREFAR e motorcycle, machine tools transmission

system assembling, gear and axles, cold and
hot processing of machinery, assembling of
mechanical equipments, sale of automoblle
(except sedans), motorcycle and accessories;
wholesale and retail of electrical appliance,
machinery, equipment, hardware, electrical
appliance, general merchandise and
metal materials. Operating export of self-
manufactured products and technology
of the Company; operating import of raw
materials, apparatus, instruments, machinery,
equipments, components and technology
that are required by the production of the
Company; processing of incoming materials
and “three categories of processing and
one category of compensation business”.
Machinery processing, assembling of
mechanical equipments and metal materials
Rt B HERERE  IRER
BRE BREDZLR BHRY:
B BT BHRGRER - RE
(TagE) BRERRAHEE
55 WHRBHN 1% 2% -BE
SBIENERE HERLREEER
ERimtngs  SeRLRLERT
HREME  EREER BARE
SRURKHMEOEHE  SEERNT
M=K %% - BENT - BARE

Zk 2B
(35 Zhuzhou Wande Forging limited liabiity  Hunan Pan Xiaodong ~ Manufacturing 5,000,000.00 Design, manufacture and sale of forging, 78087176-2
Co,, Ltd. company  EF ARR Industry various types of automobile, gear and
KNEERAERELLT  BRELLT R arles of machine tools
B RENE BROBERENRH
BEARES
(36) Zhuzhou Euro Grace Gear Non-listing Hunan Pan Xiaodong Manufacturing 150,000,000.00  Research and development, production, sale 78801726-1
Automotive Transmission jointstock & ARR Industry and export of automobile machinery and
Co,, Ltd. company g% auto transmission, specialty actuators,
wHEREEDRA FLmRA automobile electronic and electronically
BRAF BRAH controlled products and other automobile
components

NEERRADEES BEEDR
NEETERERRELAETN
W& EE BEREOXHE
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(3)

Shiyan Amor Coating
Technology Co,, Ltd.

HEMERARRN
ARAA

limited liability ~Hubei

company
ERELAT

it

EEINGEE VR G ER
BiRE  FRREAERRE

Long Yugi Manufacturing 2,00,000.00 Coating and processing of automobile 753435607
Rl Industry components; coating treatment of metal
BEx and non-metals; general machinery
processing; development of chemical
raw materials

FEEBHMBENT  2ERELERE
R EREANT L TRMHRR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) o 5k 3% BT 5E (48
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2012F6 A30H (A E¥T)

IV. Consolidation scope of consolidated financial 4 - 7 ff Bf % & 3% 09 & 0F %5 &

statements (Continued) (%)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. FRAER(E)
Type of Place of Legal Nature of Registered Organization
subsidiary  registration representative  business capital  Scope of business code
FREEE  Efi EARE EHiE iftes LeEE AEKERE
(39)  Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs limited liabiity ~ Hunan Li Guiyang Manufacturing 216,420,000.00 - Manufacture of spark plugs, automobile 73676822-3
Co,, Ltd. company  #E 38k Industry electrical appliance and components of
HANENER BREFAR g% other vehicles and motorcycle, specil
BEREEAR ceramic products, fire proofing products

and manufacture and sale of environmental
protection products; sale of automobile
(except sedans) and motorcycle; sale of
electrical equipment, construction hardware,
apparatus, instruments and metal materials,
chemical raw materials allowed under policies;
development and sale of computer software.
Operating export of self-manufactured spark
plugs, automobile electrical appliance and
components of other vehicles and motorcycle,
special ceramic products, fire proofing
products and-environmental protection
products; operating import and export of raw
materials, apparatus, instruments, machinery,
equipments, components and technology
that are required by the production of the
Company, processing of incoming materials
and "three categories of processing and one
category of compensation business”

NEE - REEERAMANE  BRE
0 BEBEEG WAMHERN
EE REREERNLE HERE
(Tege) BREHE B3RE
BEME  BRERRIRAFNLE
H# R IRHEE : EalRE
HE BERDEBENNER 1B
BRRAMAE ERETHAE KR
BE%R  MANHER BEREER
MHRER  BERLREEFREY
REMH GEER HARE TR
REMMELNER  AEEHNIA

[ZR-H %%
(40)  Torch Import & Export fimited liabiity  Hunan Chen Guangyun  Import and export 30,000,000.00  Operating and acting as agent for the import 707249125
Co, Ltd. company  HE RiE ELA and export of various types of goods and
AEEHOBREFAT EREMRAF technology (excluding commadites and

technology restricted by the State for
operation or prohibited from import and
export); processing of incoming materials
and "three categories of processing and one
category of compensation business” of the
Company

BERRESERRRAMNELOEH
(EFREARAEIZ LELONER
BB - BEALENEHNIN
[ZR-B %%
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()

(43)

Zhuzhou Torch Property
Development Co,, Ltd.
(Note 4)

WA ERNERS
EREMAA(H4)

Zhuzhou Torch Auto Sealing
Co., Ltd. (Note 5)

A EREES
BRELRA ()

limited liability -~ Hunan

company
ERERAT

fimited liability ~ Hunan

company
ERERRA

]

W

Wang Xinlu Real estate
B i3 development
ERERY

Chen Guangyun ~ Manufacturing
BrE Industry
RER

13,120,000.00

20,420,000.00

EEE MERTIA - NEREHE
Tift TRA HERERR: 2
UM - #E  BREREEAT
EHNHES

Development and operation of third class real ~ 18430091-2

estate; general merchandise, needles, textles,

decoration materials, furniture, hardware,

electrical appliances, chemical, motorcydle

and components, wholesale and retail of

automobile (except sedans); store leasing
HEHERSEE BR i HRR-

BT 1R R AR A A

ERERTHN - RE(FE)EE)

fERE  MELE

Production and sale of automobile components ~ 71709438-2
and electrical product; trading of automobile
(except sedans); production and sale
of fire proofing materials and special
ceramic product; production and sale of
environmental protection product

RERM BEERLERBE NE
(FeEE)85: MASH HEEE
EREEAHE  BRREERTER
H#HE



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Consolidation scope of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
registration

iz

Type of
subsidiary
FREER

Legal
representative

EARR

Nature of
business

RHHE

Interim Report 2012 FRHEAZRE

I 5 2% BT (48
201246308 (A E¥T)

W~ & fF B B R B A 0T R

(%)
FREER (&)

1.

Registered
capital

iftas

Organization
Scope of business code

fewR ASBRERE

(4)

)

(46)

@

Zhuzhou Torch Auto Lighting
Co., Ltd.

HRABIRERA
EREAAR

Mudanjiang Futong
Automotive Air Conditioner
Co., Ltd. (Note 4)

HATEBAEEH
BERAF()

Xinjiang Machinery Equipment
Import & Export Co., Ltd.

HERRREELD
BRAR

Shanghai He Da Auto
Accessory Co,, Ltd.
LERERERAERAA

limited liabiity ~ Hunan
company  HF
BREERA

fimited liablity  Hellongjiang
company  ZEIT
EREAAR

fimited liabiity ~ Xinjiang
company  #&

ERELLT

limited liabiity ~ Shanghai
company  H§

ERELLT

Chen Guangyun

Lizhi
xS

Wang Xinlu
Tis

Han Guohong

HEA

Manufacturing
Industry

Manufacturing
Industry

Import and export
idulll

Manufacturing
Industry

46,000,000.00

121,050,000.00

20,000,000.00

USD4,248,200.00
e
4,248,200.00

Production and sale of automobile, motorcycle ~ 73677107-8
component, electrical appliance, machinery,
instruments, decorative light and rubber
product. Operating export of self-
manufactured product and technology of
the Company; operating import of raw
materials, apparatus, instruments, machinery,
equipments, components and technology
that are required by the production of the
Company; processing of incoming materials
and “three categories of processing and one
category of compensation business”

B BRETHH  TRRAREM
R ZHEREE HE 4%
AEXREERREMNLOEE 2
ARFEERZNRBIE  BREH
BHRE *EEMMTE@%& A&
BEEHMIAIZR-MI%H

Production, manufacture and sale of automobile 739665967
air conditioner compresser and its systems
and other automobile component. Engage in
import and export within the scope stipulated
in the Certificate of Approval for Enterprises
with Foreign Trade Rights; storage

RETARGBRAZS  ARRETRY
HEE B HEHEHDOEER
EEREEENSELOEE 2R

General operating items (except special 228580232
approved items under national laws and
regulations); import and export of goods
and technology
~REERR (AX LR REEREHEE
B EMERGHELOEH

Design and manufacture of decorative bars 60726120-7
of automobile, glass trough, tracking,
doorframe and its accessories; sale of seff-
manufactured products of the Company,
provide consultation services on products
and technology

Exﬁ EERENENK REE BE-

TERARY - HERFREER  RE
Euu RiRARE
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Siciété International des
Moteurs Baudouin

EARE T HERAR

(50)  DIESEL MARIN MAROC

(51) WEICHAI-BAUDOUIN ()
PTE.LTD

(52)  WEICHAI POWER MAT
AUTOMOTIVE, INC.

limited liability ~ France
company  AHE
EREMRA

limited liability
company
BREfRRA

Morocco
ERg

limited liability
company
ARAERA

Singapore

Hing

limited liability ~ United States
ompany  F
BERERRA

P

Lin Zhishen

it

BresulierMarc

Daniel Jousse

Tan Xuguang
i

Manufacturing Industry B EURO
RiEx 21,626,000.00
BT

21,626,000.00

Manufacturing Industry MAD
BiEg 1,000,000.00
it

1,000,000.00

Senvice Industry SGD
iz 100.00
Fipivits

100.00

Import sale )
EOHE 131,250.00
B

131,250.00

Production, sale, research and developme

various types of internal combustion engines,  7MF

processing of various types of general

machinery; generally all financial, commercial,
industrial, moveable or immovable operations

directly or indirectly related to the above
operation or other similar or relevant
operations, which are directly o indirectly

beneficial to the pursue of goal, expansion or

development of the Company
RENREBENLE HEARE 28
BRERNT B LAATRERY
BRR L ERL 8RR ELENIER
BEEEERN  ERIRERINAT
FEXNER AARRIERNER
A% 1% BEAFHESE

Production and trading of diesel engines
FERRENRE

General agency for import and export

fiulafidie:d

Import sale of consumables and automobile
components

BER ETHREDEE

A
TER

A
MR

/A
NaR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2012F6 A30H (A E¥T)

IV. Consolidation scope of consolidated financial 4 - 7 ff Bf % & 3% 09 & 0F %5 &
statements (Continued) (7)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. FAAIERE)

Percentage of shareholding

BREA
Whether
Effective capital Percentage  statements
contribution at the of voting are Number of
end of period  Direct (%) Indirect(%) rights consolidated  minority interests
RRE RBE
HARKRILE  ER(%)  BE%)  HA%) HExR DR RES
Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or investment
BB IRAS ARG AT
(1) Weichai Power (Weifang) Spare Part Resources Co., Ltd. 89,795,918.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
BN (D) R ERERAT &
(2)  Weichai Power (Weifang) Qil Co., Ltd. 10,000,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
BN 8 ) hmBR AT =
(3)  Weichai Power (Weifang) Intensive Logistics Co., Ltd. 10,400,000.00 52.00 - 52.00 Yes 22,426,380.78
BN ) S OERBRAA) =
(4 Weichai Power (Weifang) Casting Co., Ltd. 460,150,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
BB N8 SRERAT 3
(5)  Weichai Power (Weifang) Reconstruction Co., Ltd. 122,000,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes =
HEBH () BREFRAF =
(6)  Shandong Synergy Qil Co., Ltd. USD1,530,000.00 46.00 5.00 51.00 Yes 45,301,958.01
IWREEERERAR %71,530,000.00 =
(7). Weichai Power (Qingzhou) Drive Control Technology 100,000,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
Co., Ltd =
BEBH (BN GEETERR A
(8)  Baoding Shangi Tianma Co., Ltd. 20,400,000.00 - 51.00 51.00 Yes 6,517,114.39
RERAXRSERAHA I
(9 Shaanxi Automobile Xinjiang Vehicle Co., Ltd. (Note 1) 123,380,000.00 - 63.37 63.37 Yes 68,764,886.09
BTESEERAR (1) s
(10)  Shaanxi Automobile Datong New Energy Special-Purpose 33,825,000.00 - 51.00 51.00 Yes 29,587,154.80
Vehicle Co., Ltd. =
RAXRFERERAEERAT
(1) BRAEENERERNEBRAF Note) 65,601,095.00 - 58.66 58.66 Yes 45,275,681.84
RIVERFEREMTEBRA(F2) =
(12 BERARIAEERAA 20,655,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
I
(13) REFYAEELARRAREFAT USD272,500.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
%71272,500.00 =



108 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. 5B HIRBDER D T

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) B ik R B RE (48

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20126 H30H (A E#or)

IV. Consolidation scope of consolidated financial Y - & ff Bf % #: & W & OF i B
statements (Continued) (%)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. ¥RARHBERE)

Percentage of shareholding

BRI A
Whether
Effective capital Percentage  statements
contribution at the of voting are Number of
end of period  Direct (%) Indirect(%) rights consolidated  minority interests
RRE RBA
BABRLE  EER%)  BE%) L% it SYRRER
(14)  Shaanxi Wuhai New Power Special Vehicles Co., Ltd. 35,200,000.00 - 4530 56.24 Yes 25,888,412.08
(Note 3) =
RASENERERERRAR(53)
(15)  Weichai Power (Shanghai) Technology Development 500,000,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
Co., Ltd. =
BXBN (DB RRERARAA
(16)  Weichai Power Yangzhou Diesel Engine Co., Ltd. 240,000,000.00 - 80.00 80.00 Yes 96,820,143.40
BEBNENERBEREEL A I
(17)  Weichai Power (Chongging) Western Development 240,000,000.00 100.00 = 100.00 Yes =
Co, Ltd. &
HEBN(ER)ENERERAT
(18)  Chongging Light-duty-Automotive Co., Ltd. 153,000,000.00 - 51.00 51.00 Yes 8,343,946.62
BREEIENABERAT =
(19)  Weichai Power (Beijing) International Resource Investment 300,000,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
Co., Ltd. 3
HEHN (LR ERERREERRA
(20)  Weichai Power (Hong Kong) International Development USD26,575,180.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
Co,, Ltd. %7126,575,180.00 =
BEH (R ERERARLRA)
Subsidiaries acquired through business combination not involving
entities under common control
FR-EHTEEAHRENFRA
(21)  Shandong Huadong Casting Co., Ltd. 450,150,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
WREHEEERAA &
(22)  Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited 1,380,330,000.00 51.00 - 51.00 Yes 1,785,799,156.37
RASHSEERAT =
(23)  Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd. 310,592,000.00 3.06 94.00 97.06 Yes 16,204,593.84
REZEERERAT &
(24)  Shaanxi Jinding Casting Co., Ltd. 35,360,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes 31,142.45
RESREERRAR R
(25)  Tianjin Tiangua Automotive Co., Ltd. 6,000,000.00 - 51.00 51.00 Yes (17,955,347.55)
REMAHERERAF =
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IV. Consolidation scope of consolidated financial 4 - 7 ff Bf % & 3% 09 & 0F %5 &
statements (Continued) (%)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. FAAIERE)

Percentage of shareholding

Bt Al
Whether
Effective capital Percentage  statements
contribution at the of voting are Number of
end of period  Direct (%) Indirect(%) rights consolidated  minority interests
EVY RAS
HAERLEE  EH(%)  BE%) (%) it DERRER
(26)  Tianjin Xinming Automotive Commercial Co., Ltd. 1,000,000.00 - 51.00 51.00 Yes -
RENHEHERRAR 3
(27)  Shaanxi Heavy Duty Automotive Import & Export Co., Ltd. 10,000,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
REENAEELOERAT E
(28)  Shaanxi Automobile Yulin Eastern New Energy 85,680,000.00 - 51.00 51.00 Yes 66,556,571.42
Special-Purpose Vehicle Co., Ltd. T
BRARMREA T RERREERAR
(29)  Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. 130,960,000.00 51.00 - 51.00 Yes 3,656,292,679.30
REETSERERETLT =
(30)  Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd. 29,265,000.00 2.55 95.00 97.55 Yes 44,379,684.67
ERETREREREMLT b3
(31)  Xi'an Fast Auto Drive Co., Ltd. 134,700,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes 6,254,819.45
AL ETHAEEHERAT =
(32)  Xi'an Fast Gear Sales Co., Ltd. 1,000,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes 176,906.70
ARFTREREEERLA 3
(33)  Shaanxi Fast Gear Spare Parts Import & Export Co., Ltd. 3,000,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
REZTHEAESHHELDERAR F3
(34)  Zhuzhou Gear Co., Ltd. 467,102,295.92 87.91 - 87.91 Yes 66,884,138.56
KHERBREELT b3
(35)  Zhuzhou Wande Forging Co., Ltd. 5,000,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
HNBERRERRAAT h3
(36)  Zhuzhou Euro Grace Gear Automotive Transmission 145,000,000.00 - 95.14 95.14 Yes 7,819,247.45
Co., Ltd. 3
EHEREESRAERAR
(37)  Dongfeng Off-road Vehicle Co., Ltd. (Note 7) 93,000,000.00 60.00 - 60.00 Yes 83,393,193.90
REOEEERAFGET) =
(38)  Shiyan Amor Coating Technology Co., Ltd. (Note 7) 2,200,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
TETEF2ERIBRAG(7) &
(390 Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co., Ltd. 216,420,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
HMEAEAEEEREALT 3
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30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2012F6 A30H (A E¥T)

IV. Consolidation scope of consolidated financial U - & ff B % #t 3 09 & OF % &
statements (Continued) (%)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. ¥RARBERE)

Percentage of shareholding

B A

Whether
Effective capital Percentage  statements

contribution at the of voting are Number of

end of period  Direct (%)  Indirect(%) rights consolidated  minority interests
EVY RAS

BAERLEE  EH(%)  BE%) (%) it DERFER

(40)  Torch Import & Export Co., Ltd. 30,000,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
NEELOEREEAH 3

(41)  Zhuzhou Torch Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 142,262,500.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
HEAERREEEREEAR E

(42)  Zhuzhou Torch Property Development Co., Ltd. (Note 4) - - - - Until date of -
WA ERRERZEBREEAR (H4) disposal
ZRER

(43)  Zhuzhou Torch Auto Sealing Co., Ltd. (Note 5) - - - - N/A =
HRAERERHBRAMAR(FS) TER

(44)  Zhuzhou Torch Auto Lighting Co., Ltd. 46,000,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes =
AR RERAERERAA 3

(45)  Mudanjiang Futong Automotive Air Conditioner Co., Ltd. - - - - Until date of -
(Note 4) disposal
HEIERAETAERAR(4) ERER

(46)  Xinjiang Machinery Equipment Import & Export Co., Ltd. 20,000,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
MERRREELIDERAT =

(47)  Shanghai He Da Auto Accessory Co., Ltd. USD3,186,150.00 75.00 - 75.00 Yes 33,154,655.19
LBNERBRGERA %773,186,150.00 2

(48)  Chongging Jialing Chuanjiang Vehicles Manufacturing 80,000,000.00 20.00 80.00 100.00 Yes -
Co., Ltd. (Note 6) =

EFMERIITAEZLEEBRAR(F6)

(49)  Siciété International des Moteurs Baudouin EUR021,626,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
EEEH R NERAF B17r21,626,000.00 3

(50)  DIESEL MARIN MAROC MAD1,000,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
#H71§1,000,000.00 =

(51)  WEICHAI-BAUDQUIN (S) PTE. LTD SGD100.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
FN%#100.00 =

(52)  WEICHAI POWER MAT AUTOMOTIVE, INC. USD131,250.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
%71.131,250.00 =



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Consolidation scope of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

Note 7:

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, acquired 12.37% minority interest equity from this subsidiary
and the percentage of shareholding increased to 63.37%.

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, acquired 7.5% minority interest equity from this subsidiary
and the percentage of shareholding increased to 58.66%.

On 16 March 2012, Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company, acquired 24.12% minority interest voting
rights in Shaanxi Wuhai New Power Special Vehicles Co., Ltd. via a
management and control agency agreement, representing an aggregate
percentage of voting power of 56.24% with effective control over the
company. The Company included Shaanxi Wuhai New Power Special
Vehicles Co., Ltd. as part of consolidation on 1 April 2012.

These subsidiaries were disposed in 2012, details of which are set out in
Notes IV.4.

This subsidiary was acquired by Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co., Ltd., a
subsidiary within the Group, by way of absorption in 2012.

The Company acquired 20% minority interest equity from this subsidiary

in 2012 and the percentage of shareholding increased to 100%.

These subsidiaries were accounted for as held for sale as of 30 June
2012, details of which are set out in Notes V.8 and 32.

St 5 R MY

Interim Report 2012 FRHEARE

(#)

201246308 (A E¥T)

W~ BF B AR R O

(%)

1. FRABRE)

w1

6

7

ARBZFRARRAERTEFRA
AIRBEZTARLHEBRE12.37% K
W FREH EFAE63.37% ©

ARAZ FABIRAER TEHERA
AIEZ T AR D EARET 5% RHE
BB EF Z58.66% °

20123 A168 * AR AFARIBKRE
BARERRARBBRESENE
S BFERE TS EMERERT
EHRAADEIRE24.12% K KR
T BETRRELL G A56.24% @
BEBEGIE - ARFIR2012F481
BiEBASEHERERAAERRA
RIMA B DTEE -

ZEFRARIN2012FKEE 7R
P;E‘ v 4o

ZFRAN2012F B EBAF R AIK
WRNENTEEBEREERTARKA
B -

RARR2012F WIEZF AR L HK
R20%P%4E - FRRELGI EFAZE100% ©

FZETATN20126E6 A308 EA#E
EHERE  FRIWER - 8F132 -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Consolidation scope of consolidated financial

HESRE N RHBRAF

S 5 R MY R (A)

201246 308 (A E¥T)

statements (Continued)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Changes in registered capital of the subsidiaries from January to

June 2012 are detailed as follows:

31 December

M 6 OLB 55 G
i

FATER (&)

T RRIFEMER20126F1-6 BB LS
{ERIFFIBAT

Increase in Decrease in

the current the current

2011 period period 30 June 2012

20115 20126

12A31H AE M EHHED 6A30R

Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co., Ltd. — #iMMBAEATEZEBEREMAA  196,000,000.00  20,420,000.00 - 216,420,000.00

Changes in paid-in capital of the subsidiaries from January to June

2012 are detailed as follows:

31 December

FRARIBEWER2012F1-6 5B L&
{LHFBWAT :
Increase in Decrease in

the current the current

2011 period period 30 June 2012
2011E 2012F
12A318 AHIE 0 KER D 68308
Shaanxi Automobile Xinjiang Vehice — BR52758 9 E AR A T
Co., Ltd 88,350,000.00  106,350,000.00 - 194,700,000.00
RAERFERERAZTERRE RVEEMERTAARERRAT  56,094,110.00  55,905,890.00 - 112,000,000.00
Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co., Ltd ~ #IMMBAEXTEEBEREM AR 196,000,000.00  20,420,000.00 - 216,420,000.00
2. Change of scope of consolidation EOHEESEE

Other than as described in Items 3 and 4 under Note IV, the scope

of the consolidated financial statements is in line with that in the

previous year.

BrBtaEPD ~ 3FI4H RSN -
RS ESRE FFE -

=X
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20126 H30H (A E#oT)
IV. Consolidation scope of consolidated financial Y -~ & £ B % $it 3 B & OF % &
statements (Continued) (78)

FKEEHMAAGHEERD

3. Entities newly consolidated and entities not 3.

to be consolidated in the current year FRANTBEBMAGOHE
WER
From January to June 2012, subsidiaries newly consolidated are as 2012F1-6 A - S A& HHEER T
follows: ANAEAT
Net losses

Time of inclusion from date of

Names of subsidiaries newly included as

as part of

consolidation

Net assets as at consolidation

30 June 2012  to end of period

part of consolidation HAE B 201256 8A30H &ftRZE
FAMAEGHEENF ORISR 3 [ 1Y B FEE HMARFER
Shaanxi Wuhai New Power Special Vehicles Note 1 1 April 2012 48,402,295.05 4,296,951.53

Co., Ltd
BRAE S RERAERBRAF

1 201244F1H

Note 1: On 16 March 2012, Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company, acquired 24.12% minority interest voting
rights in Shaanxi Wuhai New Power Special Vehicles Co., Ltd. via a
management and control agency agreement, representing an aggregate
percentage of voting power of 56.24% with effective control over the
company. The Company included Shaanxi Wuhai New Power Special
Vehicles Co., Ltd. as part of consolidation on 1 April 2012.

From January to June 2012, subsidiaries not to be consolidated are as

follows:

1 2012F3A16H * KA R TFARMRA
ERABEARAFBBEEETEME
FHERGE TRASEHERERA
BERARDERE24.12% KK R
T ARTRRELHB56.24% -
BEEBREHIE - AREIRN2012F4A81
BRRRASEHEREATERRA
RIMAEHEE -

2012F1-6A » TEWAASHBERN
FRARWT ¢

Net losses from
the beginning

of the year

Net assets to the date

at the date of disposal

Names of subsidiaries of disposal FHNERE
not to be consolidated TEMAEHEEN T AREE BEERFEE BFREE
Zhuzhou Torch Property Development MK EEHERZEERETEAR 10,708,315.32 51,028.69

Co., Ltd.
Mudanjiang Futong Automotive Air
Conditioner Co., Ltd

HATERTEERERAR

310,679,760.46 -
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IV. Consolidation scope of consolidated financial U - & ff B % #t 3 09 & OF % &

statements (Continued) (%)
4. Loss of subsidiaries due to loss of controlling 4., NEEEBRZHENRE
equity interests during the year MR F AT
Methods of
recognition
Date of disposal in profit or loss
BRER BERERSE
Zhuzhou Torch Property Development MM EFEHERZEERET 29 February 2012 (1
Co., Ltd. NG 201242 H29H
Mudanjiang Futong Automotive Air HAIE@RETHABRAA] 1 January 2012 ()
Conditioner Co., Ltd. 20121818

Total
percentage of

Total  voting rights

percentage of enjoyed by
shareholding the Group
of the Group before the Reason for
before the disposal no longer
disposal BEBA being
Place of Nature of BEEA AEBEE a subsidiary
incorporation business TEEEH ZEHRAE FTERR
o i it EBHE 5 % EE i L] FoERE
Zhuzhou Torch Property Hunan Real estate 100% 100% Disposed
Development Co., Ltd. S P st B =
RO KB F5 3 2 el 8%
BREFERATA
Mudanjiang Futong Automotive Air Heilongjiang  Manufacturing 59.84% 59.84% Disposed
Conditioner Co., Ltd. EET Industry BE

HATERAEEZRAERAA] BUER




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Consolidation scope of consolidated financial

statements (Continued)

4. Loss of subsidiaries due to loss of controlling
equity interests during the year (Continued)
Zhuzhou Torch Property Development Co., Ltd.

(1)

Interim Report 2012 e 115

P 5 i 3 I R ()
201246308 (A E¥T)

M GO B 2 045 0

4 KEEELEHENRE
R 0725 ()

(1) TMAEEMERZEER

The Company, Torch Import & Export Co., Ltd (“Torch Import
and Export”), a subsidiary of the Company entered into an
equity transfer agreement with ¥ MM ZEFHERER
BRAA (“ZE8EEME") and Zhao Ying on 29 December
2011, for the purpose of disposal of 94.66% and 5.34%
equity interests in Zhuzhou Torch Property Development
Co., Ltd. (“Torch Property”) held by the Company and
Torch Import and Export, respectively, at a consideration of
RMB15,000,000.00. The date of disposal was 29 February
2012. Therefore, since 29 February 2012, the Group no
longer included Torch Property in its scope of consolidation.
The relevant financial information of Torch Property is as

QNG

AAR - RRFH TR B NEH#
HOBREERQA ([ AEEH
BBk T gt ER S
RAR([ZEEME]) - BAR
20114F12 A29 B 25T i he o
% © A AR #15,000,000.00
TTHEARD B FAE#EHOFE
MMM ER M EREERET
Aal([AEFEHEE |)94.66% A
5.34% KAk #E - f & H %2012
F2H29R8 - AL BE201252A
28 AEETBHBAEE

follows:

HWEMAAEE - NEFME
EER IS ERIIRAT ¢

31 December
2011
Carrying Value

29 February 2012
Carrying Value

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

2012%2H29H 2011412 A31H

REEE REEE

mEEE 10,888,944.04 11,656,518.70
FRBEE 908,053.27 917,063.65
nEAaE (1,088,681.99) (1,814,238.34)
ERBEE - -

Add: Removal from capital reserve

10,708,315.32 10,759,344.01

o BEREF AR mE S

due to disposal of subsidiaries BARNFE (43,434.78)
Add: Gains or losses on disposal o EEER 4,335,119.46
Consideration of disposal REHE 15,000,000.00
During the
period from
1 January to
29 February 2012
2012F1RA18Z&
2HA29BHH
Revenue ESPN 31,370.00
Cost of sales F YN 7,950.85

Net losses

FER

51,028.69
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Co., Ltd

The Company entered into an equity transfer agreement with
Mudanjiang Huatong Vehicle Component Co., Ltd (“Huatong
Vehicle”) on 10 January 2012, for the purpose of disposal of
59.84% equity interests in Mudanjiang Futong Automotive
Air Conditioner Co., Ltd (“Futong Air Conditioner”) held
by it at a consideration of RMB220,220,500.00. The date
of disposal was 1 January 2012. Since 1 January 2012, the
Group no longer included Futong Air Conditioner in its scope

of consolidation. The relevant financial information of Futong

Air Conditioner is as follows:

B D RHBRA A

IV. Consolidation scope of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)
Loss of subsidiaries due to loss of controlling
equity interests during the year (Continued)
(2) Mudanjiang Futong Automotive Air Conditioner

PO 5 i 2 R (4)
201246 308 (A E¥T)

W~ & fF B B R B A 0T

(%)

4. AEERIREFEORE
i 8 F 2 7 (8)

(2)

HATIERAREZERHAER
NG

ANRARBEHNITERRIE
EHHEBERAB([ERA
BH|)R2012F1 108 %
IRBEEZEGE  UARE
220,220,500.00 7t i & H A7
BREHAIZBAREEZHAFGR
AR([E@EZEH])H59.84%
f&# - EEHA2012F1 810
H-A&£BH2012F1818
BIEBERZAMASE

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

MENEE
FRBEE
mEAE
FRBEE

Less:  Minority interests

Add: Removal from capital reserve

W B

m: HEREFARME D

due to the disposal NN
Add: Gains or losses on disposal o EEER
Consideration of disposal BEHE

EBEANBEREYEER

BIREAT ¢

1 January 2012

Carrying Value

2012%1R11
SREEE

403,516,458.04
75,030,335.02

(132,734,786.60)

(35,132,246.00)

310,679,760.46
124,768,991.80

(5,534,095.78)

39,843,827.12

220,220,500.00

31 December 2011

Carrying Value

2011412 A31H

REEE

403,516,458.04
75,030,335.02
(132,734,786.60)
(35,132,246.00)

310,679,760.46
124,768,938.22
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IV. Consolidation scope of consolidated financial Y ~ & £ B % $it 3 B & OF % &

statements (Continued) (7)
5. The exchange rate for translating items of key 5. AEBEEBIKSRERTE
statements for the foreign operating entities HEBEBANITEESR

of the Group

Average exchange rate Exchange rate at period-end
THEX HREZ

January to January to 31 December

June 2012 June 2011 30 June 2012 2011

2012%1-6A 201151-6 4 PINPEIY-ETN=0 20115128318

usb T 6.3129 6.3249 6.3009
EURO BT 8.0168 7.8710 8.1625

HKD B 0.8130 0.8152 0.8107

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial 1.~ & §F I 5 3k 3 2R H sk

statements .
1. Cash and cash equivalents 1. ERES
30 June 2012 31 December 2011
2012%6H30H 20115128318
Original ENN RMB Original Exchange RMB
currency rate equivalent currency rate equivalent
R Ex REARE R Ex FaARE
Cash Be
-RMB -A\R#% 1,299,151.86 1.0000 1,299,151.86 877,902.08 1.0000 877,902.08
-UsD = 7,749.86 6.3249 49,017.09 32,101.25 6.3009 202,266.76
-JpY -Bx - 0.0796 - 1,821.17 0.0811 147.70
-HKD —- B 27,084.80 0.8152 22,079.53 7,834.80 0.8107 6,351.67
-ERR B 158.00 7.8710 1,243.62 157.08 8.1625 1,282.14

1,371,492.10 1,087,950.35

Bank deposits ST
-RMB N 9,909,574,116.53 SISV TERE 12,995,058,041.01 1.0000  12,995,058,041.01
-UsD -Z7 40,718,370.72 6.3249 257,539,622.97 47,950,000.66 6.3009 302,128,159.13
-JpY A 6.00 0.0796 0.48 5.99 0.0811 0.49
-HKD — B 2,912,866.97 0.8152 2,374,569.15 208,126.36 0.8107 168,728.04
-EUR -8B 4,348 545.44 1.8710 34,227,401.16 1,612,128.54 8.1625 13,158,999.18

10,203,715,710.29 13,310,513,927.85

Othercashand ~ EfpE¥ES
cash equivalents

-RMB N 2,781,738,865.43 (ORI WEH RN S 3,301,132,585.89 1.0000  3,301,132,585.89

-USD -%7 3,253,711.91 6.3249 20,579,402.46 79.10 6.3009 498.43

-EUR -Bix 502.38 1.8710 3,954.23 713.26 8.1625 5821.96

2,802,322,222.12 3,301,138,906.28
13,007,409,424.51 16,612,740,784.48
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V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial

PO 5 i % Ff R (4)
201246 308 (A E¥T)

1~ B OF B R R IH H RE R

statements (Continued) (748)

1.

Cash and cash equivalents (Continued) 1. E¥ES(E)

The other cash and cash equivalent of the Group
amounted to RMB2,802,276,626.38 (31 December 2011:
RMB3,295,380,588.94), all of which are used in letter of
guarantee and security monies for special accounts such as
bank acceptance bills, letter of credit and forward settlement of

exchange.

As at 30 June 2012, the Group held cash and cash equivalents of
RMB181,868,191.38 (31 December 2010: RMB202,557,620.67),

which were deposited overseas.

Interest income earned on current deposits is calculated by using
current deposit interest rate of the bank. The deposit periods for
time deposits vary from three months to one year depending on
the cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest income at

respective time deposit interest rates of the bank.

Notes receivable

REBEMEBEESRAREK
2,802,276,626.38 70 (20114 12 A
318 : AR ¥ 3,295,380,588.94
TL) B E AR A B IR AR 1T
HER FAZ RUEEZFZEFPM
EFORES °

MN2012F6 A3008 » AEERF
MRBINEEESABARE
181,868,191.387C (2010412 A 31
H: AR#202,557,620.677C) °

RITE B FFIRBRITERFRA K
MEHBWA - ERFROFRAE
BEAAENFEAE KAKENRES
FoRME - LRBAEHRITERF
A EERSH S WA o

W EE

30 June 2012 31 December 2011

2012566 A30H 20114F12A31H
Bank acceptance bills RITERAES 11,757,693,823.17 9,537,263,772.66
Commercial acceptance bills POEA N ESE 29,180,541.00 14,087,000.00

11,786,874,364.17

9,551,350,772.66




Ba'c;tou Northern Benz Heavy Truck
Company Limited

BEILFBERREFRAA

BETHEIEEHERAA

WAt EIEE S ER AR

Huayin Equipment Machinery Group
LTD, Inner Mongolia
NEEHERZEEEFR DA

2012.5.8 2012.11.8

2012.2.27 2012.8.27

2012.2.27 2012.8.27

2012.4.18  2012.10.18

30,000,000.00

10,000,000.00

10,000,000.00

10,000,000.00

160,000,000.00

Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China

TRRT

Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China

TERT

Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China

TRRTT

Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China

TERT
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HESRE N RHBRA A

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial

statements (Continued)
Notes receivable (Continued)
As at 31 December 2011, top 5 notes receivable that were pledged

2.

are presented as follows:

I 75 2% BT R (48
201246 A30H (A R¥T)

T~ B OF B R R IE H G

(%)

2.

FEWEE (&)

M2011F12A31H © @BHRAHA]

hBEEERNEERENT

Issuer Issuing date  Expiry date Amount  Issued by
HEREM HEBH E|H B TH  ARA
—AEBSEHE AR AR 2011.10.14  2012.4.14  42,850,000.00  China Minsheng Bank
RAERTT
—AFMRERRAQT 2011.822  2012.2.22  24,530,103.00  Bank of China
H B ERTT
Dongfeng Motor Co., Ltd 2011.7.18 2012.1.18  10,000,000.00  China Merchants Bank
(Commercial Vehicle Company) BEiRT
REAEERARMAERAA]
Dongfeng Motor Co., Ltd 2011.7.18 2012.1.18  10,000,000.00  China Construction Bank
(Commercial Vehicle Company) BRIRTT
REAEERATEAELF
Dongfeng Motor Co., Ltd 2011.7.18 2012.1.18  10,000,000.00  China Construction Bank

(Commercial Vehicle Company)

RESEERATNEAEAT

As at 30 June 2012 and 31 December 2011, the Group has not

transferred any notes into accounts receivable due to issuers’ failure

in performance.

As at 30 June 2012, notes receivable amounting to
RMB297,840,894.08 (31 December 2011: RMB772,759,667.65)

was pledged to banks for establishment of bank acceptance bills.

HRIRTT

97,380,103.00

7201246 H30 B M2011F12 431
B AEEERLRAENEOMS

SERBREUEFOTER

201296 A308  AEEARH
BRTALEZEMEROBEREER
A R #297,840,894.08 7T (2011 4F
128318 : AR#772,759,667.65

JT) °



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

3.

Accounts receivable

The Group trades with its customers primarily on credit terms, and

generally requires payment in advance or cash on delivery for new

customers. Credit period is generally one month, extending up to

six months for major customers. Accounts receivable is non-interest

bearing.

An aging analysis of accounts receivable based on invoice dates is

presented as follows:
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P 5 i 3 I G ()
201246308 (A E¥T)

T~ A O B R 2 IH H kR

(#)
3. EBWERN

AEEBAZFPHENE S ERFIAEAR
HRE  A—REFHEFLEMRK
RBMERNRADAET  ERHEF
BIUER  ETBZEFANEEE6HE
A o BYIRRI TGS °

REBEFAZEH  BRRREOKRER DT

mF

30 June 2012
201296 H30H

Within 3 months

3 months to 6 months
6 months to 1 year

1 to 2 years

2 to 3 years

Over 3 years

3ME A AR
3fEA =6 A
FEPEENE:S
1E 226

2 E3F
3FE L

3,701,972,670.06
1,053,276,156.60
661,564,837.17
395,904,222.46
268,089,603.58
250,637,688.98

Less: Provision for bad debt in respect

of accounts receivable

T FEUR SR AR

6,331,445,178.85

758,678,360.90

5,572,766,817.95

Changes in provision for bad debts in respect of accounts receivable

are presented as follows:

31 December 2011
2011412 831H

3,340,541,665.83

561,200,249.38
772,279,665.14
351,849,915.70
290,295,211.06
133,022,646.07

5,449,189,353.18

711,679,522.34

4,737,509,830.84

FENBR R BR B ZEEHMT ¢

30 June 2012
20126 H30H

711,679,522.34
96,643,920.30

(29,813,069.62)
(594,508.46)
(10,401,222.59)
(8,836,281.07)

Opening balance H, F A8k
Provision for the period/year AEDFEHR
Decrease during the period/year: NEER A
Reversal #[g]
Write-off i
Disposal of subsidiaries RETAA
Subsidiaries held for sale BEFETFLAA
Closing balance Hi, R

758,678,360.90

31 December 2011
2011%12A831H

780,731,652.28
41,936,260.13

(102,632,355.59)
(8,356,034.48)

711,679,522.34
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) PRS2 B (48
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201246 A30H (A R¥T)
V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & ff B % # 3% 3= B IH H si B
statements (Continued) (%)
3. Accounts receivable (Continued) 3. FEWERR(E)
30 June 2012
20126 A30H
Gross carrying Proportion Provision for ~ Percentage
amount (%) bad debt (%)
xdt] iR
AR A ER (%) BIRER L 41(%)
Individually significant items BESBEAL
for which provision for bad BEIHREREE
debt is recognized separately 534,900,347.10 325,145,232.68
Items for which provision forbad R4 A FHEZER &R
debt is recognized by group 5,665,376,172.53 361,454,000.71
Not individually significant items BEeBETENE
for which provision for bad BERRRER
debt is recognized separately 131,168,659.22 72,079,127.51
6,331,445,178.85 758,678,360.90
31 December 2011
20114128318
Gross carrying Proportion Provision for Percentage
amount (%) bad debt (%)
o] R
AREBREE (%) ZEREE EE4(%)
Individually significant items BESEEAW
for which provision for bad FBIETIRIR AR
debt is recognized separately 502,876,031.87 9.23 318,517,284.15 63.34
Items for which provision for bad 140 & EH2 IR IR &
debt is recognized by group 4,839,326,909.81 88.81 322,955,442.91 6.67
Not individually significant items ~ BIE&FEH A EAME
for which provision for bad BERBIRER
debt is recognized separately 106,986,411.50 1.96 70,206,795.28 65.62
5,449,189,353.18 100.00 711,679,522.34




30 June 2012
2012F6A308
Gross carrying ~ Proportion Provision for  Percentage
amount (%) bad debt (%) B 4
Hehl 2 Bl i
BEBE (%) BREE  LLAI(%) REAT (%) GRER  BhI%)

Within 1year 1257 5,334,716,614.67 94.16 250,156,083.96 AER 4,572,217,468.44 94.48 211,294,936.28 462
Tto2years  122% 200,030,735.76 353 21,106,371.90 10.56 123,459,992.41 255 15,462,647.78 1253
2to3years  2%3%F 39,729,100.34 0.70 11,916,990.09 30.00 42,536,151.15 0.88 12,726,554.70 29.92
Jtodyears  3E4F 19,281,692.89 0.34 9,640,846.45 50.00 28,975,100.03 0.60 14,659,978.10 50.60
4toSyears  4E5F 14,961,352.97 0.27 11,977,032.41 80.05 16,634,358.32 034 13,307,486.65 80.00
OverSyears  SFME 56,656,675.90 1.00 56,656,675.90 100.00 55,503,839.46 1.15 55,503,839.40 100.00

5,665,376,172.53 100.00 361,454,000.71 4,839,326,909.81 100.00 322,955,442.91
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued)

In January to June 2012, the reversal or recovery of significant

accounts receivables are presented as follows:

K EREHERDA

AATHEEE
BEREMERA

WP B IR I E IR
BEREMERA

REBRUVIEHE
BREMERA

EEBEEAEHERS
BEREMERA

Reason for
reversal or

recovery

B = U E R E

Partial or
wholly recovery

BoHEHKE

Partial or
wholly recovery

BoHEHKE

Partial or
wholly recovery

BoHEHKE

Partial or

wholly recovery

BoHEHKE

Partial or
wholly recovery

BoHEHKE

P 5 e 3R T RE (#)

20124664308 (A REET)

fi- ﬁg‘ﬁiﬁiﬁﬁﬁfilﬁ H kR

Basis for
recognition of
provision for

original bad debts

7 E R R
EHENEE

Estimated
recoverable
amount

BT EKREE
Estimated
recoverable
amount

B A EKREE
Estimated
recoverable
amount

B A EKREE
Estimated
recoverable
amount

B AEKREE
Estimated
recoverable
amount

AU EkREHE

EWERFR (&)
MR2012F1-6 7 EAEUWERZRER
U EERINT

Accumulated
amount of
provision for bad
debts before

the reversal

or recovery
5B 55 W B A
Rt et
BIRERSHE

41,447,542.08

26,575,080.39

56,634,426.00

27,947,821.55

13,899,019.04

166,503,889.06

Amount reversed

or recovered

EE R E SR

6,524,888.75

1,922,248.00

5,400,000.00

2,144,397.00

1,631,222.18

17,622,755.93
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) B 75 % P R (A)
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20126 HA30H (A E#oT)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial H - & 0f B % i 3% 3 2 H H 1 &2

statements (Continued) (%)
3. Accounts receivable (Continued) 3. FEWRR(E)
In 2011, the reversal or recovery of significant accounts receivables R2011FE - EAFE KR KE R %
are presented as follows. WEIERAT
Accumulated
amount of
Basis for provision for bad
Reason for recognition of debts before
reversal or provision for the reversal Amount reversed
recovery original bad debts or recovery or recovered
& [0 55 Y [B] Al
T R AR AEFrEEtE
[0 58 Y Bl JR EHEOKIE ZEREHSHE 8 0] 5} Y [B] & FE
Inner Mongolia Yunchou Partial or Estimated
Industry and Trade Co., Ltd wholly recovery  recoverable amount
NEHEETEAREMERA ok EHKE A A B S 7R 19,744,151.97 19,744,151.97
RAAEEREZ AR AR Partial or Estimated
wholly recovery  recoverable amount
oz UK E FEEt A RIS R 60,975,763.95 19,528,221.87
AIREEXEBRAF Partial or Estimated
wholly recovery  recoverable amount
ok A A RS R 15,547,730.62 12,503,594.62
ARATSEHEBREMELA A Partial or Estimated
wholly recovery  recoverable amount
oz UK E FEEtA RIS 5 38,817,085.59 12,242,005.20
135,084,732.13 64,017,973.66
For the period from January to June 2012, accounts 20124 1-6 Az B R B UL AR SR AL T A
receivable written off amounted to RMB594,508.46 (2011: R #594,508.46 L (20114 : AR
RMB8,356,034.49). This is related to various individual accounts #£8,356,034.4970) * REFHEM
receivable which were expected to be unrecoverable and thus EBTEEWRRIE EEKE - &
approved to be written off. Such accounts receivable written off did BOER T AR - ZEHEMEIER
not arise from related party transactions. RSB R HEE -
As at 30 June 2012, within the aforesaid balance of accounts MR2012F6 4300 @ EWREZR S E
receivable, there was no amount due from shareholders that held BHARAS% (E5%) A ERRHE
5% or more of the Company’s voting shares (31 December 2011: OB IRER B FIE(2011F12 4
Nil). Balance of accounts receivable with other related parties are 318 ¢ M) o ANEE[E HH th B 5 /Y

set out in Note VI1.6. R R B R s N 6 0
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial

statements (Continued)

3.

Accounts receivable (Continued)

I 75 2% BT R (48
201246 A30H (A R¥T)

As at 30 June 2012, the top 5 accounts receivable are presented as

follows:

> B B R 32 BEOH H R R

(%)

3.

FEUBR R (48 )
M2012%6A308 @ EWERZR SR
AEZMOT :

Percentage of
total accounts

Gross carrying receivable
amount Age (%)
I PE R A
#Y b A
BRI EREE BRiR (%)
Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and Technology Co., 431,927,149.15 Within 1 year 6.82
Ltd Yuanjiang Branch 1 AA
HREERRGOBRRAFITID A F
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission Co., Ltd. 403,365,277.38 Within 1 year 6.37
PREE LR B ESEEEREET DA 1 AR
Beiqi Foton Motor Co., Ltd 320,923,764.61 Within 1 year 5.07
ETRBAERNDBRAF 1 AR
RESE AR A T BT E R 48 50 263,491,478.76 Within 1 year 4.16
1FEARN
Shaanxi Automobile Group Changsha Huantong 162,340,026.25 1 to 2 years 2.56
Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd 18224
RAEARESBRDPRBAIELEFRAA
1,582,047,696.15 24.98

As at 31 December 2011, the top 5 accounts receivable are

presented as follows:

MA20114E128318 F EWERSE
MAZWET :

Percentage of
total accounts

Gross carrying receivable
amount Age (%)
IHEW AR AR
HI LBl
IREEREE BRR (%)
Dongfeng Motor Co., Ltd (Commercial 465,078,713.33 Within 1 year 8.53
Vehicle Company) 1A
RRSEBRARFAEALA
Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd 249,130,456.08 Within 1 year 4.57
EAERABERGERAA 15 AR
Shaanxi Automobile Group Changsha Huantong 193,772,878.75 Within 2 years 3.56
Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd 2F AN
PREAELEERDIRBABREBRAA
LLC PC ARGO 153,993,791.80 Within 1 year 2.83
1 AR
(Algeria) EURL GM TRADE 152,296,133.59 Within 1 year 2.79
(P8 B #1122 )EURL GM TRADE 1R
1,214,271,973.55 22.28
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) A R R M RE ()
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201246 A30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & ff ¥ % it 3% 1 %16 H 51

statements (Continued) (%8)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued) 3. BEWERM(E)
Accounts receivable denominated in foreign currencies are as AONEIZ R ) FE M BR SR T
follows:

30 June 2012 31 December 2011
20126 A30H 2011412 A318
Original SN RMB Original Exchange RMB
currency rate equivalent currency rate equivalent
R E* eARE [ Ex e ARE
Accounts receivable FEUERTR
-UsD —%7T 71,859,055.46 6.3249 454,501,339.88  RRIOKCOPRIENA 6.3009 693,112,192.28
-EUR —B 8,986,297.74 7.8710  70,731,149.49 VRS NIINTS 8.1625 104,959,715.53
- HKD — s 115.90 0.8152 94.48 116.18 0.8107 94.19
- GBP — R 3,022.02 9.8169 29,666.87 348.29 9.7116 3,382.47
525,262,251.72 798,075,384.47
4. Prepayments 4. FAMAFRIE
An aging analysis of prepayments is presented as follows: AN RERRRSTAT
30 June 2012 31 December 2011
2012%6 A30H 20119124318
Proportion Proportion
Amount (%) Amount (%)
kx| EAl (%) i | ELA1 (%)
Within 1 year 1E AR 445,507,982.20 96.74 419,401,321.33 97.19
110 2 years 122 9,431,836.72 2.05 6,092,410.34 1.41
2 10 3 years 223F 1,385,354.93 0.30 3,588,950.09 0.83

Over 3 years 3FELE 4,172,178.93 0.91 2,455,221.16 0.57

460,497,352.78 100.00 431,537,902.92 100.00

As at 30 June 2012, there was no large-amount prepayments with MN2012FE6 8308 - \EER —F LA
an age of more than one year (31 December 2011: Nil). FEREBEENZIE(2011F12 A 31
H:4)o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial

statements (Continued)

4,

Prepayments (Continued)

S 5 R MY R (A6)

201246 A30H (A R¥T)

1~ B OF B R R IH H RE R

As at 30 June 2012, the top 5 amounts of prepayments are

(%)
AMNRER)

M2012%6 308 @ B KIBEBL R

4.

presented as follows: REZWT :
Reason for being
Balance Age not yet settled
2 IRt AREERE
Shaanxi Huazhen Sancan Industry and Trading 32,731,099.09 Within 1 year  To settle per contract
Co., Ltd 1R BELONRK
BRAEE=ETIZBAREFEAA
Shandong Yuangen Detrochemical Co., Ltd 26,366,510.54 Within 1 year  To settle per contract
I ERARAMIE THR A A AR REHNK
PRPGK 7 ¥ B R A 7 14,920,997.26 Within 1 year  To settle per contract
AR REHNK
T A X BB T 11,919,600.00 Within 1 year  To settle per contract
AR REHNK
LWEREREDREEER AR 11,366,339.00 Within 1 year  To settle per contract
THEUR REDRR

97,304,545.89

As at 31 December 2011, the top 5 amounts of prepayments are

MR2011F12831H @ B ZKIESHE

presented as follows: MAZWET :
Reason for being
Balance Age not yet settled
x| Rk AREERER
Shandong Yuangen Detrochemical Co., Ltd 33,717,118.48 Within 1 year  To settle per contract
IWERRIRAME TR R A A TERA BEONR
EERHAMEEERATALHED AT 27,206,151.22 Within 1 year  To settle per contract
TERA BEONR
Shaanxi Huazhen Sancan Industry and Trading 27,164,311.45 Within 1 year  To settle per contract
Co., Ltd TERA BEONR
PR EZE=ETEARETAA
EUARHTEZEH RG (PR BRAF 21,977,322.56 Within 1 year  To settle per contract
TEUR REDRR
China Donefeng Motor Industry Imp. & Exp Co., Ltd 17,971,463.67 Within 1 year  To settle per contract
REREEELOBRAF TEUR REDRR

128,036,367.38




Prepayments
- EUR
-Usb

Original
currency

R

1,126,240.42
223,786.43

30 June 2012
2012%6H30A

Exchange
rate
E

1.8710
6.3249

RMB
equivalent

faARE

8,864,638.35
1,415,426.79

10,280,065.14

31 December 2011

2011F12A318
QOriginal Exchange RMB
currency rate equivalent
Rt Ex fra AEE
654,707.32 8.1625 5,344,048.54
227,692.88 6.3009 1,434,670.08

6,778,718.62
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 3R B T (4D
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2012F6 A30H(AR¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & ff B % it 3% 1 B H H 51 &

statements (Continued) ()
5. Dividends receivable 5. FEWERRF
30 June 2012 20126 HA30H
Increase Decrease Reason for
Opening during during Closing being not yet Whether
balance the period the period balance collected impaired
CIRIE ¢ AHE XHED BARE AUENRE REZLRE
Over 1 year
TERE
Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye =55 000 010e100) (35,000,000.00)
Investment Co., Ltd.
FEEMAIERE
BRAT
Shaanxi Tonghui Automotive | (2 Ak e - 1,489,218.53 Declared but
Transportation Co., Ltd. unpaid
REBESEDR BEEEREHN
BRAT
Shaanxi Eurostar Auto 3,040,000.00 - 3,040,000.00 Declared but
Co., Ltd unpaid
REE AT T E R D BEEEREHN
BRAT

39,529,218.53 (35,000,000.00)  4,529,218.53




aanxi Tonghui Automotive

Transportation Co., Ltd.

REBE B RER AR

Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye
Investment Co., Ltd.

FEBHAEREFRAA

Over 1 year

1ELE

Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd.

RAEBRSE IERDAERRA

- 1,489,218.53 - 1,489,218.53 Declared but
unpaid
BEERER

- 50,000,000.00 (15,000,000.00) 35,000,000.00 Declared but
unpaid

BEESRER

lulg

3,040,000.00 - - 3,040,000.00 Declared but
unpaid

EEEREN

(m}

No

3,040,000.00 51,489,218.53 (15,000,000.00) 39,529,218.53




30 June 2012
2012%6H30H

507,490,801.40

44,866,369.11

2E3F ' ' " 9,185,560.42
3EMF 38,180,651.38 37,280,548.51

Over 3 years

599,723,382.31 294,804,974.46

Less: Provision for bad debts in R Efth FE MUK AR AR
respect of other receivables 54,331,803.42 54,158,160.01
545,391,578.89 240,646,814.45
Changes in provision for bad debts in respect of other receivables Ea RN FURREBNEZNT ¢

are as follows:

S0 R0l 2Aonii s 31 December 2011
201256 H30H 20114128311

Opening balance 8, F R B 54,158,160.01 72,391,949.46
Charge during the period/year RE)FaTiR 3,589,915.79 3,729,509.98
Decrease during the period/year: NEER A
Reversal i# [o] (1,482,084.79) (18,283,129.82)
Write-off L= (73,139.44) (3,680,169.61)
Decrease of disposal of subsidiaries BETABRD (1,840,108.27) -
Subsidiaries held for sale BAEFETFAA (20,939.88) -

Closing balance B R 54,331,803.42 54,158,160.01




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)
6. Other receivables (Continued)

30 June 2012

2012%6A308

Provision for
bad debt

Gross carrying  Proportion

amount (%)

RRER

£ L (%)

BEEREANER
AHRERER

Individually significant
items for which

provision for bad debt is

recognized separately
Items for which provision  REAFHEERERE

for bad debt is

recognized by group 595,848,594.73 54,331,803.42
Notinduidually significant EELBETEAR

ftems for which BEIRERER

provision for bad debt is

recognized separately 3,874,781.58

599,723,382.31 54,331,803.42

ltems for which provision for bad debt is recognized by group are

presented as follows:

30 June 2012

2012464308

Provision for
bad debt

Gross carrying  Proportion

amount (%)

8 A (%) BRER
Wihin 1 year VEIR 50749080140 8507 9,156,618.17
1102 years 1828 44,866,369.11 753 6,899,327.47
2103 years 133E 5,310,772.84 0.89 1,590,372.70
3to4 years 3Z4E 1,664,735.73 0.28 832,367.87
4105 years 4E5F 520,340.26 0.09 416,272.21
Over 5 years SENE 35,995,575.39 6.04  35,436,845.00

595,848,594.73

100.00  54,331,803.42
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P 5 i 3 I G ()
20124668308 (A E¥T)

1 ?@ﬁ?%%*ﬁ%ﬁigﬁ H 5k B
6. HABRUEK (&)

31 December 2011

20115124318
Percentage Grosscarying ~ Proportion Provision for  Percentage
(%) amount (%) bad debt (%)
itiRLpl it
(%) 28 W) SHRER (%)

294,731,835.02 99.98 54,085,020.57 18.35
73,139.44 0.02 73,139.44 100.00
294,804,974.46 100.00 54,158,160.01 18.37
REESHRERERBRNT :

31 December 2011

20115124318
Percentage Gross camying — Proportion Provision for  Percentage
(%) amount (%) bad debt (%)
FRLA SR
(%) 28 whl(%) BEEE (%)
(Ll 138,177,976.55 46.88 4,560,581.65 330
(It 111,539,123.26 37.84 12,009,225.05 10.76
29.95 7,806,590.14 2.65 1,179,690.77 15.11
50.00 423,533.98 0.14 248,000.54 58.56
80.00 158,918.72 0.05 127,134.97 80.00
98.45 36,625,692.37 1244 35,960,387.59 98.18
294,731,835.02 100.00  54,085,020.57 1835
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) B ik R B RE (48
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20126 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial i - GO B R T EEE R
(748)

statements (Continued)

6. Other receivables (Continued)
In 2012, other receivables actually written off amounted to
RMB73,139.44 (2011: RMB3,680,169.61).

As at 30 June 2012, within the aforesaid balance of other
receivables, there was no amount due from shareholders that
held 5% or more of the Company’s voting shares (31 December
2011: Nil). The balance of other receivables from related parties are

presented in Note VI.6.

As at 30 June 2012, the top 5 other receivables are presented as

6.

Hh e K (8])

2012 F B % SH A H b FE IR B
A R # 73,139.44 7T ( 2011 &
3,680,169.617T) °

R2012F6 4308 U F - &
FEARAS% (B5%) A ERAE
BROBREBMARFK(2011612 8
318 : ) - NEEEAN T H
FEM R EREE BT REN - 6 ©

MN2012E6A308 @ HithfEl &5

follows: AIEBAT :
Percentage of
total other
Gross carrying receivables
amount Age (%)
1 H 1t FE U
IRMEEREE IR BB LEBI(%)
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission 91,362,478.44 Within 1 year 15.23
Co., Ltd. —FLAA
PREE LR AEEHEEEREMERA
Export value-added tax rebate receivables 74,834,105.71 Within 1 year 12.48
JE Wt DR IR E R R —F AR
State-owned Assets Supervision and 26,675,145.30 1 to 2 years 4.45
Administration Commission of Zhuzhou —EMF
MNTEEEEEEEREZE S
Shandong Heavy Industry India PVT. Ltd. 22,002,750.00 Within 1 year 3.67
—F R
Shaanxi Automotive Group Co., Ltd. 20,520,052.78 Within 1 year 3.42
PR EEEBREEAT —FR
235,394,532.23 39.25
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) A R % B RE ()

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2012F6HA30H(AR¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & ff I % it 3% 1 %18 H 5L &
statements (Continued) (7)
6. Other receivables (Continued) 6. HMEW(E)

As at 31 December 2011, the top 5 other receivables were as
follows:

R2011%E128318 @ ek ZS
R AZOT :

Percentage of

total other

Gross carrying receivables

amount Age (%)

i Bt & WK

PR [ BR 30 AR iR BEHLEBI(%)

State-owned Assets Supervision and 26,675,145.30 1 to 2 years 9.05
Administration Commission of Zhuzhou —EWF

MNTEEEEEEEREZR S

AILEEMEESHERAA 17,787,082.09 Within 1 year 6.04
—FUR

Export value-added tax rebate receivables 16,108,904.48 Within 1 year 5.46
JEU MR B AR —FUR

Zhuzhou Automobile Gear Factory 12,033,865.62 Within 2 years 4.08
TR = 28 88 8 R GEIND

Export tax rebate receivables of subsidiaries 9,697,039.30 Within 1 year 3.29
F AR A REEF R —FUR

82,302,036.79 27.92

Other receivables denominated in foreign currencies are presented as

follows:
30 June 2012
20126 A30H
Original Exchange RMB
currency rate equivalent
R Ex TEARY
Other receivables Hip R
-UsD -%7 4,758,459.10 30,096,777.96
~EUR -8B 2,296,978.09 18,079,514.55

48,176,292.51

PAGMNEE IR O B At B W R A T

31 December 2011

201151248318
Original Exchange RMB
currency rate equivalent
RE Ex FaARE
296,367.89 6.3009 1,867,384.42
2,808,802.91 8.1625  22,926,853.78

24,794,238.20
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial

statements (Continued)
7. Inventories

Goods n transit s

Raw materials R H

Finished goods ERfm

OEM materials EAMIMH

Self made semi-finished goods EE KR K
and work in progress EER

Tumover materials EEE

@ross carrying

amount

RAHE

32,380,852.57
1,121,424,219.07
6,875,770,694.34
24,320,170.68

714,342,452.66
51,908,810.87

8,820,147,200.19

30June 2012
2012564308
Provision for
decline in value

HERHE

(62,275,224.03)
(194,450,805.87)
(596,235.34)

(17,106,189.01)
(7,147,733.11)

(281,576,187.36)

The changes in provision for decline in value are as follows:

January to June 2012

Opening
balance

LRI

Raw materials [RAT# 71,436,643.13
Finished goods A& 275,843,721.80
OFM materials — ZFMT
1 730303.67
Self made semi- ~ BELER
finished goods R
and work Em
in progress 15,877,500.88
Turnover materials ~ [EIE& 1) 8,273,486.62

372,161,662.10

Charge
during
the period
RHER

8,697,362.07

1,815,370.34
14,205.38

10,526,937.79

Reversal

&g

(2,823,948.92)
(3,482,954.03)

(22,737.39)

(308,340.85)
(980,764.12)

(7,618,745.31)

WA 5 3R M R (R
2012F6H30H (ARKT)
Y, A 2
T~ Ao B kR R H AR
(%)
7. 7E
31 December 2011
20115128318
Carrying Gross carrying Provision for Carying
amount amount decline in value amount
REEE Ei) HiEER RHEE
32,380,852.57 63,161,927.66 - 63,161,927.66
1,059,148,995.04 1277479,615.51 (71436,643.13)  1,206,042,972.38
6,681,319,888.47 8,129,861,714.63 (275,843,727.80)  7,854,017,986.83
23,723,935.34 42,079,810.04 (730,303.67) 41,349,506.37
697,236,263.65 1,167,145,326.05 (15877,50088)  1,151,267,825.17
44,761,077.76 49,986,802.23 (8,273486.62) 4171331561
CEREEYANIPREI 10,729,715,196.12 (372,161,662.10)  10,357,553,534.02
FEKREEFEZHWT -
2012F1-6 A

Decrease during the period

AHED

Write-off
L

(155,540.35)
(82917,245.22)

(83,072,785.57)

Disposal of
subsidiaries
RETAT
(2,001,132.93)
(1,160,000.00)

(111,330.94)

(278,341.36)
(159,194.77)

(3,710,000.00)

Subsidiaries Closing
held of sale balance
FERETAH BAY
(4180,796.90)  62,275,224.03

(2,530,084.75)  194,450,805.87

596,235.34

17,106,189.01
7,147,733.11

(6,710,881.65)  281,576,187.36



1

273,700,681.38

inished goods EERX 94,588,980.39
OEM materials ZEMIMH 659,485.63 70,818.04
Self made semi-finished goods (5 445K 7 R £ E G
and work
in progress 20,491,841.03  3,371,298.74
Turnover materials Bty 294,681.19  9,318,782.92

(5,691,425.67) (86,754,508.30) 275,843,727.80

- = 730,303.67
(7,985,638.89) - 15,877,500.88
(1,339,977.49) - 8,273,486.62

370,365,936.41  111,924,859.06

(18,046,083.07) (92,083,050.30) 372,161,662.10

Provision for decline in value of inventories is determined based on
the excess of cost over realizable value and shall be reversed within
the impaired cost when the factors that give rise to the provision in

prior years are not in effect in current year.

AEBRBRABRAIZEFENE
BRI EBRERE - WE AR
FREENZERZHELE  £RE
RN FEREEENSEANEM -



January to
June 2012(%) 2011 (%)

2012F1-6 A (%) 20114 (%)
Raw materials Rk 0.25 0.24
Finished goods EK 0.05 0.07
OEM materials ZEEMIME 0.09 =
Self made semi-finished goods and BRI R REES
work in progress 0.04 0.68
Turnover materials EE M R 1.89 2.68
8. Other current assets 8. HttR&:EE
30 June 2012 31 December 2011
201256 A30H 2011412 A31H
Prepaid expenses FEER 4,059,251.02 3,501,612.82
Deductible value-added tax AT IS A 493,256,372.34 733,060,225.97
Principal amount of trusted fund LB RS (1)
management 27,677,250.00 27,677,250.00
Less: Provision for impairment of B BT REER
trusted fund management (27,677,250.00) (27,677,250.00)
Assets of subsidiaries held for sale BESETRAEE (2) 569,408,500.37 -
Others Hfb 21,512,785.85 1,017,384.99

1,088,236,909.58 737,579,223.78




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)
8. Other current assets (Continued)

Descriptions of other current assets:

(1)

Trusted fund management

Xinjiang Machinery Equipment Import & Export Co., Ltd, a
subsidiary of the Group, has entrusted Jinxin Trust Investment
Co., Ltd. (“Jinxin Trnst”) to manage on trust fund in the
amount of RMB27,677,250.00 in 2003. As Jinxin Trust
came under operating difficulty in 2004, the board of
directors of Xinjiang Machinery Equipment Import & Export
Co., Ltd. made a total of 100% provision for impairment
of the investment in 2004 and 2005. As at the date of this
report, Jinxin Trust was still in the process of change and

consolidation.

Assets of subsidiaries held for sale

Interim Report 2012 FRHEAZRE

o 55 i R M R (48)
201246 A30H (A R¥T)

4~ B B R 32 BEOH H kR

(%)

8. HtRBEE (&)
Hi R B ARSI
(1) ZEFEERA

RNEBE 2 F A7) 7B R A
#HOBRAFNR2003FE
AEHEIERERGERAA
(TeFEx ) EXEN LS A
K #27,677,250.007C ° MR
2004 R FEERALER
% MEMREREHELDER
AAEEEEZR20044F - 2005
FHZIRERFFIERT100%
BB ELERE - BIEARER -
SHELNEEREEEF -

HERFETRAIBE

31 December 2011
2011%12A831H

all

Assets of subsidiaries held for sale

REGETRREE

In 2012, Dongfeng Motor Group Company Limited
("Dongfeng Group”) intended to acquire 60% equity interests
of Dongfeng Off-road Vehicle Co., Ltd. (“Dongfeng Off-
road”) within the Group. The parties signed an equity transfer
agreement on 11 May 2012. Pursuant to the agreement, the
Group sold its 60% equity interests in Dongfeng Off-road at
RMB270,000,000. Meanwhile, pursuant to the agreement, all
profits or losses of Dongfeng Off-road during January to June
2012 were attributable to Dongfeng Group. During January
to June 2012, the net profit of Dongfeng Off-road was
RMB37,131,541.06. After completion of the equity transfer,
Dongfeng Off-road is no longer a subsidiary of the Group.
As at the date of these financial statements, the transfer of

equity interests has not been completed.

R2012%E F  REAAEEE
BHBRAR(TRAER])
FERBEAREMBORR L
HEARAA([RRERBE )
60% B I HE - &5 N201245
AN BEI(REEREBR)
BEHE  NEEUARYK
270,000,000 7T i & T35 B &)
HEME60% R ARAE o RIEF
REHZEREBE2012F1-6
BB — 4yl B KLY B EE
E®TAE 20121 AE6 4 -
FRBE®MFMNERARK
37,131,541.06 JC ° f% 4 &4 3%
TR & - REBE B AR
EBZFRA o HIEARYB®
RMEBREBP BARTH ©
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presented as other current assets and other current liabilities
in the consolidated balance sheet respectively. The financial

information are consolidated and presented as follows:

FINRBEMRBEERHEMR
BaE - Bl GE SERT]
TR

30 June 2012
20126 A30H

519,395,402.55
50,013,097.82

569,408,500.37

Current assets mMEBAE
Non-current assets EREEE
Elimination and consolidation of trading HEH A BHE R
Current liabilities mEAE
Non-current liabilities ERTEE
Elimination and consolidation of trading K EH A PHE R

360,925,515.61

(455,504.76)

360,470,010.85




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

9.

Interim Report 2012 FRHEARE

P 5 i 3 I R ()
20124668308 (A E¥T)

1 ?ﬁgﬁtﬁjﬁﬁﬁigiﬁ H 5k B
9. THUESMEE

30 June 2012
20126 H30H

31 December 2011
2011412 831H

Available-for-sale equity investments

At EERTA

288,477,274.53 234,011,928.12

Shanghai Stock Exchange £/ &5 551

Beigi Foton Motor LARAITERR
Co,, Ltd® BRARO
NASDAQ Stock Exchange #1257 5% 5Ff
Winner Medical BREELE
Group Inc. ® BRAAR
Total ait

30 June 2012
2012%6430R
Accumulated fair
Cost value changes

BE  AABERGED

194,000,000.00 92,000,000.00

3,264,000.00

(786,725.47)

197,264,000.00 91,213,274.53

(1) As at 30 June 2012, the Company held 40 million shares of Beigi Foton
Motor Co., Ltd. The stock was closed at RMB7.15 per share on 30 June
2012. As at the end of the period, fair value of RMB286,000,000.00 was

recognized.

(2) Torch Import & Export Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company acquired
198,314 shares of WINNER MEDICAL GROUP in 2005, which were
consolidated on 6 October 2009 into 99,157 shares. As at 30 June 2012,
these 99,157 shares were held by the Company. The market price of the
stock was USD3.95 per share or in aggregate of RMB2,477,274.53.

31 December 2011

2011F12A318

Accumulated fair
Cost value changes Total
RE  RARBEZHED At
286,000,000.00 194,000,000.00 38,400,000.00 232,400,000.00
2,477,274.53 3,264,000.00 (1,652,071.88) 1,611,928.12
288,471,274.53 197,264,000.00 36,747,928.12 234,011,928.12

(1) H2012%6A308 » ARAIEAILA
BHAERDER A AMNARKRZESL000
B8 2012F6 A0 Z B ER KB
BAARE7AST/R - BREBERA
i BEARH286,000,000.007T °

(2) ARBZFRAINE#HLOBRE
£~ & FA 2005 & B A #) WINNER
MEDICAL GROUP (&2 B & ) IR =
198,314 0% + 20094 10 A6 HIT &
/499,157 % » R 201266 A308 -
ARNAFEBZKEI,ISTHE « &K
ZHERMME35ET  MAARE
2,477,274.537C °
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30 June 2012
2012%6A30H
Gross
carrying  Provision for
amount impairment

BELE B
or equity [RIESZS  Note

transfer i

Note: Long-term receivables represent the consideration for the transfer of part
of the equity in Dalian Hongyuan Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
transferred by WEICHAI POWER MAT AUTOMOTIVE, INC., a subsidiary of
the Company.

The aging analysis of long-term receivables are as follows:

Carrying
amount

RERE /"

27,720,035.60 - 27,720,035.60

F: RAEBRFXABAAAZTAA
WEICHAI POWER MAT AUTOMOTIVE,
INC.BRAERREMMERRAA
H o RAE TR o

REEUGKH BRI DTN T

30 June 2012 31 December 2011
201256 A30H 2011512A31H

1 to 2 years 122F
2 to 3 years 2E3F
Over 3 years 3FL L

27,720,035.60

27,720,035.60
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) o 5 ¥ 3% BT 5E (A8
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20126 H30H (A E#oT)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - §FMHEHETFEIEH

rml:
ey

statements (Continued) (%)
11. Investments in associates 11. HHELERSE
On 30 June 2012, the Group’s investments in associates are R2012%6 A30H @ "EB B &
presented as follows: ELENFAMBAO TR -
Legal
Registered address representative  Business Registered capital
i EARR % A&
Associates
BeEhx
(1) Weichai Power Westport Weifang, Shandong Ma Yuxian Research, development, production and USD1,854,400.00
New Energy Co., Ltd. sale of gas engine and its components
HESRE) T WRE AT BER RREBEN AT %7T1,854,400.00
M REHRARDA HE - FBE - £EREE
(2)  Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd.  Xi'an, Shaanxi Liang Zheng Chassis of passenger vehicles, passenger 114,953,718.00
vehicles
RERSHIERBERAT RAEELT 2K RERR XE
(3)  Shaanxi Tonghui Automotive Xi‘an, Shaanxi Hao Xiaogian Distribution, warehousing and 20,000,000.00
Transportation Co., Ltd. transportation of goods
REBESEMRERAT KEAEELRT )32 SYkx - B E%
(4)  Xian Cummics Engine Co., Ltd. ~ Xi'an, Shaanxi Fang Hongwei Engine and its components USD2,400,000.00
ARRANEDRERAE RAEZEEZD TR EHHREATHMG %712,400,000.00
(5)  CIMC-SHAC (Xi"an) Special Xi'an, Shaanxi Li Yinhui Special vehicles, trailers 50,000,000.00
Vehicles Co., Ltd.
PERAER(AR)ERE RAEXAART FiE ERE - #HE
BRATF
(6)  Shaanxi Longmen Shanai Hancheng, Shaanxi Lei Xiaoxia Sale, repair and after-sale service for 30,000,000.00
Logistics Park Co., Ltd. vehicles
REEMRITDREERART REGENT B RERERIERERRE
(7)  Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye  Shanghai Nie Xinyong Industrial investment and investment 150,000,000.00
Investment Co., Ltd. management
HEBRAEREBRAR AT EHE BERE REER
(8) Laizhou Luyuan Automotive Laizhou, Shandong YU Jianguo Vehicle brakes and other automotive 37,930,000.00
Fitting Co., Ltd. components
FMNBRAEEGERRR  IWRERMT T#E RENERRAEMAERGS
9 Dalian Hongyuan Machinery Pulandian, Liaoning Yu Jianguo Hardware tools and automotive USD132,800,000.00
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. components
REBREMHEERRART EEHLHED T#E TeTAMAETEYS %71.132,800,000.00
(10)  Shanzhong Finance Leasing Beijing Dong Ping Finance lease 920,000,000.00
Co., Ltd.
LEREHEERDA bl BY BEREEH
(11)  Shaanxi Fuping Shangi Logistics  Fuping County, Shaanxi  Yao Qiang Sale of motor vehicles and components 20,000,000.00
Park Co., Ltd.
REETHRDREERAE RALEETH ke RERTRMHHE
(12) HEBBRATF British Virgin Islands Nie Xinyong Investment holding company USD50,000.00
REARER EHME REFRRA A %7£50,000.00
(13)  Torque Turbine Engine Co.  United States /o Torque Capital - Industrial investment and investment USD6,225,000.00
Group management
XE c/o Torque EERE REEE %716,225,000.00
Capital Group
(14)  Xi'an FC Intelligence Xi'an, Shaanxi Hans HaeFeli Manufacture and sale of auto 500,000,000.00
Transmission Co., Ltd. transmission devices and other
intelligence transmission devices
AREREEEHERAT RAZEEZD Hans HaeFeli BEEREEENL M EHEYES
MEENBEE
(15)  Shandong Heavy Industry Jinan, Shandong Shen Chuandong  Operation of business approved by China  1,000,000,000.00
Group Finance Co., Ltd. Banking Regulatory Commission
LWRETEEMBERAT LREEED BER BERBRTEEEERZaeNE

GBS
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial

statements (Continued)
11. Investments in associates (Continued)

12.

S5 e R M R (A

201246 308 (A E¥T)

(%)

1~ B OF B R R IH H RE R

1. e hXERE (&)

Closing balance Closing balance Closing balance Revenue Net profit
of total assets ~ of total liabilities  of total net assets for the period for the period
EELHE BEEE BEEAR EL/ON AR
BRE BRH BREY RBH KB
Associates
BERE
(1) Weichai Power Westport New Energy 475,982,205.00 341,499,914.70 134,482,290.30 671,008,981.71 30,130,573.99
Engine Co., Ltd.
RS NEANREDRERAR
() Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd. 619,616,510.25 517,001,176.09 102,615,334.16 12,068,121.89 (28,574,391.07)
REB ST AERAER AR
(3)  Shaanxi Tonghui Automotive Transportation 63,962,996.84 34,794,511.88 29,168,484.96 77,307,994.40 (2,665,305.01)
Co., Ltd.
RERE R ARAR
(4 Xian Cummics Engine Co., Ltd. 347,181,680.39 302,202,964.95 44,978,715.44 133,088,538.54 (13,749,904.35)
BRRBNEDRERDA
(5 CIMC-SHAC (Xi'an) Special Vehicles Co., Ltd. 359,743,293.19 286,372,078.72 73,371,214.47 228,196,618.70 3,893,876.87
mERAER(AR)EREARAT
(6) Shaanxi Longmen Shanai Logistics Park Co., Ltd. 29,642,497.12 1,885.00 29,640,612.12 - (154122)
REEMRVIRREBR AT
) Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye Investment Co., Ltd. 531,498,255.29 154,427,434.37 377,070,820.92 - 71,628,606.77
TEEBAERAFRAT
(8)  Laizhou Luyuan Automotive Fitting Co., Ltd. 75,795,943.70 69,466,788.54 6,329,155.16 33,262,120.24 128,709.38
FNERAERHERRA
9 Dalian Hongyuan Machinery Manufacturing 124,911,448.76 44,428,362.80 80,483,085.96 38,798,327.26 91,304.19
Co., Ltd.
REBRERHEERARA
(10)  Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. 4,009,908,930.05 3,010,679,820.53 999,229,109.52 134,253,535.92 21,819,313.27
WEREREBRAR
(1) Shaanxi Fuping Shangi Logistics Park Co., Ltd. 12,592,214.98 6,169,901.04 6,422,313.94 22,108,290.66 (342,501.99)
REETRANERERAF
(1) EEERAF 15,750,000.00 - 15,750,000.00 - -
(13)  Torque Turbine Engine Co. 41,519,147.63 12,120,576.14 29,398,571.49 67,494,338.79 225,054.89
(14)  Xi'an FC Intelligence Transmission Co., Ltd. 273,102,763.21 1,243,075.20 271,859,688.01 - (981,033.19)
AREREREHFRAT
(15)  Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance 1,000,000,000.00 - 1,000,000,000.00 - -

Co., Ltd.
WRETEBSHERLA

Long-term equity investments

12. REIRERSE

30 June 2012 31
201246 H30H

Unlisted investment
Equity method - associates (attributable #%5% — B 0%
net value of the corporation)

Cost method

FLERERE

(E1EREFE)

PRAE

December 2011

2011512 A831H

1,054,078,224.00
183,822,456.11

Less: Provision for impairment of long-

term equity investments

B REBRER B RE LR

1,237,900,680.11

894,107,847.56
183,822,456.11

122,232,129.56

1,

077,930,303.67

122,232,129.56

1,115,668,550.55

955,698,174.11
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30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201246 A30H (A E¥T)

1 ?@ﬁ?%%ﬁ%ﬁigﬁ H 5k B
12, EMBRERE(H)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)
12. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

30 June 2012 201266 H30H
Increase Provision for
(decrease) Percentage Percentage impairment Cash
Investment Opening Closing  of ownership of voting ~ Provision for madein  dividend for
cost balance balance equity power impairment  current period the period
AR
REAAEE EEE BRY KRIH RARLA HEER HEEE  AHRLLH
Equity method BE%
Weichai Power Westport New 48 n B#HiaE
Energy Engie Co, Lid BHRERAT BE9L  SSHTIST6 12020959 6792015535
Shaani Eurostar Auto Co, Ltd. ~ REESHTERAERDE 46,618,137.42 3966594993 (10,587370.57)  29,078,579.36
Shaanxi Tonghui RERERENRERAA
Automotive
Transportation Co,, Ltd. 8,800,000.00 13326,526.13 (1,14230460) 121842153
Xian Cummics Engine Co, Ltd. ~ BZEHHZBEARAA 4783677600 1383831158 (29547055)  10.383,606.06
CIMC-SHAC (Xi'an) Specia hERAER(ER)ERE
Vehicles Co,, Ltd. BRAR 12,500,000.00 16,960,192.29 1,349,505.60 18,309,697.89
Shaanii Longmen Shangi Logisics BRREFSBSMREARAR
Park Co, Ltd. 9,000,000.00 8,892,646.00 (462.37) 8,892,183.63
Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye BB EIZREARAT
Investment Co, Ltd. 4585368325 14503426735 (18,136,571.20)  126,897,696.15
Thuzhou Auto Trading Market 52X 575 28449956 28449956 - 284,499.56
Laizhou Luyuan Automotive Fitting M & B S ER A
(o, td. 8,624,443.00 1,438,560.12 922,948.82 2,361,508.94
Dalian Hongyuan Machinery  KEREBRHEARAR
Manufacturing Co, Ltd. 3594346246  31,982979.3 (7145,65333)  31,37325.90
Torque Turbine Engine Co.  Torque Turbine Engine Co. 8,191,170.00 8,191,170.00 31,200.00 8,222,370.00
Xian FCInteligence Transmission % $ 5 B4 BHARA
Co, Ltd. (Note 1) (i#1) 140,250,00000  139,148,763.22 (500,326.93)  138,648436.29
Shanzhong Fnence Leasing Co,  IERERERRAT
Ltd. 360,000000.00  383,773,191.07 516582039 38393901146
Shaanii Fuping Shangj Logistis (R EZRITNEERRAT
Park Co, Ltd. 3,360,000.00 5,105,926.37 (137,000.79) 4,968,925.58
ARERAA ARRRAT 5,.250,006.30 = 5,.250,006.30 5,250,006.30
Shandong Heavy Industry Group  LUEE T £BHBARAT
Finance Co, Ltd. 200,000,000.00 - 200,000,000.00 200,000,000
Shaanxi-Wuhai New Power Special 513285 # BER R
Vehicles Co,, Ltd. BRAH 30,596,93895  (30,596,938.95)
Equity method total BREAT 968,051,485.21  894,107,847.56  159970,376.44  1,054,078,224.00 (284,499.56) 3975,120.00
Cost method 2973
Foton Heavy-duty BEELRARNERAA
Machinery Co., Ltd. 3863087688 3863087688 38,630,876.88 6.14
Huarong Xiangjang Bank ERAIRN
Corporation Limited 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00 6.05 1,080,000.00
China National Machineryand B BHZEEERHERLT
Equipment Hainan Corp,, Ltd 879,605.00 879,605.00 879,605.00 0.66 (879,605.00)
Thuzhou Gear Share Co, Ltd &R HERAA 1,680,000.00 1,680,000.00 1,680,000.00 245 -
Fasten Life Insurance Co, Ltd — RAABRBERAA 60,000,000.00 60,000,000 60,000,000.00 750 (60,000,000.00)
New Century Fnance Leasing. STt 24 BREARAT
(o, ltd 61,068,025.00  61,068,025.00 61,068,025.00 1122 (61,068,025.00)
Yangzhou Suken Yinhe Aute~— BHERBT TEEFERAT
Comnecting Rod Co,, Ltd. 1,563,949.23 1,563,949.23 1,563,949.3 15.00
Cost method total AREEH 183,822,450.11  183,822,456.11 183,822,456.11 (121,947,630.00) 1,080,000.00
Total At 115187394132 1,077,930303.67  159.970,376.44  1,237,900,680.11 (122,232,129.58) 5,055,120.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial

statements (Continued)
Long-term equity investments (Continued)
31 December 2011

12.

PO 5 i 3 M R (4)
201246 308 (A E¥T)

1~ B OF B R R IH H RE R

(%)

12. RERERE (8)
201112 A31H

Increase/ Provision for
decrease Percentage Percentage impairment Cash
Investment Opening during Closing~ of ownership of voting Provision for madein  dividend for the
cost balance the year balance equity power impairment current year current year
RERALE 48 KEER EXE BRILH  RAELH REEE REARAARE AFRLMA
Equity method E&it
Weichai Power Westport New Fnergy BN Ea T B Eid

Engine Co, Ltd. BRAA 3553930722 4196439913 1390352663  55867925.76 40,00 4000 - - -
Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co, Ltd. REEHHAERABRAT 46,618,137.42 5148881844 (11822,86851)  39,665,94993 33.06 33.06 - - -
Shaans Tonghul Automotive REBERENRARAA

Transportation Co,, Ltd. 880000000 826767578 505885035  13326526.13 4000 4000 - - 148921853
Xian Cumrmics Engine Co,, Ltd. ERRHAEHEERAR 4783677600 2369815641 (985984483 1383831158 2500 2500 - - -
CIMC-SHAC (Xi'an) Special Vehicles PERAE (AR ERERRAA

(o, td 1250000000 1297901783 398117446  16,960,192.29 2500 2500 - - -
Shaanxi Longmen ShangiLogistics Park R EFIRTNERARAR

(o, td 9,000,000.00 9,000,000.00 (10735400 8:892,646.00 30.00 3000 - - =
Shanghai Xinlian Chuange Investment ~~ FEEBIBIEREBRAT

(o, td 45853,68325  337,168830.46  (192,134,563.11)  145,034,26735 3R 333 - - 50,000,000.00
Zhuzhou Auto Trading Market ABR AT 284,499.56 284,499.56 = 284,499.56 - - (284,499.56) - -
Laiznou Luyuan Automotive Fiting FNERAEERAR

(o, td. 862444300 1300647.29 13791283 1438,560.12 2500 2500 - - -
Dalian Hongyuan Machinery RERFRRZEARLT

Manufacturing Co, Ltd. 3594346246 3243767522 (4546999 31,982979.3 1040 440 - - -
Torque Turbine Engine Co. Torque Turbine Engine Co. 8,191,170.00 - 819117000 8,191,170.00 2090 2090 - - -
Xian FC Inteligence Transmission EREREHEDERAAGH)

Co,, Ltd. (Note 1) 140,250,000.00 - 13914876322 139,148,763.22 51.00 4300 - - -
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co, Ltd. LERERERRAR 360,000,000.00  367,826925.16  15946,265.91  383,773,191.07 39.13 313 - - -
Shaani Fuping Shangj Logistcs Park REETRANMREARAT

(o, td. 336000000 336000000 174592637 510592637 4000 40.00 - - -
Shaanii-Wuhai New Power Specal Vehides %58 6 & EERTERRAT

Co, td. 31,200,00000  31,200,000.00 (603,061.05  30,596,938.95 2135 2135 - - -
Equity method total ERiai 79400147891 920976,645.28  (26,868,797.72)  894,107,847.56 (284,499.56) - 5148921853
Cost method Rk
Foton LovolIntemational Heavy Industry Co,, EREFEAREIRNARAT

td - 7560000000 (75,600,000.00) - - - - - -
Foton Heavy-duty Machinery Co,  BREUERRNARAT

Ltd. 3863087688 38,630876.88 - 3863087688 6.14 6.14 - - -
Huarong Xiangjang Bank Comporation ~ EBMEITH1T

Limited 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00 - 20,000,000.00 6.05 6.05 - - -
China National Machinery and Equipment B A B ERRNARAT

Hainan Corp., Ltd 879,605.00 879,605.00 - 879,605.00 0.66 0.66 (879,605.00) - -
Thuzhou Gear Share Co, Ltd 1,680,00000  1,680,000.00 - 1,680,000.00 245 245 - - -
Eastern Life Insurance Co, Ltd 60,000,000.00  60,000,000.00 - 60,000,000.00 750 750 (60,000,000.00) - -
New Century Finance Leasing Co, Ltd 61,068,02500  61,068,025.00 - 61,068,025.00 1.2 1122 (61,068,025.00) - -
Shanghai Tongyue Vehicle Leasing Co,, Ltd - 935121842 (935121842 - - - - - -
Yangzhou Suken Yinhe Auto

Connecting Rod o, Lt. SEESTRERT AR SR8 1553093 - 1B 1500 1500 - - -
Cost method total S h 183,820456.11 26877367453 (84951,21842)  183,822,4%6.11 (121,947,630.00) - -
Total ait 977,823,935.02 1,189,750319.81  (111,820,016.14) 1,077,930,303.67 (122,232,129.56) - 5148921853
Note 1: According to the articles of association, investor from another investee H1: REER Z—REBMNNKREERE

holds 57% of the voting rights of the Board of Xi’an FC Intelligence
Transmission Co., Ltd., as such the Group has no control over that

investee.

AREREEEHERAGNESTS
1557 % B =R - FTAR K EH %R
REBMTEBZGIE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) A R R B RE ()
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201246 A30H (A R¥T)
V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & ff ¥ % it 3% 1 %16 H 51
statements (Continued) (%)
13. Investment property 13. REMEHME
Subsequent measure under the cost model: KARAERETREN 2 ¢
January to June 2012 20125 1-6 A

Opening Increase during  Decrease during
balance the period the period  Closing balance
EEIR ZH 38 EHED HARY
Gross carrying amount RE
Houses and buildings EENEZEY 281,697,733.10 91,981,921.12 373,679,654.22
Land use rights + M 7,606,588.83 - 7,606,588.83
289,304,321.93 91,981,921.12 381,286,243.05
Less: Accumulated B RFHER
depreciation and S
amortization
Houses and buildings EENERZY 38,188,057.52 12,475,952.65 50,664,010.17
Land use rights TR 787,927.29 78,143.04 866,070.33
38,975,984.81 12,554,095.69 51,530,080.50
Net carrying amount IREFE
Houses and buildings EENMEZEY 243,509,675.58 323,015,644.05
Land use rights + Mo {F A A 6,818,661.54 6,740,518.50
250,328,337.12 329,756,162.55
Less: Provision for A OREER
impairment
Houses and buildings EELEEY
Land use rights T A
Carrying amount REEE
Houses and buildings EEREEY 243,509,675.58 323,015,644.05
Land use rights 4 3 {5 4 6,818,661.54 6,740,518.50

250,328,337.12

329,756,162.55
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

13. Investment property (Continued)

Subsequent measure under the cost model: (Continued)

T 75 2% BT (48
201246 308 (A E¥T)

1~ B OF B R R IH H RE R
(%)
13. REMEHE (&)

RARAENETRESZE : (B)
2011 20114
Increase during Decrease during
Opening balance the year the year Closing balance
FOH RELZ KERD FRY
Gross carrying amount RE
Houses and buildings FEEREEY 168,860,133.83 112,837,599.27 - 281,697,733.10
Land use rights + 3 & A 7,606,588.83 - - 7,606,588.83
176,466,722.66 112,837,599.27 = 289,304,321.93
Less: Accumulated W RAHEA
depreciation and R £
amortization
Houses and buildings BB REEY) 19,048,489.31 19,139,568.21 - 38,188,057.52
Land use rights T A 631,641.16 156,286.13 = 787,927.29
19,680,130.47 19,295,854.34 - 38,975,984.81
Net carrying amount REFE
Houses and buildings FE R k%Y 149,811,644.52 243,509,675.58
Land use rights T A 6,974,947.67 6,818,661.54

156,786,592.19

Less: Provision for impairment & : W {E %4

250,328,337.12

Houses and buildings EENELY - - - -

Land use rights T R - - - -
Carrying amount REEE

Houses and buildings EEREEY 149,811,644.52 243,509,675.58

Land use rights TR A 6,974,947.67 6,818,661.54

156,786,592.19

250,328,337.12
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial o - & /f i % #t 3% 4 206 H 5E R
statements (Continued) (78)
13. Investment property (Continued) 13. REMEME (&)

During the period from January to June 2012, the amount of
depreciation or amortization was RMB6,548,233.67 (2011:
RMB6,663,453.75), among which accumulated depreciation
transferred to investment property from fixed assets amounted
to RMB6,005,862.02. As at 30 June 2012, investment properties
pledged to secure for the Group’s bank loans had an aggregate
carrying amount of RMB2,928,979.07 (31 December 2011:
RMB3,021,011.32).

As at 30 June 2012, investment properties for which the Group
had not obtained real estate certificates had a carrying amount of
RMB225,070,027.38, among which investment properties for which
the Group was in the process of applying for real estate certificates
had a carrying amount of RMB225,070,027.38.

2012F 1-6 A RN E R B SFE
A ANER¥6,548,233.67 7T (20114 ¢
ANER#6,663,453.757%) ° HEEE
ESAREUEEHENRTINESSE
A ANR#6,005,862.027T ° #2012
F6H308 @ AEBEERARIRER
TE R R M B A BR T B (E A 5T
AR #2,928,979.07 7t (20114 12
A318 : AR#¥3,021,011.327T) °

201256 A30H @ AEEHK#E
SEMEFNKRE LR MEREE
B & AR # 225,070,027.38 J© °
Hef AEEFERFRMEZRR
REEEHEREEEARARE
225,070,027.387C °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial

statements (Continued)
14. Fixed assets
January to June 2012

BERE

Gross carrying amount

Houses and buildings

Machinery and equipment MR R
Electronic equipment BFR
Vehicles EHTH
Other equipment Hith %

s 10 4,611,643,502.53
8,683,324,523.35
369,386,556.47
313,613,125.54
1,044,660,446.10

15,022,628,153.99

Less: Accumulated W RE
depreciation

Houses and buildings EEREEN
Machinery and equipment ~ #2:R{8
Electronic equipment SYHE
Vehicles EHIE
Other equipment LR

Net carrying amount REFE
Houses and buildings FEREEY
Machinery and equipment ~ ##%3%
Electronic equipment BT
Vehicles EHIER
Other equipment Bt

Opening
balance

EIE Y

630,457,750.72
3,698,832,208.09
249,607,474.01
190,460,914.69
564,868,278.79

5,334,226,626.30

3,981,185,751.81
4,984,492,315.26
119,779,082.46
[PEREYRALR:S
479,792,167.31

9,688,401,527.69

Opening
balance

LERIE

B S i 2 W R ()
20124668308 (A E¥T)

i~ ﬁg‘ﬁi%?ﬁﬁﬁfgﬁ H &k R
121. B EE&EE
2012%1-6 H

|

Increase during

Decrease during
the period
REE 0

the period
rHEL

Closing balance

HARH

396,304,446.29
831,535,916.63
38,981,360.67
17,208,116.59
97,004,003.80

(215,087,073.60)
(201,475,910.41)
(10,777,551.60)
(11,146,970.10)
(8,830,075.32)

4,792,860,875.22
9,313,384,529.57
397,590,365.54
319,674,272.03
1,132,834,374.58

1,381,033,843.98

(447,317,581.03)

15,956,344,416.94

Increase during the period
REEm

Charge during Addition during  Decrease during

the period

AHED

the period
REHR

the period
N Fit

Closing balance

MRE

96,646,605.32
436,724,532.46
28,677,220.40 80,028.64
17,582,251.55 187,470.16
59,423,475.69 =

1,952,969.20
715,880.13

(35,854,515.85)
(151,195,251.14)
(8,088,169.27)

)
)

693,202,809.39
3,985,077,369.54
270,276,553.78
201,644,649.11
620,001,751.51

(6,585,987.29
(4,290,002.97

639,054,085.42 2,936,348.13 (206,013,926.52)  5,770,203,133.32

4,099,658,065.83
5,328,307,160.03
127,313,811.76
118,029,622.92
512,832,623.07

10,186,141,283.61




Opening Increase during Decrease during
balance the period the period Closing balance

EIE AHE KHRD HARH

ess: Provision for impairment - B REER

Houses and buildings FEREEN 2,538,369.04 2,538,369.04
Machinery and equipment HERE 31,436,575.16 31,436,575.16
Electronic equipment ERE ] = =
Vehicles EHTE 989,030.26 989,030.26
Other equipment Eti 383,460.37 383,460.37

35,347,434.83 35,347,434.83

Carrying amount REEE

Houses and buildings FEREEY 3,978,647,382.77 4,097,119,696.79
Machinery and equipment BER 4,953,055,740.10 5,296,870,584.87
Electronic equipment R 119,779,082.46 127,313,811.76
Vehicles EBIA 122,163,180.59 117,040,592.66
Other equipment LR 479,408,706.94 512,449,162.70

9,653,054,092.86 10,150,793,848.78
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial

statements (Continued)
14. Fixed assets (Continued)

2011

I 5 2% BT (48
201246 308 (A E¥T)

(%)

14. BEEE(E)
20114

Increase during

Decrease during

1~ B OF B R R IH H RE R

Opening balance the year the year Closing balance
ENME REE KERD ERE
Gross carrying amount BERE
Houses and buildings EERELY) 3,406,857,603.19  1,319,858,679.10  (115,072,779.76)  4,611,643,502.53
Machinery and equipment R E 7,262,794,564.59  1,599,479,085.80  (178,949,127.04)  8,683,324,523.35
Electronic equipment EF%E 329,450,532.31 50,798,638.40 (10,862,614.24) 369,386,556.47
Vehicles BHTA 279,221,264.12 57,120,064.55 (22,728,203.13) 313,613,125.54
Other equipment HAih % 849,213,907.60 231,621,434.87 (36,174,896.37)  1,044,660,446.10
12,127,537,871.81  3,258,877,902.72  (363,787,620.54) 15,022,628,153.99
Increase during the year
REEM
Charge during Addition during ~ Decrease during
Opening balance the year the year the year Closing balance
FOH ARG REHE KERD ERE
Less: Accumulated B RHRE
depreciation
Houses and buildings FEREEN 451,525,744.21 261,868,699.82 2,815,902.98 (85,752,596.29) 630,457,750.72
Machinery and equipment %““ % 2,970,136,166.63 854,617,378.77 357,216.26 (126,278,553.57)  3,698,832,208.09
Electronic equipment 3 208,425,525.40 49,171,906.41 - (7,989,957.80) 249,607,474.01
Vehicles EHTH 165,004,059.91 43,112,973.12 53,788.43 (17,709,906.77) 190,460,914.69
Other equipment Hirik 459,030,496.32 117,699,998.03 - (11,862,215.56) 564,868,278.79
4,254,121,992.47 1,326,470,956.15 3,226,907.67 (249,593,229.99)  5,334,226,626.30
Net carrying amount REHE
Houses and buildings FEREEN 2,955,331,858.98 3,981,185,751.81
Machinery and equipment R 4,292,658,397.96 4,984,492,315.26
Electronic equipment BTk 121,025,006.91 119,779,082 .46
Vehicles BHTS 114,217,204.21 123,152,210.85
Other equipment Hitk 390,183,411.28 479,792,167.31

7,873,415,879.34

9,688,401,527.69
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) B ik R B RE (48
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20126 H30H (A E#oT)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial i - GO B R EE R

statements (Continued) (78)
14. Fixed assets (Continued) 14. BIEEE(E)
2011 (Continued) 201146 (4B)

Increase during Decrease during

Opening balance the year the year Closing balance
FENH RERL KERD ERY

Less: Provision for impairment W OREERE
Houses and buildings REREEY 3,178,720.81 = (640,351.77) 2,538,369.04
Machinery and equipment R 28,032,511.52 3,611,951.99 (207,888.35) 31,436,575.16
Electronic equipment EF%E = = = =
Vehicles EHTH 989,030.26 - - 989,030.26
Other equipment Hi 5 383,460.37 = = 383,460.37
32,583,722.96 3,611,951.99 (848,240.12) 35,347,434.83

Carrying amount REEE
Houses and buildings FEREEY) 2,952,153,138.17 3,978,647,382.77
Machinery and equipment R0 4,264,625,886.44 4.953,055,740.10
Electronic equipment ETHE 121,025,006.91 119,779,082.46
Vehicles BEBHTA 113,228,173.95 122,163,180.59
Other equipment Hitn 389,799,950.91 479,408,706.94
7,840,832,156.38 9,653,054,092.86
For the period from January to June 2012, the amount of 20012F1-6 REITEEINESEA
depreciation of fixed assets was RMB639,054,085.42 (2011: A R ¥ 639,054,085.42 ¢ ( 2011
RMB1,326,470,956.15). For the period from January to June 2012, £ : A B ¥ 1,326,470,956.15
the amount of gross carrying amount of fixed assets transferred L) c2012F1-6 FAAEETIRSE
from construction in progress was RMB985,531,352.47 (2011: ANETEERBHN S A AR
RMB2,372,996,324.38). 985,531,352.477L (20115 : AR
#2,372,996,324.387T) °

As at 30 June 2012, no houses and buildings and machinery and R2012F6 5300 @ ANEEEIKIEA
equipment were pledged to secure for the Group’s bank loans (31 RENERITESNER MRSy Ak
December 2011: RMB17,580,400.00). FERME(2011F12A318 + AR

17,580,400.007T) ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & ff B % it 3% 1 B IH H 51
statements (Continued) (7)
14. Fixed assets (Continued) 14. BEEE(HE)

2011 (Continued)
As at 30 June 2012, the Group did not have material idle fixed assets
(31 December 2011: nil).

As at 30 June 2012, the Group was not in possession of fixed assets

under finance lease (31 December 2011: nil).

201145 (48)
M2012F6 H30H » AEBESE KX

BMEBEZEE(20114F128318
=) o

MR2012F6 A308 ' AEBERBE
AABEEE(2011F12AH318 :

&) o

As at 30 June 2012, fixed assets leased out under operating lease R20129F6 A30H & &ZEMHHEFE

were as follows: BEWT :

Gross carrying Accumulated Provision for Carrying

amount depreciation impairment amount

fRERE Rt e BEER fREEE

Electronic equipment BETRE 4,036,238.65 (2,714,614.72) 1,321,623.93
Machinery and equipment 2R 31,176,117.67  (11,820,221.19) 19,355,896.48
Transportation equipment BRRE 81,649.72 (79,200.23) 2,449.49

As at 31 December 2011, fixed assets leased out under operating MN20114128318 @ fRLHERE

lease were as follows: FEEWNMT :
Gross carrying Accumulated Provision for
amount depreciation impairment  Carrying amount
RERE REHE REER EHER
Electronic equipment BEFRE 4,036,238.65 (2,406,966.64) - 1,629,272.01
Machinery and equipment HeeR R A 29,540,250.74  (9,450,882.18) - 20,089,368.56
Transportation equipment BHRE 81,649.72 (79,200.23) - 2,449.49

As at 30 June 2012, houses and buildings for which the Group
had not obtained real estate certificates had a carrying amount
of RMB1,568,533,312.334, among which houses and buildings
for which the Group was in the process of applying for real estate
certificates had a carrying amount of RMB1,191,693,772.86.

MR20129F 6 A30H » "EBH &
BEEEHERFNEEEZEYER
BB A ARW®1568533,312.334
Lo HpP AEELERBRME
BENEEREYVEREEAARKE
1,191,693,772.867T °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) A R % B RE ()
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201246 A30H (A E¥T)

|

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & ff I % it 3% 1 %18 H 5L &

statements (Continued) (%)
15. Construction in progress 15. EEITRE
January to June 2012 20125 1-6 A
Transferred to
fived assets
Opening  Increase during during Other Closing ~ Source
balance the period the period decrease balance  of funding
AHEA
98 A5 BEEE 2D BEE  HERE
Expansion of production line T TS OO 1,527,850,488.47 132,687,581.23 44,196,515.13 (36,985,742.10)  1,579,355,81847 internal fund
of Weichai Power 4 HE&E
Renovation for the casting project FEEE-E R 52096957252 364,436,040.33 (119,381,505.46)  766,024,107.39 internal fund
of Weichai Power P HE&E
Test production center project of research — #AEFNMEHTE PRSP 27,277,643.34 363,806,188.63 internal fund
and development of Weichai Power hBR BR&S
150,000 - tonne casting project in e AR 246,948,120.50 37,630,850.78 BETEN) (4543,358.97)  280,001,92855 internal fund
Jinding new factory area BHEER HE4¢
Project T of Weichai Power #EHNTEE 243,539,247.26 24,004,574.90 8,153,516.55 259,390,305.61 internal fund
HE&E
FAST transmission technology renovation AT HEBDHHIER |EILLEENES LRI 82,834,590.68 (964,200.00)  380,740,83735 internal fund
project BR&S
Construction of Yulin new factory area WRTREER 177,452,235.14 40,115,438.72 30,076,699.10 (1,194.929.00)  186,296,045.76  internal fund
HE&E
Overhaul of technological measures ETHREAE 172,10496660  10,58570034  158,549,323.01 2414138393 internal fund
of FAST REEE
Phase Il of new base of Shaanxi Zhongai ~~ BRESHTEM = | LdRLLEd 50,740914.37 71,455,828.14 (2141,350.08) 1228059209 internal fund
HE&E
(LSRRG o S ok il 140,122,034.87 - 190,822,573:37° *173,535,139:38 15740946886 internal fund
for FAST gear BEE BR&S
Huadong technology renovation project ~ #EENESHEA | PRI 27,645,029.75 16,187,049.58 (8768,386.59) 12490579942 internal fund
of Weichai Power R HE&E
Project of new heavy-duty truck in Xinjang~ FTEER REHE [ ISR Rl 96,408,130.73 300,818,875.33 internal fund
Lk HE&E
Zhuzhou gear technology renovation project i &3 H R R T1,479,623.47 55,689,250.56 13,891,553.28 (6801455.12) 10647586563 internal fund
HE&E
Sparkplug technology renovation project X EERHES 20,085,562.78 2,791,053.81 2,563,861.25 (34188) 2231241346 internal fund
HE&E
Logistics Park of Weichai Power BEBNNTE 16,012,779.69 3,000,000.00 1301277969 internal fund
HE&E
Others 2 256,426,028.62 311,820,822.31 257,367,818.54 (16,270,606.21)  293,608,426.18
Sub-total et 4,224927976.01  1,938,761,377.09 985,531,35247  (197,051,875.41)  4,981,106,125.22
Add: Prepaid project equipment monies il - B T2 kMg | bty 425,614,964.83
Prepaid land premium Btz 117,297,538.00 79,297,538.00
Less: Provision for impairment of B ERIERE 3,738,267.94 3,738,267.94
construction in progress Ef

Total At 5,103,645,581.44 5482,280,360.11
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) B ik R B RE (48
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20126 H30H (A E#or)
V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial -~ & 0F B % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
statements (Continued) _ (%)
15. Construction in progress (Continued) 15. EEITRE (&)
2011 20114
Transferred to
Increase fixed assets
Opening during during Closing ~ Source
balance the year theyear  Other decrease balance  of funding
\ AFEA & e
N8 REEN HEEE Bt EXE A2RE
Expansion of production line ERENEESY  1064,201,39021  923,687,967.62  460,038,869.36 - 1527,850,488.47 internal fund
of Weichai Power iy HEEE
Renovation for the casting project ELmNEGER 27917681176 450591,086.53  208,798,325.77 - 520,969,572.52 internal fund
of Weichai Power P BE4%
Project T of Weichai Power #EENTEE 184,297,361.74  178,966,488.43  119,724,602.91 - 24353924726 internal fund
BhEE
Phase Il of new base of Shaanxi Zhongei  BREJTHEM B 1542722511 33827597850  330,932,299.67  (15953,750.13)  145,662,184.81 internal fund
EEL -5
Overhaul of technological measures A THREAE ~ 126659912.88  54,00,020.98 8,563,967.26 - 17210496660 internal fund
of FAST BRAES
Logistics Park of Weichai Power =Ll 94917,740.11  77,29,71381  156,201,674.23 - 16,012,779.69  internal fund
AEA%
Test production centre project of research #4HAMEHE  94,569,511.58  232,062,904.84  55,473,241.08 - N5917534  internal fund
and development of Weichai Power 1B R AREE
FAST transmission technology renovation T %E&HAERE  56,109,870.57  382,129,434.73  250,903,594.07 (4,355,361.13)  182,980,350.10 internal fund
project AEES
Project for combining three workshops ~ ETHHEEHA=E  50,899,931.90  207,823,108.92  118,601,005.95 - 140,122,03487 internal fund
for FAST gear IR AEES
Zhuzhou gear technology renovation  HRMEBKBIEE  34.278450.60 7411359659 36,610,555.41 (301,86831) 7147962347 internal fund
project AEA%
Sparkplug technology renovation project A EERHER 17,456,471.56 5,464,43027 834,757.85 (581.20)  22,085,562.78 internal fund
AEES
Huadong technology renovation project  #£ENEHHA  12,827,625.72 34556998562 236,181,405.50 - 1221620584 internal fund
of Weichai Power R BEE%
150,000 - tonne casting project in SENMEISEBE - 249,532,588.42 2,384,220.53 (200,247.39) 24694812050 internal fund
Jinding new factory area #ER AEE%
Construction of Yulin new factory area B THER % - 315,854,285.89  138,402,050.75 - 177452,235.14 internal fund
aEES
Project of new heavy-duty truck in Xinjiang# T BB FE# 2 - 107,919,400.00 - - 10791940000 internal fund
A AEA%
Others 2 242,851,377.57  265995320.06  249,345,754.04 (3,07491497) 25642602862 internal fund
AEA%
Sub-total INet A12518712.31 4,209,292,311.21 2,372,996,324.38  (23,886,723.13)  4,224,927,976.01
Add: Prepaid project equipment monies 1 : S T2
R 817,645,960.34 765,158,335.37
Prepaid land premium Bt 143,064,959.98 117,297,538.00
Less: Provision for impairment of B ERIREE 3,738,267.94 - - - 3,738,267.94
construction in progress Ef
Total At 3,369,491,364.69

As at 30 June 2012, the construction in progress that had been
pledged by the Group to obtain bank loans amounted to an
aggregate carrying value of RMB28,064,710.00 (31 December

2011: RMB69,259,751.61).

As at 30 June 2012, the Group has no capitalized interests from
construction in progress (31 December 2011: nil).

5,103,645,581.44

MR20129F6 8308 - AEBEIEBHAV

BERTERMEEIREREER

s ARM®28,064,710.007T (20114

128318« AR¥69,259,751.61
) °

7T
MR2012F6 B30 AEBEEREZT

REAF B (2011F12A318
) o



Opening
balance

AR

10,275,638.26

Increase

during

the period
A H

5,892,818.39

Decrease
during

the period
ZHim A

(15,923,114.77)

Closing
balance

HRE

245,341.88

2011 20114
Increase Decrease

Opening during during Closing
balance the year the year balance
FHE RELZN RERD FERY
Special equipment EHERE 11,547,462.79 40,485,758.65 (41,757,583.18) 10,275,638.26
Others Hith 2,222.22 - (2,222.22) -
11,549,685.01 40,485,758.65 (41,759,805.40) 10,275,638.26
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial

statements (Continued)

17. Intangible assets
January to June 2012

Gross carrying amount BB
Technology know-how EvoE 30
Trademark rights IS R
Licence Rt
Land use rights T3 AR
Computer software STEME

Less: Accumulated amortization 35 : 25t

Technology know-how BB R
Trademark rights PR e
Licence RrRTiE
Land use rights T A
Computer software SHE s
Net carrying amount REFE
Technology know-how BRIl
Trademark rights EletdiEl
Licence RrETiE
Land use rights T3 AR
Computer software SHERET
Less: Provision for impairment i : JA{E%E
Carrying amount REERE
Technology know-how EHEM
Trademark rights PR
Licence FRTIE
Land use rights T AR
Computer software SHEBET

Opening

balance

CEIE

394,976,187.52
226,145,000.00
14,604,332.00
921,508,219.53
85,301,778.95

1,642,535,518.00

338,651,658.59
15,555,996.00
13,838,571.38
83,707,298.94
35,291,537.82

487,045,062.73

56,324,528.93
210,589,004.00
765,760.62
837,800,920.59
50,010,241.13

1,155,490,455.27

56,324,528.93
210,589,004.00
765,760.62
837,800,920.59
50,010,241.13

1,155,490,455.27

S R 2 W G ()
20124664308 (A REET)

T~ fF B 5 i Ak 32 B IH H iR

(%)

17. B EE

Increase
during
the period
25 42 hn

168,492.52

38,692,272.00
8,714,659.20

47,575,423.72

6,496,302.61

5,004.00
9,984,007.60
4,710,595.36

21,195,909.57

2012%1-6 A

Decrease
during
the period
FHRED

14,447,434.10

14,516,000.00
11,364,220.08
2,634,512.82

42,962,167.00

7,620,795.94

13,790,200.38
2,285,694.17
818,125.65

24,514,816.14

|

Closing
balance

HRE

380,697,245.94
226,145,000.00
88,332.00
948,836,271.45
91,381,925.33

1,647,148,774.72

337,527,165.26
15,555,996.00
53,375.00
91,405,612.37
39,184,007.53

483,726,156.16

43,170,080.68
210,589,004.00
34,957.00
857,430,659.08
52,197,917.80

1,163,422,618.56

43,170,080.68
210,589,004.00
34,957.00
857,430,659.08
52,197,917.80

1,163,422,618.56
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) B ik R B RE (A8
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2012F6 A30H (A E¥T)
V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial o - & /f i % #t 3% 4 206 H 5E R
statements (Continued) (%)
17. Intangible assets (Continued) 17. B EE (&)
2011 20114
Increase Decrease
Opening during during Closing
balance the year the year balance
FNH RELN RERD ERY
Gross carrying amount B
Technology know-how BERM 390,826,581.45 4,149,606.07 - 394,976,187.52
Trademark rights A {5 A A 226,145,000.00 - - 226,145,000.00
Licence FraT i 14,604,332.00 = = 14,604,332.00
Land use rights T AR 662,130,455.98  357,503,761.20 98,125,997.65  921,508,219.53
Computer software SHE E 71,750,277.98 13,551,500.97 = 85,301,778.95

1,365,456,647.41

375,204,868.24

98,125,997.65

1,642,535,518.00

Less: Accumulated amortization i : 2 &t# 34

Technology know-how =HH 321,511,323.74 17,140,334.85 - 338,651,658.59
Trademark rights PR A 15,555,996.00 = = 15,555,996.00
Licence R 12,376,963.34 1,461,608.04 = 13,838,571.38
Land use rights T AR 67,180,771.56 20,637,734.78 4,111,207.40 83,707,298.94
Computer software S E M 30,272,557.38 5,018,980.44 = 35,291,537.82
446,897,612.02 44,258,658.11 4,111,207.40  487,045,062.73
Net carrying amount RHEFE
Technology know-how EV-Es 3] 69,315,257.71 56,324,528.93
Trademark rights PR A 210,589,004.00 210,589,004.00
Licence T g 2,227,368.66 765,760.62
Land use rights T35 A 594,949,684.42 837,800,920.59
Computer software STEME T 41,477,720.60

918,559,035.39

Less: Provision for impairment

A OREER

50,010,241.13

1,155,490,455.27

Carrying amount
Technology know-how
Trademark rights
Licence
Land use rights
Computer software

RHEEE
AR
AIRERE
FATIE
TifEmE
AHERE

69,315,257.71
210,589,004.00
2,227,368.66
594,949,684.42
41,477,720.60

918,559,035.39

56,324,528.93
210,589,004.00
765,760.62
837,800,920.59

50,010,241.13

1,155,490,455.27
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 85 ik R B RE (48

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20126 H30H (A B#oT)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial T~ & /f I % i 3% - 2 JH H 5E R
statements (Continued) (%)

17. Intangible assets (Continued) 17. BEXEE (&)

For the period from January to June 2012, amortization of
intangible assets amounted to RMB21,195,909.57 (2011:
RMB44,258,658.11).

As at 30 June 2012, land use rights pledged for securing the
bank loans obtained by the Group had carrying amount of
RMB40,777,524.28 (31 December 2011: RMB67,001,000.00).

The trademarks are renewable every 10 years at minimal cost.
The management of the Group are of the opinion that the Group
has both the intention and ability to renew the trademarks
continuously. As a result, the useful life of the trademarks is
considered by the management of the Group as indefinite because
the trademarks are expected to contribute to the Group’s net cash
inflows indefinitely. The trademarks will not be amortised until their
useful life is determined to be finite. Instead the trademarks will be
tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication
that they may be impaired. Particulars of the impairment testing are

disclosed in note V.18.

202F1-6 AEBEFEEEESEAA
R #21,195,909.577T (20114 = A
R#44,258,658.117C) °

)‘5’\\2012¢6)5]3OE|  AEEEBAR
BERITERN LibFERAERRAEER
,\E+J\E%4o,777,524.2875(2011
#12A318 : AR%67,001,000.00
JL) °

BEE T FRRREKRAEE—
AEBEEERR  AEEEE
BRITHEEZSHE - i@i;ﬁr
%*?%H%ﬂﬁﬂ%$§%%$fﬁﬁh
FE MU AREEEERR 2
BIREAKARERFER - BrIE3
?ﬂﬁﬁ’]—fﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%&’wmﬁﬁ@
AT EEITEE - AR BREE
E&i BB R BN FERERETT
BAERIE - BEAAFBRIER
1845 °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) A R R M RE ()
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201246 A30H (AR T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & ff ¥ % it 3% 1 %16 H 51

statements (Continued)
18. Goodwill
January to June 2012

(78)
18. BE

20125 1-6 A

Increase Decrease Among which:
Opening during during Closing Provision for
balance the period the period balance impairment
He:
LERIE KM FHED BARY HEER
Merger with TAGC BHENE 538,016,278.33 (107,774.31)  537,908,504.02
20114
2011
Increase Decrease Among which:
Opening during during Closing Provision for
balance the year the year balance impairment
Hep:
FOH RELM KEFD FRY BEER
Merger with Torch BHRNE
Automobile Group Co. 538,016,278.33 - - 538,016,278.33 -

Closing balance as at 30 June 2012 represented goodwill arising
from merger with TAGC. Goodwill is tested for impairment based
on asset groups formed by the core assets from TAGC. As at 30
June 2012, the management considered there was no risk of

impairment of goodwill.

The goodwill and trademarks acquired through business
combination have been allocated to the following asset groups
for impairment tests. These asset groups are as well the reportable

segments:

o Cash-generating unit A: manufacture and sale of diesel

engines and related parts

o Cash-generating unit B: major automobile components other

than automotive and diesel engines

201256 H30 B BiRBATE R E O N
BRENEE - REBEAAE
EREEBEEREAEEHRER#E
TEERENR - R20129F6 A30
H TREERANEBEMNERR -

CEAHBRSHEERFRECEIE
ETHNEEMAAETRERNR B
BEARROIHREDE

e HEELENA -LENREE

Sem i R ARRE T BB

e HEEEBEMB: AERIMK
SN EBTET R
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30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20126 A30H (AR ¥oT)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial #. - & 0f B % it 3% £ B IH H 51 #
statements (Continued) (78)

18. Goodwill (Continued) 18. BHE(E)

Cash-generating unit A

The recoverable amount of cash-generating unit A has been
determined based on the present value of the expected future cash
flows of the asset group, which was determined based on cash flow
projection in accordance to the 5-year financial budget approved
by the management. The discount rate used for the cash flow
projection was the pre-tax rate that better reflected the current
time value of money and specific risks related to the assets. The
growth rate of cash flows beyond the 5-year period was the long-
term average growth rate in the industries or regions in which the
enterprises operate.

Cash-generating unit B

The recoverable amount of cash-generating unit B has also been
determined based on the present value of the expected future cash
flows of the asset group, which was determined based on cash flow
projection in accordance to the 5-year financial budget approved
by the management. The discount rate used for the cash flow
projection was the pre-tax rate that better reflected the current
time value of money and specific risks related to the assets. The
growth rate of cash flows beyond the 5-year period was the long-
term average growth rate in the industries or regions in which the
enterprises operate.

The carrying amount of goodwill and trademark are allocated to the
asset groups as follows:

BeELBMUA

ReELBENANT RO ERRE
EANBAARREARENREE
o HBAARARESREREEEREE
BHEMSFHMNMBRESERNIRA
EREBRRETE - REREBRAAR
ROFTRERRE REEATE %M
BENEERERARNKAANE -5
FURNBASTREMNBREIRZR[LR
FrEfTRtme R HERE -

RMEeEEENUB
ReEEBEMBH A @S IS
BEHAMNERAKRESRENRE
RIFEEEHENSFHRNOMEEE
Eft EMIReREBRAKEE - BE
REBAMANTRESREREE
A B B i BB E & 5 E R R R
RIAMZE  SEURMRASRENER
RRAREEMETRIEENRYT
BgRE -

BELEENEEERE I EEEEM
BRI -

Cash-generating unit A Cash-generating unit B Total
BEEEEMA ReELED fit
SNl 31 December 2011 SN AP 31 December 2011 SRL0 P 31 December 2011
2012568308 IAEAVEETEENN 201266308 [RIEIVERI=N 201256306  UIREAPY:EN:
Carying amount of goodwill AENERLE - - 1 IR 53801627833 | ERIENEENAAS  538,016,278.33
Camying amount of trademark ~ BENEELE 116,392,004.00 116,392,004.00 94,197,000.00 94,197,000.00 210,589,004.00 210,589,004.00

The other major assumption of the value in use calculation is related
to the projection of cash inflows and outflows (including advance of
turnover and gross profit). These projections are determined based
on past performance and the management’s expectation of market

development of the unit.

EREEHEEZEMEERKRER
ERA - RHZER(BEAKHEE
BEEN)EHR  ZEEALREZ
BUuzatRBANEEBET SRR
ZIEHATRESE



Increase Amortization
Opening during during Other Closing
balance the period the period decrease balance

- B R S B D BRE

Industrial mould fee THIEAZ 76,410,022.96  23,187,922.57  (17,908,455.47)  (5,311,226.84)  76,378,263.22

Industrial equipment fee  T{z%E & 46,353,197.29 7,846,078.59  (10,083,148.44)  (2,865,482.65)  41,250,644.79
Expenditure on BABEEE
improvement of fixed MR
assets leased in 37,811,599.14 5,316,397.55 (9,717,398.60) 33,410,598.09
160,574,819.39 36,350,398.71 (37,709,002.51) (8,176,709.49)  151,039,506.10
2011 20114
Increase Amortization
Opening during during Other Closing
balance the year the year decrease balance
FEE REEM REHH ot FRH
Industrial mould fee THIIEAS 100,026,098.59 19,570,389.71  (43,186,465.34) - 76,410,022.96
Industrial equipment fee T2 E & 45,543,821.64  20,517,367.54  (19,707,991.89) - 46,353,197.29
Expenditure on BABEEE
improvement of fixed WA
assets leased in 23,109,444.05  29,720,004.74  (15,017,849.65) - 37,811,599.14

168,679,364.28  69,807,761.99  (77,912,306.88)

160,574,819.39




164  Weichai Power Co., Ltd. #LE HRHERD T

RS i 25 BT 5 E (48
201246 308 (A E¥T)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial #~ &0 Bk ZEIHH 5=
statements (Continued) (#)
20. Deferred tax assets/liabilities 20. EEFAEHEE &E&
ERRECHMSHEEMAE

Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented as

follows:

30 June 2012 31 December 2011
20126 H30H 2011412H31H

Deferred tax assets BRIEFTIS & BE
Impairment of assets BERE 163,694,834.04 168,743,515.75
Accruals JEIRIE B 391,450,919.05 456,424,964.40
Offset of profits generated from AEBRNDBRZEED
intra-group transactions of the Group ~ FI| B & 4% 88,218,502.69 100,884,787.48
Fair value change in available-for-sale AEHESMEE
financial assets N BEEE) 196,681.37 413,017.97
Deductible losses AEHE R 2,250,000.00 12,943,475.69
Others HAf 1,274,802.94 1,741,966.53
647,085,740.09 741,151,727.82
Deferred tax liabilities BLERMBHAR
Adjustment in fair value upon TEAHAREE

business combination FE 27,516,149.19 28,743,981.23

financial assets N

A
B

Fair value change in available-for-sale AHEEESMmEE
7
&

Amortization of trademark rights

(including tax value)

EERE

AR T E (5

Deductible temporary differences and deductible losses in respect of

unrecognized items of deferred tax assets are as follows:

Deductible temporary differences

Deductible losses

ENgREER
AIEIEER

13,800,001.16

16,333,800.00

57,649,950.35

5,760,001.16

16,333,800.00

50,837,782.39

REEREIE RIS E E R ARG B
HERLRAEMNEBRDT

30 June 2012
201296 H30H

127,833,585.82
629,206,777.16

757,040,362.98

31 December 2011
2011%12A31H

148,958,956.27
400,395,282.19

549,354,238.46
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) A R R M RE ()

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201246 A30H (AR T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial #~ & # ¥k L EIHH =
statements (Continued) (7)

20. Deferred tax assets/liabilities (Continued)

Deductible losses in respect of unrecognized deferred tax assets will

20. BEFBHEE BEH)
R IBIE A3 BLA N AT E B
R T FEEE

fall due in the following years:

30 June 2012

31 December 2011

20126 H30H 2011412 A31H
2012 20124 11,578,222.31 11,578,222 .31
2013 20134 16,743,612.90 34,656,829.77
2014 20144 18,394,098.65 19,397,404.25
2015 20154 84,755,559.15 85,539,100.83
2016 20164 272,635,861.21 249,223,725.03
2017 20174 225,099,422.94 =

629,206,777.16

400,395,282.19

Bl E RS MR R AN A A A B
MR ERMT

Temporary differences corresponding to items of assets or liabilities

from which such temporary differences arose are as follows:

30 June 2012 31 December 2011

201256 A30H 2011412 A31H

Impairment of assets BERME 1,113,492,397.04 1,152,349,030.64
Accruals TEIRIEH 2,605,053,999.33 3,030,890,105.70
Offset of profits generated from intra- 7<% & A 232 5 4 1Y

group transactions of the Group 1) K 85 588,123,351.26 620,826,947.78
Deductible losses AR EE 15,000,000.00 59,050,235.05
Other deductible temporary differences E e I HFE =R 8,498,686.25 7,638,023.69
Adjustment in fair value upon TESHAREE

business combination A (183,440,998.33) (191,626,541.54)
Adjustment in fair value of SCREEALBEARE

financial assets (92,000,000.00) (36,747,928.12)
Amortization of trademark rights EIZE TR E AR

(including tax value)

(108,892,000.00)

(108,892,000.00)

3,945,835,435.55 4,533,487,873.20
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|

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & ff B % it 3% 1 B H H 51 &

statements (Continued) (78)
21. Provision for impairment of assets 2. EEREESE
January to June 2012 20124 1-6 A

Decrease during the period

FHHS
Opening Provision Disposal of Subsidiaries Closing
balance  for the period Reversal Write-off subsidiaries held for sale balance
EEIE RER | CE] REFDNE KRAEREFLA BRY
Provision for bad debt BIREE 765,837,682.35  100,233,836.09 (31,295,154.41) (667,647.90)  (12,241,330.86) (8,857,220.95)  813,010,164.32
Provision for decline FEREER
in value of inventories 372,161,662.10 10,526,937.79 (7,618,745.31)  (83,072,785.57) (3,710,000.00) (6,710,881.65)  281,576,187.36
Provision for impairment of & EIIREERE
long-term equity investment 5l B % 122,232,129.56 122,232,129.56
Provision for impaiment of ~ Eft 8 E &
other current assets BEER 27,677,250.00 27,677,250.00
Provision for impairment of B F B E R
fixed assets EfE 35,347,434.83 35,347,434.83
Provision for impairment of ~ 7ER Ti2ifE
construction in progress pidic4 3,738,267.94 3,738,267.94
1,326,994,426.78  110,760,773.88  (38,913,899.72)  (83,740,433.47)  (15951,330.86)  (15,568,102.60) 1,283,581,434.01
2011 20114
Increase during the year Decrease during the year
RER rEFD
Opening Provision Closing
balance for the year Others Reversal Write-off balance
CIE AR Eft #p Bt EXY
Provision for bad debt EHRER 853,123,601.74 41,936,260.13 3,729509.98  (120,915,485.41) (12,036,204.09)  765,837,682.35
Provision for decline GENEER
in value of inventories 370,365,936.41 111,924,859.06 - (18,046,083.07)  (92,083,050.30)  372,161,662.10
Provision for impairment of RERERE
long-term equity investment I E%E(E 122,232,129.56 - - - - 122,232,12956
Provision for impairment of EpReEE
other current assets HEER 27,677,250.00 - - - - 27,677,250.00
Provision for impairment of TEENE
fixed assets g 32,583,722.96 3,611,951.99 - - (848,240.12) 35,347,434.83
Provision forimpairmentof ~ ERIIZEE
construction in progress EE 3,738,267.94 - - - - 3,738,267.94

1,409,720,908.61 157,473,071.18 3,729509.98  (138,961,568.48)  (104,967,494.51)  1,326,994,426.78




As at 30 June 2012, the annual interest rate for the above loans
was 2.36%-8.53% (31 December 2011: 2.12%-8.53%).

As at 30 June 2012, the aggregate carrying amount of various
assets that had been used by the Group to secure bank loans was
RMB71,771,213.35 (31 December 2011: RMB156,862,162.93),
while the aggregate carrying amount of various assets that had
been pledged to obtain bank loans was RMB75,267,642.00 (31
December 2011: RMB16,413,497.95).

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had no short-term loans which was

due but yet to be repaid.

30 June 2012
201256 HA30H

60,000,000.00
74,801,537.04
1,037,858,495.02

1,172,660,032.06

R201246 5308 -+ i f& e A
& 52.36%-8.53% (2011412 A 31
H:2.12%-8.53%) °

M2012%6 4308 - "EBBR
EARGSRITERNSEEENRE
HEBREXTARYKT71,771,213.35
L (2011 F 128318 : ARK
156,862,162.937T) * AR EH G
RATEBFNSELEENREEALS
ANE#75,267,642.007T (2011412
A318 : AR#16,413,497.957T) °

MN20126E6A30H @ AR&EEED 5 H
RIEBREER -



30 June 2012
2012%6H30H
Original RMB

equ

currency Exchange rate equivalent ~ aurrengy

R% Ex waARY R Ex RaARE

Short-term loans 2 EESR
- HKD — B 93,000,000.00 0.8152 75,813,600.00 93,000,000.00 0.8107 75,395,100.00
- EUR —-BT - 7.8710 - 26,550,000.00 8.1625 216,714,375.00
-USD -E5 11,791,840.00 6.3249 74,582,208.82 3,294,960.00 6.3009 20,761,213.46

150,395,808.82 312,870,688.46
23. Notes payable 23. ERRE

30 June 2012 31 December 2011
20126 H30H 20114 12A31H

Bank acceptance bill SRITERHIESR 6,096,533,351.50 5,965,759,459.51
As at 30 June 2012, the amount of notes payable falling due in the M2012F6A30H » R T~ —2&
next accounting period was RMB6,096,533,351.50. HEIENENEZEESEAARE

6,096,533,351.507T °

As at 30 June 2012, notes payable did not include amounts payable MR2012F6A308 » RERF#HEF
to shareholders that held 5% or more of the Company’s voting EREMNBFEEARRAS%(E5%) A E
shares (31 December 2011: nil). Please refer to Note VI.6 for the RAEROOKRREN O ENZIE
balance of notes payable between the Group and other related (2011F 128318 + ) - AEEHE
parties. H fth BB 7 PR RARBREE R EE N -

6 °



Interim Report 2012 FAsksE 169

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) P ik R B Rk (48

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2012F6 A30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & ff ¥ % it 3% 1 %16 H 51
statements (Continued) (%)

24. Accounts payable

Accounts payable are non-interest bearing, and are generally settled

24. ERER
BN ERRTAS - LEEEIEA R

within three months. E(E o

30 June 2012
201296 H30H

31 December 2011
2011412 831H

Accounts payable JE 1 BR 3R (RELERLEW VAN  13,078,975,509.97

M2012F6 300 @ B ERKER 2
ZHHMERITHOT ¢

As at 30 June 2012, the aging analysis of accounts payable based

on the invoice date is presented as follows:

30 June 2012 31 December 2011

20126 H30H 2011412 A31H
Within 3 months 3@ AR 10,250,261,809.92 12,204,971,043.43
3 to 6 months 3Z61EA 603,769,862.71 539,622,179.76
6 months to 1 year 6EAZE1F 241,948,524.40 215,204,458.29
Over 1 year 1A E 257,473,286.75 119,177,828.49
Total HF 11,353,453,483.78 13,078,975,509.97

R2012F6 A30H » EERE —F A
R REEMAFIE (2011512 A31
H :/%\{E\%\)o

As at 30 June 2012, there was no material accounts payable which

aged over one year (31 December 2011: nil).

MR2012F6A30H - AR HERE
NEFEARRAAS%(E5%) LA EFRRE
ERMDOBRREUNEEAARE
1,728,284.14 7T (2011 12 A 31
B : AR¥283,674.767L) - A%EH
BE A R EE S ENBR KR R

N6

As at 30 June 2012, amounts payable to shareholders that held
5% or more of the Company’s voting shares included in accounts
payable amounted to RMB1,728,284.14 (31 December 2011:
RMB283,674.76). Please refer to Note VI.6 for the balance of

accounts payable between the Group and other related parties.



30 June 2012
201256 A30A
Original Exchange RMB

currency rate equivalent

R Ex HEARW R Ex  fIaARE

Accounts payable  FEfFEE SR
- UsD —E7T 4,221,499.12 6.3249  26,700,559.78 5,142,173.67 6.3009  32,400,322.08
- EUR — BT 3,096,328.72 7.8710 24,371,203.35 9,157,948.79 8.1625 74,751,757.01

51,071,763.13 107,152,079.09

25. Advances from customers 25. WA

30 June 2012 31 December 2011
201266 H30H 2011412A31H

Advances from customers U FRIE 1,046,049,588.34 882,764,570.36

As at 30 June 2012, there was no material advances from MN2012F6 4308 « BERE —F MU
customers which aged over one year (31 December 2011: nil). FEOREFEWFRIE(2011F12A31
H:m)-
As at 30 June 2012, advances from customers did not include 201266 A308 - ABRFHER
amounts payable to shareholders that held 5% or more of the EEWHEERDAS%(E5%) A F
Company's voting shares (31 December 2011: nil). Please refer to FORMER (B IR R B A8 TE YR IE
Note V1.6 for the balance of advances from customers between the (20114128318 + &) - "EER
Group and other related parties. o BB 75 TE UK IB RREE R RS

6 °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) A R R M RE ()

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201246 A30H (A R¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial F - & f B % it % 3 2 1EH B 5 5
statements (Continued) ( ,%E )

25. AW RE (&)
ASMEIE R TR T -

25. Advances from customers (Continued)
Advances from customers denominated in foreign currencies are set

out as follows:

30 June 2012 31 December 2011

2012%6H308 20116F12A318
Original Exchange RMB QOriginal Exchange RMB
currency rate equivalent currency rate equivalent
R E =% fEARY [R#& s nEARE

Advances from BURFIE
customers
-UsD —%7T 24,521,710.07 6.3249 155,097,364.02 RPELENE{ACE] 6.3009 81,178,470.50
-EUR —BT 2,149,164.92 7.8710 16,916,077.09 464,828.81 8.1625 3,794,165.16
172,013,441.11

84,972,635.66

26. 26. FEATE TH M

20125 1-6 A

Payroll payable
January to June 2012

Opening
balance

B

Salaries, bonuses, allowances

and subsidies
Staff welfare

Social security

Incl: Basic pension insurance

Medical insurance

Contribution to pension fund
Unemployment insurance

Working injury insurance

Maternity insurance

Supplementary medical insurance

Housing funds

Union running costs

Employee education costs

Severance benefit
Others

1% #%
Bk
BIRNE
HERRE
HE o AREERR

BERRE
FEHE
KERRE
IGREE
YERRE
HRBRRRE
TELES
TeRE
BIYELE
EREA
Hip

CREEM

801,262,845.38
15,045,946.99
36,131,257.54
12,901,176.13
2,582,181.64
16,595,283.61
844,939.36
391,072.69
326,854.34
2,489,749.77
6,105,008.62
95,199,846.81
114,814,609.49
65,831,800.38
84,788.08

1,134,476,103.29

Increase
during
the period
K

1,059,659,716.43
88,128,967.21
278,998,868.97
146,226,452.39
60,992,147.55
29,352,219.59
14,733,331.21
6,823,344.29
5,473,087.76
15,398,286.18
81,744,196.80
18,578,940.38
18,629,202.63
279,838.70
807,235.54

1,546,826,966.66

Decrease
during
the period
XHHD

(1,214,830,865.55)
(86,593,096.92)
(284,598,150.17)
(147,930,375.81)
(61,776,385.33)
(32,470,376.08)
(14,845,890.82)
(6,860,351.97)
(5,549,196.50)
15,165,573.66)

)

)

)

)

)

11,557,362.53
14,670,326.93
(2,910,205.30

(476,492.32

(
(83,234,091.96
(
(

(1,698,870,591.68)

Closing balance

BARY

646,091,696.26
16,581,817.28
30,531,976.34
11,197,252.71
1,797,943.86
13,477,127.12
732,379.75
354,065.01
250,745.60
2,722,462.29
4,615,113.46
102,221,424.66
118,773,485.19
63,201,433.78
415,531.30

982,432,478.27
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)
26. Payroll payable (Continued)

I 75 2% BT R (48
201246 308 (A E¥T)

4 A B ok 2 IH H

(%)

26. BB TEM(E)

2011 20114
Increase Decrease
Opening during during
balance the year the year Closing balance
ENH AELM KERD ERHY
Salaries, bonuses, allowances I% - #%% - 2EN

and subsidies 8k 781,549,701.53  2,310,171,870.55  (2,290,458,726.70)  801,262,845.38
Staff welfare BIGHE 10,499,909.55 216,684,926.29 (212,138,888.85) 15,045,946.99
Social security HeRkE 23,067,984.35 45524053581  (442,177,262.62) 36,131,257.54
Incl: Basic pension insurance He o EABERR 9,297,769.91  266,289,700.69  (262,686,294.47) 12,901,176.13
Medical insurance BERRE 1,918,397.59 75,068,079.32 (74,404,295.27) 2,582,181.64
Contribution to pension fund FoHE 9,614,180.13 42,483,008.82 (35,501,905.34) 16,595,283.61
Unemployment insurance KERRE 150,598.91 25,985,390.66 (25,291,050.21) 844,939.36
Working injury insurance IERRE 307,051.15 12,605,062.87 (12,521,041.33) 391,072.69
Maternity insurance ERRE ﬁ,\ 253,080.36 9,096,709.71 (9,022,935.73) 326,854.34
Supplementary medical insurance BREERR 1,526,906.30 23,712,583.74 (22,749,740.27) 2,489,749.77
Housing funds TELESE 4,316,253.22 130,776,096.97  (128,987,341.57) 6,105,008.62
Union running costs Tegs 86,683,753.34 40,100,949.57 (31,584,856.10) 95,199,846.81
Employee education costs BI#RLE 101,896,606.19 41,684,255.45 (28,766,252.15) 114,814,609.49
Severance benefit BHRTEF 77,619,158.73 17,862,880.36 (29,650,238.71) 65,831,800.38
Others Hif 388,517.27 500,544.97 (804,274.16) 84,788.08
1,086,021,884.18  3,213,022,059.97  (3,164,567,840.86)  1,134,476,103.29

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had no payroll payable in arrears (31

December 2011: nil).

201296 A830H

CAREEBRIE

RO B FE AT B TEEN (2011412 A
318 : &) -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & ff ¥ % it 3% 1 %16 H 51
statements (Continued) (7)

27. EXBE

27. Taxes payable

30 June 2012 31 December 2011
201296 H30H 2011412 831H

Value-added tax 18 {F Fif 24,906,402.55 21,197,400.14
Corporate income tax TSR 86,245,500.10 1,875,862,418.03
Individual income tax BAFTEH 7,741,917.80 13,050,316.23
Property tax BER 6,844,324.78 16,342,167.98
Stamp duty ENTERR 6,879,133.95 11,900,326.65
Land use tax T AR 1,509,298.38 12,761,718.09
City construction tax BT (4,901,281.97) 9,150,856.01
Business tax SR 5,628,828.23 8,429,134.02
Other taxes HAanFiIE 7,817,465.12 35,917,136.05
142,671,588.94 2,004,611,473.20
28. Interests payable 28. ERRIE
30 June 2012 31 December 2011
2012%6A30H 2011412 A31H
Interests on medium-term notes FREIEE RS
(Note V. 34) (MfsEH ~ 34) 126,133,333.37 54,408,333.35
Interests on borrowings EBRF A 277,644.92 3,097,498.47
126,410,978.29 57,505,831.82
29. Dividends payable 29. BRI

30 June 2012 31 December 2011
2012%6A30H 2011412 A31H
Cash dividend declared but unpaid EEEREMNR KT 166,609,136.60 -

Dividends payable to minority e F 2 A BIR B AR A

shareholders of subsidiaries

36,592,381.35

59,135,231.94

203,201,517.95 59,135,231.94
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R M Rk (48

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20126 A30H (AR ¥oT)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial i+ & 0f B % $it 3 1 B H H 5: &
statements (Continued) (48)

30. Other payables

HETE
RESRAS
FEfT TA2 X B 7E & E R EE X

Sales discount

Guarantees and deposits

Payables for purchase of
construction and fixed assets

BREES

Bl —FRAA]

Repair and maintenance expenses

Advances from disposal of equities of A% HEBR B
subsidiary

Land facility fee and land premiums for  7E3& T2 + Bl E & & £+ 3

construction in progress

Others HAfty

As at 30 June 2012, other payables did not include amounts
payable to shareholders that held 5% or more of the Company’s
voting shares (31 December 2011: nil). Please refer to Note VI.6 for
the balance of other payables between the Group and other related
parties.

As at 30 June 2012, other payables in significant amount aging
over 1 year are set out as follows:

30. H AR

30 June 2012
201246 H30H

1,157,773,001.73
1,143,036,564.61

554,900,021.61
229,481,577.96

189,000,000.00

33,270,037.98
748,931,576.76

4,056,392,780.65

31 December 2011
2011412 A31H

908,830,359.97
356,565,091.83

704,379,365.77
295,577,078.42

106,663,550.32
618,653,753.53

2,990,669,199.84

MN2012%6 8308 » AERF %D
MmERIEARDT5%(25%) A F

FORER MDA AR E
(2011412A318 : &) »
Hfth B 5 H Ath FE A 5

N6

37 9 H Ath & A 5K
ZIN- e TEE
X R R P R

MN201266 8300 @ BREE—F W

REBHAMEN S

Amount

=8

REAS

Reason for not
being repaid

EETREMNRE G

Estimated payables from construction
in progress

HWNTEEEEEEE

i3

State-owned Assets Supervision and BEEE

Administration Commission of Zhuzhou

160,955,450.00

26,034,519.12

Not yet received
invoice and
longer period for
construction
BRARUE
BRAAEBRRE
Conversion fee,
not yet due
KB

i R B A R EARR

Among the aforesaid other payables in significant amount aging
over 1 year, an amount of RMB26,034,519.12 was carried forward
after the balance sheet date.

LA EBRBRBBIFMHREEMERMNK
HEEABERBRELEENSBEAA
K #26,034,519.127C °



ables from construction
in progress

State-owned Assets Supervision and MHNTREEEEEEEELES
Administration Commission
of Zhuzhou

invoice and
longer period for
construction
BERWE
HAEBHRR

26,034,519.12  Conversion fee,

not yet due
WHEIE
i A B T 5ER PR

Other payables denominated in foreign currencies are set out as

follows:

30 June 2012
2012%6H308
Original Exchange RMB
currency rate equivalent

¥ Ex HEARW

Other payables  Hf{ti e
-UsSD = 12,921,608.27 6.3249 81,727,880.15
- EUR —BT 928,531.93 7.8710 7,308,474.82

89,036,354.97

AIMNEIZ R A B A R T

31 December 2011
20116128318

Original Exchange RMB

currency rate equivalent

[R#& fE = feARE

19,029,938.40 6.3009 119,905,738.86
1,044,806.90

8.1625 8,528,236.32

128,433,975.18
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik 2R M Rk (48
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2012F6 A30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial #. - & f B % it 3% £ ZIH H 51 #
statements (Continued) (748)
31. Non-current liabilities due within one year 31 — FREFHHNIERBERE

30 June 2012 31 December 2011
201246 H30H 2011%12A31H

Long-term borrowings due —FRI BN RBER
within one year
— credit loans —fERfER 624,000,000.00 700,000,000.00
As at 30 June 2012, there was no long-term borrowings due but to M2012%F6A30H  EEEIHHEKE
be repaid. BHRBAGBK -
As at 30 June 2012, breakdown of the long-term borrowings due MK2012F6A30H « —F AR HH K
within one year is as follows: BB R T
Loan Annual
drawdown Loan interest
date due date Currency rate (%) Outstanding amount
BRBHAE EXRIPE  BE FEF=E(%) BT
China CITIC Bank (Xi'an branch) 2009/07/28 2012/07/27 RMB 5.99 100,000,000.00
HERITEL DT ARK
China CITIC Bank (Xi‘an branch) 2009/11/26 2012/09/24 RMB 5.99 100,000,000.00
HERITEL DT AR
Bank of Beijing (Xi'an branch) 2009/11/16 2012/11/15 RMB 5.76 100,000,000.00
I RIRITELHIT AR
Bank of China (Shaanxi branch) 2009/09/17 2012/09/16 RMB 5.99 100,000,000.00
hBIERITIRAEE 1T AR
China Merchants Bank (Xi'an branch)  2010/01/13 2013/01/12 RMB 5.76 100,000,000.00
BERTET DT AR
China Minsheng Bank (Xi‘an branch) ~ 2010/06/10 2013/06/10 RMB 5.76 50,000,000.00
RERITARHTT AR
SPD Bank (Xi'an branch) 2010/05/19 2013/05/18 RMB 5.99 30,000,000.00
HERITAL DT AR
Bank of China (Qi Shan branch) 2010/01/27 2013/01/26 RMB 5.99 44,000,000.00
B ER TR L3277 AR

624,000,000.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) B ik R B RE (A8
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2012F6 A30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial i - SO B R T EE R

statements (Continued) (%)
31. Non-current liabilities due within one year 3. " FRFHHNEARBES
(Continued) (%)
As at 31 December 2011, breakdown of the long-term borrowings R2011F12 8318 —FREHH
due within one year was as follows: REEFAAAT :
Loan Annual
drawdown Loan interest
date due date Currency rate (%) Outstanding amount
BRBHmE ERIPE  BE FRE(%) B EREE
China CITIC Bank (Xi'an branch) 2009/06/30 2012/06/29 RMB 5.27 300,000,000.00
RERITAZ DT AR
China CITIC Bank (Xi"an branch) 2009/07/28 2012/07/27 RMB 5.99 100,000,000.00
RERITAZ DT AR
China CITIC Bank (Xi"an branch) 2009/11/26 2012/09/24 RMB 5.99 100,000,000.00
RERITAZ DT AR
Bank of Beijing (Xi'an branch) 2009/11/16 2012/11/15 RMB 5.99 100,000,000.00
IERBITAEARHIT AR
Bank of China (Shaanxi branch) 2009/09/17 2012/09/16 RMB 5.99 100,000,000.00
HRERITRRAAE 517 AR
700,000,000.00
As at 30 June 2012, there were no various assets pledged by the M2012F6 8300  AEBEEARN
Group to obtain the above bank loans (31 December 2011: Nil). BEA FRITERMEBEFRNSIEEE

(20114128318 : &) -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

B DR BRAF

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

32. Other current liabilities

33.

PO 5 i % Ff R (4)
201246 308 (A E¥T)

T~ G DR B Rk IE H AR

(%)
32. HttRB & E

30 June 2012
201246 H30H

31 December 2011
2011%12A31H

864,711,074.57

360,470,010.85
37,014,058.30

940,862,678.53

57,339,192.10

1,262,195,143.72

998,201,870.63

33. REIER

30 June 2012
201246 H30H

Expected after-sales expenses =%

Liabilities of subsidiaries held for sale BEESETARAE
Note V. 8 (Note 2) HisEFR - 8(5F2)

Others Efth

Long-term borrowings

Long-term borrowings — Credit loans ~ RHIfE &% — SR E X
Due within 3 years 3FNEH

Due within 3 to 5 years (inclusive)

Over 5 years

31 December 2011
2011F12A31H

220,000,000.00

3ESFAREH(E3FMEF) =

S5 E

348,000,000.00

4,254,546.00

220,000,000.00

352,254,546.00

As at 30 June 2012, top 5 long-term borrowings are presented as M2012F6A30F - @FEAMAENER
follows: HERAT
Loan
drawdown Loan Interest
date due date Currency rate (%) Outstanding amount
BEREKRAE EREHA WE FIZE (%) BERERER
The Export-Import Bank of China 2011/09/28 2013/08/09 RMB 4.76 100,000,000.00
(Shaanxi branch) AR
# i ORITRAEE 917
The Export-Import Bank of China 2012/01/12 2013/09/12 RMB 4.76 100,000,000.00
(Shaanxi branch) AR
L ORITRAER D17
China Merchants Bank 2010/12/31 2013/12/31 RMB 5.54 20,000,000.00
(Zhuzhou branch) AR

BERITIRMN AT

220,000,000.00




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

33.

34.

Long-term borrowings (Continued)
As at 31 December 2011, top 5 long-term borrowings are

presented as follows:

Interim Report 2012 FRHEAZRE

S 5 R MY R (A)

20124668308 (A E¥T)

T AP B R FEIHH AR
(%)
33. REAERK (&)

MR2011F12A31H ° €BAIAELHN
RHEAEZOT

Loan
drawdown Loan Interest
date due date Currency rate (%) Outstanding amount
BRE®RE EREHE e FE(%) BT
China Merchants Bank (Xi‘an 2010/01/13 2013/01/12 RMB 5.49 100,000,000.00
branch) AR
BRERITAEL T
The Export-Import Bank of China 2011/09/28 2013/08/09 RMB 4.76 100,000,000.00
(Shaanxi branch) AR
I ORITRER DT
China Minsheng Bank (Xi‘an branch)  2010/06/10 2013/06/10 RMB 5.76 50,000,000.00
RERITARHIT AR
SPD Bank (Xi’an branch) 2010/05/19 2013/05/18 RMB 5.27 30,000,000.00
HERITAL DT AR
Bank of China (Qi Shan branch) 2010/01/27 2013/01/26 RMB 5.27 48,000,000.00
B SR 1T 1L 2 7T ARE

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had no long-term borrowings
denominated in foreign currencies (31 December 2011: nil).

Bonds payable

34.

328,000,000.00

2012456 A308 @ 7 & B £ L 4
iR RIBER(2011F12 A 31
H : /gﬂ\) o

B EZE

31 December 2011
2011F12A31H

R E

Medium-term note

2,687,471,069.22

The Company registered at the National Association of Financial
Market Institutional Investors in August 2009 for issuing medium-
term notes in a registered amount of 2.7 billion to be issued in
two tranches. The handling fee was 0.3%. The first tranche, in an
aggregate amount of RMB1.3 billion, was issued on 24 August
2009. Its maturity period was 5 years, with a coupon rate of 4.95%.
Interest was payable every 12 months. The second tranche of
RMB1.4 billion was issued on 28 July 2011 with a maturity period
of 5 years. The coupon rate was 5.65% with interest payable every
12 months.

RARR2009F 8 ATEH BRI T
BREBmETMETHRARE - T
fe@ER27ET  FEBXATH
2= DMIREIT o B —IKXH2009
F8H24B T 2 MAARK 13
B BHFHERASF  ZEMEA
4.95%  TEEERI1I2EA - £ =
IRHA2011F7 288 %17 - 3 AA
R4  EFHARASF - FH
FEA5.65% * ESEEA12(EA -

179
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) A R % B RE ()
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201246 A30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & ff B % it 3% 1 B H H 51 &

statements (Continued) (%)
34. Bonds payable (Continued) 34. EfHESH (E)
As at 30 June 2012, balance of bonds payable are listed as follows: 201296 A308 - ERESHE
TIAE

Interest
payable at Accrued Interest Interest  Outstanding

period- interest in paidin payable at balance at

Facevalue Issuingdate  Bond period beginning  current period  current period period-end period-end

HE RTAM E5AR  HUEAAE  FHEHNE  AHMEARE  HREAFS HAREE

Medium-termnote ~ FREIZRE  REZOUOIAVL) 2011-7-28 Syears® 3295833333  32,175,000.04 - 6513333337 1,399,958,307.21
Medum-termnote &2 FIELILO) 2009-8-24 Syears®  21,450,000.00  39,550,000.00 - 61,000,000.00 1,290,851,151.03

As at 31 December 2011, balance of bonds payable are listed as R2011F12A318  ENESBE
follows: FIRMT
Interest
payable at Accrued Interest Interest QOutstanding
year- interest in paid in payable at balance at
Face value Issuing date Bond period beginning current year current year year-end year-end

mE %74 EFSR  FORAME  AEEHAS  AFEMAE FRENENE ERBE

Medium-termnote R EZ 1,400,000,000.00 2011-7-28 5 yearsE - 3295833333 - 3295833333 1,398,599,082.69
Medium-termnote ~ REZ 1,300,000,000.00 2009-8-24 Syears®  21,450,000.00  64350,000.00  (64,350,000.00)  21,450,000.00 1,288,871,986.53

35. Long-term payables 35. REIEMNR

30 June 2012 31 December 2011
2012%6H30H 201112 A31H

Mudanjiang Finance Bureau HIMHMBEE 16,000,000.00
Interest subsidy for the project of FEOEBACVCRYEHEKIEE
producing 600,000 CVC series 8 B

compressors annually
Government grants for national debt Bl &8 B B
projects 5,500,000.00 5,500,000.00
Others EAh - 4,297,700.00

10,580,000.00

5,500,000.00 36,377,700.00




B RERT

Interest subsidy for

At period-
beginning
B

Increase
during
the period
A H 3

Decrease
during
the period
ZHm A

At period-end

HRE

liquid fund granted by mEE & BN
provincial finance office BE S 23,000,000.00 23,000,000.00
State-owned Capital Operation B & A& &7
Budget Fund - funding for HEe-8K
technological innovation and ~ Hffi &1 % M &
industrialization XtE2 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
23,000,000.00 20,000,000.00 43,000,000.00
31 December 2011 2011412 H31H
Increase Decrease
At year- during during
beginning the year the year At year-end
FHE REENN RERFD FRE
Interest subsidy for B BER R
liquid fund granted by NBEEER
provincial finance office Bt s 23,000,000.00 - - 23,000,000.00
Special funds of national EHEEES
debt — establishment of key ~— — BB %
industry revitalization and R AN i
technological renovation MUETE R
projects 21,000,000.00 - (21,000,000.00) -
Land premium subsidy T HES ALK 11,090,000.00 - (11,090,000.00) -
55,090,000.00 - (32,090,000.00) 23,000,000.00




In particular, deferred income is presented as follows:

Special funds of national debt

Technological renovation and financial
special funds

Land premium subsidy

Funding for pilot enterprise project
of remanufacturing of automobile
components

Establishment of key industry
revitalization and technological
renovation projects in Shaanxi

Government incentive

Lease taxes

BEZEHRES

BREMMBRERES

o3 R B R

AETHHBREAMSREA

=¥n

PRS2 2 3 2 SR R B T s

AT 22D
TR B

30 June 2012
201256 H30H

81,724,821.43
13,727,724.21

95,452,545.64

Hep - REREMT

30 June 2012
20126 H30H

19,922,027.99

15,165,000.00
26,595,245.28

7,857,746.40

6,000,000.00
4,639,351.34
1,545,450.42

81,724,821.43

31 December 2011
2011412A31H

19,922,027.99

15,180,000.00

9,530,163.52

7,857,746.40

6,000,000.00
4,654,759.54
1,562,120.94

64,706,818.39
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) A R R M RE ()
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201246 A30H (A R¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial

statements (Continued)

38. Share capital
January — June 2012

|

T~ A F B 5 R T E H Rk R
(%)
38. A

20125 1-6 A

At period-beginning Increase(decrease) of shares in current period At period-end
B8 EHE 8 RE BxY
Transferred from
No. of shares Percentage capital reserve Others Sub-total No. of shares Percentage
it | 4] MESEE -4 it b | tH
(%) (%)
Restrcted shares - BREEARH
State-owned legal person shares AREARR 373,224,594.00 240 373,224,594.00 240
Other domestic shares i EHR 118,520,000.00 m 118,520,000.00 mm
Incl: Domestic non-state-owned legal 2 BREERE
person shares AR 71,160,000.00 421 71,160,000.00 47
Domestic natural person shares BREAA
BR 47,360,000.00 284 47,360,000.00
Overseas shares LD 78,440,000.00 78,440,000.00
Including: Overseas legal person b NEA
shares Bk 78,440,000.00 78,440,000.00
Overseas natural person EERA
shares R - -
570,184,594.00 570,184,594.00
i, Non-estricted shares = EREHERR
RMB ordinary Shares AREEER 691,106,772.00 691,106,772.00
Domestic listed foreign shares BRETRNER - -
Overseas isted foreign shares B5 ETRSMERR 404,800,000.00 404,800,000.00
1,095,906,772.00 1,095,906,772.00
i, Totalno. of shares = Rheg 1,666,091,366.00 1,666,091,366.00
2011 20114
At year-beginning Increase(decrease) of shares in current year Atyear-end
ENg REE(R)RE E5Y
Transferred from
No. of shares Percentage capital reserve Others Sub-total No. of shares Percentage
e s il NEdEg At it & $0l
(%) (%)
i Restricted shares - ERE&HRH
State-owned legal person shares AEEABR 373,04,594.00 2240 - - - 373,224,504.00 240
Other domestic shares EREER 118,520,000.00 m - - - 118,520,000.00 m
Incl: Domestic non-state-owned legal 2 BREEE
person shares EABR 71,160,000.00 1 - - - 71,160,000.00 47
Domestic natural person shares BREANFR 47,360,000.00 284 - - - 47,360,000.00 284
QOverseas shares EER 78,440,000.00 47 - - - 78,440,000.00 47
Including: Qverseas legal person He e ENEARR
shares 78,440,000.00 4n - - - 78,440,000.00 47
Overseas natural person BhERAER
shares - - - - - - -
570,184,594.00 342 - - - 570,184,594.00 342
i, Nonestricted shares . EBREERKRH
RMB ordinary Shares ARELER 691,106,772.00 4148 - - - 691,106,772.00 4148
Domestic listed foreign shares BRETERINER - - - - - - -
Overseas isted foreign shares B5 ETEMERR 404,800,000.00 2430 - - - 404,800,000.00 2430
1,095,906,772.00 65.78 - - - 1,095,906,772.00 65.78
fii.  Total no. of shares = hkheg 1,666,091,366.00 100.00 - - - 1,666,091,366.00 100.00




Increase Decrease

At period- during during
beginning the period the period At period-end
B A H 3 A HARE

AR E 1,219,789,901.43 1,219,789,901.43
Other capital reserves HinEARRTE
(Note) &) 301,046,503.11 7,383,531.61 (51,222,435.06) 257,207,599.66

1,520,836,404.54 7,383,531.61 (51,222,435.06) 1,476,997,501.09

2011 20114
Increase Decrease
At year- during during
beginning the year the year At year-end
FH RELE N RERD FRE
Share premium R B 1,219,789,901.43 - - 1,219,789,901.43
Other capital reserves HitEARTE
(Note) (5) 773,528,364.27 - (472,481,861.16) 301,046,503.11

1,993,318,265.70 (472,481,861.16)  1,520,836,404.54

Note:  Capital reserve — increase or decrease in other capital reserves in the Hr BAQAHE -HMEARQATE AR E
current period are primarily attributable to the changes in fair value of PIERHEESMEERAABE
available-for-sale financial assets, changes in other interests in associates ) BN B HE RS B A Rk

and acquisition of minority interests. M DB TR ©



Increase Decrease

At period- during during
beginning the period the period At period-end
EERIE A H 3 ZHm A HARE

atutory surplus reserve btk N I 1,935,774,543.04 - 1,935,774,543.04

2011 20114
Increase Decrease
At year- during during
beginning the year the year At year-end
FH AREELE AERD FRH
Statutory surplus reserve EEBRBAE 1,424,081,328.77 511,693,214.27 - 1,935,774,543.04
According to the provisions of Company Law and the articles of BIEATENMAQATEZERNBET &
association, the Company appropriated statutory surplus reserve NEIEEFEOI1I0%REET R A
at 10% of the net profit. Where the accumulated amount of the NED  ETRHBABESEALAD
statutory surplus reserves reaches 50% or more of the Company’s AISEMEAR50% A FHy - A REIR
registered capital, additional appropriation is not needed. HY o
After the appropriation of statutory surplus reserve, the Group REFBERBETESANESE 7
may appropriate discretionary surplus reserve. When approved, BRI EERs ES -  &itE - 12
the discretionary surplus reserve can be used to cover accumulated Rt A NELIT AR BEUNEEEIR

losses in prior years or increase the share capital. 5 ANRR A o



186 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. 5B HIRBDER D T

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial

statements (Continued)
41. Retained earnings

PO 5 i % Ff R (4)
201246 308 (A E¥T)

T~ ?@gﬁ;ﬁiﬁﬁﬁiglﬁ SR
1. kA EFHE

30 June 2012

31 December 2011

201246 H30H 2011412A31H
Retained earnings at period- ANHAHR ) AN A A )
beginning of current period/ AR5 i A
year-beginning of current year 17,813,666,654.13 13,445,984,645.13
Net profit attributable to BN A R IR R 8 )FFE
shareholders of the parent 1,897,252,608.20 5,596,927,166.88
Less: Appropriation of surplus B IREBERATE AV. 40
reserves 511,693,214.27
Ordinary share cash dividends B4 m AR IR & B A
payable 166,609,136.60 716,419,287.38
Others =) - 1,132,656.23

Retained earnings at period/
year-end

B/ FRRDERNE

19,544,310,125.73 17,813,666,654.13

On 29 June 2012, the profit distribution scheme 2011 was
reviewed and approved on the 2011 annual general meeting of
the Company. Based on the 1,666,091,366 shares, representing
the total share capital of the Company, all shareholders were
entitled to 2 shares with cash dividend of RMB1 (incl. tax) for
every 10 shares held. The total dividend distributed amounted to
RMB166,609,136.60. As at the date of approval for issuance of
these financial statements, distribution of such dividends had been

completed.

42. Revenue and cost of sales

The revenue is listed as follows:

Revenue includes turnover and other revenue that arise in the
course of the Group’s ordinary activities. The Group's turnover,
which arises from the principal activities of the Group, represents
the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns,
trade discounts and the value of services rendered; and gross rental
income received and receivable from investment properties.

MH2012F6 8298 - ARQ 72011
FRRBFFALEZBBA2011EF
EFBEIEFERE  UWARQABEA
1,666,091,3668% AEE - M2 K
BIRI10MRE 20 - REIRSAFA
RE1T(E8)  HERERFIARK
166,609,136.607C ° & IF 4N Bf %
=EIERD R ZFERAME FHHRE
g °

42, BEWAREAR
BEWATRINT

WABRAKEREEXRGRETEL
MEXBEREMBEA - AEEBE
EEBRELNEXBREFAMRE
B BEENN - RERFOEED
BEHEESYNEZFEUARREER
WEESWRERNESBALEE -

January-June 2012 January-June 2011

Revenue from principal operations
Other revenue

2012 1-6 8 20114 1-6 A
FEEKKA S A s el | 34,644,218,458.53
RES 3 ON 1,332,730,366.02 1,983,195,336.93

27,059,675,619.87

36,627,413,795.46
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) A R R M RE ()
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201246 A30H (A R¥T)
V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & ff ¥ % it 3% 1 %16 H 51

statements (Continued) (7)
42. Revenue and cost of sales (Continued) 42, EEW AR KA ()
Cost of sales is listed as follows: EER ARG RAT :

January-June 2012

January-June 2011

20129 1-6 8 2011%F1-6 A4
Cost of sales for principal operations T B AR 20,638,053,845.37 26,938,105,646.70
Other cost of sales H i 2 75 B X 1,232,124,315.41 1,794,753,254.62

21,870,178,160.78 28,732,858,901.32

TEEBHOTRERNT ¢

Information related to principal operations is listed by sector as

follows:
January-June 2012 January-June 2011
2012%1-68 20114 1-6 4
Revenue Revenue Cost
KA A L'ON AR
PRy e PR BRSNS PLR S 34,438,902,925.43  26,748,453,958.46

Manufacturing of equipment B S EE
Others Hit

Information related to principal operations is listed by regions as

186,803,057.90

25,726,945,253.85

179,792,342.60 205,315,533.10 189,651,688.24

ACERISET SRS 34,644,218,458.53  26,938,105,646.70

FEEBHNOMRERMT ¢

follows:
January-June 2012 January-June 2011
20126 1-6 8 201151-6
Revenue Revenue Cost
WA KA WA AR
Domestic A DR SR PR R 33,649,334,688.47  26,072,236,512.48
Overseas I 1,337,414,266.07 1,155,985,460.37 994,883,770.06 865,869,134.22

25,726,945,253.85

GERIERTIETETE S 34,644,218,458.53  26,938,105,646.70
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) A R % B RE ()
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201246 A30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & ff B % it 3% 1 B H H 51 &

statements (Continued) ()

42. Revenue and cost of sales (Continued) 42. EEWARKA ()
Information related to principal operations is listed by product type as FEEBNDEMREENOT ¢
follows:

January-June 2012 January-June 2011
2012%1-6 8 201151-6 A
Revenue Revenue Cost

KA B LN AR

Complete vehicles and key EBRERT

components s el PR s | 26,884,086,251.52  20,769,849,335.17
Non-automobile engines FAEREDH EXVEINYXETXV A YRV WP R 3,508561,031.12  2,820,502,075.13
Other automobile components  H 417 E T # VEERNEEEEE Rl 3,839,537,272.29  2,997,940,464.72
Others Hit 356,897,393.04 346,937,341.24 412,033,903.60 349,813,771.68

PRI PATEE SRR PR HSE T EE A 34,644,218,458.53  26,938,105,646.70

For the period from January to June 2012, revenue from the top 5 2012F 1-6 HRT A BB P HEZERA

customers is presented as follows: mr

Proportion of

revenue

Amount (%)

& E WA LB

o (%)

Beiqi Foton Motor Co., Ltd 2,570,469,892.69 9.50
ERERERNBRAR

Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and Technology Co., Ltd 891,180,391.95 3.29

P B R B R A T

Baotou Northern Benz Heavy Truck Company Limited 646,205,731.63 2.39
BERILA B TERBR AT

Pang Da Automobile Trade Co., Ltd 634,149,760.42 2.34
ERAEEERNOERAF

Faw Jiefang Automotive Co., Ltd 617,652,130.16 2.28

—RHE B EERAR

5,359,657,906.85
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) P ik R B Rk (48
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2012F6 A30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & ff ¥ % it 3% 1 %16 H 51

statements (Continued) (%)
42. Revenue and cost of sales (Continued) 42, EEWA R (E)
For the period from January to June 2011, revenue from the top 5 2001 1-6 AT B E P H) & FE WA
customers is presented as follows: R
Proportion of
revenue
Amount (%)
(=E I ON=A!!
T8 (%)
Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd 4,300,261,010.32 11.74
b ERAERG ERAA
Faw Jiefang Automotive Co., Ltd 2,024,716,321.44 6.09
—UREBUSEER QA
Dongfeng Motor Co., Ltd (Commercial Vehicle Company) 1,315,200,279.79 3.59
REAEFRARHMAELDRR]
Baotou Northern Benz Heavy Truck Company Limited 1,314,070,546.00 3.59
BRI A ER B ER AT
Pang Da Automobile Trade Co., Ltd 991,985,159.92 2.71
BEARTEEERNFRAT
10,117,012,486.11 27.62

Revenue is listed as follows: EEWATIROT

January-June 2012 January-June 2011

2012%1-6 A 20114 1-6 8

Revenue from principal operations FEEBBA
Sales of goods and others HEmBR A EM 25,726,945,253.85 34,644,218,458.53

Other revenue E i ZEBBA
Sales of materials SHEM K 924,890,065.99 1,553,098,871.86
Sales of power HEEN 23,704,776.29 25,342,514.36
Lease income BEwA 40,249,331.14 31,094,803.30
Provision of non-industrial labour R IE T 4% 320,512.82 867,662.83
Others Hith 343,565,679.78 372,791,484.58

1,332,730,366.02 1,983,195,336.93

27,059,675,619.87 36,627,413,795.46




44,

January-June 2012
20125 1-6 A

7,064,688.02
57,024,936.09
42,363,751.34
7,251,098.64

113,704,474.09

Please refer to Note lll. Taxation for tax rates.

Distribution and selling expenses

After-sales and product return fee

Freight and packing fee
Marketing fee

Staff costs

Travel fee

Office expenses

Lease fee

Fixed assets depreciation
Others

=BREMREER

mSRAER
BIRA
ZIRE
wmrEM
HEE
BEBENE
Hit

,

165,220,642.02

AHARE2RMES - BiR -

44, SHEEHR

January-June 2012
20125 1-6 A

597,440,258.23
362,517,594.09
85,905,602.26
90,170,811.61
32,799,814.86
15,671,501.73
6,870,016.14
4,437,371.37
88,600,976.52

1,284,413,946.81

January-June 2011
20114 1-6 A

794,174,237.31
416,034,544.90
96,251,170.02
98,392,862.40
29,382,169.81
15,490,402.80
9,631,251.80
6,751,765.08
64,990,109.39

1,531,098,513.51
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) A R R M RE ()

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201246 A30H (A R¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & ff ¥ % it 3% 1 %16 H 51
statements (Continued) (7)
45. General and administrative expenses 45. EEEHA

January-June 2012

January-June 2011

2012 1-6 8 2011 1-6H
Staff costs 8 TR ZAx 525,680,813.56 579,091,048.91
Experiment expenses and ABRBLFAEER
development expenses 283,326,872.65 169,400,991.35
Office expenses BAE 118,484,778.90 106,982,572.49
Fixed assets depreciation B EEEITE 106,070,041.41 93,113,605.93
External support fee INER S 1 B 44,380,390.90 149,035,236.27
Taxes e 51,405,832.80 73,651,784.41
Promotion fee SEEES 17,694,673.87 16,127,983.54
Travel fee EIRE 22,785,471.11 20,701,832.07
Repair fee EEE 18,848,145.97 15,239,812.22
Lease fee HESE 20,797,421.95 19,596,041.83
Fuels and materials expenses WRE R MR & 13,100,683.12 18,581,589.71
Transportation fee BB 14,173,913.31 11,497,115.06
Vehicle usage fee BHifFEAE 10,488,712.27 9,913,242.97
Heating expense HiEE 9,900,949.31 10,279,020.71
Others Hi 137,605,130.50 142,062,050.06
1,394,743,831.63 1,435,273,927.53
46. Finance expenses 46. BB ER
January-June 2012 January-June 2011
20125 1-6 A 20115 1-6 7
Interest expenses Fl 2 H 162,279,026.57 83,795,598.79
Less: Interest income B A B A 164,226,080.70 81,686,678.53
Exchange gains or losses & & i85 (4,555,857.83) (1,999,750.77)
Handling fees and others FEBRHAM 6,974,503.76 3,361,719.15
471,591.80 3,470,888.64
Interest expenses: FEZH

Interests on bank loans, overdrafts and
other borrowings wholly repayable
within 5 years

Other interests

SFERNARFEERTER
BEXREME RN L

HpmyF8

150,097,298.91
12,181,727.66

162,279,026.57

82,022,788.01
1,772,455.88

83,795,243.89
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W 5 % B R ()
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2012F6H30A(AR¥T)
V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & ff B % it 3% 1 B IH H 51

(%)
47. EERERX

statements (Continued)
47. Impairment loss of assets

48.

January-June 2012

Loss from bad debt

EEREXR

Loss due to decline in value of inventories 17 & % (& 18 25

Investment income

Long-term equity investment under
the cost method

Long-term equity investment under
the equity method
incl: investment income from

investments in associates

Investment income from disposal of

subsidiaries

KA EZEN R ABRERE

BmEZENRABERE

H : BEDRRE Wz

BREFRAREENKRE NS

2012 1-6 8

68,947,105.45
2,908,192.48

71,855,297.93

48. WE W=

January-June 2012

201251-6 A

1,080,000.00

25,027,666.32

25,027,666.32

44,178,946.58

January-June 2011
20114 1-6 7

71,448,467.99
28,338,517.51

99,786,985.50

January-June 2011
20114 1-6 A

Investment income from disposal of
RE W

other long-term equity investments
Investment income gained during the

available-for-sale financial assets, etc.

BREHMEMREREELN

FELMAHREESRHEES
period in which the Company held listed ERfSEX/S H) 1% & W 25

4,800,000.00

75,086,612.90

The top 5 investees with highest aggregate profit in long-term
equity investment income under the equity method are presented as

follows:

B

38,881,921.81

38,881,921.81

28,540,000.00

5,600,000.00

73,021,921.81

Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye Investment Co., Ltd.
Weichai Power Westport
New Energy Engine Co., Ltd.
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd.
CIMC-SHAC (Xi'an) Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.
Dalian Hongyuan Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

LREHAREEARAA

HESR B NPT B R RE IR B
BR A

LWERMEEEFRAR

FRBAIER(AR)EREERAT

REBFREBEERR AR

BEERENRAREREKES
A BEERSMAIARKE BN

January-June 2012

2012%F1-6 A

23,873,814.61

12,052,229.59
9,140,940.39
1,349,505.60
37,751.14

46,454,241.33
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) P ik R B Rk (48
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2012F6 A30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & ff ¥ % it 3% 1 %16 H 51

statements (Continued) (%)
48. Investment income (Continued) 48. & W (%K)
January-June 2011
20114 1-6 A
Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye Investment Co., Ltd. LEEHEI R ERRAA 30,013,042.53
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. LWEREREEREAD T 6,696,212.04
Weichai Power Westport HESEE) ) S T AL IR B B
New Energy Engine Co., Ltd. BRAF 5,592,194.63
CIMC-SHAC (Xi'an) Special Vehicles Co., Ltd. RERARER(AR)ERBEERAA 3,439,711.53
Shaanxi Tonghui Automobile Transportation Co., Ltd BRPERE R E YR AR A A 1,034,232.43
46,775,393.16
As at 30 June 2012, the Group was not subject to significant R2012F6A308 » AEERMKRER
restrictions in remitting its investment income. [ Bl B AR A o
49. Non-operating income 49. EEIMKRA

January-June 2012 January-June 2011

2012%1-6 A 20115 1-6 7
Government grants T 48 B 64,656,803.02 57,143,986.04
Gain on disposal of non-current assets ~ FERENE E R & FI15 14,833,881.71 33,788,436.38
incl: gain on disposal of fixed assets H: BFBEREFE 12,738,168.66 17,120,485.92
gain on disposal of intangible assets EREEREFIE 1,912,519.00 16,352,492.75
Profit from debt restructuring BEREAFE 3,615,868.42 -
Gain arising from the excess of ¥BE A Y EN
fair value of identifiable net assets REVB A £
related to the acquired business over AIRRFEEEAREA
consideration of business combination — E4 &Ik 12,749,645.63 -
Others Hi 42,833,980.26 38,432,914.93

125,940,533.41 142,114,982.98
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)
49. Non-operating income (Continued)
Government grants charged to profit or loss for the current period

are presented as follows:

PO 5 i 2 R (4)
201246 308 (A E¥T)

1~ B OF B R 1 R IH H RE R

(%)

49. ERIBA ()
EA K EER BT BT -

January-June 2012
2012%1-6 A

Income of financial subsidies B IR 4 Bk U A
Refund of VAT levied S IE R IEET
Others HAb

64,268,476.52

64,656,803.02

During the period, the Company received government subsidy in
total of RMB64,656,803.02, including:

)

the Company received tax refunds amounting to
RMB28,369,000.00 from Hanting Finance Bureau in Weifang
City during the period;

Xi'an Fast Auto Drive Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
obtained a grant from the technological innovation and
supporting fund amounting to RMB24,140,000.00 for the
development project of AMT for machinery of heavy-duty

commercial vehicle;

Pursuant to Qi Shan Guo Shui Han (2012) No. 10 and
SCBQZ(2012) No. 12, Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, obtained the subsidy
for sustaining the leading industry development (2012)
from Finance Bureau of Xi'an Economic and Technology
Development Zone and the incentive for sustaining
growth from the administration commission of the Xi'an
Economic and Technology Development Zone and other
various government grants, in aggregate amount of
RMB9,862,408.28;

each of the subsidiaries of the Company received financial
subsidies including various special funds amounting
RMB1,897,068.24 and other various government subsidies
amounting RMB388,326.50 during the period.

388,326.50

January-June 2011
20114 1-6 7

54,291,470.13
= 1,826,565.91
1,025,950.00

57,143,986.04

AR H A 2 B BR S B A R
64,656,803.027T ' Ef ¢

1)

3)

ARARMAHKI HTHESF
BMERAERUBEFTARSE
28,369,000.007T :

RRABZFRBALELRHNA
EEPFERAFNNFELEHA
B B B R 2% (AMT) B &
HBHRMEFH RKFEEG
AR #24,140,000.007T :

RARRZFARIKRABELRNS
BAERAARE LR K
(2012) 1055 LA R (BREA B (> 5
(2012) 1255 ) IS AL BB
firFA g @ B B H2012F R £ 8
EXRRES AL B
FAEREREZEeRERER
KA B2 LM % TEBUAT 6 B AR A
ANE#9,862,408.287C

KEARAZ & FRAIMEE
BEHE S S BAABAG
ANR#1,897,068.24 7L A K &
fib S BB HE B AT ARE
388,326.507T °



51.

January-June 2012
20125 1-6 A

9,101,848.85
8,594,716.52
758,042.22
3,984,916.30
3,391,561.22 6,309,

17,236,368.59 33,053,588.92

Income tax expenses

51. FISHEH

January-June 2012 January-June 2011
2012%1-6 8 201151-6 A

Current tax expenses

Deferred tax expenses

EHFREHEA 329,366,921.82 671,687,526.65
BEEFSHER 89,889,521.62 84,883,244.02

419,256,443.44 756,570,770.67
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)
51. Income tax expenses (Continued)

The relationship between income tax expenses and the total profit is

PO 5 i 2 R (4)
201246 308 (A E¥T)

T~ G ORI B Rk T IE H AR

(%)

51. FiEHER (&)
P15 20 A B2 R 4R AR B 4R 51 R

listed as follows:

TS ¢

January-June 2012

20125 1-6 A

Total profit

Tax at statutory tax rate

Effect of different tax rates applicable

to parent and some subsidiaries
Adjustments to current tax of
previous periods

Profits and losses attributable to

GIDEEEE

BEREREAEMNHIA
BRARFELF AT
ERTRARENZE
% DART AR E HAAR S A
BB
BENBELENERE

associates
Income not subject to tax EEMTL BB
Expenses not deductible for tax AAMEHI R E A
Tax incentives on eligible BEE BREH
expenditures mELENTRESR
Utilization of deductible losses F) A LART F FE B
from prior years AT E 18
Unrecognized deductible losses RERMIEINERE
Effect of unrecognized deductible R HE SR HY AT 1 0
temporary difference EENTE

2,508,099,094.55
NotezE 624,698,609.04
(254,309,384.83)
(1,763,777.41)
(3,754,149.95)
(990,000.00)
17,502,034.88

(23,239,274.86)

(865,019.82)
60,406,642.70

1,570,763.69

Income tax expense at the Group's

effective tax rate

BASEERMXRE
MFEHRER

419,256,443.44

January-June 2011
20114 1-6 A

4,841,787,252.81

1,208,180,823.25

(475,251,277.38)

4,199,785.49

(5,893,165.38)

(910,450.00)

27,922,262.77

(16,450,138.61)

(6,559,629.96)
16,207,086.66

5,125,473.83

756,570,770.67

Note:

The income tax of the Group is calculated based on the estimated taxable
income gained in the PRC and applicable tax rate. Tax arising from
the taxable income in other regions is calculated at applicable tax rate
according to existing laws, interpretations and practices of the country in
which the Group operates.

No provision for Hong Kong profit tax has been made as the Group had
no taxable profits arising in Hong Kong for the period.

AREMSHBETBEHEAMEHOMG
FHEMTIRTIS B MBI R IR - R
A B At b [ JE AR B AT 1S RO B IR IR IR AR
SEEEMEBRNRITER - BE
REME - RREABXAE -

HRAKERBAETEL ERAD
- RREHFENESHOERE -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

52.

53.

Earnings per share (EPS)

The basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit of the current
period attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares.

The calculation of basic EPS is detailed as follows:

Interim Report 2012 e 197

P i 3 I R ()
2012466308 (A RET)

T G0 R E H RE R
(78)
52. R K&
EASRKFZBRABRAAFA LR
& AR R A& HF RS - BRABEATESN
BB IETF I BGHE -

ERghkmnBgtEMT

January-June 2012 January-June 2011
2012%F1-6 A 20114 1-6 7

Earnings Wz
Net profit of the current period BB AR B E @A

attributable to ordinary shareholders % 5 #) & HA 5% 7l &
of the Company

1,897,252,608.20 3,501,706,567.71

Shares i 15
Weighted average number of the RATETENEBR
ordinary shares outstanding of B hn#E Y9 8K

the Company

1,666,091,366.00 1,666,091,366

EPS (RMB/share) FRW%zEGT, B

1.14 2.10

The Company holds no potential shares that are dilutive.

Other comprehensive income

KOG EREBIEBER -
53. HtimE s

January-June 2012 January-June 2011

2012%1-6 A 20114 1-6 A
Gain/(losses) from changes in AHEESREEARLBEED
fair value of available-for-sale EAuE(1B%)

financial assets

Less: Income tax effects of changes in & : At HHESLREE AL BE

54,465,346.41 (139,053,521.38)

fair value of available-for-sale EHELNREHREE
financial assets 8,256,336.60 (20,923,380.34)
46,209,009.81 (118,130,141.04)
Share of investee’s other RREREZENERIRESN
comprehensive income under Hiir AW EmP T E X MDEE
equity method (42,010,385.84) (114,229,533.20)
Exchange differences on foreign BIMNEEINEE YT E =5

currency translation of foreign
operations

(5,951,614.80) 12,516,498.39

(1,752,990.83) (219,843,175.85)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & ff B % it 3% 1 B IH H 51
statements (Continued) ( ,%E )
54. Notes to items in cash flow statement 54 BEREREEFZE

WE By H A SRAZ R B

Other cash received relating to

operating activities EENRE January-June 2012 January-June 2011
2012%1-6 8 20114 1-6 A
Government grants Eﬁz}ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ 64,656,803.02 57,143,986.04
After-sale claims payment =BEREXK 222,156,360.44 239,574,543.93
Interest income B U A 164,526,576.28 81,686,678.53
Others Hih 42,725,301.48 64,171,366.83
494,065,041.22 442,576,575.33

Other cash paid relating to Y E Ath B AR R B
operating activities BEMNAS January-June 2012 January-June 2011
2012%F1-6 A 20114 1-6 A
After-sales and product return fee —BRERRE 696,333,631.75 518,327,840.38
Freight and packing fee BELREE 346,271,267.27 469,076,447.95
Marketing fee miZAAE 111,093,614.24 134,128,317.25

Office expenses
Others

TN
Hit

Other cash received relating to
investing activities

Y B B At B2 5% B B

BERNRS

134,070,547.96
150,302,011.97

1,438,071,073.19

January-June 2012
2012%1-6 A

123,554,687.19
12,025,196.95

1,257,112,489.72

January-June 2011
2011451-6 A

Cash from the increase in subsidiaries HMABFHSHET AR
newly included as part of consolidation & N#Y I8 &

Net cash paid for acquisition of BEFARRAEMEEBN
subsidiaries and other business units TRIR € FEE 2,829,775.59 66,026,592.39

Others Hi - 3,025.25

2,829,775.59 66,029,617.64

Other cash paid relating to ST AST RO ELh BEIR B E B

investing activities EENR® January-June 2012 January-June 2011
2012%1-6 A 201151-6 A

Temporary payments for investment LB E R 3,780,000.00
Others Hih 167,070.74
3,947,070.74

WEIHMmREE LS

Other cash received relating to

financing activities fENRS January-June 2012 January-June 2011
2012 1-6 8 20114 1-6A4
Borrowings from third parties WEIE =B 19,507,377.78 -
Other cash paid relating to financing THEMEEEED
activities EENR®
Repayment and interests of borrowings (EBE&H =77
from third parties B FRANF S 2,919,746.36 1,479,840.08
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) A R R B RE ()

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201246 A30H (A R¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & ff ¥ % it 3% 1 %16 H 51
statements (Continued) (7)

55. Supplement to cash flow statement 55. REREXREAER
(1) Supplement to cash flow statement (1) REenERWBRER

January-June 2012

Decrease/(increase) in
inventories

Decrease in operating

FEER D, (M)

M R YR B HOR

1,816,074,328.71

January-June 2011

20124 1-6 B 20114 1-6 A
Net profit 3% A5 2,088,842,651.11 4,085,216,482.14
Add: Provision for impairment D BERELEE

of assets 71,855,297.93 99,786,985.50
Depreciation of fixed assets EEEERKE M

and investment properties EiERTE 651,608,181.11 614,345,985.22
Amortization of intangible Em A EEH

assets 21,195,909.57 25,406,118.96
Amortization of long-term R B REE

prepaid expenses 37,709,002.51 37,117,039.30
Gains from disposal and BEEMBEERTEE -

retirement of fixed assets, EREEMEMRS

intangible assets and other BEENK R

long-term assets (6,239,165.19) (11,595,179.94)
Finance expenses MBEMA 168,010,795.10 85,464,822.77
Investment income WA (75,086,612.90) (73,021,921.81)
Decrease/(increase) in deferred BEERMEHREERN

tax assets w35 ) 93,849,650.13 85,862,376.33
Increase/(decrease) in RIEFRE R B ER

deferred tax liabilities O ) (1,227,831.48) (979,132.31)

76,450,452.79

receivables (5,355,357,843.41) (7,789,358,173.98)
(Decrease)/increase in wEEEMNIEE &

operating payables GRA),/ 1 (636,104,002.84) 2,504,830,574.65
Others Hih 20,202,910.66 (61,436,646.68)
Net cash flow from operating IRESEBNEAE MRS

activities B R (1,104,666,728.99) (321,910,217.06)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial

statements (Continued)

RS i 25 BT 5 E (48
201246 308 (A E¥T)

55. Supplement to cash flow statement

(Continued)

(2) Information related to acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries and other business units

Information related to acquisition of subsidiaries and other

business units

January-June 2012

Consideration for acquisition
of subsidiaries and other
business units

Cash and cash equivalents paid

DS FARREMEEEN
N

BETFARIREMEREA T

for acquisition of subsidiaries and  EYIR & FIR & ZEY

other business units
Less: Amount of cash and cash
equivalents in subsidiaries
and other business units
acquired
Net cash paid for acquisition of
subsidiaries and other business
units
Net assets in subsidiaries and
other business units acquired
Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

B BRGTFRRAREMEEEN
FENRSNALEEY

BB FRARREMEEBN N
MR & FER

BB FARKEMEEEMT
FEE
MEEE
FRBEE
mEBAE
FRBRE

Notes: Please refer to Note IV. 3 for details of information related to
acquisition of subsidiaries and other business units.

- ?\%ﬁﬁ;ﬁiﬁﬁﬁigiﬁ H 5t B
55. Bem B AW AR ()

(2) BEXBEFARREAM
EERBEMNER
RFFRRIRAMERE

158

January-June 2011

2012%1-6 A 20115 1-6H

85,110,000.00

30,000,000.00

2,829,775.59 96,026,592.39

(2,829,775.59) (66,026,592.39)

52,699,246.58
109,320,064.26

97,859,645.63
143,516,229.65
94,425,444.04 662,133,311.10
(151,046,261.72) (681,165,895.12)
- (26,624,000.00)

Hiat - BREBSFARIREMERE
fIfE S FRMED -3 -



January-June 2012
- ‘ 20125 1-6 A

Price for disposal of subsidiaries Bz & F /A &) } E fth & 2 B (7
and other business units EORERES 235,220,500.00

Cash and cash equivalents received Bz & F /A &) & & 2 &7 Uk 2
from disposal of subsidiaries and ~ KJIR & F1IR & EE W)

other business units 235,220,500.00
Prepayments received from FEEREFETAR
disposal of subsidiaries B 8 i & T8 YK
held for sale to be disposed 189,000,000.00
Less: Amount of cash and cash W RETARRHEAM SN
equivalents in subsidiaries HENRENMREZEEY
and other business units
disposed 80,778,069.26

Net cash received for disposal of & & T2 ) & E Ath & 5 B (7 I F|
subsidiaries and other business HIR& 55

units 343,442,430.74
Net assets in subsidiaries and other Bz & F /X )} E fh & 2 B (7

business units disposed HEFEE 321,388,075.78

Current assets A E 414,405,402.08

Non-current assets FRBEE 75,938,388.29

Current liabilities mEBaE (133,823,468.59)

Non-current liabilities ERFEE (35,132,246.00)




Bank deposit on demand

30 June 2012
201246 H30H

 BEE A 1,371,492.10
A] BE R A A S |

BAER 10,203,715,710.29
Other cash and cash A BE B R 2SR
equivalents on demand HihE¥ES 45,595.74
Add: Closing balance of cash e BEFETRARE
and cash equivalents of FRBSRBASEEY
subsidiaries held for sale 83,026,667.33
Closing balance of cash and B,/ ERXESRRESEYHE
cash equivalents 10,288,159,465.46
30 June 2012
2012%6H30H
Closing balance of cash and B/ FREEECHE

cash equivalents
Add: Closing balance of cash
and cash equivalents of
subsidiaries held for sale
Less: Balance of restricted cash

and cash equivalents used

13,007,409,424.51
m:HEREFLRHS

83,026,667.33

B FEARIRANEEES
FREE 2,802,276,626.38

Closing balance of cash and

cash equivalents

B/ ¥ RXB2 A EEBMHE
10,288,159,465.46

13,310,515,188.03

5,758,317.34

13,317,360,195.54

31 December 2011
2011412A31H

16,612,740,784.48

3,295,380,588.94

13,317,360,195.54




bRER i EARE

3 i3 &R EREA RRERH

(%) (%)
Weichai Group Holdings Wholly state-owned Minsheng East Road, Tan Xuguang  External investment 1,200,000,000.00 16.83 16.83
Limited BABE Kuiwen Distrct, L Finandial quarantee
HEEREEERAR Weffang City, Investrment advisory
Shandong Province Planning and organization/
WE4 coordination and management of
hm production operating activities of
B3 & corporates under the Group
RERE MR
WEER
REAE/HAEREENR
CEEERRED

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd. is the ultimate parent of
the Company.

2. Subsidiaries

Details of subsidiaries are set out in Note V.

3. Associates

Details of associates are set out in Note V.12.

RAFMBEEEBARIRLURETEE
BRAF -

2. FRH
FRRGERLM R -

3. Eiei
B EHEEHER - 12



204  Weichai Power Co., Ltd. H#%E HRBAER DT

o 5 i % M R (48)
201246 A30H (A R¥T)

7N~ B B O B AR e L AR 5y ()

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related party relationships and transactions

(Continued)
4. Particulars of other related parties which 4, RAXAEEREEARISHW
entered into material transactions with the HbpEB s ER
Group
Related party relationships Referred to as
BRE S R L]

Weifong Weichai Deutz Diesel Engine Co., Ltd. Common control by parent Weichai Deutz
DTSR BRSO E R A ) A — & 2 " S R
Chongging Weichai Diesel Engine Works Common control by parent Chongging Weichai
Eb R gl [A] — & A a2 il B gL
Shandong Weichai Import and Export Co., Ltd. Common control by parent Weichai Import and Export
IR S E R O FR A E] [ — &2~ |l HESER O
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd. Common control by parent Weichai Heavy-duty
LB D BRA A [ — &2 Al Machinery

SR E
Yangzhou Yaxing Coach Co., Ltd. Common control by parent Yangzhou Yaxing
BMNEEZERMNAERAA [ — & A &) 2 i HINEE
Fujian Longgong Machinery Company Limited Same key management personnel Longgong (Fujian)
EL(BR)MMBERRAF FA—FAREEAR BEI(ER)
Shanghai Longgong Machinery Company Limited Same key management personnel Longgong (Shanghai)
LS MHEREERAR A—BEREEAR BEIL(EE)
Beiqi Foton Motor Company Limited Same key management personnel Beigi Foton
EARBAERNDBRAF FA—FREEAE Sipak =1:s
FOTON Lovol Heavy Industries Co., Ltd. Same key management personnel FOTON Lovol
EHEABEKREIROBGRAA F—RgEIEAR BHEER

Chutian Engineering Machinery Company Limited

B RTRREEMER A A

Shantui Engineering Machinery Co., Ltd.
I TR AR B IR A A

Shandong Shantui Machinery Co., Ltd.
IER LA B R A A

Shantui Heavy Industry Machinery Co., Ltd.
IEETHEMAER A

Shaanxi Automotive Group Co., Ltd.

PR IEEEFREEAR

Shaanxi Huazhen Sancan Industry and Trading Co., Ltd.

PREEF=-ELZERREMLRA

Shaanxi Tongli Special Purpose Vehicle Co., Ltd.
PREE N ERAEGREMERA

Shaanxi Lantong Transmission Axle Co., Ltd.

PRAEREHHBER AR

Same ultimate parent

A —RER QT

Same ultimate parent

[l — AR RA]

Same ultimate parent

A —REE QT

Same ultimate parent

il 33 SN

Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries

B RAIRRA—HREEAR

Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries

HFRNRIRFA—FAREEAS

Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries

HARAIRFA—FAREEAR

Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries

HARAIRRA—HREEAR

Chutian Engineering
11}i:3:PS

Shantui Engineering
I T A2
Shandong Shantui

TR ::
Shantui Heavy Industry

IWEET

Shaanxi Automotive
pRAEE

Huazhen Sancan
EBR_E

Tongli Special Purpose
BOHER

Lantong Transmission

BB EE)



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related party relationships and transactions

(Continued)

4.

Particulars of other related parties which 4.
entered into material transactions with the

Group (Continued)

Interim Report 2012 FRHEAZRE
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Related party relationships
8 Bt 05 BA 1R

7N~ B B O B AR S L AR 5y ()

BASEBLEEARIH
HibBAM 5 BR ()

Referred to as

8

Baoji Huashan Engineering Vehicles Co., Ltd.

BRE LT REHERETAA

Shaanxi Automobile Group Wenzhou Yunding

Automobile Co., Ltd.

progTESEBERMETETERBR QA

Shaanxi Automobile Group Changsha Huantong
Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

PREAELRERDPRBABRERRAA

Shaanxi Automobile Group Yan'an Special Purpose

Vehicles Co., Ltd.

PR TEEBEEREAEBRAT
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission Co., Ltd.

PE AL S AR R AR A A

Shaanxi Automobile Group Xunyang Baotong Special

Purpose Vehicles Co., Ltd.

RANEEEABERERERR QA

Zhuzhou Automobile Gear Factory

RN JTEE SR R

Shaanxi Wanfang Vehicle Parts and Components

Co. Ltd.
BB R AETHEBRAT

Shaanxi Dongfeng Axle And Transmission System

Co., Ltd

RARAEBEDEGROBERAF

Shaanxi Tongchuang Huaheng Vehicle Radiator

Co. Ltd.

PREGFAEIZES RERAEREMELDA]
Shaanxi Fangyuan Automobile Standard Components

Co. Ltd.
A B BEREGBR AT

Shaanxi Tongjia Automobile Co., Ltd.

RIBRAEBREERT]

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Coach Joint Industry and
Trading Company Limited (originally Shaanxi

Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRRA—BEREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
B RAIRRA—HAREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HFNRIRFA—FAREEAS
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRFA—EAREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRRA—HREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
B RAIRRA—HREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HFRNRIRFA—FAREEAS
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRFA—FEAREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRRA—HREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
B REIRFA—HREEASR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HFRNRIRFA—FAREEAS
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRFA—FEAREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries

Heavy-duty Coach Industry Joint Venture Company) E¥F R & AR —EHHEEAB

PREERH TEFRAR

(REREEEFBIEBENA)

Baoji Vehicle

BHER

Wenzhou Yunding

BMETE

Changsha Huantong
ROBRB

Yan'an Special Purpose
L HERE

Shaanxi Fast Gear
Automotive
pri%E R
Xunyang Baotong
aAGER

Zhuzhou Gear Factory

TR B R

Shaanxi Wanfang
BREEE J7

Dongfeng Axle
R

Tongchuang Huaheng
RAEY

Fangyuan Automobile

JTETE

Tongjia Automobile
BHRAE

Heavy-duty Coach Joint
Industry and Trading
BERBIE

205
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related party relationships and transactions
(Continued)

P 5 i 3 I R ()
201246 A30H (A E¥T)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties
(1) Transaction of goods and services with related

parties

Purchase of goods from related parties (excluding tax)

Westport New Energy
BT IR

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
PoEEE

Shaanxi Wanfang
PREEE

Tongli Special Purpose
BOER
CIMC-SHAC

REER

Huazhen Sancan
EH=E

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
S E

Lantong Transmission
EBEDH

Xian Cummics
a2 AR AT
Fangyuan Automobile
»EAE

Weichai Deutz

HESEB HOR
Tongchuang Huaheng
Fl&IZE=

Tonghui Transportation
AIEYR

Xunyang Baotong
AGEBR

Yan'an Special Purpose
TZERE
Changsha Huantong
ROBRE

Tongjia Automobile
BRAE

Dalian Hongyuan
REBIR

Dongfeng Axle
REER

7N~ i B AR e He AR 5 ()

5. g%iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfiﬂ’ﬂiifi

(1)

January-June 2012
2012%1-6 A
Amount Percentage

Kol

655,934,845.43

637,926,137.51

252,838,995.86

232,344,149.20

214,360,021.36

148,899,517.35

121,534,396.72

61,446,378.76

48,941,779.34

38,812,284.41

36,837,064.22

33,343,465.75

26,411,319.49

23,793,394.53

21,975,600.47

15,292,140.75

8,069,791.12

5,582,089.21

2,077,860.00

L 41
(%)

25.31

24.63

9.76

8.97

8.28

5.75

4.69

2.37

1.89

1.50

1.42

1.29

1.02

0.92

0.85

0.59

0.31

0.22

0.08

BT R mMBEER S
BEBTBEEm(TEH)

January-June 2011

20114 1-6 7
Amount  Percentage
EH Lt Bl
(%)
271,227,362.64 9.00
915,805,549.16 30.38
275,159,482.93 9.13
345,859,009.14 11.47
374,212,270.26 12.41
200,313,405.72 6.65
203,684,593.39 6.76
71,342,278.05 2.37
89,284,895.81 2.96
64,171,679.19 2.13
42,602,069.29 1.41
36,496,686.93 1.21
34,655,180.22 1.15
38,109,336.57 1.26
36,315,958.79 1.20
5,386,887.78 0.18
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30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related party relationships and transactions

(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its

related parties (Continued)
Transaction of goods and services with related

(M

parties (Continued)
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P 5 i 3 I G ()
201246 A30H (A E¥T)

Purchase of goods from related parties (excluding tax)

(Continued)

Heavy-duty Coach Joint Industry and
Trading

EXHIE

Luyuan Automotive Fitting

BRA

Baoji Vehicle

BHEH

Chongging Weichai

Weichai Group Holdings

HESeE IR

Eurostar Auto

BXET R EE

Receiving services from related parties

Weichai Group Holdings
IR

Chongging Weichai

EE ML

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
OZNEEY

Shaanxi Automotive

CIRESE]

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
ML

7N~ B Bk O AR e H AR 5 ()

5. AEEEBABINEER
Z (&)

(1)

January-June 2012
2012%1-6 A
Amount Percentage

ot

2,032,755.77

1,114,394.58

313,172.18

154,577.25

134,187.17

2,590,170,318.43

e i
(%)

January-June 2012
2012%1-6 A
Amount Percentage

=8

98,086,814.67

44,910,204.57

16,567,170.39

1,254,793.43

160,818,983.06

]
(%)

60.99

27.93

10.30

0.78

BT EmMEBERS
(%)
BB ERERR(TEH)
(&)

January-June 2011

20115 1-6
Amount  Percentage
x| =]
(%)
3,348,853.62 0.1
2,894,511.06 0.10
174,607.80 0.01
1,279,457.98 0.04
2,147,350.43 0.07
3,014,471,426.76 100.00
BB % X 575
January-June 2011
20114F1-6 A
Amount  Percentage
TR Lt 1
(%)
119,794,600.77 46.60
85,814,133.53 33.38
20,355,750.02 7.92
30,401,612.78 11.83
708,028.26 0.31

257,074,125.36 100.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

P 5 i 3 I R ()
201246 A30H (A E¥T)

VI. Related party relationships and transactions 7~ ~ Bi i 5 Bl & R H 3R 5 (4)

(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)
(1) Transaction of goods and services with related
parties (Continued)
Sale of goods to related parties (excluding tax)

January-June 2012

FAEEHEBABINEER
7 (&)

(1) BEIAmMNEBRS

(&)

[EIEEBE T 5 & B (T & #)

January-June 2011

20125 1-6 A 20115 1-6 A
Amount Percentage Amount  Percentage
o] Lt il k- EE 451
(%) (%)
Beigi Foton
it m| 2,570,469,892.69 2,684,963,166.32 50.18
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
POEEE 585,761,655.77 627,455,259.28 11.73
Westport New Energy
FEB AR 310,548,507.89 145,285,917.30 2.72
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
ML E 280,779,542.34 337,969,284.87 6.32
Huazhen Sancan
EHR—E 185,041,610.77 153,574,280.50 2.87
Longgong (Shanghai)
BEI(LE) 123,275,904.79 269,854,914.53 5.04
Shaanxi Wanfang
PREEE T 111,229,556.78 202,081,269.97 3.78
Longgong (Fujian)
BEI(ER) 85,569,221.28 199,336,752.14 3.73
Weichai Import and Export
HSEL O 68,907,451.90 91,587,739.35 1.71
Shantui Engineering
LT A2 57,454,588.03 116,340,704.69 217
Tongli Special Purpose
BHEA 39,404,572.76 89,691,522.88 1.68
Weichai Deutz
HESCBAOR 38,856,674.14 66,909,115.37 1.25
Yangzhou Yaxing
HMEE 32,878,769.25 1,061,692.31 0.02
Chutian Engineering
IR 27,457,966.79 120,915,311.39 2.26
Chongging Weichai
EEMLE 26,014,616.31 49,688,247.78 0.93
Tonghui Transportation
EYR 8,280,457.35 12,015,133.80 0.22
Baoji Vehicle
BHEH 4,254,510.52 33,930,700.96 0.63
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) A R R M RE ()
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201246 A30H (A R¥T)

VI. Related party relationships and transactions 7~ ~ B i 5 Bl & e H 32 55 (%)
(Continued)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. XEBHEBABINEER
related parties (Continued) 5 (&)
(1) Transaction of goods and services with related (1) BB TEmMEERS
parties (Continued) (&)
Sale of goods to related parties (excluding tax) (Continued) FEE T HERR(TEH)
(%)
January-June 2012 January-June 2011
2012 1-6 8 20114 1-6 4
Amount Percentage Amount  Percentage
| L il | s/l
(%) (%)
Eurostar Auto
BrAT R R E 1,935,775.71 : 9,680,476.29 0.18
Xian Cummics
o % FREA H 1,359,419.56 : 613,169.49 0.01
Fangyuan Automobile
JE=E 809,000.76 : 4,266.67 =
Weichai Group Holdings
HESeE IR 714,637.20 : 983,874.51 0.02
Shandong Shantui
LB L HE 549,230.77 : = =
CIMC-SHAC
hEBER 334,476.72 : = =
Shaanxi Automotive
bR E 149,161.01 134,977.07 -
FOTON Lovol
REERX 69,912.05 - -
Dongfeng Axle
HEEE 36,024.00 - -
Tongchuang Huaheng
EEa 14,838.85 547,523.96 0.01
Changsha Huantong
RDRBE 119,767,733.39 224
Wenzhou Yunding
BMNETR 15,833,935.18 0.30
Fuping Logistics Park
EFmnE 482,564.10 0.01
Lantong Transmission
EREYH - 239,683.29 -

4,562,157,975.99 5,350,949,217.39 100.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) A R % B RE ()
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201246 A30H (A R¥T)

VI. Related party relationships and transactions 7~ ~ Bi i 5 Bl & R H 3R 5 (4)

(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. AEBEHEBBINEIER
related parties (Continued) 2 (&)
(1) Transaction of goods and services with related (1 AT mNEBERS
parties (Continued) (%)
Rendering services to related parties ] BG4 77 1@ (R 45 7

January-June 2012 January-June 2011
2012%1-6 A 20114E1-6 1
Amount Percentage Amount  Percentage

=8 Le 1 o Lo
(%) (%)

Weichai Deutz

HESEE HOR 24,230,139.22 28,467,718.82 50.28

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery

L S 11,880,784.37 6,190,398.15 10.93

Shaanxi Automotive

L yaEE] 11,363,392.19 8,807,327.86 15.55

Chongging Weichai

BHEH 1,959,918.73 : 9,117,602.44 16.10

Weichai Import and Export

HESeETR O 825,510.00 : 729,830.00 1.29

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive

POEE B 3,095,507.95 5.47

Zhuzhou Gear Factory

R B8 R 215,560.85 0.38
50,259,744.51 56,623,946.07 100.00

During the year, the prices for the Group's sale of goods and REE - REBMEBETHEE

rendering of services to related parties as well as purchase Ao RHABER  KED

of goods and receiving services from related parties were mREZLBELEMHERR

=]

determined with reference to market rates. JE °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related party relationships and transactions

(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. AEBEHEBABINEIER
related parties (Continued) % (&)
(2) Leasing with related parties (2) BEAHEE
Leasing of assets to related parties 7] BG B 77 H #H & EE

January-June 2012

January-June 2011

2012%1-6 A 20114 1-6 A
Tonghui Transportation
BIEYIR 5,020,880.40 5,020,880.40
Xian Cummics
Fa % R AR A 4,080,981.84 4,051,840.68
Westport New Energy
PSR 3,502,549.98 1,337,400.71
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
HELE B 2,250,000.00 2,044,629.63
Huazhen Sancan
EHR-E 1,827,545.82 1,217,645.82
Shaanxi Automotive
BT E 65,250.00

16,681,958.04

Leasing of assets from related parties

13,737,647.24

BB A E E

January-June 2012
20125 1-6 A

Weichai Group Holdings

e SR

Shaanxi Automotive
BOREE

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
7 JE]

Chongging Weichai

21,420,000.00

7,411,569.54

6,177,730.43

1,999,998.00

37,009,297.97

During the year, the prices for leasing with related parties were

determined with reference to market rates.

January-June 2011

20114 1-6 A

21,420,000.00

8,113,674.78

5,869,208.60

1,999,998.00

37,402,881.38

REFE  AEBRBBETEE
EBBRE2ZMSERRE o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related party relationships and transactions
(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)
(3) Transfer of assets with related parties

Nature of transaction

XEE|R

Shaanxi Fast Gear Acquisition of fixed assets
Automotive
PR S

During the year, the Group did not acquire and dispose of

fixed assets with related parties.

(4) Co-investment commitment with related parties

Details are set out in Note VIII. Commitments.

(5) Material agreement with related parties
On 30 June 2012, the Company entered into the Financial
Services Agreement with Shangdong Heavy Industry
Group Financial Co., Ltd.. Pursuant to the Financial Service
Agreement, the finance company provided deposit, credit,
accounting and clearing services, as well as other financial
services to the Company and its holding subsidiaries. As at
30 June 2012, there was no transaction and relevant trading

balance.

Except for the transactions with associates, all the above related
party transactions also constitute connected transactions or
continuous connected transactions as defined under Chapter 14A

to the Listing Rules of Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

PO 5 i % Ff R (4)
201246 308 (A E¥T)

7N~ i B AR e He AR 5 ()

5. AKEEBABINEER
2 (%)

(3)

January-June 2012

2012%1-6 A
Amount Percentage

=8

BBt 2 N R ETZRHIN

Le 1
(%)

FARE T B EE R

January-June 2011

20114 1-6 1
Amount  Percentage
o L1
(%)
361,125.32 100.00

RER - NEBEERBET R
BMHEBRTEE -

B RFRE Ty KRR B AGR
HRMFN - EAFEEE -

BB REBNEKGH

AEBRNURETIEEHKAE
RAFIR20124%6 A30H %3]

AN

SRR HE) - BRiEHE

A BRI AR RERTF
RAREEHR - FE - -H#ER
Hih & mREE - #E2012F
6A30HI  BEXSHLE &

B L

i B8 75 % 5 A L B 22 T
TR 1AARTE B BB R B
ERBRS -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) A R R M RE ()

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201246 A30H (A R¥T)

VI. Related party relationships and transactions 7~ ~ B i 5 Bl & e H 32 55 (%)
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. Bt FEUN FE{ SR IE 62 ER

30 June 2012
201246 H30H

31 December 2011
2011412 A31H

Accounts receivable
BEERR

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
POEEE

Beigi Foton

iRt

Changsha Huantong
RORM

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
SR E

Eurostar Auto

BRET )T EE

Chutian Engineering
R

Huazhen Sancan
EHR_E

Yangzhou Yaxing
HMNEE

Weichai Import and Export
HSEL O

Baoji Vehicle
BHER

Longgong (Fujian)
EI(GER)

Yan'an Special Purpose
L ERE

Weichai Deutz
HEL B ACR
CIMC-SHAC

RESR

Xi'an FC

(il 353

Gross carrying

amount

AR E EREE

403,365,277.38

320,923,764.61

162,340,026.25

140,609,562.23

37,148,742.53

36,861,580.00

29,896,378.19

22,810,283.16

19,935,192.96

13,662,355.24

9,236,625.79

3,437,457.00

3,238,077.46

2,796,896.58

2,436,513.90

Provision for
bad debt

BRER

(3,198,550.96)

(15,377,929.12)

(11,215,803.76)

(6,814,739.17)

(10,959,303.26)

(1,843,079.00)

(1,494,818.91)

(1,140,514.16)

(996,674.15)

(1,087,218.81)

(426,708.95)

(171,872.85)

(161,903.87)

(139,844.83)

Gross carrying
amount

IREERER

Provision for
bad debt

RERER

117,524,129.63

249,130,456.08

193,772,878.75

54,888,139.69

35,987,176.13

19,735,759.00

154,380.10

3,653,400.00

7,530,910.42

9,947,829.19

5,178.96

5,679,500.00

4,710,301.12

1,662,717.00

(5,876,206.48)

(11,861,473.37)

(10,601,896.53)

(2,744,406.98)

(7,490,606.79)

(986,787.95)

(7,719.01)

(182,670.00)

(361,347.87)

(1,608,382.34)

(258.95)

(283,975.00)

(235,139.65)

(52,735.85)



Tongli Special Purpose
BHER

Longgong (Shanghai)
BEL(LE)
Tonghui Transportation
BEYR
Tongchuang Huaheng
R EIE T

Westport New Energy
BB
Shandong Shantui
ISR L 3

Shaanxi Automotive
BRITEE

Lantong Transmission
EREDHH

FOTON Lovol
BEEX

Shantui Engineering

TR

30 June 2012
20126 H30H

Provision for f

Gross carrying

amount

AR 8RR

1,863,417.41

1,862,424.77

1,523,210.44

1,002,397.34

952,354.66

945,900.00

862,999.08

26,803.19

10,801.89

1,217,749,042.06

bad debt

HERE

(70,267.70)

(62,960.70)

(76,160.52)

(286,213.98)

(CYRIVE)

(47,295.00)

(862,999.08)

(1,340.16)

(540.09)

(56,484,356.76)

»y

BRI BR 50

2,597,440.88 (129,872.04)
18,230,260.00 (911,513.00)
1,369,129.89 (162,523.34)
786,157.80 (39,307.89)
26,803.19 (1,340.16)
45,106.92 (2,255.35)
727,437,654.75 (43,540,418.55)




Other receivables
H 1t P& UK
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
pro% &

Shaanxi Automotive

pRITE

Zhuzhou Gear Factory

R EE R

Eurostar Auto

BREF 4T E

Weichai Deutz

MR BAEOR

Weichai Import and Export
i fanl

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
B

30 June 2012
20126 H30H

Gross carrying
amount

AR T ER HR

91,362,478.44

20,520,052.78

11,745,043.08

41,309.30

15,000.00

12,509.00

123,696,392.60

Provision for
bad debt
HREE

(587,252.15)

(750.00)

(625.45)

(588,627.60)

12,033,865.62

924.67

(601,693.28)

(46.23)

12,034,790.29

(601,739.51)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related party relationships and transactions

(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)

P 5 i 3 I R ()
201246 A30H (A E¥T)

N BB 5 B AR e H R 5 ()

6. BELEWENRERE
(&)

30 June 2012 31 December 2011
201266 H30H 2011412A31H

Notes receivable
EWREE

Beigi Foton

Bipat=]:E

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
TSR E

FOTON Lovol
RBEAERX

Shantui Engineering
e T A2
Yangzhou Yaxing
HBMNEE

Westport New Energy
7T BER

Tongli Special Purpose
BIEM

Chutian Engineering
g

Longgong (Shanghai)
BEI(LE&)
Changsha Huantong
RYIRA

Longgong (Fujian)
BEI(E®E)

Baoji Vehicle
BHEH

Yan'an Special Purpose
ELZHERE
Huazhen Sancan
HERZIE

Shaanxi Eurostar

PR 7 R AT
Tonghui Transportation
BEYR

400,000,000.00 6,030,000.00

139,122,840.87 87,721,478.26

36,600,000.00 =

31,500,000.00 =

29,264,000.00 =

7,000,000.00 -

5,200,000.00 =

5,000,000.00 45,500,000.00

5,000,000.00 2,000,000.00

1,900,000.00 6,759,160.00

204,919,500.00

28,000,000.00

5,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

370,000.00

660,586,840.87 392,300,138.26




30 June 2012
2012%6H30H

EHR-E 32,731,099.09 27,164,311.45

Weichai Deutz

LB O 5,486,776.50 =
Shaanxi Wanfang

BREEE S 1,034,629.53 1,046,825.53
Baoji Vehicle

EHER 964,305.19 -
CIMC-SHAC

HESR 218,600.00 -
Lantong Transmission

EREH 101,792.29 =

40,537,202.60 28,211,136.98

Dividends receivable

FE U B R

Eurostar Auto

BRET A ITE 3,040,000.00 3,040,000.00

Tonghui Transportation

BEYR 1,489,218.53 1,489,218.53

Xinlian Investment

EBAIR 35,000,000.00
4,529,218.53 39,529,218.53

No provision for bad debt was recognized for the aforesaid notes Ot BAEE T W R R - TR RUIE K AR

receivable, prepayments and dividends receivable from related PR E TR ER R -

parties.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related party relationships and transactions

(Continued)

6.

Amounts due from/to related parties

(Continued)

HRBNROBRAT

T 5 i 3 I R ()
201246 A30H (A E¥T)

A~ B T B AR e H A2 5 (4)
6. BAMES FEWEN RIERE

(&)

30 June 2012
20126 6H30H

Notes Payable
EBNRE

Lantong Transmission
EREIH
CIMC-SHAC
HESER

Huazhen Sancan
EH-E

Tongli Special Purpose
BHOER

Accounts Payable
BN RX

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
pro% & H

Westport New Energy
PO BEIR

Shaanxi Wanfang
PREaE T
CIMC-SHAC

HESER

Tongli Special Purpose
BAOEM=E

Huazhen Sancan
EH-E

Lantong Transmission
EREHH
Fangyuan Automobile
FEAE
Tongchuang Huaheng
FalES

Tonghui Transportation
BEDR

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
ML E

345,497,886.78

151,711,222.06

94,494,209.35

66,630,200.49

63,762,048.22

42,317,653.38

25,976,731.72

22,338,367.73

21,162,564.33

7,397,907.71

3,609,469.53

31 December 2011
20114%12A31H

10,000,000.00

5,000,000.00

5,000,000.00

2,000,000.00

22,000,000.00

119,556,906.21

50,326,319.76

84,616,875.41

32,883,692.49

89,446,918.72

27,003,983.40

37,157,111.32

20,160,253.77

27,404,531.62

9,131,562.32

705,301.32
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201246 A30H (A E¥T)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related party relationships and transactions 7~ ~ B i 5 Bl & e H 32 55 (%)
(Continued)

6. Amounts due from/to related parties

(Continued)

Weichai Deutz

SR8 HOR

Weichai Group Holdings
SRR

Changsha Huantong
RARB

Eurostar Auto

BiaTH e
Heavy-duty Coach Joint Industry and Trading
BEBIE

Yan'an Special Purpose
ELZHEAE

Tongjia Automobile
BRAE

Dalian Hongyuan
REB IR

Zhuzhou Gear Factory
iN=1

Xian Cummics
P02 AR AT

Laizhou Luyuan
HMEIR

Wenzhou Yunding
RMETE

Baoji Vehicle

BHEH

Shantui Heavy Industry
LEET

Shandong Shantui

L ER L

Xunyang Baotong
AGER

Weichai Import and Export
S O

B B 75 BB W BB Y TR OIR BR 2R

(&)

30 June 2012
201266 H30H

4,548,512.15

1,728,284.14

2,940,647.20

2,452,721.17

1,686,946.80

1,136,047.55

1,117,787.74

1,052,130.67

605,355.16

497,302.40

421,315.57

401,536.93

200,523.06

78,380.00

13,860.00

863,779,611.84

31 December 2011
20114%12A31H

283,674.76

2,861,964.41

3,401,770.93

1,211,907.05

2,710,934.99

365,458.47

1,024,318.67

17,864,431.03

401,536.93

43,400.00

11,508,020.00

6,651,433.51

546,722,307.09
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related party relationships and transactions

(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)

T 5 i 3 I R ()
201246 A30H (A E¥T)

7N~ i B AR e He AR 5 ()

6. BELEBWENKERE
(&)

30 June 2012 31 December 2011
201266 H30H 20114128318

Advances from customers
L E

Tongli Special Purpose
BOER

Shaanxi Wanfang
pREEE 75

Wenzhou Yunding

A INETE

Tongjia Automobile
BRTE

Fuping Logistics Park
EFnE

Shantui Engineering
e T A2

Changsha Huantong
RDIRB

Huazhen Sancan
EETE
Yangzhou Yaxing
HINEE

Other payables

Hb R

Shaanxi Automotive
R EE

Westport New Energy
BRI

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
pro% & H

Longmen Logistics Park
MR E

Yan'an Special Purpose
EZERE

4,083,866.00 3,574,655.00
2,952,618.00 6,349,446.00
78,574.90 38,574.90
41,683.25 =
20,000.00 i
3,895.68 2,241,262.22
2,201.60 2,201.60
4,098,402.53

215,476.84

7,182,839.43 16,520,019.09
34,649,165.19 42,987,103.94
8,000,000.00 -
3,191,766.18 77,855,087.67
3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00
1,300,000.00 300,000.00




EETE

Changsha Huantong
RARR

Tongli Special Purpose
BIHEMA

Fuping Logistics Park
EFnE
Tonghui Transportation
mEYR
CIMC-SHAC
HEER

Wenzhou Yunding
BINETE

Zhuzhou Gear Factory
R B8 R

Amounts due from/to related parties were non-interest bearing
and unsecured. Of which the terms of repayment for amounts of
trading nature will follow the requirement of terms of trading, while

amounts of non-trading nature have no fixed terms of repayment.

30 June 2012
2012%6HA30H

930,000.00

820,000.00 500,000.00

600,000.00 740,000.00
544,000.00 670,000.00
220,000.00 =
212,515.19 212,515.19
200,000.00 2,000,000.00
60,000.00 80,000.00
4,721,897.89

53,727,446.56 137,296,604.69

R W B B A BB O SR IR R RS
EERM - Hih o BHERNERRE
WESGEFRE  FEHERERETE
B e
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VII. Contingencies

1.

Exposure to Confirmation Risks

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited, a subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a tri-party cooperation agreement
with distributors and endorsing bank. Distributors will deposit
guarantee money of not lower than 30% to the bank and
apply for establishment of bank acceptance bill according to the
amount of credit facility provided by the bank. Shaanxi Heavy-
duty Motor Company Limited assumes security obligation in
favour of the distributors for the difference between amount of
notes and guarantee money. As at 30 June 2012, open position
of outstanding acceptance bill was RMB1,273,660,000.00 (31
December 2011: RMB719,080,000.00).

Finance lease business

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a cooperation agreement with each of
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. and CBD Leasing Co., Ltd.
("finance lease companies”). It is agreed by and between the two
parties that the finance lease companies shall provide finance
lease service to Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited or
its distributors. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited shall
provide joint liability guarantee in respect of the leasee’s failure to
pay the instalment payments and interests under the finance lease.
As at 30 June 2012, risk exposure of possible joint liabilities was
RMB464,189,000.00 (31 December 2011: RMB101,494,659.00).

VIII. Commitments

PO 5 i 3 M R (4)
201246 308 (A E¥T)
t- A HE

1. REEHORE

RABZFRAIRASZE TEFRA
A EEHRE RERIT=FF =
FEERZ  SHEARRITEATNK
R30%WRFESR - BIBELRTHTH
—EEREE - BREFAMBRITRLE
EoRAFHAREGRATALHEED
REZRCHERES 2R E5E
ERBFEMT - HE201266A308 ¢
MAZHNESEZHOEAARE
1,273,660,000.00 7T (2011412 A
318 : AR#719,080,000.007T) °

AMEREEXK
RRARZFRARKAERTEFRA
AIoREILEREREFR AR -
BemEEEREAF([MEHRERN
AIDEITEERE €N TRER
ERAARAERTEFRAANE
CHmRTRERERS - PRAER
AEARAAABREREN AR AR
REXHRERES BN EFER
HEHRERMT - HZ=2012F6A30
B e ESETREARKO A
AR #464,189,000.00 7T (2011 4F
128318 : AR%101,494,659.00
JL) °

I\~ AR S IH

Capital commitments B AR
Contracted, but not provided for EENEREE

Authorized by the Board,
but not contracted

EWEEGHAEBRELY

Investment commitment B AEH
Contracted, but not provided for BENEREE
— Shandong Heavy Industry Finance —IHEETEEMK

Co., Ltd. BRAF

Note 1
=3

2,097,267,593.43

2,110,104,251.43

30 June 2012
201256 H30H

31 December 2011
2011412 A31H

2,548,359,546.33

12,836,658.00 12,837,700.00

2,561,197,246.33

200,000,000.00




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VIII. Commitments (Continued)

IX.

Note 1:The resolution approving the establishment of Shandong Heavy Industry
Finance Co., Ltd. by the co-investment of the Company and its related parties
was considered and approved by the Board of the Company on 18 November
2010, and the Board of the Company entered into a contribution agreement
with its related parties on 16 January 2012. According to the resolution and the
agreement, the shareholding structure and proportion of capital contribution of
Shandong Heavy Industry Finance Co., Ltd. are as follows:
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B B5 3R B E (48
201246 A30H (A R¥T)

SIS

Auh S IH (7))

£1: R2010F 11 B1sBARAIEE=SE# it
ETARNR B XRARERIILRET
SEMBERARMNER - WR2012414
16 A ERRAEE 5 KRR T HE Wk - BRiEE
B WRETEETEAR A FRE
HEERHELGMT -

Contribution Percentage
Name of Shareholder RE&HE HESRE T4 EE A1
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd. WRETIEEFRAR 350,000,000.00 35%
Weichai Power Co., Ltd. HELLE) I RRID B R A A 200,000,000.00 20%
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd. HLEE AR AR A A 200,000,000.00 20%
Shantui Engineering Machinery Co., Ltd. WL T2 AR B R A ) 200,000,000.00 20%
China Jingu International Trust Co., Ltd. FEEABBREEEREEAR 50,000,000.00 5%
Total &5t 1,000,000,000.00 100%

Weichai Power Co., Ltd. has completed its contribution in full to Shandong Heavy Industry
Finance Co., Ltd. on 26 March 2012, and an asset verification report numbered Daxin Yan
Zi (K125F) (2012) No. 3-0003 was issued by Daxin Certified Public Accountants Co.,
Ltd.

Events after the balance sheet date

On 29 June 2012, the profit distribution scheme 2011 was reviewed and
approved at the 2011 annual general meeting of the Company. Based
on the 1,666,091,366 shares, representing the total share capital of the
Company, all shareholders were entitled to 2 shares with cash dividend
of RMB1 (incl. tax) for every 10 shares held. The total dividend distributed
amounted to RMB166,609,136.60. The Company’s total share capital
amounted to 1,999,309,639 shares after the distribution. As at the date
of approval for issuance of these financial statements, distribution of such

dividends had been completed.

On 30 August 2012, the Company’s interim profit distribution budget
2012 was reviewed and approved at the second meeting of the third
session of the Board of the Company: it was proposed that based on the
total number of shares of 1,999,309,639 shares, all shareholders were
entitled to a cash dividend of RMB1.00 (incl. tax) for every 10 shares held.
Upon receiving the authorization at the general meeting, such proposal

will be implemented after reviewed and approved by the Board.

ML NRHDBRARER2012F3 26 HERK
HURETEEMKERAREHEE  WAEH
AEEHMBEBEMARAREARERT2012)E
3-00035E BB EME ©

HErEAMEEKHRFH
M2012F6 A29R * ARRI2011FREA
FRAEEZBE20MNEEMNBIRAIR
AR A R 48 B% AN 1,666,091,366 % & &
H o mMEERERIORRE2R - RER
SAMARBEIT(EMH)  HIRERFA
R¥166,609,136.607T * EE{& AN A4
B AN A1,999,309,639 % - & = A8 i iR
REERLA - ZERFZBEMTE -

20124E8 A30RH » AR ZREFE®
FRBBTAR szziqﬂﬁm%w;&ﬂ“
¥t DA #8215 1,999,309,639 4% A &
H MEEREFIORKERSANAR
100 (EH)  SKRERSHOEE 1t
FREEZSERBBREREN -

—
A%
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other significant events

1.

Leases
For investment properties and operating lease-out of fixed assets,
refer to Notes V.13 and 14.

As the lessee
Material operating lease: Pursuant to the leasing contract signed
with the lessor, the minimum lease payables under non-cancellable

leases are as follows:

T 5 i 3 I R ()
201246 A30H (A E¥T)

1 Hfl T B I
1. HE
BREUEHERKCERHETEEE -
28 WeER - 13F114 -

EAEFE A
BEALEHE  REBEEBAAZITD
HEER @ TAHEHENRERE
IR ¢

Minimum lease payments
RIEHENRE
30 June 2012 31 December 2011
20126 6H30H 20114F12H31H

Within 1 year (including 1 year) 1FEAAR(E1E)
1-2 years (including 2 years) 1FR22F(529F)
2-3 years (including 3 years) 2FEEIF(E3F)
Over 3 years 3FEM L

27,371,235.38 26,353,788.59
20,301,171.52 23,670,895.95
19,503,241.65 20,392,287.80
112,273,705.19 129,762,087.30

179,449,353.74 200,179,059.64

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value

January-June 2012

2. U AEBEEFENEEMN
=L
2012%F1-6 A

Profit and loss

from changes Accumulated Impairment

in fair value fair value recognized

At period- in the current charged in the current

beginning

period to equity period At period-end

FHAAEE AR LN HE
LR 2BRE RAONEE i HRE

Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale ARHESHEE
financial assets 234,011,928.12

54,465,346.41 - 288,477,274.53



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other significant events (Continued)
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value

2.

(Continued)

Interim Report 2012 FRHEAZRE

I 5 2% BT R (48
201246308 (A E¥T)

+ ii{&i£$

(%)
UAnREBEFENEEM
&8E(R)

2011 20114F
Profit and loss
from changes Accumulated Impairment
in fair value fair value recognized
At year- in the current charged in the current
beginning year to equity year At year-end
RERABE st AR A REFRH
EE 298Bs AR ER HE FRE
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fairvalue AR 7 (EfEH &
through profit or loss BEEZEHAES
for the period BameRiE 3,672,000.00 (3,672,000.00) - - -
Available-for-sale HHESREE
financial assets 489,211,778.85 - (255,199,850.73) - 234,011,928.12
492,883,778.85 (3,672,000.00) (255,199,850.73) - 234,011,928.12

Segment reporting
Operating segments

The Group organizes and manages its operating business in

accordance with the nature of business and provision of products

and services. Each operating segment of the Group is one operating

group, providing products and services with risks and rewards

different from those of other operating segments.

The details of operating segments are as follows:

(@  manufacturing and sale of diesel engines and related parts

(“Diesel engines”);

(b)  manufacturing and sale of automobiles and major automobile

components other than diesel engines (“Automobiles and

other major automobile components”);

(0 manufacturing and sale of non-major automobile

components (“Non-major automobile components”);

(d)  provision of import and export services (“Import & export

services”).

2 B

&= ER
AEBEHNRERBREBEXFOMEE A
R PR B 2 mn M AR 7 0 AR A1 E
B o AEENEELED MBI —EE
BEE  REEHRTRNEMD
BB A L B 3 BT RIS E AR AR 2 0 AP
F ¥R B Y 2 A AR TS

[oH

K yaN
e

AT REEE D AR AE SRR
(a) HEMHER

GASES:E APk

<M K 48 BE AR

(b) HEMHEABERFEAREET
(e EEmE) ([TER
HahEZREZTEM])

(0 HENMHEFIBETIHMN
(TIEEBERETEML) -

(d) REFEEDB AR ([
%) e

A AR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other significant events (Continued)

3.

Segment reporting (Continued)

Operating segments (Continued)

Management monitors the results of operating segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted total
profits. The adjusted total profits are measured consistently with the
Group's total profits, except that interest income, finance expenses,
dividend income, gains from changes in fair value of financial
instruments as well as head office expenses are excluded from such

measurement.

Segment assets exclude equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss for the current period, derivative instruments,
dividends receivable, interests receivable, available-for-sale financial
assets, long-term equity investments, goodwill, deferred tax
assets and other unallocated head office assets as these assets are

managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude derivative instruments, borrowings,
income tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated
head office liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group

basis.

Inter-segment transfers are transacted with reference to the prices

used in the transactions carried out with third parties.

o 5 i R M R (48)
201246 A30H (A R¥T)

s ﬁ@i%%

ﬁHﬁ%Lg)
ranE (&)
B2 NI B AR T AR
WAW  HELBETHEERRS
PEITEIR - HHEE - UBENS
HABAZIETIE - ZNRRY
MBRELTRERNES  BTE
BRSO - S - RFIMA -
SBMIARRMESDYSEUARSS
BRZI  ZiEERARENBEHE
— 5 -

AREETEEALABEHBAK
;] ﬁk*ﬁﬁﬁm**ﬁ&ﬁ‘

E2)
THET A - BURF - BYCRIE - /]
ngﬁmj‘iﬁﬁ RHRERE &
2 ELERFREEMEMAD BN
BB ﬁ% EIEBAL%éEi’]E$
&

DHABIBETELIA AR &

RS BEMBHABEAREM
ADEMANEE  REERELR
BIEmAEESR—FRE -

DHRANEBEE  2RAE=T7E
IR SR AR ERHIE



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other significant events (Continued)

3.

Segment reporting (Continued)

Operating segments (Continued)

January-June 2012

Segment revenue: AHUA :

Sale to external customers NEPHE
Inter-segment sale AREHE
Total fit
Adjustment: HE:
Elimination of inter-seqment sale B TREE
Revenue WA

Seqment resuits GRS
Adjustment HE:
Elimination of inter-segment results BHEOUEES
Interest income FEMA

Dividend income and unallocated income & M\ Rk A B Mz
Corporate and other unallocated expenses 2R E & A EF
Finance expenses AL

Profit before tax HATFIE

Diesel engines

31

9,468,724,121.94

2,281,431,861.56

11,750,155,983.50

1,762,308,354.85

Interim Report 2012 s 227

P ik 2% B G (4
2012%6H30H(AR¥T)
+ o Al R S R (A
3. o#EmE (&)
gD E (&)
2012 1-6 A

Automobiles
and other major Non-major
automobile automobile Import & export
components components services
RERAM X
IEREREN RERHH EEORE

16,981,084,602.87 534,360,726.16 75506,168.90  27,059,675,619.87
156,262.01 39,194,948.82 - 2,320,783,072.39

16,981,240,864.88 573,555,674.98 75506,168.90  29,380,458,692.26

(2,320,783,072.39)

27,059,675,619.87

853,183,207.72 40,771,076.49 (8,226,161.36)  2,648,036,477.70
(323,256,569.06)

162,279,026.57

201,027,146.30

(17,236,368.59)
(162,750,618.37)

2,508,099,094.55
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 15 3R B R (AR
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201246 A30H (A R¥T)
X. Other significant events (Continued) + HAhEEEREIE(4)
3. Segment reporting (Continued) Bl ﬁ"Bﬁ%(ﬁi)
Operating segments (Continued) D E (&)
30 June 2012 2012$6H30E/
Automobiles
and other major Non-major
automobile automobile Import & export
Diesel engines components components services
REREH iz
£l ITRESHA REHH 0 RE
Segment assets HHEE 23,456,286,514.40  23,440,000,789.96 994,111,779.40 756,40557547  48,646,804,659.23
Adustment: FE:
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 1 47 SR ZE (1,752,349,400.86)
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ PEREMKIEEE 14,014,047,265.24
Total assets BEE 60,908,502,523.61
Segment liabllities HH8E 12,919,036,061.95  13,411,094,205.07 396,671,686.55 386,530,465.56  27,113,332,419.13
Adjustment: FE:
Elimination of inter-segment payables BANDEEMZE (1,786,284,462.15)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilites A ¥R EMKIEEE 4,851,364,940.75
Total liabilities aafk 30,178,412,897.73
January-June 2012 201251-68
Other segment information: Hppdas
Share of profit and loss from: EETHARNBERESR -
Gai/[loss) from associates BEORhE/ (B%) 40,496,51443 (15,538,731.91) - 69,883.80 25,027,666.32
Impairment loss of inventories FEAEEE 2,909,736.53 (5,185,467.51) (632,461.50) - (2,908,192.48)
Impairment reversalfoss) of accounts RN R E ko AR A
receivable and other receivables HEEE/(BX) (36,534,995.39) (29,494,445 81) (3,366,037.01) 448372.76 (68,947,105.45)
Depreciation and amortization mEREH (278,858,364.34) (405,889,686.09) (15,730,653.34) (12,970,737.55) (713,449,441.32)
Gainf(loss) from disposal of fixed assets ~ EFAEREFE/(B%) 1,529,170.51 2,319,319.31 294,962.32 - 4,143,452.14
Gain from disposal of intangible assets ~ EFAEREFIE 1,912,519.00 - - - 1,912,519.00
Product warranty fees ERREER (603,876,810.00) (260,834,264.57) - - (864,711,074.57)
Investment in associates REERINRE 783,756,862.96 222,965,650.34 - 47,0M,211.14 1,053,793,724.44
Capital expenditure VT (1,036,671,421.94)  (1,549,162,954.14) (35,652,658.55) (10,540,384.52)  (2,632,027,419.15)




egment revenue: PHUA -

Sale to external customers NEREHE 14,358,660,329.72  21,362,011,309.30 817,809,427.24 88932,72920  36,627,413,795.46
Inter-segment sale PHEHE 2,841,848,644.02 36757462 104,256,491.89 - 29647271053
Total At 17.200,508973.74  21,362,378,883.92 922,065,919.13 88,932,72920  39,573,886,505.99
Adjustment: HE:

Elimination of inter-segment sale BHENIHEE (2,946,472,710.53)
Revenue WA 36,627,413,795.46
Segment results PHEE 3,557,715,439.49 1,358,122,519.36 99,491,574.45 (10,387,423.16) 5,004,942,110.14
Adjustment: HE

Elimination of inter-segment results iR (341,767,284.58)
Interest income FlElA 81,686,678.53
Dividend income and unallocated income ReMARKSBUE 215,136,904.81
Corporate and other unallocated expenses P ERERAPEER (33,053,58892)
Finance expenses BB (85,157,567.17)
Profit before tax TAFE 4,841,787,252.81
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other significant events (Continued)

3.

Segment reporting (Continued)

Operating segments (Continued)

31 December 2011

PO 5 i 2 R (4)
201246 308 (A E¥T)

s ﬁ(@,iE%

1(#1)
2 EHmE (&)

Z<<< AA /_\_L ( zcm )

=

2011412 H31H

Automobiles
and other major Non-major
automobile automobile Import & export
Diesel engines components components Services Total
R FEE
Kk TERETHN RESHH DR Bt
Segment assets HHEE 2039517215398 23,155,033,858.92 1,335,817,706.65 666,318,120.09  45,552,341,839.64
Adustment: HE
Elimination of inter-segment receivables BENDRERT (1,655,244,665.81)
Corporate and other unallocated assets PERERED @Eﬁﬁ 17,647,450,246 41
Total assets BEE 61,544,547,420.24
Segment liabilities PEEE 12,639,396,308.66  13,683,690,256.90 564,768,086.61 24564802791 27,133,502,680.08
Adjustment: gE.
Elimination of inter-segment payables BEADRENY (1,699,381,896.45)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities PEREBAS @EE & 7,207,663,824.51
Total liabilities 28k 32,641,784,608.14
January-June 2011 0115168
Other segment information: HEpUER
Share of profit and loss from: EETIRRTEREE:
Associates N 38,953,343.18 (296,892.10) - 22547073 38,881,921.81
Impairment loss of inventories HFERERR (452,336.29) (26,522,070.60) (1,364,110.62) - (28,338,517.51)
Impairment loss of accounts receivableand ~ [EE 51 R E L
other receivables SmpERE (20,883,080.82) (46,183,868.76) (2,944,70.59) (143724782 (71,448 467.99)
Depreciation and amortization mERER (259,223,085.89) (394,083,629.62) (17,885,910.60) (6,284,612.53) (677,477,238.64)
Gainf(loss) from disposal of fived assets ATAERENE/(B%) 9,792,447.74 (5,559,273 .46) (6,377,419.67) (30,331.98) (2,17457737)
Product warranty fees ERREER (589,526,806.37) (155,322,486.75) - - (744,849,93.12)
Investment in associates REBENTNEE 675,032,071.96 139,659,451.81 - 3331137283 848,002,89.60
Capital expenditure ERRY (221342534869 (1,394,652,430.32) (135,674,842.16) (1312,09271)  (3,745,064,713.88)




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other significant events (Continued)
Segment reporting (Continued)

3.

Group information

Information about products and services

Revenue from external transactions

Interim Report 2012 FRHEARE

P ik 2% B G (48
201246 H30H (A R#T)
+ o Al S R (A
3. AoHHE(E)
SEER
EmMEH%EE
IR BN

January-June 2012

January-June 2011

2012 1-6 8 2011 1-6H
Diesel engines L 9,468,724,121.94 14,358,660,329.72
Automobiles and other major ABEREMEE
automobile components RE I 16,981,084,602.87 21,362,011,309.30
Non-major automobile components  3F== & /R B Z 2[4 534,360,726.16 817,809,427.24
Import & export services # O BRTS 75,506,168.90 88,932,729.20
27,059,675,619.87 36,627,413,795.46
Geographic information HhEEAZ 5
Revenue from external transactions HINZH A
January-June 2012 January-June 2011
20125 1-6 8 2011 1-6H
Mainland China B K fE PASPRNER Sl 34,494,957,212.32
Other countries and regions HAth B R A4 [ 117,640,038.12 149,261,246.21

27,059,675,619.87

Revenue from external transactions is attributable to the areas

where customers are located.

Total non-current assets

34,644,218,458.53

HINZZRARBREFPAERE -

FRBEELE

30 June 2012 31
20126 B30H 20

Mainland China

Other countries and regions

B K BE
H B R M &

December 2011
1M%F12831H

18,820,143,425.15
148,519,404.59

17,711,809,904.30

148,825,282.74

18,968,662,829.74

Non-current assets are attributable to the areas where the assets

are located, excluding financial assets and deferred tax assets.

17,860,635,187.04

FRBEERBRNZEEMERS -
TEReREEMELERSHEE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) B 75 i 3R M R ()
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2012F6 A30H (A E¥T)
X. Other significant events (Continued) + ﬁfli%ﬁg%ﬁ (%)
3. Segment reporting (Continued) DEBERE (4]’)
Group information (Continued) SBEEE(E)
Information about major customers FEEF;FE
Revenue of RMB2,570,469,892.69 (January to June 2011: LEI A ARMD2,570,469,892.69 7T
RMB4,300,261,010.32) was derived from sales by Diesel engines (20114 1-6A : AR#¥4,300,261,010.32
segment and Automobiles and other major automobile components TT) 3R B A S > SRR R B N Bt =
segment to a single customer, including sales to all entities which DAEEHG L, HEE —EEARE (R
are known to be under common control by that customer. EEMSZEPEH TR EEE)®
WA o
4. Financial instruments and their risks SRIARHERER

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than derivative
instruments, comprise borrowings, bonds payable, cash and cash
equivalents and available-for-sale financial assets, etc. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise funds for the
Group's operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as accounts receivable and notes receivable,
accounts payable and notes payable, which arise directly from its

operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are

credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

Financial instruments by category
The carrying amounts of each category of financial instruments as

at the balance sheet date are presented as follows:

30 June 2012

Financial assets

AEENFESRTIE  KRITETA
oy BREEXK  EBNES  BE%E
T AIHHLESREES - ELER
TEMIZENERALEENES
BE -AKBAEZEAKLEMAER
EEMHEMESBMEEMEE - LE
WiRH MR RE - BN R ERN
RBE-

AEEMemTAERNEEZARE
ERRR - mBRRETZRR

SRMIT AN
CEABEXRANSESRTANER
BENT

20126 H30H
SRIEE

Cash and cash equivalents BEEES

Notes receivable FEW R

Accounts receivable FE W R R

Other receivables HoAth FE MR
Available-for-sale financial assets AR ESREE

Total

At

Loans and

receivables

EXAE WA

13,007,409,424.51
11,786,874,364.17
5,572,766,817.95
545,391,578.89

30,912,442,185.52

Available-for-sale

financial assets

AHHETHEE

288,477,274.53

288,477,274.53

13,007,409,424.51
11,786,874,364.17
5,572,766,817.95
545,391,578.89
288,477,274.53

31,200,919,460.05




RHES

Other financial
liabilities

HitemaE

1,172,660,032.06

ong-term borrowings - 220,000,000.00
Accounts payable FET RN 11,353,453,483.78
Notes payable R ZE 6,096,533,351.50
Other payables H o FE 3R 4,056,392,780.65
Bonds payable Bt &S 2,690,809,458.24
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FRIEHIEREEE 624,000,000.00
Interests payable FERHF 2 126,410,978.29
Dividends payable JE A5 AR 203,201,517.95
26,543,461,602.47
31 December 2011 20114 12H31H
Financial assets TREE
Loans and Available-for-sale
receivables financial assets Total
ERMERTE  AHEEEREE At
Cash and cash equivalents BEES 16,612,740,784.48 - 16,612,740,784.48
Notes receivable EWZE 9,551,350,772.66 - 9,551,350,772.66
Accounts receivable FEUER X 4,737,509,830.84 - 4,737,509,830.84
Other receivables Hfth fE U 30 240,646,814.45 - 240,646,814.45
Available-for-sale financial assets AfHESREE - 234,011,928.12 234,011,928.12

Total

31,142,248,202.43

234,011,928.12 31,376,260,130.55
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other significant events (Continued)
4.

o 5 i % M R (48)
201246 A30H (A R¥T)
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Financial instruments and their risks (Continued)
Financial instruments by category (Continued)
31 December 2011 (Continued)

Financial liabilities

%mﬂlﬂ&ﬁﬂ[ﬁ(%ﬁ)
eMITEDE(E)
201146F12H31H (4)
SHEE

Other financial
liabilities

HiteraE

Short-term borrowings EHEAE K 1,541,238,008.87
Long-term borrowings RAEIER 352,254,546.00
Accounts payable AT BR X 13,078,975,509.97
Notes payable ERNEE 5,965,759,459.51
Other payables HihE I 2,990,669,199.84
Bonds payable ERES 2,687,471,069.22
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FRIEHNIERHARE 700,000,000.00
Interests payable ERFE 57,505,831.82
Dividends payable FEHRE R 59,135,231.94

27,433,008,857.17
Credit risk BN

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss on one party of a financial
instrument due to the failure of another party to meet its

obligations.

The Group trades only with recognized and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis to
ensure that the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant. For
transactions that are not denominated in the functional currency of
the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer credit terms
without the specific approval of the Department of Credit Control

in the Group.

ERREE  RESBTAN—T 6
BITER &S — T BEEMBEKX
HEK

REFEHRLERAMN - FERINE
ZHEIRS  HBASERER
FHMEERKRBERATRETRS
WEFPETERERZ - 39 A%H
YRR SRR TISE R - DA
RAEETHEBGEZRRR - ¥
PR ER PR A B 45 & B8 (i ) C AR AN M
HEORS  BRIERNEEEREHE
PIRE RIS - TRIRERMTREER
TP -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other significant events (Continued)

4.

Financial instruments and their risks (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale financial assets and
other receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. The Group is also exposed to credit risk through
the granting of financial guarantees, further details of which are
disclosed in Note VII.

The Group trades with its customers primarily on credit terms, and
generally requires payment in advance or cash on delivery for new
customers. Credit period is generally one month, extending up
to six months for major customers. Customers with good trading
record could be granted a longer credit period. Since the Group
trades only with recognized and creditworthy third parties, there
is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are
managed by customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk
within the Group as the customer bases of the Group’s accounts
receivable are widely dispersed in different sectors and industries.
The Group’s maximum possible credit risk equals to the carrying
amounts of accounts receivable in the consolidated balance sheet.
As at 30 June 2012, the Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk as 24.99% (31 December 2011: 22.28%) of the Group's

accounts receivable were receivables due from the top 5 customers.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from accounts receivable and other receivables are
disclosed in Notes V.3 and 6.

%rﬂIE& HI",‘E(%E)
ERRE(E)
AEBEMESBEERBEELES -
A EN S EE R E M ERR
E sEepEEMNEARRBIREER
SHFELH  HZARRMOSFREL
TENEESE - ASEEREHM
BEARMERERARR - FRMHELE
R -

AEFEEFENE SBERIUAEAR
SRE  B—WRERFELENMNKK
ERERMRANET - ERBHET
RIER  FEXPANULERZEG6HE
A RSTHRITNE P A ESLER
EHOEER AR ASEEERLRR
WEEBRENE=ZFETRS '
NEFERY - EREREPRRE
F/RSHF - IR EEMITEET
B AR AEBEMNENERERE P
Bie i BN AR ERPIFITE A
HitE AL BRI FEERERER
& - EHEEAGBRPREKER
FEREEELEASEE A EEEN &
KEEARE - K2012F6A308 + &
EENERERPERBERATAEE
FHIFIER24.99% (2011812 A 31
H:22.28%) AEBEWAKRERE
NERERER -

7N 5= [ [R) JiE Uk BR 3ORN EL i e U R E A
B{E AR O E(LEE - 2 R
ST~ 3F16H ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 % B R ()
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2012F6 A30H (A E¥T)
X. Other significant events (Continued) + ﬂi fib B BE I (4H)
4. Financial instruments and their risks (Continued) ERMIBEREE(E
Liquidity risk B e

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise may encounter deficiency

of funds in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

The Group maintains balance between continuity and flexibility of
capital through bank loans and debts to manage its liquidity risk.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
and flexibility of funding through the use of bank borrowings,
bonds and other interest-bearing borrowings. As at 30 June 2012,
89.09% (31 December 2011: 87.48%) of the Group’s borrowings

would mature in less than one year.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of financial assets
and financial liabilities based on the undiscounted contractual cash

flows:

30 June 2012

Financial assets

less than 3 months 3 months to 1 year

SR 3EARLEIE

Cash and cash equivalents S &4 7,588,263,374.58  5,415,996,282.69

Notes receivable EREE 5,150,590,759.45 6,636,283,604.72
Accounts receivable TEUBE TR 6,331,445,178.85 -
Other receivables Hip U 599,723,382.31 =

19,670,022,695.19  12,052,279,887.41

mEBEE - RECREBRITREEEA
BERNEGRBIESERHE

AEERBNARTERREBER
’ﬁ%k BMHETRE 2 MEFE - A
/\//IL:E)J HEHIZA\

AEEMBIERERARTER - BEF
MEMTEERELEREF RN
RERENZEHET T ENTE -
#2012 6 A308 » A% E89.09%
(20115128310 : 87.48%)W1&E
EERZIEARTIE o

TEREETeRmEENERAEBERR
WHENERRSREFMEN I HER
DT

20126 H30H
SRIEE

1-5 years Over 5 years Total
18U LESF SENE Bt

3,149,767.24 13,007,409,424.51

= 11,786,874,364.17
= 6,331,445,178.85
= 599,723,382.31

3,149,767.24 31,725,452,349.84




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other significant events (Continued)

Financial instruments and their risks (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
30 June 2012 (Continued)

4.

Financial liabilities

Short-term borrowings
(including tax)

Long-term borrowings
(including tax)

Accounts payable

Notes payable

Other payables

Bonds payable
(including tax)

Non-current liabilities due
within one year
(including tax)

Dividends payable

N oy = mp =
‘@iﬂ'mﬁ@mi’,ﬁfmﬂﬁ
\:@ﬁﬂﬁ-v%‘-vﬁ-

Sl

(ﬁ 8)

—FREHN
R
afE(Eg8)

FER IR

less than 3 months

SR3MER

736,412,236.80

2,631,452.06
11,353,453,483.78
3,910,185,568.84
4,056,392,780.65

146,110,000.00

407,891,249.32
203,201,517.95

20,816,278,289.40

3 months to 1 year
MERALLEE1E

463,973,220.04

7,894,356.16

2,186,347,782.66

229,357,798.62

2,887,573,157.48
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THAR

1-5 years
1N EESE

222,213,610.96

3,153,080,000.00

3,375,293,610.96

Over 5 years
SEHRE

1,200,385,456.84

232,739,419.18
11,353,453,483.78
6,096,533,351.50
4,056,392,780.65

3,299,190,000.00

637,249,047.94
203,201,517.95

27,079,145,057.84

31 December 2011 20114128314
Financial assets SREE
less than 3 months 3 months to 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
SH3EA EANLEE 15 FE5%E SELE A%
Cash and cash equivalents ~ E%&4 11,601,089,334.77  4,994,133,805.84 17,517,643.87 - 16,612,740,784.48
Notes receivable EWREE 2,952,932,395.70  6,598,418,376.96 - - 9,551,350,772.66
Accounts receivable FEUEE 4,930,626,561.88 518,562,791.29 - - 5449,189,353.17
Other receivables HiER R 294,804,974 .46 - - - 294,804,974 .46
19,779,453,266.81  12,111,114,974.09 17,517,643.87 - 31,908,085,884.77
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30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other significant events (Continued)

4,

o 5 i % M R (48)
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Financial instruments and their risks (Continued) tRMIERERK(E)
Liquidity risk (Continued) VeI ACY,
31 December 2011 (Continued) 2011412 H31H (&)
Financial liabilities TRIBE
less than 3 months 3 months to 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
SRIMA MEAMLERIF 1E A EZ5F SEME it
Short-term borrowings ~ EHIE
(including tax) (88) 707,563,634.26 876,100,475.00 - - 1,583,664,109.26
Long-term borrowings K EIE K
(including tax) (88) 4,675,425.00 14,026,275.00 357,167,800.00 4,254,546.00 380,124,046.00
Accounts payable BT BRR 13,078,975,509.97 - - - 13,078,975,509.97
Notes payable [ERES 3,437,885,129.66 2,527,874,329.85 - - 5,965,759,459.51
Other payables HiENR 2,990,669,199.84 - - - 2,990,669,199.84
Bonds payable [ERE%
(including tax) (88) - 146,110,000.00 3,153,080,000.00 - 3,299,190,000.00
Non-current liabilities due  —4 | #1 £
within one year ERE
(including tax) 8&(28) 9,267,187.50 715,932,812.50 = = 725,200,000.00
Dividends payable JE AR F 59,135,231.94 - - 59,135,231.94

20,288,171,318.17

4,280,043,892.35  3,510,247,800.00

4,254,546.00  28,082,717,556.52

As at 30 June 2012, other secured obligations in respect of the

Group’s commitments to external parties are detailed in Note VII.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market prices.
It mainly includes interest rate risk, currency risk and other price

risk, such as equity price risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market
interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates primarily relates to the Group’s financial

instruments with a floating interest rate.

M2012F6 8308 » AEBEINFEIE
EMREETNSEFRNELE -

% = b

THERE  RESBRIANAAREE

FRKRBASRERTISER S )M

&@mﬂhom%@@zxa%ﬂ
[ELRE - HNEE & B AN E (B S RS

igETRREERRR -

Y E E

MEER RESHRIANIAEE
SHORMIR D RE R T 5 N KB H i %
EREY YRR o AN 5 [ TH R E T 55 A
REFHE T 2 EAEE AT EF
FEEMERMTARR -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other significant events (Continued)
4. Financial instruments and their risks (Continued)

Market Risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
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The table below is a sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk. It reflects

the effects on the net profit (through the impact on floating interest

rate of financial assets and liabilities) and equity, when there are

reasonable and potential changes in interest rates, under the

presumption that other variables remain unchanged.

%rﬂIE& HI‘:‘E(%E)

mizE kg (&)

eI AC P,

TRANERERE S BKREDT - R
TEEMESTEN/REIT @ FXB

A5 - ATRERE B - A EDEFE

(BBRHZHFNEcHEEMEED

HE)NMBRREREENTE o

Benchmark Net profit Equity
increase/ increase/ increase/
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
BEEY % F R ER
®hn, Of2) #im,/ CEa) #im,/ CEa)
January-June 2012 2012%1-6 A
RMB ARHE 5 (660,390.00) (660,390.00)
RMB AR¥ (5) 660,390.00 660,390.00
January-June 2011 20114 1-6 A
RMB AR¥E 5 (854,428.00) (854,428.00)
RMB AR (5) 854,428.00 854,428.00
Currency risk SNE B B
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows SNEREPE - RIESBIAMNAREE
of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign R R IR & i = B SN B 3 B B i B
exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to currency risk mainly relates AR BN E B o AN £ B Fa ) JNE &
to its operating activities (when revenue and expenses are settled in PRKFZHAEENLEEH(E

a foreign currency that is different from the functional currency of

the Group) and its net investments in overseas subsidiaries.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity analysis of currency

risk to a reasonably possible change in exchange rates, with all

other variables held constant, of the net profit (due to changes in

the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities) and equity.

Y 57 A [B) 0 7 &2 18 RE BR AR 2 B ey S
BREER) RERRINFRANFR
BEEM -

Ti%i%ﬁ\\lﬁﬂﬁﬁ’\]@(’ﬁ?’l‘%“*ﬁ " R
TEEMEETENERT AT
Fﬁﬁ‘J?\\%E%%éi/—\iE + A REHY &
o BEFMB(BREBEEEM
EEMHERENAREEZL) MER
BEELNTE -
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X. Other significant events (Continued) o~ ol 2 I ()
4. Financial instruments and their risks (Continued) 4., SWMIARHREK(E)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Market Risk (Continued) 5@k (&)
Currency risk (Continued) SMNE R iz (4B)
Exchange rate Net profit Equity
increase/ increase/ increase/
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease)*
E=x 3 R RERER
#im, CEd) #m, Chd) #whn, G )*
January-June 2012 20125 1-6 A
If RMB weakens against USD ARBHEXTRE 5% 23,719,272.01 5,679,596.78
If RMB strengthens against USD A R¥ ¥ £ T A& 5% (23,719,272.01) (5,679,596.78)
If RMB weakens against EUR ARBHBIRE 5% 3,641,877.91 2,988,546.56
If RMB strengthens against EUR A R¥$H® T A& 5% (3,641,877.91) (2,988,546.56)
If RMB weakens against HKD ARBHBERE 5% (3,044,536.93) 8,250,723.08
If RMB strengthens against HKD A RS % B AE 5% 3,044,536.93 (8,250,723.08)
January-June 2011 20114 1-6 A
If RMB weakens against USD AREEHETEE 5% 3,482,103.34 5,688,447.55
If RMB strengthens against USD ARBEHETLAE 5% (3,482,103.34) (5,688,447.55)
If RMB weakens against EUR ARBHBTRE 5% 1,060,093.47 6,817,964.29
If RMB strengthens against EUR ANREHE T E 5% (1,060,093.47) (6,817,964.29)
If RMB weakens against HKD ARG B (E 5% (3,940,779.65) 8,626,098.63
If RMB strengthens against HKD ARBHBEAE 5% 3,940,779.65 (8,626,098.63)

* Excluding retained earnings.



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other significant events (Continued)

4.

Financial instruments and their risks (Continued)
Market Risk (Continued)

Equity investment price risk

Equity investment price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of share
indices and the value of individual securities. The Group was
exposed to equity investment price risk arising from individual
equity investments classified as available-for-sale equity investments
(Note V.9) as at 30 June 2012. The Group held listed equity
investments that are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and
NASDAQ and are valued at quoted market prices at the balance

sheet date.

The market share indices for the following stock exchanges, at the
close of business of the nearest trading day to the balance sheet
date, and their respective highest and lowest closing points during

the period/year were as follows:

EE-ARIEH
EREMHETER
mAER

Shanghai — A Share Index
NASDAQ Composite Index
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eRITARHERER(E
miZER (&)

B T AR EEERR
EmTAKREERRR  RiE#ExE
BEHAABERERKREIEEKTERME
RBEHFEEHZCMBEENRR - B
20126 A30H ' AEERERE
BEATHINEEETARE (M
A MERNER TEKEmMEE
Wikm TAREEEREBRZT - A%
EFEM LEmERTARERE LEH
EEMITERNBELFRSHMET - I
HEEERABRBUMSRERE -

NTEFRZHAN  EREZOLEER
BEXRANR S A NERENTERE
B URBEA/FERNEEAN
RERERHMEEWBRNT

January to
June 2012 2011
lle|ps578 31 December Highest/
Lowest 2011 Lowest

20125
1-6 A 20114 20114
RS/ ®RIE 12A31H &/ &K
2,596/2,234 2,304 3,202/2,269
3,123/2,605 2,605 2,888/2,332
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30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other significant events (Continued)
Financial instruments and their risks (Continued)

4

Market Risk (Continued)

Equity investment price risk (Continued)

o5 i 25 BT 5 E (48
201246 308 (A E¥T)

s ﬁﬂiﬂi%%lﬁ(%ﬁ)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s net

profit and equity to every 5% change in the fair values of the equity

investments, with all other variables held constant (based on their

carrying amounts at the balance sheet date). For the purpose of this

sensitivity analysis, for the available-for-sale equity investments, the

effect is deemed to be on the changes in fair values of available-for-

sale equity investments and no account is given to factors such as

impairment which might affect the income statement.

January-June 2012

Equity investments

Shanghai — Available-for-sale
equity investments

US — Available-for-sale equity

2012%F1-6 8

HHTAKRE
B -t ek

TAEKE

R - EEs

Carrying value
of equity
investments
REXTARSE
IREEE

286,000,000.00

SRMIARHERERE(E
MR (&)
%Eé.‘[ﬁﬁzﬁf;’i%ﬂﬂﬁ(%)

ﬁ'$%ﬁmﬁﬂﬂﬁkiﬁﬁﬁ
R TAREN AR BENES%H
ZH(LNEEEBERANKEEEERR
%%M@mﬁoﬁ$@@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
CHRAEHERSTARE - Z
SR AR EERTAKRE
R EEZSHHNZE - T EEA
CRERARESEE R -

@tﬁwnn
mlcfﬁ?» =omE

Increase in
equity*

BRER
0>

Increase in
net profit
7
20

12,155,000.00

investments TEAKRE 2,477,274.53 105,284.17
Total &t 288,477,274.53 12,260,284.17
Carrying value
of equity Increase in Increase in
investments net profit equity*
EETITARE R FIE R
IREEE i 0
2011 20114
Equity investments EETAEKRE
Shanghai — Available-for-sale -t EEE
equity investments TE®/SE 232,400,000.00 - 9,877,000.00
US — Available-for-sale equity EE - A EEs
investments TAKRE 1,611,928.12 - 68,506.95
Total A5t 234,011,928.12 - 9,945,506.95

* Excluding retained earnings.

*

TEEEFRE -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other significant events (Continued)

4.

Financial instruments and their risks (Continued)
Fair value

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged,
or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an
arm’s length transaction. The following methods and assumptions

were used to estimate the fair values.

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, notes receivable,
accounts receivable, notes payable, accounts payable and short-
term borrowings etc. approximate their carrying amounts due to the
short term maturities of these instruments. The fair values of long-
term borrowings and bonds payable approximate their carrying
amount due to the similarity between the contracted interest rate

and coupon rate and market interest rate.

The fair values of listed financial instruments are determined based

on the quoted market prices.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for fair value measurement:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities available on the
measurement date; Level 2: fair values measured by adjusting
quoted prices of similar assets or liabilities from active markets
available on the measurement date or quoted prices of identical
or similar assets or liabilities from non-active markets; Level 3:
fair values measured based on inputs used by market participants
in the valuation of assets or liabilities when there is no available

comparable market prices of identical or similar assets.
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F—EBR FZER E=ERX aF

quity instruments 288,477,274.53 - 288,477,274.53
31 December 2011 20114 12A31H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rl N HoER FE=BRX &t
Available-for-sale financial assets AJ{HE S FERE
Equity instruments BRTE 234,011,928.12 = - 234,011,928.12
Available-for-sale financial assets are detailed in Note V.9. AHHEESREEFRWER - 9-
5. Other financial information 5. HBHEER

30 June 2012 31 December 2011
2012F6A30H 20114124318
Group Company Group Company
el A 8 A7

Net current assets REERETE 13,966,098,004.30  10,657,623,235.74 |REFELYANIEAVEE] 9,226,716,457.41
Total assets less current liabilities BERERNRBARE S I SIORE SO0l I B e 32,131,210,160.81  22,437,263,163.85




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other significant events (Continued)

6.

Other matters

Prior to its acquisition by absorption by the Company, Torch
Automobile Group Co., Ltd. CRAXE/REELER KB ERAF)
entered into a Pledge Contract ((&Z#& ) ) with Yinchuan
Commercial Bank (88| 2£4R7T) on 1 January 2004, to pledge
to the bank all of the 56.1127 million shares in New Century
Finance Leasing Co., Ltd Gttt @ & @B EHBREE2AR]), and
together with other shareholders of New Century Finance Leasing
Co., Ltd, jointly provided pledge guarantee for the grant by {#
HE BBt E AR AR to the bank of credit facilities in the
aggregate amount of RMB600 million. On 1 January to 5 March
2004, FEIRIEER A AR AT drew down the facilities in ten
times with a total amount of RMB448 million, which was not repaid
when fall due. As such, on 23 June 2004, Yinchuan Commercial
Bank took legal action in the High People’s Court of Ningxia
Autonomous Region (22 E Bk BJAE =M A RER). According to
the civil ruling of the court on 25 June 2004, all shareholding held
by it in New Century Finance Leasing Co., Ltd were frozen. In view
of the cessation of operations of New Century Finance Leasing Co.,
Ltd due to the serious violation of regulations in its operations, in
2005, the former TAGC made full provision for impairment in the
amount of RMB61.068 million in respect of its shareholdings in

New Century Finance Leasing Co., Ltd.
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RABRWE FFRTE RN ERE L E
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NHEERTEICEREGR) « 1
HSttLenEEEREEAA
B95,611.27 & B IR 2 208 # 45 %
T ENELSRESEREEARA
B H A% 3R [R) 74 07 T B B PR = 7R 2%
BERARIMZITRBGREREREE
ARBGIETIRHERER - 2004F
1A1BZ3A50  FHEELEE
BRAREFEELELI0Z  BBE
e AR¥4.48E T - BEHERER
& o Eitt - 20044F 6 A23AR)II TR
ERTMEENZREAESRARE
PTie R 7D o &% BT 20044 6 A 25
BMENRERTE  RETEREW
Mt R T AR - AR L SR
HEEREFLANRBEERLYE -
EWESEERE  WRMANEER
2005F ATt LemMEERR
BEEQAANREDENIRMELERE
6,106.80{& 7T °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XI. Notes to key items of the parent financial
statements

1.

Accounts receivable

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit
except for new customers, where payment in advance or cash
on delivery is normally required. The credit period of accounts
receivable is generally one month, extending up to six months for

major customers. Accounts receivable is non-interest bearing.

An aging analysis of accounts receivable based on the invoice date is

presented as follows:

PO 5 i % Ff R (4)
201246 A30A (A E#¥T)

TR A ) BB B IR H

g4
1. EWERR

AEEBAZFPHEMNEZERRAEAR
HRE  A—REFHEFEMRK
RBMERNRADAET  ERHEF
BIUER  TBEFPANERE6HE
A o BYBRRITEE ©

RIEMAFZAE - BURSERER D T0

TR ¢

30 June 2012
20126 H30H

Within 1 year 1F AR
1-2 years 18226
2-3 years 2E3F
Over 3 years 3FME

1,002,732,641.74

3,518,650.03

o EUMRFUR R

Less: Provision for bad debt for

accounts receivable

1,006,251,291.77

53,643,022.32

952,608,269.45

Changes in provision for bad debt for accounts receivable are

presented as follows:

31 December 2011
2011412 831H

779,144,682.84

3,518,650.03

782,663,332.87

32,468,493.06

750,194,839.81

FEWBR R R BB IT ¢

30 June 2012
201246 H30H

32,468,493.06
21,174,529.26

Opening balance ER¥N &
Provision for the period/year NHRFEEHR
Decrease during the period/year AER R
Reversal a2 (g
Closing balance BAR

53,643,022.32

31 December 2011
2011412A831H

37,230,516.39

(4,762,023.33)

32,468,493.06




30 June 2012
201296 A30H
Gross carrying Provision for
amount Proportion bad debt Percentage
&8 L]l BIRE®H SRS
(%) (%)

Individually significant BIHEGHEEKN
items for which I B IR AR A

provision for bad debt is

recognized separately
Items for which provision R4 & HiRIZBR &
for bad debt is

recognized

by group 1,006,251,291.77 53,643,022.32
Not individually significant BB 45 # & K

items for which BB IR R

provision for bad debt is

recognized separately

1,006,251,291.77 53,643,022.32




I B IR T R AR

debt is recognized separately - - - -
Items for which provision for ¥R #H A sHiRIZEREME

bad debt is recognized

by group 782,663,332.87 100.00 32,468,493.06 415
Not individually significant BESEHTEK

items for which provision BB IR R ERERS

for bad debt is recognized

- for which provision for bad

separately - - - -

782,663,332.87 100.00 32,468,493.06




P 4
30 June 2012
201256 H30H
Gross carrying Provision for
amount Proportion bad debt Percentage
8 Ee 1 RIRERE  FHRLEA
(%) (%)

Within 1 year 1,002,732,641.74 99.65 50,124,372.29

1-2 years 1224 = = =
2-3 years 2E3F - - -
3-4 years 3E4F = - -
4-5 years 4354 - - -
Over 5 years SEFAE 3,518,650.03 . 3,518,650.03

1,006,251,291.77 53,643,022.32




1-2 years 18226 ~

2-3 years 2E3F -
3-4 years 3E4F -
4-5 years 4ZE55F 11,912.07
Over 5 years S5 3,506,737.96

0.00 9,529.66 80.00

0.45 3,506,737.96 100.00

782,663,332.87

100.00 32,468,493.06

As at 30 June 2012, there was no accounts receivable from
shareholders that held 5% or more of the voting shares of the
Company (31 December 2011: Nil).

M20129F6A308 « RNERF#HEFE
EWFEBEARRS%(E5%) A LR
RIERD KRR B AR (20114
128318 : &) -



Zhengzhou Yutong Bus Co., Ltd

M FREERMNARAA

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd.
pREgERTEFRA A

Faw Jiefang Qingdao Auto Factory

— RSB AER

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd.
HRBERBRMARAA

Baotou Northerm Benz Heavy Truck Company Limited
BRI A B AHEFRAT

142,680,502.91

138,776,473.90

117,452,108.43

64,659,522.87

63,676,951.18

527,245,559.29

Within 1 year
1FE AR
Within 1 year
1FE AR
Within 1 year
1FE AR
Within 1 year
1FE AR
Within 1 year
1F AR

14.18

13.79

11.67

6.43

6.33

52.40



Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd.
PREgERTEF R A A

Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd.
bREEARERNDER AR

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery Co, Ltd
HRBRBRMARAA

Shanghai Longgong Machinery Company Limited
BI(LE)MBREFTRAR

Shandong Weichai Import and Export Co., Ltd.
IR L O AR AR

513,062,395.91

55,340,332.92

31,514,845.13

18,230,260.00

6,520,633.80

624,668,467.76

Within 1 year
1 LA
Within 1 year
1 AR
Within 1 year
1 AR
Within 1 year
1 AR
Within 1 year
1FE AR

65.55

7.07

4.03

2.33

0.83

79.81



30 June 2012
2012%6H30H

1,291,289,585.20
40,657,377.76
2E34 ' ‘ 12,863,576.10 .
3FEB F 27,042,418.44 26,415,014.12

1,371,852,957.50 814,357,470.94

Less: Provision for bad debt for other 3 : H fib & U 57338 AR =45
receivables 45,801,981.58 43,860,169.51

Closing balance AR 1,326,050,975.92 770,497,301.43

30 June 2012 31 December 2011
2012568308 115128318
Gross Provision for Gross Provision
carrying amount  Proportion WELOEISSEGEENY  canying amount  Proportion forbaddebt  Percentage
£ 4] BREE  HRUA x| il SRERE  HRUA
(%) (%) (%) (%)

Items for which provision forbad B A HIEREEE
debt is recognized by group 1,371,852,957.50 100.00 45,801,981.58 b 814,357,470.94 100.00 43,860,169.51 539

1,371,852,957.50 100.00 45,801,981.58 | 814,357,470.94 100.00 43,860,169.51 5.39

As at 30 June 2012, there was no individually significant other MN2012F6 8300 - MEIBELEEE
receivables for which provision for bad debt was recognized A BB TEH IR R A H b FE U X

separately (31 December 2011: Nil). (20114128318 : &) -



30 June 2012
2012568308
@ross Provision for
carrying amount  Proportion bad debt  Percentage ing
8 b BEER  SHEMH 'f?
(%) ()]

W Jea 1,291,289,585.20 12,472,328.76 0.97 725,877,459.96 862,647.6 08
12 years 1225 40,657,371.76 6,098,606.66 44591,419.57 548 7,690462.94 17.4

2-3 years 153F 12,863,576.10 3,859,072.83 17473,5771.29 215 5.242,073.19 30.00
3-4 years 3FUE 688,627.40 34431370 38,695.30 0.00 19,347.65 50.00
45 years 4255 16,630,657.03 : 13,304,525.62 16,653,403.61 204 13322,722.89 80.00

Over 5 years SENE 9,723,134.01 9,723,134.01 9,722915.21 119 97229151 100.00

Total aif 1,371,852,957.50 45,801,981.58 814,357, 470.94 100.00 43,860,169.51

As at 30 June 2012, the top 5 other receivables are presented as MN2012FE6 308 - EMtElR RS %8
follows: AAERWT :

Percentage of

total other
Amount  Age receivables
1 H 1t P& WU
£HE RR BEM LB
(%)
Weichai Power (Hong Kong) International Development 197,227,354.28  Within 1 year 14.38
Co., Ltd. 1R
HEB N (BR)BERBERER LA
Chongging Jialing Chuanjiang Vehicles Manufacturing 130,370,000.00  Within 1 year 9.50
Co., Ltd. 1FE AR
EEMREIILAEERAAF
WEICHAI POWER MAT AUTOMOTIVE, INC. 44,457,000.00  Within 1 year 3.24
15 AR
Xinjiang Machinery Equipment Import & Export Co., Ltd. 16,630,657.03  4-5 years 1.21
MERMRREELDERAR 4-5%F
Weichai Power (Weifang) Intensive Logistics Co., Ltd. 12,177,714.97  Within 1 year 0.89
HERB N D) ENRZBR DR 1A

400,862,726.28 29.22
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30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XI. Notes to key items of the parent financial

statements (Continued)

2.

Other receivables (Continued)
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T B A R M ORI H AR

|

R (8

2.

As at 31 December 2011, the top 5 other receivables are presented

as follows:

HEW(E)
M20114F128318 - HibEW S
R AZOT :

Percentage of

total other
Amount  Age receivables
15 L fth & WK
THE R HEEERI LI
(%)
Weichai Power (Hong Kong) International Development Co., Ltd. 197,227,354.28  Within 1 year 24.22
B N (BB ERERERAF 1 AR
Chongging Jialing Chuanjiang Vehicles Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 63,370,000.00  Within 1 year 7.78
EEMERE)IIAEERAA 1FE AR
Zhuzhou Torch Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 18,823,892.02  1-3 years 2.31
MR ER B EEREER A 1E3%F
Xinjiang Machinery Equipment Import & Export Co., Ltd. 16,630,657.03  4-5 years 2.04
BN REHEE D ERAA 4-5%F
Hangzhou Hongyuan Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 9,203,387.08  Qver 5 years 1.13
TN R AR A =) S E
305,255,290.41 37.48

As at 30 June 2012, there was no other receivables from

shareholders that held 5% or more in the voting shares of the

Company (31 December 2011: Nil).

2012F6 43008  AERFHESE
FEWRIFAEARNRTS%(E5%) A L&
SRIERR D IR R BRI FRIA (20114
128318 : &) -

Investment in associates 3. BHHMELERSE
Registered Legal Nature of Registered
Type of enterprise address representative business capital
=k £ il o i 3t EARE EBHE HEMEAR
Weichai Power Westport Weifang City, Ma Yuxian Manufacturing UsSD1,854,400.00
New Energy Engine Co., Ltd Shandong Province 5§ E 5& BlE %7t1,854,400.00
ML E) P FT LR =B A T
BEHERAA
Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye Shanghai Nie Xinyong Project investment 150,000,000.00
Investment Co., Ltd. g =B HRERE
FEESMAIEREARAA
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd.  Beijing Dong Ping Finance leasing 920,000,000.00
LWEmEHREERAA Sl 5T MEHE



mge  LEABAERAERAT

Investment Co, Ld. 53149825529 15442743437 37707082092 - 7162860677
Shanzhong Finance Leasing LEBREREERAR

Co, Lid 400990893005 301067982053 9992910952 13425353592 2181931327
Long-term equity investments RIBRERE

Unlisted Investment FELEMIEE
Cost method A E
Equity method — associates EwE-BErE(EEREFEE)

(attributable net value of the

corporation)

Less: Provision for impairment of B RERRR I AR B EE

long-term equity investments

30 June 2012
201246 HA30H

6,058,608,865.56

588,293,588.29

6,646,902,453.85

133,186,712.10

6,513,715,741.75

31 December 2011
20114128318

6,123,083,254.61

391,795,019.70

6,514,878,274.31

133,186,712.10

6,381,691,562.21
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XI. Notes to key items of the parent financial +— £/ & 3 % B % % 5 H 5
statements (Continued) B (H)
4. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 4. RERERE(E)
As at 30 June 2012, the breakdown of long-term equity investments MR2012FE6 308 » RAE K B

under cost method was as follows:

RERAWT :

Increase/ Provision for
reduction impairment Cash
Investment Opening in current Closing ~ Percentageof  Percentageof Provision for incurrent  dividend in
cost balance period balance  shareholding  votingrights  impairment period  current period
kiR
REALLE 5% KN HRY BREA RRERA HEER HERE AEREMA
Weicha Power (Wefang) Spare Part Resources #58))(%5) BRARERNA
(o, lt. 10141023834 1014103834 - 10141023834 100.00% 100.00% 9983402680
WeichaiPower (Wefang) O o, Lid. B0 (45 AR 1070615911 10,706,159.11 - 107061591 100.00% 100.00% 1,16,386.32
WelchaiPower (Weflang) Casing Co, Lid. A58 (45 BRRRAT 460,150,00000  460,150,000.00 - 460,150,000 100.00% 100.00% 16343431837
Thuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co, L. fEEAEAEERRERAA 0190192583 18598405824 1591786759 2019019583 100.00% 100.00%
Thuzhou Torch Machinery Manufactuing Co, Ltd.—— tEE KB RAR AR AT 13080899314 130898993.14 - 13089699314 10000% 10000%
Thuzhou Torch Auto Lighting Co, Lt. A ERERARRARA 3836318085 3836318085 - 3836318085 100.00% 100.00%
Thuzhou Torch Auto Seling Co, Lt HREAEREZ ARE AT - 1501786759 (15917867.59) - TR TR
Torch mport & Expot Co, Lid NEELDAREEAT BIB0AB 3397305498 - BIB0A% 10000% 10000%
WEICHAI POWER MAT AUTOMOTIVE, INC. WEICHAI POWER MAT AUTOMOTVE, INC. ~~ IREE{URR PR LS DA o - IB05128 10000% 10000%
Weicha Power (Weflang) Reconstrcton Co, L. BR8N (45)ERELT 122,00000000  122,000,00000 - 12200000000 100.00% 10000%

Weichai Power (Hong Kong) Interational
Development Co, Lid.

Weichai Power (Shanghai) Technology
Development Co, Lid.

Weichai Power (Chongging) Westem
Development Co, Lid.

Weichai Power (Befing International
Resource Investment Co,, Ltd.

Xinjiang Equipment Imports and Exports
(o, ltd.

Weichai Power (Qingzhou) Drive Control Technology
(o, ltd.

HA80 (52 ERARERDT

BN (L8 RRERARAT

=

HA (2R EDURERLT
B (R ERERRELT
FERBELNERLT

BB (BN BERERLT

181,522,784.00

500,000,000.00

240,000,000.00

300,000,000.00

100,000,000.00

181,522,784.00

500,000,000.00

240,000,000.00

300,000,000.00

100,000,000.00

181,522,784.00

500,000,000.00

240,000,000.00

300,000,000.00

100,000,000.00

100.00% 100.00%

100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%

100.00% 100.00%

- (12,118,687.10)

100.00% 100.00%
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XI. Notes to key items of the parent financial

statements (Continued)
Long-term equity investments (Continued)

As at 30 June 2012, the breakdown of long-term equity investments

4,

under cost method was as follows: (Continued)

Thuzhou Torch Property Development Co, Lt A ERHEREARERAA
Thuzhou Ger Co, Lt hERERELAA

Shangha He Da Auto Accessory o, Lid. LEEREERAA

Dongfeng Offroad Vetice Co, L FEMEERRAA

Mudanjiang Futong Automotive Ar Condioner Co, Ltd. 4 TEERE=FERAT
Weichai Power (Wefang) intensive Logitcs Co, Ltd, 556811 ( %55 E MR ERAT
Shaanxi Heaw-duty MotorCo, Lt REEHTEERAA

Shaanxi Fast Gear Co, Lid. RELLHERERAT

Shaanii Hande A Co, Lt REEESEERAA

Shandong Synergy O o, Lt WFE BARARAT

Baoj Fast Gear Co, Lt BELTRERARLY

FOTON Lovol Heary ndustres o, Lic. ERmER/ILEHERRAT
Thuzhou GearShare Co, Lt fHEERAERAA

Fastem Life nsurance o, Lid. RENERBERLA

New Century Fnance Leasing Co, L. it eHREERAA

Foton Heaup-<uy Machinery Co, Lt ERENRARNERAA

Cost method total A

Investment cost

RRRAEE

532,334 14321
39,163469.71
1541572831
10400,000.00

1,482,116,000.85
1,082,558,680.59
14507,358.03
9426918.00
10986,483.27
45,000,00000
1,680,000.00
£0,000,00000
£1,08,025.00
30,000,000.00

6,058,608,865.56

S R 2 W G ()
201246 H30H (A R%T)

Increase/
reduction
Opening in current
balance period

ok ARER
13592,30167  (13592,301.67)
532,334 14321 =
39,163,469.71 =
1541572831 -
95,882,087.38  (95,882,087.38)
10400,000.00 =
1,482,116,000.85
1,082,558,680.59
14507,358.03 =
9426918.00 =
10986,483.27 °

- 45,000,000.00

1,680,000.00 =
60,000,000.00 =
£1,08,025.00 =
30,000,000.00 =

612308325461 (64474,389.05)

As at 30 June 2012, the breakdown of long-term equity Investments

under equity method was as follows:

Fquiy method ERi
WelchaiPower Wetport ERINERNER

New Energ Engie Co, Ltd BHRERAD
Shangh Xinian Chuzngye vestment o, L. LEERAEREERNA
Shandong Heary Industy Group Finance Co, Lid IFET B HERAT
Shanzhong Fnance Leasig Co, Ltd. LEBERERRAA
Equity method total EREAT

Investment
cost

REARSE

3553930722
45,853,68325
200,000,000.00
180,000,000.00

461392,99047

Increase/
reduction
Opening in current
balance period

LEIL S

55,867,925.76  12,052,229.59
145,034.267.36  (18,136,571.20)

- 200,000,000.00
19089282658 258291020

391,795,019.70  196,498,568.59

B (4H)
RERERE (&)

M20129F6A308 « fAE R HANRIE
ERMINT - (8)

4.

Closing

balance

533347821
39,163469.71
541572831

10,400,000.00
1,482,116,00085

- 1,082,558,680.59

14507,358.03
9426918.00
10986.483.27
45,000,00000
1,680,000.00
£0,000,000.00
£1,068,025.00
30,000,000.00

6,058,608 865.56

Closing
balance

67,920,15.35
126,897,696.16
200,000,000.00
193,475,736.78

588,293,588.29

Percentage of
shareholding

Rt

0.00%
8791%
5.00%
60.00%

000%
5200%
5100%
51.00%

3.06%
46.00%

255%
0.00%

245%

150%
12%

466%

Percentage of
voting rights

v b

000%
8791%
5.00%
60.00%

000%
5200%
5100%
51.00%

3.06%
46.00%

255%
0.00%

245%

150%
12%

466%

Provision for
impairment

AEER

(60,000,000.00)
(61,068,025.00)

((EEREPAL

T B E R B R IE H AR

Provision for
impairment Cash
incurrent ~ dividendin
period
KEiR
HEER

current period

KEREAA

295,725971.65

MN2012F6A308 @ AR RE
RERRMBIT

Percentage of
shareholding

Bt

Percentage of
voting rights

v b

Provision for
impairment

HEER

Provision for
impairment Cash
incurrent ~ dividendin
period
KEiR
REER

current period

KEREAA

1,987,560.00

1,987,560.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

HL'Ll

XI. Notes to key items of the parent financial
statements (Continued)

4. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 4. RERERE(E)
As at 31 December 2011, the breakdown of long-term equity R2011F12 8318 @ KAEREAK
investments under cost method was as follows: B ERANT
Increase/ Provision for
reduction impairment Cash
Opening in current Closing ~ Percentageof ~ Percentage o Provision for incurrent  dividendin
Investment cost balance period balance  shareholding  votingrights  impairment period  current period
¥ e
RENALE Bag 1856 BRg RREE RRELH HEER REEE  AHREAH
WeichaiPower (Wefang) Spare Part Resources o, Ltd. 54807157 B R A BB R AT 10141023834 1014102383 - 10141023834 10000% 10000% - - 11786828405
Weichai Power (Weifang) 01 Co, Lid. B8 (45 BRER AT 1070615911 10706,159.1 - 1070615911 10000% 10000% - - 62068
Weicha Power (Weifang)Casting Co, Lid. B8 (45 SRAR AT 46015000000 2000000000 440,15000000 460,150,000.0 10000% 10000% - - -
Thuzhou TorchSparkplugs Co, Lid. KA ERRERAA 16598405824 185,984,05824 - 18598405824 100.00% 100.00% - - 119781350
Zhuzhou Torch Mechinery Manufacturing Co, Lt KA ERREERRE AT 130898993.14  130898993.14 - 13089899314 10000% 10000% - - =
Thuzhou Torch Auto Lighting Co, L. HiE AR EREARRR AT BI85 B3085 50000000 3836318085 10000% 10000% - - -
Thuzhou Torch Auto Selng Co, L BN ERETHEERERAD 1591786759 1591786759 - 1501786759 10000% 10000% - - -
TorchImport & Export Co,, Lid. NEREOBRERLT BI305498 3397305498 - BB 100.00% 100.00% - - -
WEICHAI POWER MAT AUTOMOTIVE, INC. WEICHAI POWER MAT AUTOMOTIVE, INC. 18300512228 183025,122.28 - 18051228 100.00% 100.00% - - -
Weichai Power (Weifang) Reconstruction Co, Ltd. B8 (45 BR8N 122,00000000 30,00,000.00  92,000,00000  122,000,000.00 100.00% 100.00% - - 1387884078
Weichai Power (Hong Kong) Intemational Development #5811 (2% EBERER AR
(o, td. 18152278400 17854495652 297782748 181,522,784.00 100.00% 100.00% - - -
WeichaiPower (Shangha) Technology Development 590 LBNREBERAA
(o, td. 500,000,00000 300,000,000.00 200,000,000 500,000,000.00 100.00% 100.00% - - -
Wechai Power (Chongging) Western Development #5928 RIERERDT
(o, td. 240,000,00000 20000000000 40,000,000.00  240,000,000.00 100.00% 100.00% - - -
Wechai Power (Befing) Intemationa Resource 9N R ERERRELT
Investment Co, Lt 300,000,000.00 300,000,00000 - 300,000,00000 100.00% 100.00% - - -
injang Equipment Imports and Exports Co, Lt FEREELDERLA - - - - - - (1218687.10) - -
Weicha Power (Qingzhou) Drive ControlTechnology 457 (B0 EERITERAF
(o, Ltd. 100,000,000.00 - 100,000,000.00 100,000,000.00 100.00% 100.00% - - -
Thuzhou Torch Property Development Co,, Ltd. 135930167 1359230167 - 1359230167 94.66% 94,66% - - -
Thuzhou Gear Co, Ltd. 53233474321 330,334,743.21 200,00000000 53233474321 8791% 8791% - - 1363315562
Shanghai He Da Auto Accessory Co, Lid. LERNERERRAR 3916346971 39,163 469.71 - 3916346971 75.00% 75.00% - - 19721868
Dongfeng Off-road Vefice Co, Lt FEHESBERLA T54157837 154157837 - IS8 0.00% 60.00% - - -
Mudanjang Futong Automative A Conditoner Co, Ltd. T BB EZEARA 988208738 95,882,08738 - 5808738 59.84% 5984% - - 5818298
Weichai Power (Wefang) ntensive Logistis o, Ltd. #5800 (55 £HR KR 1040000000 10,400,000 - 1040000000 52.00% 5200% - - -
Shaani Heavy-duty Motor Co, Ltd. RAEYSEARAA 1482,11600085  972,116,00085  510,000,000.00 1,482,116,000.85 51.00% 51.00% B - 10333557010
SheaniFest Gear o, L. RERERARLAT 1,082,558,68059 1,082,558,680.59 - 108255868059 51.00% 51.00% - - 19008345
Shaanii Hande Ave Co, Ltd. RS 1450735803 1450735803 - 1450735803 3.06% 3.06% - - -
Shandong Synery 01l Co,, Ltd 1] 942691800 942691800 - 942691800 46.00% 46.00% - - -
Bao Fast Gear Co, Ltd. gEE 1098648327 1098648327 - 1098648327 255% 255% - - -
FOTON Lovol Heay Industres Co, Ltd, ERE - 7560000000 (75,600,000.00) - 0.00% 0.00% - - -
Thuzhou Gear Share Co, Ltd. KHERRAERAA 168000000 1,680,00000 - 1,680,00000 245% 245% - - -
Eastern Life Insurance Co, Ltd. RHAERBRRAA 60,000,000.00 60,000,000 - 60,00000000 750% 750% (60,000,000.00) - -
New Century Finance Leasing Co,, Ltd. HtReBREARL 61,068,025.00  61,068,025.00 - 6100802500 11.22% 11.22%  (61,068025.00) - -
Foton Heawy-duty Machinery Co, Ltd. BRELEHRAGRLA 30,000,000.00 30,000,000 - 30,000,00000 466% 466% - - -
Cost method total HAERH 6,123,083,25461 459855542113 152452782748 6,123,083,254.61 (133,186,712.10) - A3 73640075
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XI. Notes to key items of the parent financial

statements (Continued)

RS i 25 BT 5 E (48
201246 A30A (A E#¥T)

o B E 3B AR H G
B (5)

4. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 4., REIRERE (&)
As at 31 December 2011, the breakdown of long-term equity M2011F12A8318 @ #FEREK
investments under equity method was as follows: AR -
Increase/ Provision for
reduction impairment Cash
Opening in current Closing ~ Percentageof ~ Percentageof  Provision for incurrent ~ dividendin
Investment cost balance year balance  shareholding  votingrights  impairment year  current year
REHR
REAKLE % KERR EXY BREA  RRERA HEER HERR AEFREMA
Equty method Rt
Weicha Power Westport New Energy Engne Co, Ltd~ $4EI B & BEEBERLT BIONIN  MBAING BIABIE 55879576 00 400 - -
Shangh Xinian Chuzngye vestment o, L. LEERHZRERRAR (585366325 337,16883047 (192,13436311) 14503426736 B3 B3 - 500000000
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co,, Lid. LERERERRAR 180,000,00000 18391346258 6,97936400  190,892,826.58 1957 1957 -
Fquity method total BEEAH 26139099047 56304669218 (171251,67248) 39179501970 - 50,000,000
5. Revenue and cost of sales 5. BEEWARREAE
Revenue Cost of sales
=ELON EES%S
January-June 2012 January-June 2011 January-June 2012 January-June 2011
2012F1-6 8 20115 1-6 2012%1-6 8 20115F1-6
Principal operations TEER
Sale of goods and others B RIEE K 9,062,850,695.28 14,067,157,069.49 6,098,149,172.28 9,310,976,664.51
Hit
Other operations Hin %% 762,001,590.07 1,155,410,860.15 722,637,013.38 1,048,363,329.24

9,824,852,285.35

15,222,567,929.64

6,820,786, 185.66 10,359,339,993.75

Information on principal operations by sectors was as follows:

TEEBNDTREBNT ¢

Revenue Cost of sales
£ JVON EE RS
January-June 2012 January-June 2011 January-June 2012 January-June 2011
2012%1-6 8 20114 1-6 4 2012%1-6 8 20114 1-6 4
Manufacturing of RBEGRE
transportation equipment ~ ZLiE % 9,062,850,695.28 14,067,157,069.49 6,098,149,172.28 9,310,976,664.51
9,062,850,695.28 14,067,157,069.49 6,098,149,172.28 9,310,976,664.51




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XI. Notes to key items of the parent financial
statements (Continued)
Revenue and cost of sales (Continued)

Revenue from the top 5 customers from January to June 2012 is

5.

presented as follows:
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S5 ik 2 B RE (40

201246 308 (A R #T)

B A W] B R IH H RE

B (5)

5. EEWARKA(E)
2012F 1-6 AR AR RFEMEZEIRA

mT

Amount

=8

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd.

Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd.

Faw Jiefang Qingdao Auto Factory

Baotou Northern Benz Heavy Truck
Company Limited

Shandong Lingong Construction
Machinery Co., Ltd.

PREAERTEERAT
EAEAAERNDERIA
—ARHEBER
BEIEAFBRTEARIA

W3RER T Ti2#mM AR AR

2,332,932,268.99
1,729,021,500.85
604,525,260.22

386,688,747.01

285,306,639.32

5,338,474,416.39

Revenue from the top 5 customers from January to June 2011 is

Proportion of

revenue
& E WA Bl
(%)

23.75
17.60
6.15

3.94

2.90

54.34

2001 F1-6 AR AR EFEHNE XA

presented as follows: N
Proportion of
Amount revenue
& R WA LB
(%)
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. BRFRER RSB AR A A 2,951,967,220.49 19.07
Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd. EAEmRERNDBR AR 2,381,420,131.62 15.38
Faw Jiefang Qingdao Auto Factory —AEENE B RER 1,170,741,761.00 7.56
Anhui Hualing Heavy-Duty THEZEAFEAR A A
Automobile Co., Ltd. 535,102,504.27 3.46
Baotou Northern Benz Heavy Truck @58t #H ER BB R A &
Company Limited Penglai Branch ERDRA 588,728,208.55 3.80
7,627,959,825.93 49.27
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XI. Notes to key items of the parent financial
statements (Continued)
6. Investment income

RS i 25 BT 5 E (48
201246 A30A (A E#¥T)

o B E 3B AR H G
B (5)
6. R&EWHE

January-June 2012 January-June 2011
2012%1-6 A 20114 1-6 A

Long-term equity investments under A A EAZ E B R EIRE R E
the cost method

Long-term equity investments under # I EZ E N R PRERE

the equity method
Incl: Income from investment in B BEPRERE Wz
associates
Investment income from disposal of & TRl E4A KK E RS
subsidiaries

Investment income from disposal of [z & H M K EIKREREES
other long-term equity investments ~ HJ#% & Wz

Investment income during the period 57 A # 1 & 4 51 & &= HAfH
in which the Company held S A& R i
available-for-sale financial assets

295,725,971.65 137,979,199.51

40,496,514.43 38,953,343.18

40,496,514.43 38,953,343.18

124,945,110.95 =

28,540,000.00

4,800,000.00 5,600,000.00

465,967,597.03 211,072,542.69

Items of long-term equity investments income under the cost

RAZZENRBRERE KRR SN

method are presented as follows: wm
January-June 2012
20125 1-6 A
Weichai Power (Weifang) Spare Part Resources Co., Ltd. 4468 h (4D ) @R E R AR A 7 99,834,026.80
Weichai Power (Weifang) Reconstruction Co., Ltd. VESEEN N (Mt ) B RIS N A 31,341,240.16
Weichai Power (Weifang) Casting Co., Ltd. LB ) (D) SBIRBR AR 163,434,318.37
Weichai Power (Weifang) Oil Co., Ltd. HELCE) ) (S ) AR A A 1,116,386.32
295,725,971.65
January-June 2011
20114 1-6 1
Weichai Power (Weifang) Spare Part Resources Co., Ltd. #5&) H ) EmERER A A 117,868,284.05
Weichai Power (Weifang) Reconstruction Co., Ltd. LB () BELE N R 13,878,840.78
Weichai Power (Weifang) Oil Co., Ltd. HELEE) ) CHEDh ) AR A A 6,232,074.68

137,979,199.51




January-June 2012
20125 1-6 A

23,873,814.64
4,570,470.20

chai Power Westport RSB AEEFER
New Energy Engine Co., Ltd ZEHEGR A A 12,052,229.59

40,496,514.43

January-June 2011

20114 1-6 A

Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye Investment Co., Ltd. LEEHAIEREBRAT 30,013,042.53

Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. LERMERERRE AR 3,348,106.02
Weichai Power Westport HELEE) I E S TR

New Energy Engine Co., Ltd EERARANA 5,592,194.63

38,953,343.18

As at 30 June 2012, the remittance of the Company’s investment M2012F6 4308 « A"ARIEE WS

income was subject to no significant restriction. i [B] 5 % &5 KPR i o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) A R % B RE ()

30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201296 308 (A R#T)

XI. Notes to key items of the parent financial - B:/A " EEB & H#EEH &+
statements (Continued) B(E)
7. Supplement to cash flow statement 7. ReRERMxER

January-June 2012

January-June 2011

2012%1-6 8 2011 1-6H
Net profit SR 2,014,440,458.31 2,943,840,934.64
Add: Provision for impairment of assets Al : EH42 #)& B B 23,116,341.33 18,431,158.23
Depreciation of fixed assets and & E & ERKE M
investment properties EHEE 168,200,983.06 173,831,643.84
Amortization of intangible assets 4T A B B 3,625,651.30 3,257,125.68
(Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets, REBEEEE -
intangible assets and B\ EEMEAM
other long-term assets RHEEMN
(Wzs) 185k 112,659.82 (2,905,765.56)
Finance expenses B8 B 75,386,454.92 34,021,879.55
Investment income & W (465,967,597.03) (211,072,542.69)
Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax RIEMEREER
assets A, (3B ) 64,448,337.19 88,342,573.29
Increase/(decrease) in deferred tax RSB ESN
liabilities @ Crid) 8,040,000.00 1,166,700.04
Decrease/(increase) in inventories GFErRL,/ (M) 979,968,338.85 131,339,799.39
(Increase)/decrease in operating EEMEREITE B
receivables (), (2,415,819,444.72) (2,518,128,921.69)
(Decrease)/increase in operating EEMEREMTEE W
payables GRLA) /120 (1,899,614,120.62) 1,248,384,614.77
Others Hip (8,040,000.00) (703,466,299.04)
Net cash flow from operating KEEHEEANE
activities mEFRE (1,452,101,937.59) 1,207,042,900.45




30 June 2012
201256 HA30H

315,981.23
7,220,707,392.59

equivalents - 7,221,023,373.82

XII. Comparative Amounts 2 PR R
Some comparative amounts have been restated to conform to the ETHBRBENERER  UFAERFE

presentation requirements for the current year. ZHBEK o
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Supplemental Information on

Financial Statements
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

1.

EJM’%$ =
72 & B

201246 A30A (A E#¥T)

Schedule of extraordinary profit and loss 1~ RN IR AR W AN R

Amount from

January to June 2012

20125 1-6 A2 %

Gains or losses from disposal of non-current assets, including
the offset portion of impairment provision for such assets

Government grants charged in profit or loss for the current
period, except for those closely related to the ordinary
operation and gained constantly at a fixed amount or
quantity according to certain standard based on state
policies

Profit and loss from debt restructuring

Reversal of impairment provision of receivables tested
individually

Gain arising from the excess of fair value of identifiable net
assets of the acquired business over the consideration paid
for business combination

Non-operating income and expenses other than

the above items

FRBEERERD  BEEFR
BEREEFBNNHEES 49,910,979.44
SFAEHBRSNRA M (RERL
BEBZYIER  TEERER
HRE BR-—ERECTHEAEE
R = OB BIRR SN
64,656,803.02

B EHAER 2,857,826.20
BB T RE R A R FUBRE

ZEfEE D 21,240,432.06
E(BEMNEHEENREGEHES
HEBARRFEELAABEE
N

B £l 538 2 N E A ZE MR
Mz 35,457,502.74

174,123,543.46

Tax effect

Fa R e (40,643,221.68)

Effect on minority interests

DERRESEEY (29,162,443.21)

104,317,878.57

The Group recognized extraordinary profit and loss items in accordance AEBEHIFEBHIEREENBERERB(A
with the provisions in Explanatory Announcement on Information FETEFO L A EREFENNEE
Disclosure for Companies Offering their Securities to the Public No. 1 — 9 — FFAEE [ B 7 )( ﬁ%ﬁ’@"t‘:[ZOOS]M

Extraordinary Iltems (CSRC Announcement [2008] No.43).

SRR EBRIT ©
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Supplemental Information on A5 R
Financial Statements (Continued) i 7e &R (48)
30 June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201296 H308 (A R#T)

2. Return on net assets (“RONA”) and earnings 2 ~ 5% & W25 R A0 Bk 25
per share (“EPS”)
January-June 2012 20125 1-6 A

Weighted
average RONA Basic EPS

hn#E ¥ 15
REERSER EXBRKE
(%) (RMB)
(AR¥TT)

Net profit attributable to the Company's EBRARZER
ordinary shareholders s 3R B AR

Net profit attributable to the Company's NG ELEEHEEBREEBR
ordinary shareholders after extraordinary /2 &) & 1 I A% 3R 79 5% A1) 5
profit and loss

January-June 2011 20115 1-6 A
Weighted
average RONA Basic EPS
IniEFEG
FEERAEE EXGRKE
(%) (RMB)
(AR®T)
Net profit attributable to the Company’s FERAREER
ordinary shareholders J& 3R 6% 7 17.48 2.10
Net profit attributable to the Company's MR FELEEHEBERFBR
ordinary shareholders after extraordinary A 3 A R R A% A
profit and loss 16.95 2.04
The Company holds no potential ordinary shares that are dilutive. AARERBEEL LR
The Group presents RONA and EPS in accordance with Compilation Rules AEEEFEE RS ENERK SN R
No.9 for Information Disclosure by Companies Offering Securities to the KRR B B (L FTEEFA LA E
Public — Calculation and Disclosure of Return on Net Assets and Earnings B ERIBARNE N — FEE W R

per Share (Revised in 2010) of the CSRC. Weas By E R #HFE)(2010F 5] RTE -
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Other Information

Directors” and Supervisors’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

As at 30 June 2012, the interests and short position (if any) of the directors,
the chief executive and the supervisors in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of

Listed Issuers (“Model Code"), were as follows:

oA =R

3 MR R By S HE B B
FAHE 2
R=B——%A~A=+0 E% BETHAR
REFNAR A REIEEEE(EERES R
516091 ([ 3 % R A0SR ) ) SEXVER) O BRER + 4B
BRGRESST - BAREESROEEAE
32 MEARAAFEOERMARE - AR
I A A R TRER S0 EETR (B2
FRDAEEMEARAREAHARSHAR
AREERAR (BT -

Percentage of
the issued share

Number of Number of capital of
Capacity “A" shares held  "H" shares held the Company
HAATE&IT
27 AR EE FEHRE R RAEBD L
Name of Director
BEEpR
Tan Xuguang Beneficial owner 13,760,000 (Note 1) - 0.83%
BEX ExnfBA (BRF&EET)
Xu Xinyu Beneficial owner 3,200,000 (Note 1) - 0.19%
wEHE BB A (PRFEET)
Sun Shaojun Beneficial owner 3,200,000 (Note 1) - 0.19%
BRLE ExnfBA (BfFEE1)
Zhang Quan Beneficial owner 3,200,000 (Note 1) - 0.19%
IR SR BB A (PRFEET)
Liu Huisheng Beneficial owner 1,920,000 (Note 1) - 0.12%
2k ExnfB A (BRF&EET)
Yeung Sai Hong (Note 3) Held by controlled corporation 52,640,000 (Note 2) 409,010 3.18%
S EE3) HXEEE A (P3E2)
Julius G. Kiss (Note 4) Held by controlled corporation 34,400,000 (Note 2) - 2.06%
Julius G. Kiss (EFIHG. 5 H7) REEEERA (M5E2)
(P EE4)
Zhang Zhenhua (Note 5) Interest held by spouse 19,600 - 0.001%

RIRE (MHEE5)

EBHA 2R



Other Information (Continued)

Directors” and Supervisors” Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (Continued)

Notes:

1. These shares were derived from the previous domestic shares of the Company. The
domestic shares were ordinary shares issued by the Company, with a Renminbi
denominated par value of RMB1.00 each, which were subscribed for and paid up in
Renminbi or credited as fully paid up. These shares became “A” shares of the Company
upon the “A” share listing of the Company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

2. These were previously foreign shares of the Company. The foreign shares were ordinary
shares issued by the Company, with a Renminbi-denominated par value of RMB1.00 each,
which were subscribed for and paid up in a currency other than Renminbi. These shares
became “A" shares of the Company upon the “A” share listing of the Company on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

3. Yeung Sai Hong, a Non-executive Director, was directly and indirectly interested in
the issued share capital of Peterson Holdings Company Limited (“Peterson”), which in
turn held 52,640,000 “A" shares in the Company. Yeung Sai Hong was also indirectly
interested in the issued share capital of Master Hand Investments Limited, which in turn
held 409,010 “H" shares in the Company.

4. Julius G. Kiss, a Non-executive Director, was indirectly interested in the entire issued share
capital of IVM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft m.b.H. (“IVM"), which in turn held
34,400,000 “A” shares in the Company.

5. Zhang Zhenhua, an independent non-executive Director, was deemed to be interested
in 19,600 “A" shares in the Company which were beneficially held by his wife, Ms. Wu
Miaodi.

6. All the shareholding interests listed in the above table are “long” position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2012, none of the directors, the chief
executive nor the supervisors had an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to

the Model Code for Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed Issuers.
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HoAth & R (48)

e

o3 B R By M HE B B
o hE 2 (48)

B e

1. ZEBRDZARARRTAER - REBRRARE]
TOEEER - UARKIIE SREBAR®1.00
T UARBRBREBRIARISHE - 2ER
MRARBARERZ T EHEKARREZARK

2. ZEBRMDZARBARRINER - INEBRBA R
TOEEER - UARKIIE SREBAR®1.00
T MARBUIIEERERSR - 2EBRHR
ARRARERRT EMRRBAREZARK

3. IRTEEHEMEELEEREENERER
ARI([BH D ERITRA#E - MBFHAURFHE
52,640,000k AN A BIARR AR 1 #5147 5 A4 o @ 32
#5 Master Hand Investments Limited & 21T & 2K
#25 - fMaster Hand Investments Limited B #H&
409,010 AN 2 RIHARAR 15 °

4. FEHITE EJulius G. Kiss(EFIHG. 58 MEREE
B FIVMEME AL RN ER AR ([IVM]) 25
BEITIRA - MIVMEI#E A 34,400,000 A A A]A
f&R& S ©

5. BWUERTEERIREFER BN 19,600lR AR AA
BRIRHDPEEES  MZERNVBEZTHERL

TEHFNA -

6. EXRMIIMMABREERGRER -

BREXFFEEEN RZE—ZFA=+H "
BMEEE SSTHRABREERARRHHEAL
AR EE D - BEROREFTERERE
AEF R ERGIE 352 1GR7AF B M B Ao fit A RD 8%
MEZIRE  IRBELTARERETIERX
ZNRETREBNANRARNERIORR -
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State-onned shares

State-owned legal person shares
Shares held by other domestic entities
Including: - Shares held by domestic
non-state-owned legal persons
Shares held by domestic natural
persons
Shares held by other foreign entities
Including: Shares held by overseas legal
persons
Shares held by overseas natural
persons
Non-restricted circulating shares
RMB ordinary shares
Domestic listed foreign shares
Overseas listed foreign shares

Others

Total number of shares

Exik
BEZARR
AfbmERKR

HE o BREEEEA

ik
BRARARE

HERKR

A BONEARK

BHaRARR

ERERERS

ARBEER

BEREHIER

S5 EASVARR

At

Rirag

373,224,59%

118,520,000

71,160,000

47,360,000

78,440,000

78,440,000

1,095,906,772

691,106,772

404,800,000

1,666,091,366

2240%

711%

421%

2.84%

411%

471%

65.78%

41.48%

24.30%

100.00%

373,224,594

118,520,000

71,160,000

47,360,000

78,440,000

78,440,000

1,095,906,772

691,106,772

404,800,000

1,666,091,366

2240%

7.11%

421%

2.84%

471%

471%

65.78%

41.48%

2430%

100.00%



Other Information (Continued)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and
Substantial Shareholders” Shareholdings
(Continued)

2. Time over which restricted shares can be listed 2.

and traded (as at 30 June 2012)
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ot Bk ()
B A 52 Bl A S B B R B DU
(%)

BEREFRGERODA LTS K
B(R=ZF—=-FXA=1H)

Additional
shares that can
be listed and
traded upon Remaining Remaining
expiry of restricted  non-restricted
the restricted circulating circulating
Time period shares shares Description
PR 5 HA i T 45
AEmRS BREHRN IR &S R4
i ROHE ROHESHE ROBEHRE HH
30th April, 2013 570,184,594 - — Under the commitments of Weichai Group Holdings
—E—=F Limited and subject to such commitments, none of the
mA=+H 124,236,640 shares of the Company held by it shall

be listed and traded on any stock exchange system, or
otherwise transferred or managed by other person on
trust or repurchased by the Company within 36 months
commencing from 30 April 2010; the 15,961,860
additional shares of the Company acquired by it are subject
to a lock-up period commencing from 16 August 2010 to
30 April 2013, during which no such shares will be listed
and traded on any stock exchange system or otherwise
transferred or managed by other person on trust or
repurchased by the Company. Upon the share issuing by
conversion of capital reserve in the interim period of 2010,
the restricted circulating shares of the Company held by it
amounted to 280,397,000 shares.

RIBHLEEREBAR AR R ENER R FZEE
HIHFTRR  HFTHE A /12,423.6648 I AN QA HY
D BE2010F4830B =+ NEARTE BB E
FRGEGHERGRAE M AN N EEREZ M
ABBEZERYD  CTHARRDE  HATEEH
1,596.186 B AR AIM KK E2010F8A16 HERE
SHE  HEHIZE2013F48308 1k » REHTFHM -
TERABFAFARIZFHER S E AR F R 8
FUEAMAETEZERD b T EHAARMBE -
2010F P HIEARNTESHEBR AR ZARFAEAR
RIMAE R EEMHIRD 528,039.78% -
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Other Information (Continued)

HRBORHBERDE

oAt &R (48)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and & 4<% B Fin 3= 22 5% 3R F¢ % 1 90
)

Substantial Shareholders” Shareholdings

(Continued)

2. Time over which restricted shares can be listed 2.

and traded (as at 30 June 2012) (Continued)

Additional
shares that can
be listed and
traded upon
expiry of

the restricted
period

PR € 5 i 7 15
ALEHRS
ROHE

Time

i

Remaining
restricted
circulating
shares

BRERA
R B EERE

Remaining
non-restricted
circulating
shares

PR E RN
MR AD BB ER AR

(%
BEREFGERODAT LT RS K

BM(R=ZZE——FXA=1+H)
(4&)

Description

ans

e

Under the commitments of Weifang Investment Company,
Peterson Holdings Company Limited, Fujian Longyan
Construction Machinery (Group) Company Limited,
IVM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft m.b.H,
Shandong Enterprise Trust Operation Company Limited
and Guangxi Liugong Group Limited and subject to such
commitments, the lock-up period for the 30,898,480,
26,320,000, 24,080,000, 12,900,000, 11,500,000 and
7,184,880 restricted circulating shares of the Company
subject to lock-up terms held by the above parties
respectively will be extended for another three years since
the expiration on 30 April 2010, which means no such
shares will be listed and traded on any stock exchange
system or otherwise transferred or managed by other
person on trust or repurchased by the Company within
36 months commencing from the expiration of lock-
up period on 30 April 2010. Upon the share issuing by
conversion of capital reserve in the interim period of 2010,
the restricted circulating shares of the Company held by
such six companies amounted to 61,796,960, 52,640,000,
48,160,000, 25,800,000, 23,000,000 and 14,369,760
shares, respectively.

BEHHMEERR  BHNIERERAR - BEES
TEEM(EE)ERAA - B FIVME T HH %
WERAR - ILREPHETELERNDERAR - &
U TEEAR R A EE &G KIS 5% 5 &G AT
R - EO R ARARR3,089.8488 % * 2,6328
& - 2,408& % + 1,290& /% ~ 1,1508 % + 718.4888
BAREEEHRMDBE2010F4 A308 2 B2 B K
FE=F BIBE2010F4A30BBEH R BE=1X
HAARATEBBEESFRIEFHER S HIAE MR
FRAEEXZIMABTEZERS B TIEHARF
ElfE - 2010F A EREANTECEBIER A REHEE -
PR ARRAFEARARANEREGRGRD DA A
6,179.696 B i 5,264 8 & - 4,816 B - 2,580 8
A% ~ 2,30085 0% « 1,436.976E % -



Other Information (Continued)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and
Substantial Shareholders” Shareholdings

(Continued)

2. Time over which restricted shares can be listed 2.

and traded (as at 30 June 2012) (Continued)

Additional
shares that can
be listed and
traded upon
expiry of

the restricted
period

PR & HA i 3T 15
ALEHRS
ROHE

Time

i [

Remaining
restricted
circulating
shares

BRERN
B 10 BB R

Remaining
non-restricted
circulating
shares

ERRERM
B 10 BB R
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ot Bk ()
B A 52 Bl A S B B R B DU
(%)

EREKRHEBROBAT LTRSS
B(R=ZE——FXA=+H)
(4&)

Description

458

Under the commitments of Zhuzhou State-owned Assets
Investment Holdings Company Limited and subject to such
commitments, the lock-up period for the 8,330,437 shares
of the Company subject to lock-up terms held by it will be
extended for another three years since the expiration on
30 April 2010, which means no such shares will be listed
and traded on any stock exchange system or otherwise
transferred or repurchased by the Company within 36
months commencing from the expiration of lock-up period
on 30 April 2010. Upon the share issuing by conversion of
capital reserve in the interim period of 2010, the restricted
circulating shares of the Company held by it amounted to
16,660,874 shares.

BEMMNTEEEERESEREEER QAL AR
BB ZERBERTRR ERFEHLERA
833.0437B R BEREEMHIRHD B2010F4 A30H 2
“HEREF=F  BBE2010F4A30BREH M
HE=1TXEARN TE2BRAZFIHRHNHEZS
SAEMAEMTREFE b T SHAQFEE 2010
FHHEALNESEERASTRERE Z27FAE
RATIMBREGEHRDA1,666.08748 % ©
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Other Information (Continued)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and
Substantial Shareholders” Shareholdings

(Continued)

2. Time over which restricted shares can be listed 2.

HESRE N RHBRA A

and traded (as at 30 June 2012) (Continued)

Additional
shares that can
be listed and
traded upon
expiry of

the restricted
period

PR €5 5 W 7 15
ALEHRS
RoOHE

Time

i

Remaining
restricted
circulating
shares

BRERN
R B EERE

Remaining
non-restricted
circulating
shares

ERRERM
MR A0 Bl B BR AR

ot Bk ()
B A 52 Bl A S B B R B DU
(#1)

EREKRHEBROAT LTRSS E
BM(R=ZZE——FXA=1+H)
(4&)

Description

5t B

Under the commitments of the 24 natural person
shareholders (including Tan Xuguang) and subject to such
commitments, no shares of the Company held by them
will be listed and traded on any stock exchange system
or otherwise transferred or managed by other person on
trust or repurchased by the Company within 36 months
commencing from 30 April 2010. Upon the share issuing
by conversion of capital reserve in the interim period of
2010, the restricted circulating shares of the Company held
by the 24 natural person promoter shareholders amounted
to 47,360,000 shares.

REEBHAE 2428 ARARE L ENFEFRNLZEZE
AR - EABENARQRAMNBRNIEE20104F
AR30RB=FTAEAATEBRBESLRSAFSEIER
FEANEMEMARNEREIZTMATEZERD -
twAEHRAATEMEE - 2010F P HIEARTES EILHK
REREWE 248 8AANBRABREFEARFW
EREEERHNDHET4,7368 MK



Other Information (Continued)

Shareholdings of the Substantial Shareholders (as
at 30 June 2012)
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HoAt E R (31)

FEEB RS RAR OO = F — 2
EAH=ETH)

Total number of Shareholders ~ The number of shareholders is 164,575 among & 5 42 2 AR 48t 164,575F « Hh
which 164,291 are shareholders of “A” shares AR 164,291 F @ HARAR R
and 284 are shareholders of “H" shares. 284F o
Shareholdings of the top ten shareholders A10BEREREFERER
Number of
Approximate restricted Number of
percentage of Total number circulating shares pledged
Name of shareholder Type of Shareholder shares held (%) of shares held shares held or frozen
HFRELH REERE EHRHREN
IRR & B RERME B (%) FREBH MHERDHE BR&EHE
HKSCC Nominees Limited Foreign shareholder 24.16% 402,570,395 - N/A
ERRREFREAFRAA HNERRER RA
Weichai Group Holdings Limited State-owned legal 16.83% 280,397,000 280,397,000 -
HEEREERRA A person
BAEZEA
Weifang Investment Company State-owned legal 3.71% 61,796,960 61,796,960 -
HTIRE AR person
BEEA
Fujian Longyan Construction Domestic non-state- 3.26% 54,250,200 48,160,000 -
Machinery (Group) Company owned legal person
Limited BRFEEZEA
BEREEIE#M(EE)ARAF
Peterson Holdings Company Limited  Overseas legal person 3.16% 52,640,000 52,640,000 -
HETERER AT BINEA
Shenzhen Chuangxin Investment Domestic non-state- 2.49% 41,533,431 - -
Group Co., Ltd owned legal person
RITRIFREREFRAA BRFEBEA
IVM Technical Consultants Wien Overseas legal person 2.06% 34,400,000 25,800,000 -
Gesellschaft m.b.H BINEA
B0 FIIVM B T 74 S 4 10 4 B R
NS
Shandong Enterprise Trust Domestic non-state- 1.7% 28,400,000 23,000,000 -
Operation Company Limited owned legal person
LWRECERELERNARAA BNEBEEZEA
Zhuzhou State-owned Assets State-owned legal 1.00% 16,660,874 16,660,874 14,400,000
Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd person
HNTEBEEEREEREE BEEA
BRAT
Guangxi Liugong Group Co., Ltd State-owned legal 0.86% 14,369,760 14,369,760 -

FEANIEEARAR

person

BEBZEA

275
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Other Information (Continued) HAbE R ()

Shareholdings of the Substantial Shareholders (as 3= % JB 3 5 B % UL (it %
at 30 June 2012) (Continued) FEAH=1TH)(H)

Shareholdings of the top ten non-restricted BI10BEREKREREFRIER
shareholders

Number of the
non-restricted

circulating
Name of shareholder shares held Types of shares
BEERERE
RRAH RGOBE RGES
HKSCC Nominees Limited 402,570,395 Overseas listed foreign shares
ERBRREEAREBEABRA TN E T INE AR
Shenzhen Chuangxin Investment Group Co., Ltd 41,533,431 RMB ordinary shares
RITEFIREEEBR A A AR E @R
Bank of China— 5 HEAFI00RFAURARNEHESFREES 12,736,287 RMB ordinary shares
FERIT-SHERZTI00RGERAMN BRI S REES AR TR
Boshi Value Growth Fund 11,692,249 RMB ordinary shares
BEREEERESFREES AR BR
Agricultural Bank of China—FEBZOKERERFHFILEES 9,600,522 RMB ordinary shares
PFRERERT-HBROAERRENIESFREES AR L BR
IVM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft m.b.H 8,600,000 RMB ordinary shares
B33 NI VM BT 54 S 4t A A BR 2 AR EBR
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China — B2 #/E 5 100385 & 5 8,520,674 RMB ordinary shares
KEE® AR L E R
FETERIT -RBRAEI00REBESFREES
Fujian Longyan Construction Machinery (Group) Company Limited 6,090,200 RMB ordinary shares
REEELIERWM(EE)BRAF AR L@ AR
Shandong Enterprise Trust Operation Company Limited 5,400,000 RMB ordinary shares
IWERAPERELERNDBRRAA] AR E @R
China Minsheng Banking Corp — $RZE R 10038 81 7 AL 75 5 5,345,633 RMB ordinary shares
KEE® AR E @R

PERERT -REZFI00BEIREIFRELS

Save as the aforementioned, it is not certain whether there is any connected 4 F i[53 4N » AN AT RAMERT+ 4B E N E
relationship among the top ten shareholders and the other top ten non- {EI+ R EBREKERECEEEFAEHE
restricted shareholders, or whether there is any acting in concert relationship & - R NHEELEE —HTEAT ©

among them.



Other Information (Continued)

Substantial Shareholders

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO (including interests filed with The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited) shows that as at 30 June 2012, the following persons (other than
the directors, the chief executive and the supervisors) had the following interests
and short positions (if any) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company:
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HoAth & R (48)

e

FEEBR
ARBRBRELZMPEERIFEIB6HRFENTE
BRELMBEANEEHSIZMER QB HR
MAZ)BER RZTE—=—F~A=1+8 ' TIA
T(EF RREBASREFHRINERRFR
i XA R HA TR R R (WF)

Percentage Percentage
Long/ of share capital of share capital Percentage
Short Number of  comprising only Number of ~ comprising only of total issued
Name Capacity position Ashares Ashares H shares H shares share capital
#8/ EARRA fEHRBA  HERTRAEH
8 at *A AREER Bl HE BB BAl BAk
Weichai Group Holdings Limited (Note 2) Benefi_cia\ owner Long 140,198,500 22.23% — - 16.83%
HEEREBAR AR () ERBAA e
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd. (Note 1) (Note 2) He@ by controlled corporation Long 140,198,500 22.23% — — 16.83%
WRETEEERAR (H3E1) (FzE2) AR AERR e
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission  Held by controlled corporation Long 140,198,500 22.23% — — 16.83%
of Shandong Province (“Shandong SASAC") (Note 1) (Note 2) BXiZZE#A e
WRABRREEEERZAE(URERZ ) (M)
(MzF2)
Lazard Asset Management LLC Investment manager Long = = 60,733,557 15.00% 3.65%
faaE g8
JPMorgan Chase & Co. Beneficial owner Long — — 13,137,023 3.24% 0.79%
ERZBEA fte
Custodian - Corporation/approved Long — — 19,826,963 4.90% 1.19%
lending agent e
REA -/ RAREREA
32,963,986 8.14% 1.98%
Beneficial owner Short — — 7,323,831 1.81% 0.43%
BERAERA e
The Capital Group Companies, Inc. Investment manager Long — — 32,372,600 8.00% 1.94%
RERE e
Schroder Investment Management Limited Investment manager Long — — 28,383,000 7.01% 1.70%
REME e
Lazard Emerging Markets Equity Portifolio Investment manager Long - - 23,707,500 5.86% 1.42%
RELE e
Morgan Stanley Interest of corporation controlled Long — — 21,355,719 5.28% 1.28%
by the substantial shareholder e
AR RFEH 0 EE R
Interest of corporation controlled Short — — 18,000,598 4.45% 1.08%
by the substantial shareholder e
AR RFEH =R R
Notes: BiaE
1. State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Shandong Province 1. LWREAEEEEBEEREEZE8g([LWRREZ D

("Shandong SASAC") held the entire share capital of Shandong Heavy Industry Group
Co., Ltd., which in turn held the entire share capital of Weichai Group Holding Limited
(formerly known as Weifang Diesel Engine Works).

2. The number of A shares held by Weichai Group Holdings Limited (and hence the deemed
interest by Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd. and Shandong SASAC) as shown
above does not take into consideration the Company’s bonus issue of A shares on 6
December 2010 as there is no disclosure of interest obligation under the SFO where there
is no change in percentage of shareholdings for a substantial shareholder. As at 30 June
2012, the number of A shares held by Weichai Group Holdings Limited per the register of
A shareholders stand at 280,397,000 shares.

BURETEEARABNZH/RA - MIURET
SEERQAFEMEERERFR AR (FIE A4
T SR B 2 AP -

2. AR IEREBBRARBFENAREE (K
ALRETEEERARRILEEEZNE B
EREZ) WA MARGFR2010F12 A6 HMA
R R E - REREE BAREFIR G &2
FNBERTITEESRAERABETHEZRES
F-RZE—ZFXRNA=-ZTHMARKREZM - 4
SLERERBRABMARESEA280,397,000
f% °
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Other Information (Continued)

Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of any other
relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the Company as
at 30 June 2012.

Emolument Policy
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regarded to the Group’s operating results,

individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Retirement Schemes

The Company participates in a defined contribution retirement insurance
scheme organized by the PRC municipal government for its PRC employees and
operates a mandatory provident fund scheme for its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a certain percentage of payroll costs (PRC) and

a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries (Hong Kong).

The Company’s pension cost charged to the income statement for the financial

year is set out in Note V.26 to the financial statements.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures
At no time during the Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors and the supervisors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,

the Company or any other body corporate.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
of the Company
During the Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Pre-Emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of the PRC, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

HoAt E R (3])

EER R (5])

BEXBBEEN  R-F-—FAAS+AAR
A3 0 45 AV E A 2 B BT MR AN B FE T H A
B TAR -

¥t I BUR
AR EIE B O F BIE B B E B R REREN
B - ABR TR -

ARREEOHMAFHE A REEEARRE
B EARRRAE B A R R

E °

XN
ARBRETEES2EDBETHRTESNRE
HRKRRETE - X RBERELERESE
& HRDBREIEXA(FEINETES LR
BEEAF(FE)NBDLAEL -

AR BN AW B EE RIS RN RIRE KA
R RRMER - 26 °

Jii S TR A B A o 1Y K P
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Other Information (Continued)

Major Customers and Suppliers
The aggregate sales during the Period attributable to the Group’s five largest

customers were less than 30% of the Group's total sales.

The aggregate purchases during the Period attributable to the Group's five

largest suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Period did a director, a supervisor,
an associate of a director or a shareholder of the Company, which to the
knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital,

have an interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) comprises all
the independent non-executive directors of the Company. The chairman of the
Audit Committee is Mr. Liu Zheng, an independent non-executive director. Mr.
Liu has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, for
the purpose of such appointment. Throughout the Period, the Audit Committee
discharged its responsibilities, reviewed and discussed the financial results and
internal control system of the Company. In accordance with the requirements of
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules, the Audit Committee has reviewed the audited

consolidated financial statements for the Period.

Compliance with Code on Corporate Governance
Practices in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
Throughout the Period, other than the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer being performed by Mr. Tan Xuguang (“Mr. Tan"), the
Company has complied with all the code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (effective until 31 March 2012) and the Corporate
Governance Code (effective from 1 April 2012) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules.

Mr. Tan is in charge of the overall management of the Company. The Company
considers that the combination of the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer can promote the efficient formulation and implementation
of the Company’s strategies which will enable the Group to grasp business
opportunities efficiently and promptly. The Company considers that through the
supervision of its Board and its independent non-executive directors, there is

adequate balance of power and authority in place.
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Other Information (Continued)

Compliance with the Model Code

During the Period, the Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of all
directors, the directors have confirmed that they have complied with the

required standard set out in the Model Code for the Period under review.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at the date of this interim

report.

Approval of the Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements

The audited consolidated financial statements for the Period were approved by
the Board on 30 August 2012.

Publication of the Interim Report on the
Websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
the Company

The 2012 Interim Report will be despatched to the shareholders as well as made
available on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk

and the Company's website at www.weichai.com.
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: Section A, 197, Fu Shou East Street, High Technology Industrial Development Zone, Weifang, Shandong Province
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1 261001

: 800 860 3066
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: http://www.weichai.com



	封面

	目錄
	公司資料
	財務概要
	主席報告書
	管理層討論與分析
	審計報告
	合併資產負債表
	合併利潤表
	合併股東權益變動表
	合併現金流量表
	公司資產負債表
	公司利潤表
	公司股東權益變動表
	公司現金流量表
	財務報表附註
	財務報表補充資料
	其他資料
	封底



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.6
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /sRGB
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
    /CFangSong-Light
    /CGuLi-Bold
    /CGuYin-Bold
    /CHei-UltraBold
    /CHei2-Bold
    /CHei2-Xbold
    /CHei3-Bold
    /CJNgai-Bold
    /CKan-Xbold
    /CNganKai-Bold
    /CO2Yuen-XboldOutline
    /COYuen-Xbold
    /COYuen-XboldOutline
    /CPo-Bold
    /CPo3-Bold
    /CSong3-Medium
    /CSu-Medium
    /CXLi-Medium
    /CXing-Medium
    /CXingKai-Bold
    /CYuen-SemiMedium
    /MBei-Bold
    /MHei-Bold
    /MHei-Light
    /MHei-Medium
    /MHei-Xbold
    /MKai-Medium
    /MKai-SemiBold
    /MLi-Bold
    /MNgai-Bold
    /MSung-Light
    /MSung-Medium
    /MSung-Xbold
    /MYuen-Light
    /MYuen-Medium
    /MYuen-Xbold
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 200
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 200
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 300
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHT <>
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToRGB
      /DestinationProfileName (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
      /DestinationProfileSelector /UseName
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles true
      /MarksOffset 0
      /MarksWeight 0.283460
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /NA
      /PageMarksFile /JapaneseWithCircle
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


